Improving our
customer experience

Annual Report & Accounts 2014

0000000000

OOOOOOOOOOOOOO




Improving our
customer experience

Our aspiration 1s to be the leading personal
and small business general insurer in the UK
That 1s why our customers are at the heart of
everything we do

Our performance has enabled us to invest
in improving experiences for them To

be the best, we will continue expanding
our capabilities, enhancing our products,
and improving our services

These case studies reveal how we are
improving our customer experience

Making it easier Expanding our Improving our
for our customers customer offering customer support
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Direct Line Group (the “Group”) 1s Britain’s
leading personal motor and home nsurer!

We operate a multirbrand, mult-product
and mul-chstnbution channel business that
covers the majority of customer segments for
personat lines general insurance and small
and medivm-sized enterprise commercial
msurance Qur brands offer motor, home,
rescue, pet, fravel and commercial products

Read more about our siategy on page 16

Visit our website or downloed our cpp
www directinegroup com
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We sell directly over the phone,
“& internet and through the UK's main
price comparison websites

Improving customer interachon
through optimised websites for

smartphones and tablets

‘Customers are able to get

g live updates on the progress

of their motor reparr
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Making it easier
for our customers

Notes

1 Compared to 2013

2 Avera e of ’ quole and b ond service
webc ats for the s mon
31 December 2014 for the Grou ‘s
own brands Direct Line, Churchill and
Privilege for motor and home products

We aim fo improve the
efhciency and effectiveness
of our distribution How?
By focusing on customer
value and our digital
capability to enable us to
provide straightforward
products that meet our
customers’ needs

We rolled out new websites for the
Group's motor brands o make it
easier for customers 1o purchase a
pohcy We olso infroduced o new
customer service web chat channel,
making 1l easier for customers fo
speak to us while on the go

8l

increase in Motor insurance
purchased on a smartphone'

1,800

web chats per day?

www directlinegroup com 3



Group highlights

Advancing our
strategic plans

We achieved a good set of results and hit our financial targets
while conhnuing to deliver our strategic priorities

168

Return on tangible equity’

Ongoing? and International

2013 16 0%
2012 11 5% (pro forma 13 4%}

Our financial target

15%

50

Combined operating ratio®

Ongoing operahions?

2013 952%
2012 98 8%

Our hnancial target

95% 10 97% 1n 2014

$9/ 3P

Total cost base?

Ongoing and International

2013 £1,031 9m
2012 £1,136 8m

Our financial target

Approximately £1,000m in 2014

Financial highlights

Gross wnitten premium
— ongoing operations? {£m)

£30994m

Notes

Operahing proft
- ongong operatons? £m)

£3506.0m

Proht before tax
- confinuing operations? {£m)

£4568m

1 Retun on tongible equity {"ReTE"} 15 cdjusted proht after tax kom ongoing operatons and the Inarnotione! division {discontnued operchons) divided by Ihe

Group's averoge fongible shareholders equiy Proht offer tax 1s odjusted 1o exclude the Runroff se
of subsidiones, and 15 sioed ofter charging tax fusing the LK standard tox rate of 21 5%, 2013

ent, (eslrucrunn? ond other one-off costs ond gain on disposol
3 25%) For 20

2, pro forma RoiE 1s based on the return on

tangible equity but assumes that the copitol actions foken by the Group pror to the iniho! public offenng {£ 1 billion dridend poyment and £500 million longterm
subordinoted debt 1ssue} occurred on 1 Jenuary 2012

Ongoing operanons include the Group's ongong divisions Motor Home Rescue and other personat hines, and Commerciol It excludes the Internonanol divsion
which 1s classified as disconnnued cperations, the Runoff segment and restiuctunng and other cneoff costs

Combined aperoting raio 1s the sum of the loss commission and expense ralios The raho 15 @ measure of the omouns of claims casts, commission and expenses
compated 1o nel eamed pramium generated

Oper?[hng expenses and cloims hondling expenses from angoing operations and Infernatenal k excludes the Runoff segment and restuciunng and other

one-oif costs

[ S # B

For 2014 and 2013 continuing operations includes oll ochviies other than Intemahonal

Direct Line Group Annucl Repart & Accounts 2014




Highlights

Financial lighhghts

 Gross wiitten premium from ongoing operations 3 8% lower
for 2014 compared with 2013, reflecting disciplined
approach 1o underwniing in Molor and Home operations,
trends improved dunng the yeor

Combined operating ratio from ongoing operations of

©5 0% for 2014, an improvement of O 2 percentage points
on 2013 (95 2%) ncluding stable contnbulion from

prior year reserve releases of £397 6 million

(2013 £395 8 million)

Stable operoting preft from ongoing operations of £506 0
mithon for 2014 (2013 £509 & million), while tokal Group
statutory prokt before tax for conbnuing operations rose

12 2% to £456 8 million (2013 £407 3 million)

Retrn on fangible equity of 16 8% for 2014

(2C13 16 0%)

4 8% increase n fincl' dnadend per share 1o 8 8 pence per
share and second special interim dividend of 4 O pence per
share Total dvidends for 2014 of 27 2 pence per share
{2013 20 6 pence per shore)

*

Strategic and operahonal highlights

* All inihal public offering and 2014 published 1argets
either met or exceeded Group combined operating ratio,
Commercral combined operanng raho, 1ol cost base,
and return on langible equity

Ongoing mvestment in capabiliiy supparting profitabibity
across Group wih all divisions now making a matenal
contrrbution

Announced binding agreement for the sale of Internahoenal
division for €550 milhon {£430 1 million?)

Contnued achve caprial management with 24 6% of
inihal public offening price already returned 1o sharehcldars,
nsing to 31 9% when the final’ and second special infenm
dividends are included This excludes the expected retumn
of copital essocimted with the sole of the Group's
international dwvisien

Focus on UK reatfirmed with cear strategse cm of making
insurance much easier and betler value for customers

Dividend per share’
- total Group {pence)

2/ 2p 25.5p

Notes

Adjusted earnings per share — diluted®
—ongoing and Intermnational {pence)

Eumnings per share — basic*
{pence]

240p

1 The Boord hos resolved this year ko poy an intenm dridend 1n heu of o finol dwidend see poge 45, ond references 1n thrs document 1o 'final dvidand for 2074
are fo be constued as references 1o tis intenm dridend I this document the second specicl didend s referred to separaiely from the final dvidend This
enables more opproprote companson of the 2013 final dvidend  Both the second special intenm dmvidend and the binal dwidend will be paid together s one
payment For 2012, pro forma fulbyeor dindend 15 bosed on the final dividend of 8 O pence per shore, representing tworthirds of the fullyear payout rahio

2 Cash scle proceeds receved in Evros hove been converted to Pound Sterfing using the rate wathin the designoted forengn currency hedge contract

3 Agusted eamings per share ~ dilued, includes ongoing operations and the internaucnal dwvision [discontinued aperations) and excludes the Run-off segment
restrucluning ond other oneoff costs and the gain on disposal of subsidianes [using UK standord tox rate of 21 5%, 2013 23 25%)

4 For 2014 and 2013 bosic somings per share 15 presented for continuing operatons and excludes discontinued operanons 2812 15 for total Group

www direcllinegroup com
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Group at a glance

Protecting our cusfomers

We have multiple brands, products and distribution channels.
Each enables our customers to choose the nght cover to protect
their cars, homes, holidays, businesses and pets

Qur brands

Direct Line has maintaimed ihe herttage of ifs brand in the UK
by selling products direct to customers by phone and internet
only We target cuslomers with a high brand offity, focusing
on a quick and skraightforward customer expenence

www directhine com

Direct Line for Business 15 an extension of the Direct Line
brand It 1s our direct commercial insurance birand for small
businesses in the UK that have straightforward commercial
MSUrGNCe fegurements

www directlineforbusiness co uk

Churchill 1s o household nome with products marketed i the
UK by phone and inlernel, including by prce companson
websites {“PCWSs") We forgel customers with a high brend
atinity and that value the need for support

www churchill com

Privilege forgets customers who mainly buy through PCWs
We focus on provding a quick customer expenence ai the
best pnce

www privilege com

Note

1 The Royal Bank of Scetland Group ple, including National Westminsier Bank ple
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Green Flag 1s our roadside rescue ond recovery produci,
which 15 sold both os a slondalone service and an addional
ophional product alongside motor insurance

www greenflag com

NIG 15 our specialist commercial insurance brand,
focused on small and medwmrsized enterprses (“SMEs”|
in the UK We sell our products through brokers, including
an in house infermedhary that arranges RBS and NotWest
commercicl nsurance”

Www g com

Brand Pariners 1s the business tobusiness arm of the Group
We specialise in providing personal lines insurance, and
roadside rescue and recavery producls to some of the UK's
well known broands

www brand-parners co uk




Our divisions

Personal

Mator

We ore Bitain's leading personal motor insurer, with

a 13 1% share of inforce policies', mamly represented
through our highly recogrised brands, Direct Line, Churchill
and Prvilege, ond through partners We insure around
one In seven cars on the road, representing 3 7 million

inforce palicies
£13420m  36/2
in-force policies (thousands)

Gross writfen premium
Q6.2% £29/1m
Operating proft

Combined operating ratio
For mare information, see poge 38

Rescue and other personal lines

We ore one of the leading providers of rescue and

other personal knes insurance m the UK?3 wilh 8,592 thousand

inforce policies This includes providing roadside assistance and
recovery for customers thiough Green Flag, the UK's third largest
roadside recovery provider? We also offer customers protection
for therr pets and holidays and we are the third largest snsurer in

the UK for these insurance producis®

$3718n 8592

Gross writen premium !n-d)rce pohcies (thousands)

?2.0% £48 .Om

Combined operating rato~ Operating proht

For mare information, see page 38

Home

We are one of Bulain's leading home nsurers, with o

16 7% share of inforce policies' We reach our customers
by selling home insurance praducts through our brands Direct
line, Churchill and Privilege as well as through our partners
Samsbury’s Bank, RBS, NofWest, Nanonwide Bulding

Society and Piudental
£898.6m 3,526
In-force policies (thousands)

Gross written premium
Q2./% £113%m
Cperating proht

Combined operating ratio
For more informaton, see page 37

Commercial

We protect small and medium sized enterpnises through

our own brands, NIG, Direct Line for Business and Churchsll,
olus RBS end NatWest NIG sells is products exclusvely through
independent brokers operating across the UK Direct ling lor
Business provides business, van and landlord insurance products
Chuschill sells van insurance direct and via PCWs

£48/0m Ol

Gross wnitten premuum in-force policies (thousands)

8.8% £4/0m

Combined operatng raho~ Operating proht

For more farmanon, see page 39

Our performance — ongoing operations?

Gross wntten premium?

(%)
Motor 43 3
Home 290
Rescue and other
personal nes 120
Commercial 157
Notes

Contribution to operating proft!

(%}
Motor 58 7
Home 22 5

Rescue ond other
personal knes 95

Commercial 93

1 Rarked by fotol inforce policies in the motor and home markets, including poriner brands RBS NotWest, Notonwide and Prudennial @ GIK NCP hnaneiol
Reseorch Survey [FRS) & months ending December 2014 12,973 adulls ntervewsad for motar insurance and 12,181 for home insurance

Mintel Vehicle Recovery — UK, September 2014

2
3 Muintel Pet Insuronce - UK, August 2014 ond Miatel Trovel Insurance - UK, February 2014
4

See note 2 on poge 4

www directlinegroup com
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Business model

Creating value

for our customers

Our multi-brand, multi-product and mult-distribution channel
business offers different propositions to distinct customers
We believe this approach will enable us to generate value
for customers and sustainable returns for our shareholders

Read more about our key performance indicators that

measure the effectiveness of our business model on page 26

Reod more about cur nsk manogement on poge 28

Qur customers

TServlcmg

Our people

4

Product Pacing and
disinbution l underwriting
—— Premiums
Setthng claims | Claims
f Costs }4—

Investment and ”
other income

Proht

Reinvest in the business 4
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Managing risk

v

Dridends

b 4

Managing
fnances

Capital

!

Qur shareholders




Generating value for our customers through our people

Qur customers

Customers are at the heort of our business model and we

hove o clear mission to make :nsurance much easier ond belter
value for them We asprre to give them products that best sunt
their needs as well as provide exceptonal service throughout
their relationship with us We also stive to adapt lo their
changing needs From the moment customers select our
products, fo the ime they claim or need to resolve an event,
we treal every step of the cusiomer journey as on opporfunity
to provide excellent service and cutcomes

Our people

Everyane — from our frontline staff to employees in support and
centrat functions ~ plays a part in ensuring we meet customers’
needs Without our people, we could not generate value for
cuslomers ond sustamable retums for our shareholders

Our shareholders

Our shareholders are a cruaial part of our business modet
They invest in the business expecling to achieve returns
We aim to deliver value for our shareholders by generating
sustainable business profits We reinvest this prolit in the
business or disinbute # to sharehclders os dividends

Qur focused processes

Our disciplined approach

Product distribution

We aum fo make our products easy 1o access and give

our cuslomers what they are looking for We want 1o ensure
cuslomers are appropriately covered when unexpected
events hoppen

Customers can purchase products online, ncluding thiough
PCWs, by phone, and indirectly through partners and, 1n our
Commercial business, via bickers Fach brand provides
products targeted at one or more insurance segments molor,
home, rescue, pet, ravel and commeraial By taillonng the mix
of distubuhon channels for each product, we offer customers a
combination of brands, products ond services thal best suit
their needs

Pricing and underwriting

Cur business has operated on o large scale for almost 30
years, giving us a deep insight into the nisks we underwite
This insight enables us to make our prcing more accurate It
also aflows us 1o nvest substanally in data and achieve
wncreased efficiencies Again, this means we con more
accurately set the nght price for the nisks we underwiie

Settling claims

Cuslomers Iruly recognise the value of their policy when they
moke a clim We aim lo seffle claims as quickly and easily as
possible through actve engagement with our customers This
helps us demonstrate the value of our products and services,
and manage our cleims costs

Managing finances

We seek to ensure our businass is well governed and
controlled We manage our finances carefully and we
belonce this with targehng a sullable and sustamable retun
fo our shareholders

We hold assets thot exceed our expected liobilives in the
form of capilal This absorbs snexpected losses that might
oecur ond helps us mest our regulatory copital requirements

We ensure we have sufficient funds to pay customer claims
by adopting o conservaiive approach to claims reserving
This moy result in releases fom these reserves contrbuting
to our ennual proht

Managing nsk

We ensure our products meet regulatory standards and that
customers understand what they are purchasing from us
We also eim to pnce our policies prudently and inves! our
assefs appropriately to mmimise any potential losses

We transfer significant insurance nsk through rensurance in
the normal course of business ond external experts regularly
review our insurance clams reserves We miigate nisks by
imptementing our Group pelicies and minimum stondards
These are reviewed regularly to ensure we are in line with
the nisk appetie set by the Board

www directlinegroup com
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Chairman’s statement

Delivering on
our fargets

In this report, | would like to consider Direct Line Insurance
Group ple’s [the “Company”] achievements from before the
nital public offenng {*IPO"} n Oclober 2012 1o where we
are today, including our successhul separation from the Royal
Bank of Scotland Group {“RBS Group”) in early 2014

Belore the IPO, the Board set robust and strefching financial
ond business targels for the Group We have met, and in
some cases, exceeded these targets This includes delivenng

a return on fangible equity! of 15% In both 2014 and 2013,
we achieved returns above this leved, of 16 8% and 16 0%
respectively Your Board set an inhial gross cost savings iarget
of £100 million for 2014 We subsequently increosed the
ambition lo deliver a total cost base? of approximately £1,000
million, which | om pleased o soy manogement achieved in
2014 Our Commercial drvision was tasked with delvenng o
combined operatng rako of less than 100%,  has successfully
met ihus challenge

Throughout this penod we stated that the Group would target
holding capital in the range of 125% and 150% of nsk based
capital sufficient to mamtam o credit rating in the ‘A’ range
has consistently remained at the upper end of tis range
Since the IPO, we have declared cumulative dividends,
mcludmg special intenm dwidends, of 55 8 pence per

share This 1s equivalent to 31 9% of the PO price

These achievements coninbuted 1o a strong share price
performance and supported another milestone of 2014
with the admission of the Compony nto the FTSE 100

Nores

1 Seencle ! cnpoge 4
2 Seencledonpoged
3 Seencle Zonpage 5
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“The Board 1s focused on
providing robust oversight of
Direct Line Group, including
a substantial programme of
Investment i improving our
customers’ expenence, and
aming to create longterm
value for our shareholders ”

Mike Biggs
Chairman

on 22 September 2014 The ncrease in the Company's
market copitalisahon postively reflacts investor conhidence in
our business  An increase of 16 7% in the share price 1o

291 3 pence ceross the year to 31 December 2014 together
with divadend poymenis provided a total shareholder retun
FTSR"} o 28 7% tor the year

Strategy update

We plan 1o enhance the way we nferact with our customers
and the ease with which thew clams are handled Your Board
has overseen and challenged these invesiment programmes
with the aim that the business delvers approprately for our
customers’ evolving requirements and on a fmancially
acceptable basis for our shareholders

farly in the year we camed out o stategic review of our
International dmision We concluded that a disposal would be
Ikely to generale the most value lo the Group On 25 Seplember
2014, we announced a binding agreement with Maplre, S A
for the sale of this division for €550 miion (£430 1 milhon?)
Completion of the sale 15 conditronal on recenving one
outstanding regulatory approval and s currently expected lo
complete in the first quarter or failing which in the second quarter
Your Board believes this 1s a good result for all cur stakeholders,
meluding providing excellent value for sharehclders

We have also token the opportunity duting 2014 1o review and
reariculate our stralegy This stralegy hos ol s heart our mission
to make insurance much easier and belter value for customers




Our governance principles

Lleadership

Your Boaed challenges strategic proposals, performance
delivery and the responsibiliies of management, seeking
1o ensure that decisrons are of the highest standard

Read more on poge 55

Effectiveness

Your Board’s performance 1s reviewed annually in an
effectiveness review This considers our effectiveness,
individually, as o Board and n our Committees

Read more on poge 57

Accountability

Your Boord provides shareholders with an ossessment of
the Group's position and prospects It has overall oversight
of the Group's nsk management and mlernal system

of control

Read more on page 28 and 59

Remuneration

Your Board, through the Remunerahon Commuitee, 15
responsible for the remuneration arrangements of the
Executive Direclors and senior executives

Read more on page 71

Engagement

Maintaning strong relatonships wath our shareholders 1s
important ko support cur aims  The Board maintains regular
dialogue with our shareholders

Reod more on page 60

Dividend and capital menagement

Your Board regulorly reviews the level of coprial held by the
Group Ahead of Solvency Il implementation on 1 January 2016,
we currentty beheve that it 1s appropniate to mainiain this ot the
upper end of the torgeled nskbased copialcoverage range of
125% 10 150% The Group's Solvency Il plonning 1s on track

The Board has resolved to pay an intenm dmdend of 8 8 pence
per share in liev of a final dividend  This represents an increase
of 4 8% on the tulbyear regular! dwvidend for 2013

The Company pard o special intenim dnadend of 100

pence per share on 12 Septernber 2014 and on 2 March
2015 resolved 1o pay a further special dvidend of 4 O pence
per share These dividends reflect the bulld up of surplus capital
which the Bowid believes 1s oppropriate to retun 1o

sharehalders On the completion of the sole of the Inlernational
dwision, your Board currently expects lo announce an additional
return of capital, reflecting substantrally all the net proceeds of
the sale This return of capiial will be conditonal on shareholders
approving @ share consohdation designed o neutralise the effect
on the share price of the return of copital Further details of the

Notes

refurn of capital and share consolidation wilt be commumicated
io shareholders in due course

Culture

Your Board 15 commutied to embedding a values-dnven culture
across the Group Our values are Do the night thing’, "Am higher’,
"Work together’, “Take ownership’, ‘Say it like it is” and “Bning oll
of yoursalf 1o work’  As stated in our Code of Business Conduct,
the Board also requires all employees to adhere 1o the highest
passible standards of professional and ethical conduct You can
reod more about our values and code on page 50

Qur relationship with RBS Group

On 27 Febuary 2014, RBS Gioup sold substanticlly all of its
remaining shareholding m the Company? Folowing this, and
in ine wath the Relatonship Agreement between the Company
and RBS Group, Mark Cation, RBS Group's nominaled Drrecior,
stepped down from the Board on 7 March 2014

Under a Transiienal Services Agreement, RBS Group continues

to provide certan services lo Direct Line Group, including IT
infrastiucture Dunng the yeor, we progressed subsiantially in ralling
out our new data centres with Capgermini and deploying new
voice and desklop tools These are key milesiones to migrate our

IT infrastructure from RBS Group systems to our own environment

Board changes and effectiveness

There have been several changes o the composition of the

Board and Commiltees dunng the year As noled above, Mark
Catton siepped down on 7 March 2014 and | would like to thank
him for his excellent contnbution to the Board and wish him well
ior the future

Following o review of the Board's balance of skills, knowledge
and expenence, Sebastian James, Group Chief Executive of
Dixons Corphone ple, jomed the Board on 28 August 2014

as @ NonExecutve Director | am delighted to welcome Sebastan
The Board will benefit from his knowledge of customer service

n a digital refal market

On 3C Seplember 2014, Sebastan was appomted as a
member of the Remuneraion Committee and the Corporate
Social Responsibilty [*CSR*} Commifiee jane Hanson retired as
Char of the CSR Commuttee but will continue as a member Clare
Thompson was appomted as Chan of the CSR Commitiee ond
retired as o member of the Remuneralon Commitiee My thanks
go 1o Jane for her 1ole as Chair of the CSR Commitiee and
parhcularly lor overseeing the establishment of our CSR agenda
You can read more about our Committees from page &)

Summary

We are fortunate lo have hardworking and talented employees
Therr commitment 1o customers and pride in what they do never
ceases lo impress me | thank every one of them for ther
contnbutions last year and into the next

Michael N Biggs
Chairman

1 The raguior dvidend inclides the ntenm and final dvidends it exchides speciol intenm digends
2 RBS Group retaned & number of Ordinary Shares in the Company 1o saiisfy longrterm ncenive plon owords gronted by 1t 1o Dired Line Group management

www directhnegroup com
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Chief Executive Officer’s review

Investing in the future

of our business

Overview of financial performance

| am pleased with our performance in 2014 and proud
of our pecple’s focus and dedication  Through our efforts,
we achieved our hinancial targels and progressed sirongly
towards our sirategic pnonhes Agamst the backdrop of o
highly competitive markelplace, we mamtained underwniing
discipline, helping us to deliver a stable opesating profi
from ongoing operations' of £506 G millon compared

to 2013 {£509 9 million] However, a reduction m
restructuning costs helped delver an increase in profit
before tax 1o £456 8 million (2013 £407 3 million)

The motor insurance market remained highly competiive
with further premium deflahon at the start of the year Gross
wrillen premium frends improved dunng the year, ncreasing
Q 4% in the fourth quarter compared with 2013 We
continued to make choices to optimise value and prorise
underwriing profit over valume grawih, which meant gross
wrttter: premium for the Motor dmvision of £1,342 O millon
reduced by 5 6% and inforce policies reduced by 2 4%,
compared with 2013

The home insurance morkel also experienced further new
business premum deflaton duning 2014, with gross wrilten
premium of £898 & million, 4 7% lower, as inlorce pohcies
reduced by 5 2%, compared with 2013 This was mainly

Notes

See note 2 on page 4
See note 3 on page 4
See note 1 on page 4
See note 4 on page 4
See note 2 on page 5

n B o Ry —
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"We have built solid
foundations for our business
and are continuing to invest
in our fulure  As we head
into the next phase of our
|ourney, | am excited by the
focus and energy of our
people to delver even
further success *

Paul Geddes
Chuet Executve Othicer

driven by our parinership business, reflecing changing
distnbuon trends  That said, the benefils from recent pricing
and clarns inmatives allowed us to ncrease our competiveness
while keeping the refention of renewing pohicies al good levels

We have olso met or beaten all of the published torgets

sef since the IPC We achieved a combined operating ralio?
["COR"™} of @5 0% {2013 @5 2%}, which was within our
targel range of 5% to 97% for ongoing operations This
contrbuted o a refurn on kangible equity’ of 16 8%, chead
of owr long term target of 15 0% Our Commercral business
achieved o COR of 98 8%, bealing i1s sub-100% COR torget
Our continued focus on improving operational efficiency
enabled us 1o deliver further cosl reductions across the
business, beating our cost target* of £1,000 million in 2014

Durning the first half of 2014 we niholed o shategic review
of our Infernalional division Although the review did conbirm
the dvision’s siiong market positions, we decided to explore
a potential disposal of these operations In September,

we announced a binding agreement for the sale of our
International division to Mapfre, S A for lotal cash sale
proceeds of €550 O milhon {£430 1 mihion’] We believe
this 15 o good result for oll our stokeholders, as i provides
excellent valve for shareholders, while offering our customers
ond colleagues stability and opportunity

Investing in our future

We have a growing expectation thal technology will profoundly
change many aspects of our customers’ needs, and we are
determmed 1o be a leader in meeting these new demands We
have confinued to 1nvest In our infrastructure, iIncluding work on
the next generation of customer syslems and progressing with the



migrahion of our [T systems rom RBS Group While this project
15 not complete and has been challenging, | am pleased fo say
we have made considerable headway while ensuring the new
systems can achieve ligh levels of operctional perlormance
We are on frack fo complele the migration in 2015

Recognising that customers are iransacting on the go, we

have optimised our motor websites for smariphone ond toblet
devices This has made it easier for customers 1o buy pohcies
from us by significantty improving the *quote and buy’ customer
journey We have seen an 81% incregse in Molor inswrance
purchased on a smartphone this year The new systems have
also enhanced analytics, which gives us further insight into
cusiomer browsing and purchasing behaviour, enabling us

to tailor our websites 1o therr needs

Additionally, we have rolled out a number of inmatives that
make 1t easier for customers to claim in Home, we have
enabled customers to upload pholos and videos to help
ossess their claim

We have also invested n our pricing abilihes to ensure we
conhnue providing value fo customers Thiough a seres of
pncing projects on Molor, we have enhanced and hinetuned
our frading capabslites, especially through the PCW channel
In telematics, we launched a new self install product, which
provides a robust, checper allemative to black box technology
We are already using ihe data collecled from the new
producis 1o improve our priang sophisicotion when renewing
telematics policies

We have also refreshed the product offenng of our Direct Line
brand, which incorporates a new advertising campaign We
wani custorness 1o lusl us to deliver on service and take the
hasste out of claiming, while shll offenng great value lor
money The new adverlising 1s proving popular with customers
ond we have already seen o posiive impact on desred key
brand metncs The TV advertising n particular is performing
sigrihicantly cheod of ol insurance seclor benchmarks, across
measures such as involvement and persuasion

Alongside these improvements, we have continued working hard
to imprave our customer service across the Group We have
cfso infroduced new measures to monitor customer sahsfaction,
which will help us improve our customers’ expenence, as well as
recognise and reword greot service We know we ore heading
in the nght direction, but there 1s more we can do to meet our
customers’ needs This will be a key focus for us in 2015 os

we embed addimonal customer inihatives

Inveshng 1n our people

We have continued 1o moke improvements throughoul our
organisation Our people are driving these changes,
simphfying processes and working as a commumiby to deliver
the products and services our customers expect Our people sit
behind our success, therefore we put great effort in recogmising
outstanding performance  The Chief Executive Awards are
among the key nihaives These awards identfy and recognise
the best examples of our values across the business as well as
dwersity and communily involvement Over 2,000 of our
people were nominated for the speciol coninbutions they

have made o the business In recognition of the progress we
have made, we plan to give our UK employees £400 of free
shares, 1n addimon to the shares that were awarded af the

time of the IPO This gives everyone a chance to share n

the success of our business

Regulatory environment

The regulatory landscape continues 1o be dynamic, especiolly
in the UK molor msurance market This year, the Financicl
Conduct Authority (“FCA”), the Competiion and Markets
Authonty [“CMA”} and the Mimistry of Justce {“MoJ”} hove
issued further reviews and remedies

Overall, the Group continues to support good conduct and
proporfionate reforms which will deliver better consumer
ouicomes and o level playing feld across the industry

Strategic priontes for 2015

We know that our environment 15 ever-changing, we musl
therefore ensure that our strategy 15 ahgned to this evolulion
We know our strategy supporls our aspiraten 1o be the
leading personal end small business general insurer in the UK
ond this means moking nsurance much easier and better value
for our customers We have a set of core objectives that we
believe will help us to delver this ambition, read more on

Our shiategy on page 22

Outlook

The UK motor and home markets remain highly competiive
with recent market condiions charactensed by penods of
market price deflaion and of siobibty Early 2015 has seen
some addiional, potenticlly seasonal, marke! pressure in
motor and bioad siability i the home market

Against this backdrop we will continue to adopt o flexible,
but disciplined, approach lo managing the trade-off between
margin and volumes Meanwhile we are 1nvesting in bullding
future capability ond continue to identify opportunihes to
improve efficiency

For 2015, we expect 1o achieve a combmed operating

iatio in the range of 94% to 96% for ongomg operctions ofter
normahsing for claims from major weather events The range
reflects uncertainty surounding clams inflanon versus market
pricing in motor

This yeor, we have bult sohd foundabons for our business and
are continuing fo invest in our future As we head into the next
phase of our journey, | am excited by the focus and energy of
our people to deliver even further success | would like to thank
our people lor always helping and supporting our cusiomers,
while embracing continuous change This drive will make our
business the best it can be

| am also thanklul for our investors’ ongoing suppoit as we
continue improving our business and delivenng further benefrs
for customers, shareholders and wider stakeholders

Paul Geddes
Chiel Executive Officer

Read more obout our skategy on page 16

www directhnegroup com
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. Telematics encourages
0-0) hetter driving

DrivePlus enables our
/’ customers to install the

device themselves

14 Duwect Line Group Annucl Report & Accounts 2014

DrivePlus gives drivers
instant access to their
drving data via an app



Expanding our
customer offering

Drivers can review
m@\ their driving straight

after each journey

Note

1 Direct Line new policies faken out by
under 21s over the phote in 2014

As telemahics continues to
gather pace, our experhse
and extensive data means
we are well positioned to
take advantage of this
growing market

The launch of our telematics self install
product, DrivePlus Plug m, offers
customers a convenient and easy
way 10 be rewarded for sofer drving

56

of under 21s now taking
up telematics’

125

million miles of telematics
data collected

www directlinegroup com
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Our strategy

Delivering our
key priorities

We continue to transform our
business and progressed on our
key strategic priorities during 2014

Qur ochievements were torreaching We proceeded
with changing our operotions and customer expenence,
while successtully hiting our finenaial targels

Qur key strategic priorihes

We have been reporting on our parformance agamst
five strofegic prionties since our listing as a public
compony 0 2012 In this Report, we continue
reporing against these areas and explam our

2014 progress in th:s sechon

Early in 2014, we camed out o srategic seview of

our International division  The review concluded that
although these operations occupied sirong positons,

a disposal would be likely 1o gererate the most value to
the Group In September, we announced the sale of the
dwsion and os a result of this, progress against our hifth
strategic prionty now relates solely 1o Commercial You
can find more details about the performance of the
Internahonal dwision in the Finance review on poge 44

Our strategy 15 evolving

As we develop our business in a constantly changing
environment, our stralegy also needs o evolve We
hove reviewed the overall Group strategy alongside
the strategic prionthies You can hind the results of this
review on page 22

'Read more
about our progress on
the following pages

Drrect Line Group Annual Report & Accounts 2014

Qur key strategic priorities

—
j_' Distribution

We have improved customers’ expernience
while differenticting the Direct Line
customer proposition

6 Pricing

We delivered over 30 maojor
pricing intiahves

@ Claims

We have continued improving
our claims service

(ty

== Costs

We reduced our cost base by
56%in 2014

'EB Commercial

We delivered o combined operating
ratio below 100%




+ Distribution

We have improved our customers’
experience while differentiating the
Direct Line customer proposition.

We aim 1o improve our distibution efhciency end effectiveness
by focusing on digital capability and cuslomer value

We seek fo undersiand cuslomers’ requirements and provide
products that meet their needs, offer good value and are
straightforward to purchase

We employ o mulirdistnbution channel model We am to
ophmise the mix of these channels for each of our products
and brands This includes selling products dwectly by phone
and mternet, including through all of the K's major PCVs,
and via selecied parmers

Progress in 2014

Dunng 2014, we progressed signibicantly w moking 1 easer for
customers 1o buy from us through the launch of new websiies for
Motor We have reenginesred and optimised the ‘quote and
buy' joumey whether customers are using personal computers,
smariphones or lablets

We further differentiated the Direel Line cuslomer proposition
in 2014 with a focus on improving claims service: This
proposihon was supported by a new adverlising campaign

We have also continued bulding our telematics porffolio,
with 38,000 inforee policies of yeor end  This growth hos been
occelerated by the lounch of a self mstall device dunng the year

Distribution performance

300

web chats per day?

Notes

56%

telematics take-up
by under 21s°

QA

of customers rate our sales and service
consultants as good or excellent’

7o

increase in Motor
insurance purchased
on a smartphone
compared to 2013

1 Group own bronds ond strategic poriners Drrect tine, Churchill Prwvitege, Green Flag, Samsbury RBS, Nawest, Prudential Nanaonwide, Civoen ond Peugeot ©
NICE Systems, MyCustomer — Fizzbock yeor ending 31 Decamber 2014, sample size 472 828 responses for motor, home, pet, trovel and rescue customers

Good of Excellent’ represented by scores of 7 to 10 out of 10

2 Average of 'quote and buy end service web chals for the six months 1o 31 December 2014

3 Direct line new policies ioken out by under 215 over the phone 1n 2014

www directinegroup com
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Our strategy continued

s Pricing

We delivered over 30 major
pricing initiatives

We aim fo leverege our substantiol data to provide
leading technical and market prcing

By enhancing our pricing capabilies, we can improve
the way we assess the nsks we ore willing to occept
and price them more accurately Our customers benefit
through more accurale pricing

Progress in 2014

Dunng 2014, we made major progress in our
ambiions around pricing sophistication We have
delivered over 30 programmes which relate to
technical and market pricing, and have conirnbuted
to our underwniing performance

Addihonally n Motor, we hove started using telematics
generated daia 1o inform pricing decisions for
tetematics customers This gives us anather rch and
valuable data source, dllowing us o reward customers
for better driving in ways tradihenal rating factors
would not recognise

Pricing performance

% 80%

Motor own brands
retention rate

Home own brands
retention rate

Note

Our pricing projects

Maijor pricing initiatives delivered
in 2014

Our projecis are significantly enhancing our
prcing capabiliies and helping us offer
more accurate pricing, including on price
companson websites

A0

Differential in pricing
from telematics data!

! Pnce diftsrential i addition Ic tradinonal roting foctors when telematcs doto 1s considered

Direct Line Group Annual Report & Accounts 2014




e Claims

We have continued improving our
cleums service

We aim lo improve our performance through efficient end
eftechve claims management Qur frauvd perFormonce

We have lundomentally redesigned our claims operating model
with simpler processes n fewer sites This gives a befter customer

expenence through our people having more conirol By

managing most claims through our own professional loss

adiusters and repainng cars through our own acadent repoir .

centres and network garages, we aim Ic ensure customers rT]

benelit from our scafe and expertise T e S
®

We continue fo invest In providing customers with o reliable and

saighfforward claims service that is kansporens at each step detection level ahead of the market'

Progress in 2014

We continued buiding on our dams services by using
smarlphone technology to improve our customers’ claims
expenence Straightforward home claims con now be adwised
via photos and video iaken by smarphone, helping to speed
up selflement and reduce froud

We have also continued improving the claims proposifion
through using our supply cham more effectively Direct ine
cuslomers now benelit from faster car repair imes, the offer
of sourcing a replacement car in the event of a toial loss, and
replacements ready n eight hours for some household goods

Our claims processes

53000  80%

Vehicles repaired by our accident Customer uptake to upload
repair centres and network garages digital evidence?

Smartphone photos and videos help us 1o
settle claims more quickly and reduce fraud

MNotes
1 Association of Buhish Insurers 201 3 Fraud Benchmarking Doto, motar sovings
2 Percenioge of inscope claims where offered and accepted, six months 1o 31 December 2014

www direcllinegroup com
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Our strategy continued

Costs

We reduced our cost base
by 5 6% in 2014

(v
(U

We am to improve efficiency throughout the business to
reduce costs and enable faster decision making

We recognise the need 1o keep costs down, whalever

the market condihens We are updating our IT infrastructure
and nvesting in new fechnology, which aims to imprave
efficiency, offer more Hexibility and enable us 1o enhance
our cuslomers’ expenence

Progress in 2014

During the year, we cut costs by 5 6% and beat our torgal

to reduce fotal costs? 1o approximately £1,000 millon

We hove achieved this by ngerously controlling discrehonary
costs durng the year, reducing staff costs through a more
efficient operating model, and lowenng markehng spend

We have progressed substantally in migrahng IT
applcations from RBS Group nfrastruciure and expec
to complete this in 2015 As part of this programme,
we rolled out new deskiop and voice infrastiucture

We expect Ihis to lead 1o future operational efficencies

Our cost performance

%

Total cost base

We have beaten our goal of reducing costs
io approximately £ 1,000 millien, read more
on page 43

230%

Expense ratio
2013 237%

Reduction in cost base following a
focus on cost control and operating
efficiency?, read more on page 43.

Notes

1 The rotio 1s @ measure of cperating expenses compared 10 et samea premium generared for ongoing operations
2 Tofal cost base for the year ended 31 December 2014 in companson to the previous year, read more on poge 43
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We delivered a combined operating
ratio below 100%

Cur Commercial business focuses on largeling the growing
number of small and medium sized enterprses The business
1s well posiioned 1o benefit as these customers mave
towards direct and erading distnbuhon channels

As the characlerstics of our personal and commercial hnes
increasingly converge, we am fo leverage skills across
these dvisions, parficularly in techmeal pricing, cloims
management, telematics and fload mapping

Progress in 2014

We continued improving the Commercial division's
profitability, achieving a COR of 98 8%, beating the
targel raho of less than 100% We achieved this through
a combinahen of factars, Inciuding a contnued focus

on disciplined underwniing and cost control

Qur award winnung elrade plafform continved ganing
frachion as we continuously improved our products and
proposition At the same ime, we enhanced the Direct Line
for Business customer websttes with new digrial funchonality

We exiended PCWV distnbution to the van business through
Churchill, and launched a new telemaiics offening

Our Commercial performance

Q88% 11

Commercial COR

We achieved this ratio through
disciphned underwnting and
hght cost control

Note

7o

Gross writfen premium increase
n Direct Line for Business
landlord insurance product’

» Commercial

238000

Growth in in-force policies

100

Landlord app smartphone
downloads

1 Gross writen premium for the veor ended 31 December 2014 in companson to the previous year

www directlinegroup com
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Qur strategy continued

Rearticulating our sfrategy

Making insurance much easier and
better value for our customers

Qur strategy supports our aspiration to be the fecding
personal and smal! business general insurer in the UK

Dunng 2014, we reviewed the components of our strategy
1o ensure that our business 15 confinuing to evelve and
oddress the constantly changing environment in which

we operate

The review reaffirmed that the copabiliies underpinning
the exshng strategic prionties ¢f disinbution, pricing,
claims, costs and Commercial remain profoundly important

Qur mission

Make nsurance much easier
and better value for our customers

Ower the last five years, the focus on these prionhies has
steprchanged our performance and compettivenass and
further investment in these areas continues 1o offers significant

opporturity for us

To facihtate fuiure delivery, we have rearhculoted our stralegy
around a simple mission 1o moke insurance much easier and
better value for our customers

We believe this sirategy, when delivered, should allow us to
grow sustainably ol the some me os torgeting ¢ 15% relurn
on fangible equity Our discipline around fulure growth has
not changed and we will remain focused on maximising value

Our strategrc pillars
Great Smart and lead and
thaent disrupt
retailer ‘
manutacturer the market Long-term ambition
Susiainable growth
and a 15% RoTE
Our key enablers Data and technology ]
[ Culture and capability J
[ Capital and nisk management ]

Direct Line Group Annual Repont & Accounts 2014




Cur strategic pillars

Our three sirategic pillars demonstrote our approach 1o the changing needs of consumers and the wider market

Cur swategic pillars

Great retailer
Compelling brands, proposiions and

customer expernence o meet dverse,
long term customer needs

Smart and efficient manufacturer
Ehiciency and flexibility to delvar
better claims and cusiomer service

of lower cost

lead and dlsrupt the market
Maoximise exishng growﬂ‘n opportunihies

while creating and drving future areas
of value

Our key enablers

Our objechves

* Further differentiate cur brands including refresh of Churchill

* Launch cuslomer expenience programmes fo ncrease Nel Promoter Score,
reduce fnctional costs and reduce complaints

* Improve rading capability to maximise sales, cross sales and setention while
ophmising margin

+ Conhnue o build technical pricing excellence
* Beat market claims inflation wia further clams progrommes
* Reduce level of overall costs by improving efhiciency

» Contnue o grow Green Flag

* Capitalise on market trends towards Direct Line for Busingss and eTrade io
grow Commercial

* Double number of telemoncs policies inforce

Our sirategic review also reathrmed the key bullding blocks required 1o deliver our stategie prionies These cover data and
technology, cullure and copability end capial and nsk management These are the building blocks of a successtul insurer
and allow us to develop products for the future and continue 1o evolve our propositions 1o meel changing cusiomer needs

QOur key enablers

Data and technology

Hamess the power of technology
and scale of our data

Culture and capability

Unlock and aceelerate
owr people potential

Capital and nisk management

Sound foundanon of capital
and nsk management

QOur objectves

+ Complete migration of IT infrastructure

« Continue lo implement the next generation of customer systems,
ncluding pohicy system

* Update Molor pricing engine

* Invesing in developing cui employees” skills o capilolise on new systems
* Buld superior people engagement via focus on leadership and
people management

* Be ready for Solvency Il implementation on 1 January 2016 and submit
internal model for approval

www directlinegroup com
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Customers can send photos
via their smartphones for
home claims assessment

24 Dwect Line Group Annual Repart & Accounts 2014



Improving our

customer support

We can get Direct Line customers

back on the road within seven derys
following a motor accident

Notes

1 Includes Direct Line, Churchill ond
Privilege customers with motor or
home products 84% scoring 7 to
10 for the year ending December
2014, based on a total sample size
of approxwmately 63,000 answers
© Thelsodershipfactor 2015

2 Inclucles the Group's own brands
Drrect Line, Churchill and Previlege
for motor and home products, nine
months ending 31 December 2014,
based on monthly survey volumes of
approximately 4,200 customers

Whether it's our new Direct
Line marketing campaign or
the improvements we have
made to our customer
propositions, 1t 1s our people
that have been at the heart
of our success The dedicahion
to excellent customer service
fAows throughout our business
and remains a key focus

for us

We have infroduced new video
technology tools to enable customers
to reduce the amount of hme 1t lokes
io setile lower value ond fess complex
home cloims Customers are now
using new lechnology which allows
them to upload photos and wideos 1o
an online digital cloud

Qoutof 1O

custorners stated they would
recommend Group brands’

Q44

of customers stated their
web chat experience was
good or great?

www direcilmegroup com
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Our key performance indicators

Measuring our performance

We have defined eight key performance indicators that allow us to assess our
performance against our strategic priorities These are supported by further
performance indicators monitored by management

Read more about our performance rewards en page 71

Return on tangible equity!
Ongoing ond Infemational (%)

16.8%

13 4% pro farma n 2012

Dehnition

The return generated on the
copital that sharehalders have 1n
the business This 15 calculated by
dwiding adjusted somnings by
average longible equity

Aim

Qur target 1s 1o achieve a 15%
RoTE We achieved tusin 2014
Link io Directors’ remuneration
We base long term incentive
plan {*LTIP"} awards partly

on RaTE over o threeyear
performance penod

Notes

Dividend per share?
Total Group [pence)

2/ 2p

12 0 pence pre forma full year
dwidend for 2012

Definton

The omount of cash pad

to shoreholders from the

Group's profit

Aim

We hove o progressive dividend
policy and aim to grow the
dradend in real terms each yeor
Addinenally, we lock to return
surplus capitcl to shareholders
when appropriate For 2014,
we poid o declered speaial
intenm dividends totalling

14 C pence per share

Link 1o Directors’ remuneration
LTIP awaords are parly based on
relative TSR pesformance, which
includes dividends Directors
also recerve dividends on therr
beneficiol sharehaldings and
accrue these on unvesied

LTIP owords

1 Includes disconhinued aperchons, see note 1 on poge 4

See note 1 on poge 5

2
3 Excludes discontinued operations, see notes 2 and 3 on poge 4
4 Includes discontinued cperohons sea nofe 4 on page 4 and read more on page 43

Direct Line Group Annual Report & Accounts 201 4

Combined operating ratio?
Ongoing operations (%)

Q5.0%

Definition

A measure of finaneidl yeor
underwiiting profiiatulity
colculated by the sum of ddoims,
COMMIssIons and expenses
dwided by net eaned premium
This excludes instalment and other
operating Income, ond invesiment
ietwn A COR of less than 100%
incheates profitoble underwting
Aimn

We aim to moke an

underwnhing prefit In 2014,

we set and achieved the lorget
range of between 95% 1o 97%
for the Group, this ossumed o
normal level of claims from
weother events

link 1o Directors' remuneratian
We base part of the Annual
Inceniive Plon (*AIP*) awards on
ongoing operating profit COR

15 Iinked closely to this

Total cost base®
Cngoing and Infernational {£m)

£9/3.9m

Dehintiion

The cost of doing business,
ncluding paying our people,
markeling expenses and
expendiiure on infrastructure
and IT This includes the costs
we incur i handling cloims,
but excludes any commissians
we pay o brokers or pariners,
and restructuring ond other
one-off costs

Aim

We aim fo operate on efficient
ond effecive organisation

We targeted and achieved

o iotal cost base for 2014 of
approximately £1,000 million

Link to Directors’ remuneration
AlP awards in relation 1o 2014

include o weighiing relating to
cost largets
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Adjusted earnings per Basic earnings per Risk-based capital Complaints
share - difuted' — ongoing ~ share? [pence] coverage® Pincipal UK underwriter® (%)
and International [pencel Total Group (%)

23.5p 24 Op 148.2% 0.35%

Definiion Definion Delinifion Definition
We adjust eainings for restuctunng  This 1s caleulated by dviding A measura to show the level The number of complants
and ather oneoff casts, and the the earnings atnbutable 1o the of capital held compared 1o received dunng the year as
result of our Run-off segment These  owners of the Comipony by the the level that 1s required, taking a proporion of the overage
adjsted earnings, which reflect weighted average number of nto aecount the nisks the number of inforce policies
ongaing operahons ond the Crdinary Shares in issue Group foces Ao
Internahonal dvision are divided

I v v Aim Aim This measure indicates the
by the weighted average number
of shores i 15sve. adpusied for Similor 1e odjusted eormings per We torgel nsk bosed capital fevel of cusiomer service we

g, share, we hove not set o target coverage between 125% ond provide We oim to improve
cilutive potential Ordinary Shares
A However, growing earnings per 150% 1o remain within cur nsk ihis over ime
Im .
shore 15 considered an indicator  oppetile We alsc aim 1o tink to Directors' remuneration

Given the cyclical nature of the of o healthy business mainiain o rahng in the ‘A range
insurance industry, we have net sef from our credit rating ogencies
G farget for odyusied earnings per Both of these aims were sahshed

The AIP owords include a

Link to Directors’ remunerahion weighting 10 o balonce of

1
share Growing earnings per share This KPi replaces |r|\ve5men| in 2014 cusiomer melncs
15 considered one indicolor o income yield as it links more :
drrecily o remuneration ond Link to Directors” semunerafion

o heolthy business

) reflects the Runoff segment and Risk management within nsk
tink to Direclors’ remuneration  restructuring ond other ong-off appette, which includas an
Growih in odjusted eamings per  costs The AP owards hove wssessment of copital strength,
share 1s a key driver of share pnce @ weighting 1o these other octs as a goleway for the
performence and therefore financial meosures AP awards

contnbutes to TSR which the LTIP

pay-out raho 1s partly bosed on

Nates

1 Includes dhsconinued operations, see note 3 an poge 5

2 For 2014 ond 2013, basic eomings per shore 15 presented for continuing cperotions and excludes discontinued operanons 2012 15 for totel Group
3 Adjusted for the intenm dividend announced in ey of o final dwvidend ond the second special interim dividend

4 For the Groups prncipol UK underwnier, U K Insurence Limiled, o excludes discontinued operations
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Risk management

Managing risk

We have a robust and integrated risk management framework
This framework sets out and enables the monitoring of
responsibilihes and accountabilities for risk management

and infernal control for the whole business

Qur nsk governance structure

The Board sets end monitors adherence to the nsk siialegy,
nsk appefite and nisk ramework The Boord hos established
a nsk management model that separates the business’s nsk
mancgement responsibiliies into three lines of defence as
shown in the diagrem below

"Our nsk and compliance strategy 1s infegral
to everything we do within our business "
Jose Vazquez, Chief Risk Officer

The Chiet Risk Othicer 15 a member of the Execulive Commiliee
and reports 1o the Chief Executive Officer He also has access 1o
the Chair of lhe Board Risk Commitiee and the Chairman of the
Board ond he also has a nght of access 1o the Audit Commultee,
assuring the Risk function’s independence The Chief Risk Officer
chairs the Risk Management Committes, which oversees the
effective management of nsk across the Group

The 1st Line of Defence 1s responsible for ownership and
management of the nisks 1o the achievement of business
obieciives on a dayto-day basis

The 2nd Line of Defence 1s responsible for the provision of
proporhonate oversight of nsks, issues, events and incidents

Group Audit debivers the 3rd Line of Defence through the
provision to the Board of an independent view of the
elfectiveness of nsk management and controls

Humar: Resources
legol and Company
Secietanal

Own Risk ond Solvency Assessment

Adwvice ond guidance
Assuronce ond moniioriag
Cversight and governance

7

Board
Nominahon  Remuneration CSR f Board Investment Board Risk Audit
Committee Commitiee Committee Comrmiitee Commtiee Committee
.
Executive - - <+
Disclosure Chief Executive Risk Management
Committee Officer Commutiee
+ v
[ [
1st Line of Defence 2nd Une of Defence 3rd line of Delence
Risk ownership Owersight, challenge and support of 1st Line Independent assurance
Personal Lines Risk and Comphiance Tools Group Audit

Commercial High level contrals and

Claims systems of govemance

Finance Speawalist control funchons Enterprise Risk Manogement
Chief Informanon Cffice vath 151 and 2nd strotegy ond fromework
Human Resources Line responsibilives Delegoted outhorimes
Finonce Policies
Chief Information Office Mimmum stendords
Cloims [Business Services) Risk oppetite
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Managing nisk in line with Group strategy
Management, and ulhmaiely the Boord, are responsible for
developing our Group stiategy Our sirategic planning process
cums fo ensure we have developed clear objectives and targets
and ideniified the actions needed to deliver them These must
be consistent with our overall objective of o 15% RoTE and
delivered in line wath our nsk appetite For mare information

on our strategy, see page 16

Delivening a strategic plan will, by its very nature, result in
ioking risks Identbicaion of these nisks 15 a key ospect of the
shategic planning process, placing imporlance on the ink
between stealegy and its impact on capital We place
Enterpnse-wide Risk Management {“ERM”) ot the very heor
of our approach

Risk strategy and appetite

Dwrect Line Group's sk appetile statements arhculale the level
of nsk the Group 1s prepared to accept to achieve its business
cbjecives  To momior whether the Group remains within

our nisk appette, the statements are aligned to key business
metnics ond used o drve nsk aware decision making by

key business stokeholders

These metrcs form key nsk indicators ["KRIs”), which are both
qualiative and quanilative, and forward and backward
looking We review our nsk appetite statements and KRs
annually, using outputs from the Infernal Economic Capital
Model and toking our business plan into account For
mformation on our allocation of capital by nsk type, see

page 48

Qur strategy

The diagram below oullines the Group's nisk objectives end nsk
appehlte slalements

Qur ERM framework

ERM 1s the process of aiganising and controlling the activings of
the whole Group so s to ensure we remam within risk appehte
To encble ERM, we have developed o omework comprising o
number of components which are fundamental to good sk
manogement These are shown in the diagram overleaf

A ceniral component of the ERM hamework 15 our policy
framework, which includes palicies and minimum slandarsds
These ntorm the business how i needs 1o conduct ils achivines
lo remain within nsk appehie

We alse employ a number of nisk tools 1o manage and monitor
our nsks We test and report on the output of these tools both
infernally and externally

We hove an annual review progiomme to ensure our ERM and
policies remain fit for purpose

Risk cbjechve Risk apgetite siatament

Overarching nisk obyjective

The Group recogrises that is lorg term sustanability s dependent on having sufficient

economic capiial 1o meet our babilnes os they foll due, thus protecting our repuiotion
and the integnity of our relationship with our palicyholders and cther siakehaolders

As part of this, our appetite 15 for general nsuronce risk, focusing on personal fines retail
and SME insurence n the Uniled Kingdom We have oppetie for nor-insurence nsks,
as appraphate, 1o enchble and ossist us to undesioke our prmary acimvity of insurance

Mamntain capital adequacy

We seek lo mantain sufficrent economic copitol consistent with our siategic oim of achieving

o standolene ciedit rating 1n the A’ range We also seek 1o hold copilal resources in the
ronge of 125%150% of nisk based copial

Stable and efficient access to funding

and hquidity

We aim to meei both planned ond unexpecied cash ouflow requirements, including those
requirerents that anse following a 1 in 200vyear insurance, market or credit nsk event

Maintain stakeholder confidence

We have no appetite for matenal nsks resuling in repusational demage, regukiiory or legol

censure, fines or prosecunions and cther ypes of non-budgeled operaticnol risk losses
associgied with the Group's conduct ond octiviies

The Group will maincin @ robust and proportionate inferral control envircnment

www direclinegroup com
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Risk management conlinued

Our nsk culture

Qur ERM strategy and framewaork sets out the mechanisms
to manage nsk ahgned to our Group strategy The Board
opproves our Group stralegy, nsk appetite and policy
framework The Board Risk Commitiee opproves our ERM
sralegy and lramework

Risk culiure involves applying the ERM strategy and
framework’s principles, processes and tools in our daytoday
behaviour A good nisk culture 15 ore where nsk management
ts a significant part of the way we work

Cur nsk culture focuses on the key areas of strotegy,
employees, promoling good governance, communication,
systems and reporting

Our culture and ERM sirategy and framework are mutually
supporiive Ve believe that the promation of o good sk
culture across the Group and by all of our employees helps
embed nisk management within our business

Solvency I

Solvency Is the European insurance indusiry’s new framework
for the capilal adequacy regime It establishes a rewisad sel of
European Uniorrwide capital requirements and nisk management
standards, which aim fo befter protect policyholders Sclvency I
is scheduled for implementation on 1 January 2016 The Group
continues to make progress fo ensure we meel all requirements
in line wath developing best praciice

We are embedding the Group's ERM kamework in respect of
Salvency I, including the use of forward looking nsk assessment
based on the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment ["ORSA”)
principles The Group continues to use and enhance 11s Infernal
Economic Coprtal Model, which 15 used 1o support cur business
and stiategic decisions from o nskbosed capital perspective

Emerging risks

The Group's defirihon of emerging nsk 15 consistent wath the
Solvency il definion m that i focuses on newly developing
or changing nsks thot are difhcult to quantily but may have
o mayjor of matenal simpact on the business The Group

has further defined emerging risks as fulliling some of the
following cntena

* They are nsks which are external to the Group

» They are new or changng nsks

» They are subject to a high degree of uncertainty

* There 15 scope for mittgation either now or in the future

We record emerging nsks within an Emerging Risk Reguster
which aligns 1o the risk loxonomy underpinning the Maotenal
Risk Reguster These emerging nisks hnk into the ORSA reporiing
cycle They are also port of the nsk reporhing framework to the
Executive Risk Management Commiliee and the Board Risk
Commitiee tor rewew, challenge ond approval, ond feed

info the Board's strategic planning process

Note
1 Matencl Risk Assessment
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l Culture
Group strategy J
AT
ERM strategy J
Risk oppente

Pohicy framework

SR
~—

Key elements of the risk management framework
Risk assesment
including MRA!

Reporting and management information

management certficanon

[ssues ’ Control environment

Capital model W

Risk training and communication

During 2014, we enhanced our emerging nsks processes
Supported by stress and scenario tasting, the procasses
am {o

* Achieve early recognition of nsks

* Reduce the uncerlamly and volohlity of business results
+ Toke a proactive appioach fo managing emerging nisks
¢ Idennly, manage and monilor a broader range of nisks

= Mingate the potential mpoct on cur profit and loss eccount
and balance sheet

On 1 Apnl 2014, the FCA took over the regulation of
Consumer Credit from the Clfice of Fair Trading  Firms within
the Group currenily have inlenm permission for consumer credit
activities and will be applying for full permissions dunng 2015

Main emerging risks

* ‘Big dato’, ncluding cybercnme, data regulation
ond informaton secunty

* Climate change

» New car technology, for example, diverless cars

* Major new market enrants

* MNew msurance distibulion models

* Changing opproach 1o conduct regulation

* Chenge in UK legislalive environment

» Pandemics




Pancipal risks and uncertainhes

Risks are always present in our business 1t 1s imporlant to ensure that we identify, measure, monitor and repor these nsks
throughout the business on an ongoing bosis We also monttor changes in these nsks over time We believe these risks
are broadly unchanged over the last year

Principa? nsks

COrmer

Monogement and mihigahon examples

Insurance risk Underwriting
and pricing

We face the nsk that future claims and
expenses are nol as predicted  This
includes catastrophe nsks ansing from
losses due 16 unprediciable natural
and man made events See page 119

Managang Directors

of Personal Lines
and Commercial

We have set underwnting guidelines for all business ransacled
We refine prcing through analysis of comprehensive data

We purchase Catastiophe and Motor excess of loss reinsurance,
limiming our exposure to large fosses

We wwesl in enhanced extemal data 1o analyse and
mitigale exposures

Insurance risk Reserving Chief Financiol * \We eslimale the lechmical reserves using a range of acluanal and
We face the nsk that the rurrolf of Officer stohshcal techniques

reserves 15 not as predicled, driven by * We ensure that management's best eshmate of reserves 1s not less

our large Motor portfolio and periodic than the aciuanal best estimate

poyment orders {“PPOs"} because of ¢ Our eserves eslimates are subject to third parly reviews

their long tlerm nature See page 118

Sirategic risk Chief Executive * We have agreed strategic targels which aie monitored and managed
The nsk of direct or indrrect adverse Officer ¢

impact on the eqarmings, capno\, or
valye of the business as o result of the
stralegres not being opimally chosen,
implemented or adapled o

changing condihons

-

We run an annuol shategy process which considers Group
performance, competilor posihoning and strategic opportunilies
We idently and manage emerging nsks vsing on estabhished
governance process ond forums

Operatonal nisk

We face the nsk of losses resuling from
inadequate or lalled internal processes,
people and systems, or fiom

exiernal events

Specthc members
of the Executive

We have strong operational processes and systems, including
fraudlent claims detection systems

We mantain a robust internal contiol environmenl, see page 60
We have developed o bespoke nsk capture, management and
reporting system

Market risk

We are exposed (o fluctvohons
i the value of, or the income from,
our investment porifolio

Chief Financial
Olficer

We manage and contol our nvesiment porifolio through

- mweslment shategy and guidelines approved by the Board, and
- dwersity i the types of assets held

We use niskteduction techmiques such as hedging foresgn currency

See page 121 exposures with forwards, and hedging US Dollar inierest rales
with swaps

Counterparty nisk Chief Financral * We set credil imits for each counterparty

We partner with many supphers, n Officer * We only purchase remsorance hom reinsurers with a mimimum

paricular for renswonce  The farlure ‘A rahng

of any of these partners could resull in * We aclively monilor broker credit exposures

a financial loss See page 124

Regulatory risk Chief Risk Officer  * We have a constructive and open relaonship with our regulators

Risk amses from changes i law and * We use specihc nsk monagement tools and resources, such as our

regulairons fincludmg changes of upstream nsk team, 1o help manage exposwe lo regulatory nsk

interpretation) not beng wdentfied, * We exercise nsk-based monilonng to ensure we use our rescurces

interpreted or adopled coredly, to the greatest impac!

incleding Sobvency i

Conduct risk Chief Executive * Qur orgaruschonal culiure proniises o conssslent approach 1o

Falure 1o freal our cusiomers Ofhcer customers Our customers” mterests are ot the hean of how

appropnately or olure by our we operate

people to behave with integrity * We have developed a robusl customer conduct nsk management
framework to minimise our exposure 1o conduet sk, see page 65

Brand and reputational risk Specihc members  * We regularly review our brand and reputational nsk through our

We depend on the strengih of
our brands and our reputation
with customers and distiubutors

of the Executive

governance framework
We underlake substantiol marketing acivities to protect and build our
brands, and measure therr effeciiveness regularly

www directhnegroup com
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Corporate social responsibility

Establishing solid

foundations

We aspire to be the leading personal and small business general insurer in the
UK. We know that we can succeed only if we earn the trust of our stakeholders.
This means we must consider the impact of each and every decision we make
on society, as well as thinking about what it means for our business

Approach and priorihes

CSR 15 about how we make our money We believe being
recognised as a trusied, responsible company con boost
our reputation, engage cur people and improve
stokeholder relotions

Three key principles drive our approach

& We acknowledge that we have a respensibifity 1o wider
society, including the commumity ond the environment

* In owr business of providing msurance and othes services,
we seek 1o operate In a way that demonstrates this
wider responsibility

* This 15 a callective and indwvidual responsibihity

These prnciples ore at the heart of our CSR Charler The

Charter defines our commitment ko CSR and links to our velues,

code of conduct ond policy framework, which guide our
behaviour The Charter 1s published on the Group's website

Cur oppracch 1s overseen by the CSR Commities,
see page 66

Qur C5R strategy

Helping to moke our
society scfes

Proud to be here

Recogmised as part
of our communings

Reduce, Reuse ond Recycle

Direct Line Group Annual Report & Accounts 2014

The CSR Advisory Group, tormed of senior managers and
chaired by o member of the Execuiive Committee, ensures
CS5R 15 embedded across our business  The Sustamability team
supporis the Advisory Gioup and mancges CSR achvity on

a doly basss

Fous key stands - sustainable business practces, employee
expenence, communiy, and energy and environment —
provided the homewark for our CSR achvity in 2014 and
form the basis of this report External feedback and our own
benchmarking indicate that we are making good progress
Full details of our performance agenst last year's targets os
well as our 2015 targels are set out on the Group's website

Hawving established solid foundatons, for 2015 we hove
proniised our focus areas for each stand to sharpen ou
approach As shown in the graphic, they ore "Helping to make
our society safer’, ‘Proud to be here’, 'Recognised as parl of our
communities’ and 'Reduce, Reuse, Recycle’ A separate member
of our Executive feam 15 now responsible for each sirand

Sustainable business practices
Qur products, services and operalions alect cur many
stakeholders

Working with Government

In order 1o ensure homeawners who are vulnerable 1o flooding
continue to be able to receive allordable home insurance, we
are working closely with Govemment with the aim of
introducing the Flood Re programme in 2015

The Government conlinued 1ts programme of legal reforms to
combat motor insurance fraud during the year We have been
achvely nvolved in Mo} working groups 1o ensure a strong
ndustry voice Insurance fraud has a big impact on premiums
50 1 15 importont for cusiomers that we achieve the nght
ouicome from these reforms

We recognise that there 1s a general concern about lobbying
and we continve to engage only in public policy debates that
have an impact on our business or our stakeholders We do

not support parly pohiical interests or make politicol donahons




Improving road safety

In our Motor division, we developed our telemahcs
proposiions  The technology enables us to better assess each
person’s driving nisk More imporiantly, the feedback we give
divers encourages sofer and more considerate diving, which
we expect will help lead 1o safer roads We have amed our
telematics propostions pnmonly at younger diivers, who are
disproporhonotely mvolved i road waffic ocaidents

In September 2014, we tighlighted a rarely addressed

road sofety issue to Government dnink-driving omong women
Our report, ‘Drinking Amongst Brinsh Women and its Impact
on therr Pedestnan and Driving Achvities’, tound that the
peicenioge of those convicted of drink drving who are women
hod nearly doubled since 1998 Consequently, the
Government said o would consider how its ant drink drving
THINKI campaigns might larget o female audience

We have @ long standing parinership with ‘Broke’, the rood
safety chonty We have funded Brake's research injo dnver
athtudes and behaviours and used the findings 1o run o senies of
medio campaigns 1o raise awareness of topical road safety
155ues such as diving under the influence of drink or drugs, long
|ouneys and he effects of tiredness, speeding, diving in wanter
condiwons and the imporlance of proper car maintenance

Wa also sponsored Brake's Parliamentarian of the Year
Awards, which recognise Members of Parlioment who
compaign on road safely 1ssues, and supported ifs prmary
schoel education programme, ‘Beep Beep!’

Within our network of Acaident Repair Centres we operate
afleet of 73 tueks Dunng 2014, we hitted all our trucks with
a salety ool called ‘Tracker Feet” This enables us to improve
route planning, which reduces fuel costs and carbon emissions,
monitor and avord talfic hotspots, view tuck locations to cut
down on calls to drivers, and gather driving behaviour dato

fo raise awareness of road salety 1ssues

Our trucks operate mainty in utban areas with high

populations The Government has largeted these areos for
investment in cyching Not surpnsingly, acaidents involving
cychsis and lorge vehicles, such as trucks, olten result in serious
inury That 1s why we are Inalling @ new closed circutt
television [*CCTV"| system which improves visibity around
trucks and warns dnvers of potentiol hazards I successful, we
will roll out CCTV 1o the entire fleet n 2015

Suppliers
Cur Ethical Code for Suppliers sels out our approach to
managing CSR related matters across our supply chain

Lost year, within our Home Repar Network, we parinered with
a new suppher, "Anyunk’ Following o claim, Amyunk offers

a 'man in a van' waste collechon service thal removes and
locks to recycle household waste Anyqunk reports regulorly on
whal it hos collected ond recycled This greatly improves the
fransparency of our busmess Anyjunk 1s currently recycling
85% of the waste collected from our customers

Nares

1 Emissions for continuing operatians This excludes dlsconrmued aperatians,
the Groups Inemononal dvision Tetel Group emissions including
discontinved operctions are 28,759 tonnes FQOIB 30 624 tonnes)

2 Paper ysed for 2013 has been re-prasented for printing ond copying of our
moin office sites

In 2015, we are focusing on developing our supplier
management programme, promoting CSR across our strategic
supplers, and seting chollenging largets 1o reduce our impact
on the envirenments n which we operate

Living wage
We ensure all our employees, whether in our offices or our
Accident Reparr Centres, are paid ot or above the living wage

Responsible investment

We lock 1o mondate external asset mancgers who show
they are commutied to using their market feveroge 1o support
emvronmental, social and governance {“ESG”} objechives
We favour asset menagers with an active, ongoing
demonstrable engagement in locdl or global ESG initiahves
ond encourage them to be signatones to the UN Principles
for Responsible fnvesimenl However, we do not set ethical
parameters for our asset managers regording the 1ssuers in
which they can or cannol mvest In 2014, we approved a
mandate 1o invest in UK infrastructure debt We require at
least 30% of this mandate, once invested fully, to be allocated
io social infrastructure ossels, for example, healtheare,
educaton and government buildings

Energy and environment
We aim to manage our operations in @ sustanable way

Emissions

Groupwide greenhouse gas {"GHG”) emissions are shown in
the chart below You can hind more details of our emrssions in
the Direciors' report on page 96

Energy use 1s a key drver of our emissions Our Property
Management teom has developed an energysaving plan This
mvolves seeking to ophimise our bulldings” heating, venhlahon
and air condiioning systems, and a programme of invesiment
in energy-efficient devices, such as ighting Since Apnl 2014,
100% of the Group's purchased electncity has been from

renewable sources on green fanlfs

85%

Waste recycled from our Home Repair Network claims

Paper used?
{tonnes)

1 56%

Greenhousegas
emssions’ {tonnes)

162
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Office waste

(%)
Woste recycled 40
Diverted fram landhll 46

86% Woaste to landfill 14

Landhll
diverted

100

Electricity from renewable sources on green taniffs

Waste

Ahter infroducing a new system o sort waste at source,
we recyeled an overage of 40% of waste from our offices
and 60% of waste from our UK Aceident Repan Centres

We diverted 86% of our waste from landhlt in 2014
including recyehng

Paper use

Through our deskiop and printing ranslomation programme,
we have replaced our old hardware with new Mulh Functional
Devices ["MFDs”) This has significantly reduced energy and
paper use The graph on the previous poge shows our paper
consumphon Qur office paper s mode rom recycled matenat
All our waste paper 15 recycled

Employee experience

Qur people stategy continued its focus on ensunng we have
the nght capability o deliver our strategic objectives with
particular focus on leadership ond people monagers

Engagement

Qur business areas focused on capabiity and engagement plans
to help embed and build upon the ransformational acivity of the
previous year Our am of mvolving people and encouraging a
sense ol ownership led to the conlinued development of our
employee representative bodies and other porhcipative
approaches as well as key nmatives such as confirming o further
free share award, see poge 155, and enhancements io our
Buy-as yourFam scheme effective in early 2015
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Gender diversity of ali employees

Male 5,598
Femcle 5,334

Employee feedback remains an mpostant gouge Dunng the
fist hall of 2014 we completed a "pulse’ survay, with our new
employee opimon survey DialoGue foking place i November
DialeGue uses a significanily more robust and demanding
measure of engagement that 1s directly linked

to our slralegic proriiies

On a likeforlike bosis, engogement has increased overall

to 76% {2013 71%] Using the new end more challenging
methodology which ss aligned to our ambition 1o be o top
employer we scored 45% which 1s comparable 1o industry
norms The survey conhnues to show that people have o sirong
understanding of our ambihions, customer facus and

a commiment lo playing a part in the future growth of the
Group and we will continue to buld from this positive bose
over Coming years

Recognition

We made o key change to our recogmion framework n 2014
by redesigning our Chief Executive Awards progromme This
provided greater autonomy for business focations to nominate and
decide who should receve an award for contribuhons relating 1o
our Company values Each locatien origamised the event that besl
suiled therr people

The changes proved a great success, resulting 1n a more
ioilored and personal approach, and really posiive feedback
Since launch, eight ceremonies have been held wath over
2,000 nommatons resulbing in more than 400 people being
shoitlisied and over 100 people being recogmised for

their contnbution

Human rights and diversity

Qur dversity and inclusion praciices are in line with the
Universal Declaration of Human Rights We continue to work
towards an environment that 15 based on merttocracy and
inclusion, where all employees con develop 1o their full
potential This 15 irrespective of their age, beliefs, disability,
elhnic or natonal ongin, gender, gender 1dentity, mantal or
el parinership status, poliical opmion, race, religion or
sexual onenlalion

Through our Etucal Code for Suppliers, we adhere to the core
International Labour Crganization standards

During 2014, our Diversity Network Alliance {“DNA")
conhinued building its visibility throughout the business by,

for example, attending london Prde and giving employees the
opportunity to learn cbout o range of diversity topics through
informative articles on the company nfranet DNA also
promoted an inclusive culture thiough o senes ol networking
and educchonal events, and seminars covenng unconscious
bias, balancing work and other topics



Gender diversity of Board members

Male &

Female 3

The ratic of femaletomale employees ot 31 December 2014
13 shown wn the charts

Community

We believe how cur people feel about working here 15 linked
to our wider repuiahon in the community That is why we seek
1o align our grang with our employees' interests

Community and soctal committees

To drive engagement among our people, we operate a
network of Community and Social Commitiees [“CASCs”),
The CASCs, which compnise locol volunieers, receve central
funding and support Within an agreed framework, they are
free to creqle their own programme of events and achvities
for therr site, and build relotionships with focel chonties and
voluntary organisations

We encourage all employees o volunteer individually or os

a team thiough our ‘One Day inmative’, deally with a local
organisation with which they already have a connecion

For example, our logishes team chose to support the chanty,
‘Carers leeds” The team helped the ¢hanly to reduce the costs
assoctaled with maibng out thesr newsletters

According to our Employee Opinion Survey, last year 31%
of staff fundraised or volunteered in Company time

Matched giving

We aperate o well established and generous Payroll Giving
scheme that matches regular employee chantable donations up
1o £50 per month In 2014, we achieved Silver in the "Payroll
Gwing Quality Mark and Awards’ The Awards, adminisiered
by the Inshiute of Fundraising and supported by the Cabinet
Chhice, recognise and reward businesses that are committed

to Payroll Gving

SILVER AWARD 2014
® & o

$33393

PAYROLL GIVING

Gender diversity of senior managers

Male 102
Female 27

£154,000

Employee donahons through our
Payroll Giving scheme

3%

Employees volunteering or fundraising
In company hime

We also provide grants of £250 to organisahions for which
our employess regularly volunteer or raise funds in their
own fime

In 2014, cur employees donated £154,000 through our
Payroll Gving scheme and we donated a fuither £94,000
in maiched gving We also donated £46,000 in grants

Strotegic partnerships

In addilion to our parinership with the road salety chanty
Broke, see page 33, we have recycled funds receved
from taking on apprentices through the Government's Waoge
Incenive Scheme and used them 1o help other young
unemployed people through a stuctured progromme of
support delivered by the leading chanty, *‘Groundwork’

www directlinegroup com
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Operating review

Personal lines

"We continue to improve our customer
experience and proposihions through
investing in new capabilihes ”

Mike Holliday-Williams
Managmg Director of Personal Lines

Motor
Highhights

+ Retained posiion as Bntan’s leading personal motor nsurer,
with @ 13 1% share of inforce policies!

e Operating profit reduced by 14 6% due to lower levels of
pror year reserve releases and adverse luige bodily mjury
clams volatdity in 2014, partly offset by lower costs and
a higher invesiment return

« Contnued to develop cusiomer funcionality and propositions
during the year, lounched new toblet and smarlphone
ophmised websites and o sell install telematics propositon

Performance highlights

2014 2013
In force policies thousands) 3,672 3,762
Cross wrilten premium £1,3420m  £1,421 im
loss raho &7 0% 65 1%
Commission ratio 3% 25%
Expense ratio 26 0% 25 &%
Combined operahng ratio 96 2% 93 2%
Operahng profit £297 Im £347 7m

Performance

We confinued enhancing our cuslomer lunchonahity through
new tablet ond smariphone-optimised websites We also
inproved our cuslomer proposihons, including rolling oul o
self install telemalies proposition

We continued making choices designed to ophinise value and
priortise underwnting profit over volume growsh Furthermore,
these resulls reflected previous achions 1o reduce nsk and
manage clams costs These have helped us manage the
business successhully through o dynamic and evolving
regulatory landscope and competiive marketploce

Effect on premium ncome of changes in price and nisk mix?

Q4 Q3 Q2 &)

2014 2014 2014 2014

Change in price 17% - (2 3%) {5 1%)
Change in nsk

X {10%) (2 6%) (2 3%) {10%)

Market

The UK economy continued expanding, while in the European
Union area output grew modestly ond domestic demand
weukened This moy subdue UK growth in the future
Consumer price inflation has been lower than expecled  This
led to a deloy in anhcipated nises in base interest rotes and
continued the irend of low invesiment refurns on debit secunhes

The total number of cars on the road increased 1o 32 millon
supported by car manulactunng, ssing approximately 4% on
the previous perrod, 0s economic confidence rose Fuel prices
were broadly stable for most of the year although did fall fate
in the year, while tolal distance travelled increased

The molor nsurance market wos highly competitve with
further premium deflation of the start of the year As the year
progressed premiwm rales fatlened PCWs continued fo toke
a central role in the market as customers shopped around
The CMA introduced a ban on wide ‘most favoured nation'
clauses, which aims to increase competihion further

Notes
i Seenowe 1 on poge 7

Gross written premium of £1,342 O million reduced by 5 6%
and inlorce policies reduced by 2 4%, compored with 2013
Overall, prices increased marginally in the fourth quarter of
2014 compared with the same penod last year, while nsk mix
reduced by 1 0% Our pnces were more compelitive in a
stable marke!, and the benelis frem improvements in prcing
capabilty confinued

Underwaiting prohit reduced by 49 2% 1o £49 8 milon

This was marnly due to lower, albert stil significani, prioryear
reserve releases and adverse volaiibty in lorige bodily inury
claims 1n 2014 These factors increased the loss ratic by

1 @ percentage points The expense ratio detenorated by

0 4 percentoge points as benefits from the Group's cost saving
plans were offset by a reduction in net earned premium The
commission raho detenorated by 0 7 percentage points as

a result of an increase n profit commission payments due

to porners

Overall operating profit was £297 1 million, a reduction of
14 6% compared with 2013, as lower underwniing profst
and lower other ncome was offset by better invesiment returns

Outlook

A number of headwinds are facing the motor market as we
enter 2015, in parhicular the retumn to a more normal tong term
claims inflation versus ewdence in the early part of the year of
continsed market competihon Aganst these headwinds, we
end the year conservatively reserved, from which we continue
to expect matenal reserve releases assuming curent cloims
frends continue, and a programme of wnihatives to delwer
further capobihty improvements

2 Risk mix reflects the expected level of claims frem the porfoho It measures the esimated quonterly movement ko the some quarer in the previous yeor bosed on

nisk models used n that penad and 1s revised when nsk models are updated
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Home
Highhghts

» Relained position as one of Butain's leading home insurers
with a 16 7% share of rlorce policies!

» Own brand customer retenhion improved on last year as we
continued mvesting n pricing programmes

 Delivered claims customer expenence improvements using
smartphone technology for Home daims assessment

« Operciing prohit mmcreased by 7 3% due to an improved
ofintonal foss raho performance and lower costs, pamally
offset by higher profit commissions due to partners

+ COR improved by 1 1 percentage ponis lo 92 7%
Performance highlights

2014 2013
Inforce policies (thousands) 3,526 3,719
Gross wrilten premum £898 6m £643 1m
loss ratio 508% 539%
Commussion rotio 21 7% 19 6%
Expense raho 202% 20 3%
Combined operating satio 927% @3 8%
Cperaling protit £113 9m £106 2m

Market

The economic downtumn strongly affecied new home bulding
However, this has now recovered ond increased by 16%

on the previous penod This led 1o the overall net supply of
new hause bulds increasing by 10% on the previous year

Compehtion n the home insurance market increased and the
markel trend of new business premium deflation continued?
A number of trends contnbuted to the competiion including
growth in the use of PCWs, increased competiiveness lrom
nsurers via panels, in some cases supported by reinsurers,
and motor msukance providers focusing on home insurance
producis Changes in the regulaiory envirenment conhnued
1o affect banks ond bulding sociehes, and therr branch sales
of insurance were subdued

The msusance indusiry continued working with the government

and the Associatton of Briish Insurers on the set up of Flood Re

and the associated levies, costs and processes This aims 1o

make home insurance more affordable for customers in the
highest nsk flood areas

No'as
1 Seenote 1 on page 7

Performance

We delivered ancther good resuli in 2014, as we conhinued
mveshng in pricing programmes and claims ronsformation
allowing us o compete i an increosingly compehitive
market Own brands customer retention also mproved on
the previous year

Gross witten premium of £898 & million reduced by 4 7%
and inforce policies tell by 5 2% since lost year This was
mamly due to lower new business volumes impacted by
compettive market condilions, porially offset by on
improvement 1N customer refention

Underwrining proht increased by 13 0% 1o £63 5 mithon The
loss ratio smproved by 3 1 percentoge points reflecting a focus
on enhancing 1isk selechon and contnued prior yeor reserve
releases Clowms costs from major weather events of £63 mdlion
were broadly in ine with 201 3 (£69 midlion} Adjushng for
claims from major weother events the currentyear afintional loss
raho of 49 2% was 1 @ percentage points lower than 2013

The commission ratio defenorated by 2 1 percenfage points
due to o one-off adjusiment to histonc profi shore payments
and increased proht share payments as a result of higher
prohtability in 2014 The expense ralio improved by O 1 of
a percentage point as lower cosls from Improvements across
the Gioup were portly olfset by o reduction in nel earmed
premium  Overall, operoting profit improvad by 7 3%

Outleck

Following signthcant new business premium deflahon in 2014,
the homa market has stabilised in the early part of 2015, but
remains an area of unceriainty  For own brands, we will
continue to use the benelits from our pricing and clams nmatives
to enhance our competiive posiion, while working with our
partners fo opfimise the value of therr current market positions
Ome of our larges! partners, Nationwide, 15 currently reviewing
iis home insurance provider as our contracl approaches

renewal We will continue to work wath key stokeholders 1o
fociitate o successful implementation of Flood Re

2 Bosed on online independent research by Cansumer inleligence in 201 4, data cbioired from 2,100 nisk probles from 34 componies

www directinegroup com
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Operating review continued

Rescue and other personal lines
Highhghts

* Rescue nforce policies grew by 3 3% in the year, diven
by Green Flag's new marketing campaigns ond proposiions

« Other personal hnes inforce policies reduced by 7 O%,
due o a reduction n Travel policies connected o the sale
ol packoged bank accounts

o Gross written premium decreased by 3 0% to £371 8
milion, diven by the sale of Direct Line Life Insurance
Company limited {the “Life business”) in November 2013

« Adusting for the Life business, underying gross wrtten
premium rose 4 5%, prmanly due to Green Flag ond
pncing inihahves

Operaling prohi increased by 3 2%, due to Green Flag’s
strong underlying performance and higher proryeor reserve
releases i Travel thon in 2013

-

Performance highhghts

2014 2013

in force policies (thousands)
Rescue 4,075 3,944
Pet 221 246
Travel 4,061 4,205
Other 235 316
Gross wiillen premium £371 8m £383 4m
Loss ratio 57 4% 60 1%
Commission ratio 9 4% 7 5%
Expense rato 252% 24 8%
Combined operciing 1aho 920% Q2 4%
Operaling profit £48 Om £46 5m

Market
The wider economic trends are similar fo those detalled in
the Motor and Home marke! reviews on poges 36 1o 37

The rocdside asssstance market, n which there ore thiee key
praviders including Green Flag, 13 expecled 1o grow broadly
n line with the number of cars on the rood Roodside
assislance preducts are bought direct from providers, linked 1o
ihe sale of molor msurance, thiough PCWs, and prowded as
a compenent of a packaged bank account through partners
Customers place a high level of importance on service

The number of pets in the UK remained stable over the las!
year, as has the level of customer toke-up of nsurance cover!
However, higher velerinary medical costs led 1o increased
claims costs Providers mirgoled these costs by mcreasing
average premwwms For insurance prowiders, velennary
prachces also remained a key distbution route to customers

Note
1 Source Association of Brnsh Insurers
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High volumes and penetration rates continued to charactense
the travel insurance market The uptake of msurance minored
the UK populahon taking an increasing number of rps
abroad, as the economy mproved Medical claims continued
to represent the largest component of claims spend However,
the sirength of the Paund Sterling parially offset overseas
medical mflationary pressures on claims costs in 2014
Customers continued to purchase cover thiough PCWs and
as part of packaged bank accounts Purchases through

travel agents have reduced over ime

Performance

A new markeng campaign and propostions, ncluding our
misfuelling proposition, successfully continued 1o differentiate
Green Flag from its peers Our Travel and Pet preduct lines
delvered positive results, n Travel this resulted from price
increases The results included higher prioryear reserve releases

Gross wirtten premium of £371 8 milhon decreased by 3 0%
from £383 4 million in 2013 This was due 1o the sale of

the Lite business in November 2013 Adjusting for the Life
business, underlying gross wrilten premrum increased by 4 5%
This reflected increased direct sates of Green Flag products
Gross written premium for Travel producs mcreased 8 9%,
resuling from price ncreoses, which olfset a reduction 1n in
force policies Pet gross written premium remained stable

Underwriing profit ncreased by £1 7 million on 2013 while
the loss rao improved by 2 7 percentage points to 57 4%
due to on improved underlying performance benehtting from
price increases, reduchon of claims from weather and higher
prioryear reserve releases The expense rano detenorated
marginally by O 4 percentage ponts Overcll, operating prohit
increased 3 2% to £48 O milhon Of the totol operating profu,
Rescue delivered £41 5 million, a £3 3 milkon improvement
on the previous year

Outlook

Rescue and other personal lines continues to represent an
opporiunity to meel customers' brooder insurance needs and
create addimonal value for the Group Green Flag represents a
strong offering n the Rescue morket and we will look to build
on its recent market share gams Dunng 2015, we also am to
review our Pet operaiing models to enhonce our service while
updating our custormer proposiion



Commercial

"By focusmg on the SME sector,
mantaining our underwriting disciphne
and dnving improvements in efficiencres,
we exceeded our target and delivered

a CCR of 98 8% *

Jon Greenwood
Managing Director of Commercial

Highlights

e Achieved the subr 100% COR rarget set for 2014, delivening

o COR of 98 8%

+ Inforce policies conlinued 1o increcse with 4 8% growth
in 2014 This was dnven by landlord and Tredesman
products, and partially offset by a reduction in Von

» Gross wiitten premium increcsed by 2 6% o £487 O
million, with growth n eTrade and Duect Line for Business,
parhally offset by Van

« Cantinued improvement of the eTriade products and
propositions, and launched a Churchill Van product

* Operaling probit of £47 0 million represented o subsientiol
increase on 2013, due to ¢ continued focus on disciplined
underwniing and cos! control

Performance highhights

2014 2013
Inforce policies (thousonds) é11 583
Gross wiitien premium £487 Om £474 5m
Loss raho 57 1% 62 3%
Commission raho 19 7% 21 2%
Expense rakio 220% 23 3%
Combined operating ralio 98 8% 106 8%
Operating prohi £47 Om £2 5m

Market

The UK economy, business mvesiment and productivity
continued expanding The number of new companies
registered and people in employment has nsen

Businesses are ncreasmngly purchasing polices online ond
through banks The purchase of commercial van insurance
dwect from nsurance providers remains the moin channel

for this product

Levels of buytolel lending rose on last year Tighter lending
critena were introduced in Apnl 2014 for home owner
occupler morigages These do not apply o buyiolet
mortgages and in fact, the proporion of privately rented
residenhal properties 1s more than one in six — the highest
level since the 1970s

Performance

Inforce policies continued 1o ncrease with 4 8% growth in
2014 Growth was porticularly in the sirategically important
Direct line for Business and eTrade segments, with higher in
force policies from Landlord ond Tradesman producls We
continued to improve the functionality of our eTrade product
sutte and launched a Churchill Van product, which focuses
on growing distribubien thraugh PCWs We also piloted
telemahics proposions with Direct Line for Business ond
NIG customers

Gross witten premium increased by 2 6% compared 1o last year,
with growth in eTrade and Direct Line for Business beneliing from
previous invesiments The commercial van market, smilar 1o the
UK personal motor market, was highly competiive

The COR improved lo 98 8%, achieving cur 2G14 target The
loss ralo improved by 5 2 perceniage ponts to 57 1%, dnven
by o coninued focus on disciplined underwriing and the non
repeot of the above-average leval of Jarge claims expenenced
n 2013 This included significant prior year reserve releases,
which were broadly in ine with the level of 2013 The
expense ratio impraved by 1 3 percentoge points fo 22 0%
This was due to the continued benelits from our regional
restructure dunng the previous year and cost improvement
programmes across the Group The commussion ralo

improved by 1 5 percentage ponts to 19 7%

Overall operating profit increased by £37 5 million to £47 O
million for the year This was delivered principally due to o
continued focus on disciphned underwriting and cost control

Outlook

In 2015, we am to buld en the profilable posiion esiablished
by the Commercial division following the achievement of its
COR target m 2014 In particular, we are locking to further
our ambition n the direct and eTrade broker channels where
the Group has recently nvesied and where we believe we

will be increasingly competitvely advantaged

www directhnegroup com
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Finance review

Delivering
performance

John Reizenstein

Chiet Financial Officer

“This year, we met our key inancial targets
while continuing to invest for the future ”

Highlights

« Operating proht from ongoing operations! of £506 0
million for 2014, down O 8%, 12013 £509 @ million)

s Proht before tax of £456 8 million {2013 £407 3 million)
mereased 12 2%, refleciing a reduchon in restructunng and
other one-off costs

o Gross witlen premium for ongoing operations decreased by
3 8%, reflecting discrplined underwaiing in competitive markets

« Combined operating ratio or ongoing operations of @5 0%,
an improvement of O 2 of o perceninge pont

* Return on tangible equity? of 16 8% tor 2014 (2013 16 0%)

= Second special infenm dividend of 4 O pence per share
declared and final® dwidend of 8 8 pence per share proposed

Notes

1 See note 2 on page 4

2 Seencie 1 onpoge d

3 Second intenm didend declored in lieu of ¢ final dividend
4 Seenote 3 on poge 5
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2014 2013
£m £m
Ongoing operations!
Inforce policies {housands) 16,401 16,865
Gross wrilten premium 3,099 4 32221
Net earned premium 2,987 1 3,154 1
Underwriting profit 1481 1526
Instalment and other
operaling ncome 147 3 1726
Invesiment return 2106 1847
Operating proht — engoing
operatons 5060 5099
Rurroff 553 636
Restructuning and other
one-off cosls (6% 6) {140 5)
Operatng proht 4917 4330
Finance cosls {37 2} {37 7)
Gon on disposal of subsidanes 23 120
Prohit before tax 4568 407 3
Tax (97 5) {96 5)
Profil from discontinued
operations, net of tax 133 20
Prohit aher tax 3726 3128
Of which 15 engoing
operahons 3680 3624
Key metrics
Loss roho! 59 6% 60 9%
Commission raho! 118% 10 6%
Expense raho! 2346% 237%
Combined operating ratio! 950% Q5 2%
fnvesiment Income yield —
conhnuing operahons 24% 21%
fnvesiment return — continuing
operahons 29% 24%
Basic earnings per shore —
continuing operations (pence) 240 208
Adyusled earnings per share? —
diluled [pence) 255 250
Refum on tangible equity? 16 8% 16 0%
Net asset value per shore
{pence] 188 2 1866
Tangible net asset valve
per share {pence} 1531 153 2
Divdend per share
~inferim {pence} 44 42
- final [pence) 88 84
— regular (pence) 132 126
- hrst speciol {pencel 100 40
- second special {pence) 40 40
- total {pence) 272 206




Performance

On 25 September 201 4, the Group entered into a binding
agreement for the sale, subject 1o regulotory approval, of iis
Internatonal dvision and accordingly has freated this dwvision
s discontinued operations

Operating profit — ongoing operations’

The reducton in Molor and Home inforce policies of 2 4%
and 5 2% respectvely reflected the Group's focus on
manlaning 1ls underwrniing disciphne 1n o competitive
masketplace Within Home, ownrbrand inforce policies
reduced by 3 2% compored to the same penod in 2013
This reflected lower newbusiness volumes, pariolly offset
by o high refention rate

2014 2013
£m tm  Inforce pohicy giowth in Commercial arose mainly from

Underwning proht 1481 1576  Driectline for Business with postive effects fiom landlord and

Tradesman products, partally offset by a reduchon in Van
fnstafment and other operating
Income 1473 1726 Gross watten pramium — ongoing eperations
Invesimend refurn 2106 184 7 2012 201

3

Operating proh 5060 5009 £m £m

Own brands 1,248 4 1,305 2
In 2014, operating profit from ongoing operations was stoble Parinershins 936 150
at £506 C millon (2013 £509 9 million] The underwriting " P| 20 3
result was marginally lower by 2 9% as lower net eamed ofor tota 1,34 14211
premium more than offset the improvement in COR to 95 0%
(2013 95 2%} This reflected wvesiment i pricing capability  Owa brands 4162 4348
and focus on underwniing discipline A fower cost base Pastnerships 4824 508 3
reflecting an ongoing focus on operating efhciency wos parly  Home total 8986 G431
offset by higher profit share payments to pariners The
invesiment refurn increase of 14 0%, driven by changes nthe  pageye 156 © 1469
assel mix as the Group moved towards its larget allocation Other personal lnes 2149 236 5
and fovourable unrealised gains on investnent property, was R Tom I 3718 5834
offset by lower instalment and other operating income escue and ofher personal lines
In-force policies and gross written premium Commercial 4870 474 5
Inforce policies — ongoing operations (thousands| Total ongoing 3,099 4 3,222

At 31 December 2014 2013 G (£3 000 " duced by 3 8%
ross wiitten premium of £3, 4 mullion reduc 5
Swn br:nds 3';; 3’;22 compared with the prior year (2013 £3,222 1 million] This
arinerships reflected the impact of competiive motor and home insurance
Motor total 3,672 3762 markets, together with the Group's continued focus on
o mantoning its underwning disciphne
Own brands 1,693 1,749
Porinerships 1,833 1,070  Gross writlen premium for Commercial of £487 0 millien
Home fofal 3526 3710 increosed by 2 6% (2013 £474 5 million} The division
! ’ continued 1o benelit from previcus mvesiments and focus
on Direct bine for Business and eTiade  The commerciol
Roeii‘:“e | jg?fv igg; van market, similar fo the personal motor market, remained
er_persond ines : : highly compeltive
Rescue and other personal lines 8,592 8,801
Underwriting profit — ongoing operations
Commercial 611 583 214 2013
Total ongoing 16,401 16,865  Underwriting proht {£ mullion) 1481 1526
Loss rato 59 6% 60 9%
Dunng 2014, inforce policies for ongoing operations Commission raho 11 8% 10 6%
decreased by 2 8% 10 16 4 million The tall pumanly related Exoense falo 23 6% 93 79
to olher personal lines, within the Rescue and other personal Jeb ! i
lines division, and Home The reduction in Rescue and other Combined operating ratio P50% 25 2%

personal lines was mainly due to fewer Travel policies
connecled 1o packoged bank accounts However, Rescue in
force policies grew by 3 3%, duven by Green Flag's new
marketing campaign and proposthions

Note
1 Seenote 2 on poge 4

The COR for ongoing operations improved shightly in 2014 1o
05 0% {2013 95 2%} as a lower loss ratio was offset by @
higher commission ratio Adjusted for a normal level of claims
from major weather evenis and including International, the
Group’s COR wos approximetely 96%, within the gurdance
range for 2014 ol 95% 1o 97%

www direcllinegroup com
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Finance review conhnued

Within the overall COR improvement, there wos a 1 3
percentage point reduction m the loss raho This arose from an
smprovement in the atnional loss ratic and higher prior year
reserve releases of £397 6 million us a percenlage of net
eamed premium (2013 £395 8 millon] Home claims from
majer weather evenis decreased by approximalely £6 millien
on the previous year In 2014, these dams totolled
approxmalely £63 milion (2013 approamately £69 millon)

Dunng the year, the commission raho increased by

1 2 percentage points to 11 8% (2013 10 6%} This was
mainly due fo profit share payments due 1o pariness i
Mgalor and Home

Reflecting the benehi of cost reduction mimatves, which more
than offset the effect of lower net eamed premium, the expense
raho decreased by O 1 of a percentage pont 1o 23 6%

Curenl year atinhionalloss ralio - ongoing operations

204 203
Reported loss ratio 59 6% 60 9%
Pror year reserve relenses 13 3% 12 6%
Mayer weather evenis - Home! {2 1%) (2 2%
Current-year attnhonal loss
ratio 70 8% 71 3%

The movement in the currenl year alinfional loss reho 1s a

key indicator of underlying accident year performance as 1f
excludes prioryear reserve movements, and cloims from major
weolher events in the Home division The Group's currentyear
atintional loss roto improved by O 5 percentage points 1o

70 8% n 2014 {2013 71 3% This rellected improved
perffoimance in Home, Commercial and Rescue and other
personal fines, parhally offset by Motor

Prioryear reserve refeases from ongoing operations continued
to be significant ot £397 & million and were o similar level

to the previcus year (2013 £395 8 millon} Pnoryear reserve
releases were equivalent to 13 3% of net eamed premium
(2013 12 &% of net eamed premium] If current claims irends
continue, the Group expecls lurther significant reserve eleases
to continue In 2015, albert the overall level 1s expected to be
lower than in 2014

Analysis by division

By division, the COR improved in Home, Commercial,
and Rescue and other personal lines compared with 2013,
but delenorated 1n Motor

Motor

In Motor, the 3 O percentage poinls detenoration in the COR
prmcipally reflects an increase i the loss and commassion
rakos Reserve releases of £278 4 million in 2014 were
driven prmanly by contnued favourcble expenence on bodily
nury claims across recent accident years This was parily
otirbutable 1o benelits ansing from the Group’s claims
transfermation programme as well os the Llegal Aud,
Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act reforms  The
Group believes that it 1s currently oculperforming the industry

in respect of small bodily mpury claims expenence The current-
year atnhonal loss ralio detenorated by 3 2 percentage ponts
to 88 5% This was pnmarly a result of higher costs for large
bodily ijury claims in the 2014 accident year, which the
Group considers 1o be due 1o the intnnsic volatility in thus

type of claim

Home

The COR for the Home division improved 10 92 7% in 2014
from 93 B% 1n the previous year The currentyear altnhional
loss ratio improved by 1 8 percentage ponts on the previcus
year, teflecting the benelits of a disciplined underwnting
approach and favourable underlying claims expenience
Reserve releases were shghtly lugher than prior year ot £49 8
million {2013 £43 3 milion} In 2014, clams from major
weother evenis totalled approximately £63 milhion compared
with approximately £69 midlion in 2013 This was particlly
offset by a fugher commission ratio sefleciing increased prokil
share paymenis due to pariners

Rescue ond other

Motor Home parsonal hnes Commerciol Toral ongoing
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Combined operaiing ratio 96 2% 927% 920% 98 8% 95 0%
Current year atntional loss raho 88 5% 49 3% 81 7% 69 2% 708%
Prios year reserve releases (£ million}? 278 4 498 157 537 397 6
For the year ended 31 December 2013
Combined operating ratio 93 2% 93 8% Q2 4% 106 8% 95 2%
Currentyear alintional loss ratio 85 3% 511% 62 5% 741% 71 3%
Prior year reserve releases (£ million)? 219 433 Q0 516 3958

MNotes

1 Home claims from major weather events including inland and coastal flooding, ond stoms

2 This excludes the Run-off segment reserve relecses of £53 2 millen {2013 £52 1 millon}
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Rescue and other personal lines

The COR for Rescue and other personal hnes improved by

0 4 parcentage points 1o $2 0% {2013 92 4%}, duven by
higher prioryear reserve releases on Travel and lower clams
frequency in Rescue In November 2013, the life business
was sold This confnbuted £6 4 million to operatng profit

m the pror year

Commercial

The Commercial COR improved to 98 B% from 106 8% in
2013 beanng the iarget set for the dmsion The 8 O perceniage
points improvement in the COR was mainly due to belter
underlying underwnting performonce, and better expense and
commission sahios The currentyeor atinhonal loss raho improved,
demonsiraing the positive effect of disciplined underwnting and
the nonrepeat of the above averoge level of large cloims
expenenced in 2013 The dmvston continued expenencing
signihcant prioryeor reserve releases, which were shightly

higher than n 2013

Tolal cost base

2014 2013
£m £m

St costs 247 6 207 8
Markehng 1239 1591
Deprecialion 226 184
Amorhsatien and impaimment
of other intangible assets 66 4 336
Other operahing expenses 2449 2379
Total operahng expenses —
ongoing 7054 746 8
Claims hondling expenses 2223 238 2
Tolal cost base - ongoing 9277 9850
Tatol operating expenses —
discontinued 290 396
Cloims handling expenses —
discontrwed 172 73
Totat cost base - ongong and
disconhinued operations 9739 1,031 9

The Group achieved s target tolal cost base of approximately
£1,000 milhion in 2014 with a total cost base of £973 ¢
milhon including the International dwviston which (s now reated
as a disconfinued operation

The total cost base for ongoing operations of £927 7 millon
was 5 8% lower than Tost yeor {2013 £985 O milfion) The
reduchon was principally dve to the Group's cost sovings
inhaives, with o coniinuing focus on cost control and
operahing efficiency, meluding marketing Overall, the expense
1aho reduced O 1 of a percentage pont fo 23 6%, with the
reduchon in operating expenses parally offset by the impact
ol lower net earmed premium

Notes

Instalment and other operating income — ongoing operations

2014 2013
£m £m

Instalment income 100 4 1110
Other operaiing income
Vehicle replocement referral
income 158 157
Revenue from vehicle recovery
ond reparr services' 180 318
Fee income from insurance
intermediory services 21 17
Other income? 110 124
Other operahing income 49 616
Total engoing 147 3 172 &6

Instalment and other operating ncome from engoing
operalions reduced by 14 7% on 2013 This wos mainly
due to the sale of the Tracker business, cessaton of solicitors’
referral fee mcome from 1 Apnl 2013 and lower

instalment income

Instalment income, which represents interest charged on
insurance premums paid by instalments, of £100 4 million
reduced by £10 & million compared with the prior yeas
{2013 £111 0 million) This was @ result of tower inforce
policies and grass wrillen premium in Motor and Home

In February 2014, the Group sold its stolenvehicle recovery
business, Tracker In 2014, Tracker's revenue prior lo sale
was £1 4 million (2013 £18 4 million), which was included
i the above Operating losses from the business were

£0 4 million (2013 loss of £1 4 million)

Investment return - ongoing operahons

2014 2013
£m £m
Investment income 1717 1571
Net realised and unrealised
gamns 389 276
Investment return — ongoing 2106 184 7
Investment yields — continuing operations®
2014 2013
Investment income yield* 24% 21%
Investment relum® 29% 2 4%

The total investiment reiurn for ongoing operafions increased to
£210 6 miflion compared to £184 7 milhion in 2013 This
was dnven by both on increase in investiment income and net
realised and unrealised gans lnvestment income was £171 7
milhon, a @ 3% increase from 2013, as o result of changes
asset mix, which were parlially offset by both lower assels
under management [*AUM”) ond markei yields Net realised

1 Vehicle racovery inciudes postaccident ond poy-onuse racovery, and vehicle trocking Repair semices include providing non insurance related repairs

2 Includes referral feas and leget income
3 Includes connnuing operations and the Run-off segment
4

Investment income yield excludes net gans ond 15 calculotad on incame divided by caleulating the average AUM based on the opening ond closing balonce for

total Group - continuing operahans

§  Invesment miurn ncludes net gains and 1s caleuloied on income divided by calculoiing the averoge AUM bosed on the opening ond closing balance for total

Group - contknuing operahons

www directhinagroup com
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Finance review continued

and unrealsed gains from ongomng operations of £38 @
million were higher than the previous yeor {2013 £27 6
million gain) primanly due 1o fair value Increases on mvesiment
property (2014 £25 Q mdlion, 2013 £7 & mithon} with
lower rechsed gans on fixed income debt secunties (2014
£15 8 millon, 2013 £20 5 millon gain)

The investment income yield for coniinuing operalions m 2014
was 2 4%, compared to 2 1% 1n 2013 This reflects porttolio
achons which increased invesiments in UK commercial
property, secunsed credit and noninvestment grade credit
within the corporate debt portfolio and infrastructure debt as
the Group moved towards ifs target asse! allocation Bosed on
current yield curves and the current larget asset cllocation, the
Group forecasts 2016 investment income yield of 2 7%

Total investment holdings excluding Infernationat reduced by
8 3% n 2014, prmonly reflecting o reduckion 1n gross writlen
premium and payment of the £149 7 million specral mtenm
dwvidend on 12 September 2014 Porffolio changes ore
oullined on page 47 Tolal unrealised gans excluding
Internatonal and net of tax, on avalableforsale {*AFS”)
investments were £94 4 million at 31 December 2014

{31 December 2013 £50 3 millon)

Operaling proftt —ongoing operahons

2014 2013

Zm £m

Molor 2971 347 7
Home 139 1062
Rescue and other personal lines 480 465
Commercidl 470 25
Total ongoing 5060 5009

All divisions were prohiable 1n 2014, with cll areas except
Molor improving operaing profil compared 1o the previous year

Reconcihiahon of operating profit

2014 2013
£m £m
Operating profit - ongoing 506 Q 5099
Runoff 553 636
Restryctunng ond other one-olt
cosls {69 8) (140 5}
Operating profit N7 4330
Finance cos!s {37 2) (37 7}
Gain on disposal of subsidianes 23 120
Proht before tax 456 8 407 3
Tax (97 5) @6 5)
Prohit from discontnued
operations, net of tox 133 20
Profit affer tax 3726 3128

Note
1 See note 2 on page 5
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Run-off

The Run off segment generated a prolit of £55 3 million in
2014 compared with £63 6 million n 2013 improved
claims experience, paricularly from large bodily myury, led
io a smlar level of prioryeor reserve releases 10 2013 IHis
currently expecled that the Run off segment will contnbute
postively 1o operaing profi in future years, however, at o
lower level than in 2014

Restructuring and other one-off costs

Restructuring and other one-off costs for 2014 of £69 & million
{2013 £140 5 milkon} prmarly related 1o costs associated
with migrating the Group's iT infrastructure The reduchon

was mum|y due to lower costs ansing from the Group's cosl
savings inthahves

For 2015, the Group expects to incur addiional restructunng
costs in the region of £50 milien as it concludes the IT
megraton as well as cosls associoled wath engoing cos!
reduction inatives including the exit of one location
announced earlier in 2015

Over the next three years, the Group expecls cumulative
restructuring costs to be substantially offset by the prohit from
the Run off segment

Finance costs
Finance costs remained stable at £37 2 million
(2013 £37 7 million)

Gain on disposal of subsicdiaries
The gain on disposal of £2 3 million refates to selling the
Group's stolen vehicle recovery business, Tracker

Taxahon

The effechve fox rate for conhnuing operations m 2014 was

21 3% {2013 23 7%), ahgning closely wath the standard UK
corporohion fox rate of 21 5% (2013 23 25%) The difference
in rate was dnven pnmanly by disallowed expenses, the non-
taxable disposal of subsidiaries and adjusiments to provisions
in 1espect of prioryear tax

Discontinued operations

On 25 September 2014, the Group announced a binding
agreement for the sale of its International division to Maplre,
S A for total cash proceeds of €550 O miflion [£430 1
milbon'} The resulis from this dvision are now reated as
disconhnued operations

Gioss wniten premium o1 discontinued operations of £567 6
million was & 1% lower than the previous year, manly due to
foreign curtency movements Gross wiilten premivm i local
currency ferms lell morginally by 1 7%, as compentive markels *
in ltaly were patally offset by Germany's expanding share of
busingss mcepting on 1 January 2014




The discontinued operations’ COR in 2014 improved to
102 1% from 103 9% 1n 2013 The loss rolio improved
by 3 | percentage poinis refleching a decrease in claims
frequency n ttaly and nonepeat of claims from severe

hailstorms which offected Germany in 2013

Overall, the operanng profit for discontinued operations
increased by 26 5% to £21 O million in 2014 {2013
£16 6 millon}

Further details on discontinued operations are presented in
note 5 1o the conschdaled financial siclements, see page 133

Proht for the year and return on tangible equity
Prohit for the year amounted 10 £372 & mithon (2013
£312 8 millien}, an increase of 19 1% on 2013

RolE increased to 16 8% (2013 16 0%} in part from o lower
capial base as the Group refurned surplus copital te
shareholders

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share for continuing cperations of 24 O
pence increased by 15 4% (2013 20 8 pence] This
reflecied a decrease in restructunng and other one-olf costs,
pariially offset by lower operating profit from the Run off
segment and o lower eflective lox rate

Adjusted diluied earmings per share, which includes ongoing
aperations and the International dvision, Increased marginally
by 2 0% 1o 25 5 pence (2013 25 O pence)

Dwvidends

The Boord has resolved this year 1o poy an nterim dividend n
lieu of a hnal dvidend of 8 8 pence per share (2013 8 4
pencel, making total regular dwidends for 2014 of 13 2
pence per share {2013 12 6 pence] This represents an
increase of 4 8% on the 2013 regular dvidend and 15 in line
with the Group's am lo grow dividends annually n real terms

Gwen the proximity of the 2014 hinal dwidend 1o the expacted
speciol dividend relating to the sale of the International
diston, as an exceplion to the usual process, the fingl
dividend will be accelerated and, as referred to above, the
Board has resolved to poy it os an intenm drwidend This
should avoid potential delays in payment to shareholders,
which might othenwise anse following the sale of the
Imernational business

The Board has also resolved 1o pay a second special intenm
dwvidend of 4 O pence per share This 1s in addiion to the

10 O pence per share special dwidend paid in September
2014 This refurn of capital 1s consistent with the Group's
polcy to distnbute surplus capital The ex-dwidend dote for
both the hinal and second special dwdends 15 12 March
2015 ond the record date 1s 13 March 2015 The dividends’
payment date 1s 17 Apnl 2015

Moreover, the Board currently expects lo propose, following
completion of the sale of the Group's Internotional dwsion,
a lurther special mienm dwidend of subsiantially all the nel
proceeds This return of capital wilt be condiional on
shareholders approving a share consohidanon designed o
neurahse the effect on the share price of this retuin of capiial
and o maniain comparability of per share dala

Cash flow

Net cash used by opercting actvities before nvesiing
nsurance assefs ncreased to £410 6 million {2013 £307 0
milhon} This reflected an increase in cash used by operations
to £315 2 million {2013 £226 6 million) and an increcse
of taxes paid to £94 8 million {2013 £80 2 millon] The
mcrense in cash used by operations resulied from o decrease
in trade and other payables, including nsurance payables of
current ond proryear cloims

Durng the year, cash generated from investing insurance
assets increased 10 £1,121 1 million {2013 £433 O million)
Net cash proceeds from the disposal, maturity and purchases
of AFS hnancial mvestmenis were £496 7 milhlon (2013
£274 9 million cosh used} Interest receved decreased by
£215 7 mihon {2013 £574 2 milhon)

Crerall, net cash generated from operating achvilies totolled
£710 5 million {2013 £126 0 million)

Net cash used by investing achvihes of £216 O million 2013
£145 3 million} pnmanly compnsed of purchasing nlongibles
relating o ongoing software invesiment, ond purchasing
property, plant and equipment relaling to freehold lond

and buldings

Drvidends pand amounted to £401 1 milhon (2013 £242 7
million), representing payment of the hnal 2013 and intenm
and first special intenm 2014 dividends Following these,

net cash used by financing achvihes totolled £443 4 millien
(2013 £544 7 million)

Overall, cash and cash equivalents increased by £51 1
milhon {2013 £564 O million decrease} across the year to
£898 2 million (31 December 2013 £853 2 million)

Net asset value

2014 2013
A 31 December £m £m
Net assets 28105 27900
Goodwill and other intangible
assels (523 1) 1500 1}
Tangible net assets 2,287 4 2,280 ¢
Nel asset value per share
{pence) 1882 186 6
Tangible net asset value per
share [pence) 1531 153 2

The net assel value at 31 December 2014 wos £2,810 5 millon
(31 December 2013 £2,790 0 mifhon} with tangible net asset
value of £2,287 4 milkon {31 December 2013 £2,2890
million] This equates 1o 188 2 pence and 153 | pence per
share respecively at 31 December 2044 (31 December 2013
186 6 pence and 153 2 pence, respeciively)

The margimal mcrease i net osset value principally reflects
prohit for the peniod and increase n unreclised gains on AFS
invesiments offset by dvidend payments

www directhinegroup com
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Finance review continued

Finanaial management

Accessing suflicient funding as labilihes foll due 15 central 1o
the Gioup's long term sustamnability The Group's infegnty and
brand reputation for customers and other siokeholders relies on
this sustainability  The Group's key linancial rssks are reserving
for msurance habilires and market nsk connected ta the
nvestment porfolio

Reserving

Financial management includes the central aspect of esimating
claims reserves Uncerlainty 1s an inherent part of insurance
and requires judgement when assessing claims labifihes The
Group considers the class of business, the length of ime to
notfication of a claim, the vahdity of the clim ogamst o
polcy, and the claim value Claims reserves could selile o

a range of outcomas, and setilement certainly increases over
nme However, for bodily injury claims, the uncenainty 1s
grealer due to the length of ime taken 1o sefile these claims
Lifesme indexed payments for njured parties also ncrease
this uncertainty

The Group seeks lo adopt a conservative approach to
assessing habilines as evidenced by the favourable
development of hisiorical claims reserves  Reserves are based
on managemen!'s best eshmate which incorporates a prudent
margin in excess of the internal actuancl best esimate This
margin 15 made in reference to a range of octuanal scenano
ossessments and percentiles and also considers other short
ond long term nsks not rellected in the aciuanal inputs For
more iformohion, see pages 14910 152

The significart level of recent prioryear reserve releases has
ansen prmarily from improvements m the actuanal besl
eshimate, while the percentage margin above acuanial best
eshmale has increased over the same penad  Locking forward,
the Group will continue 1o set s iInihal management best
estimate for future acaident years consevatively, but provided
that the risk outlock remains stable, it does not expect 1o need
1o ncrease further the overall margin Over time, the share of
the Group's underwniting profit atinbutable to current year s
expecled 10 increase  Assuming cunent claims frends continue,
the coninbution from prior year reserve releases 1s expected to
remam signilicant, albent lower than in 2014

Claims reserves net of reinsurance

Taxaohon

Tthe Board recogmises that the Group has an important
responsibility 1o it slokeholders to manage 1is fox posiion
effectvely The Board has delegaled dayto-day management
of toxes to the Chief Financiol Officer ond oversight 15
provided by the Audi Committee

These arrangements are intended lo ensure thal the Group
complies with applicable lows and regulations, and meets
its obligatons as o coninbutor of taxes and a collector ol
taxes on behalf of the tax authonties, and manages 11s tax
affans efficiently, claiming rehefs and other incentives

where appropriate

Investment portfolio

The total value of the nvesiment porffolio excluding the
International deision’s portfolio at 31 December 2014 was
£7.051 3 milion, 8 3% lower than at 31 December 2013
The investment mcome yield on the portfolio for 2014 was
2 4%, on increcse of O 3 perceniage pomis compared 1o

previous year

The investment sirategy 15 designed to deliver several

obtectives, which are summansed below

¢ To ensure there 15 sufficient hquidity available within the
investment portfolio fo meet stiessed liquidity scenanos
determined by the Risk funchion

» To duration maich non PPO habilibes

» To back inflanon linked PPO habilites with growth assets
and other appropriale long feim assels expecied to generate
long tlerm returns v hne with clams requirements

» To deliver a suilable nsk odjusted investment return
commensurate wath the Group's fisk appetite

Assel and hobilty management
The following table summarises the Gioup's high level
approach fo ossel and frability monogement

Ucblines

Asset

Charactenshcs

More than 10 years, Property and

for example PPOs
Short and medwm
term — all other
clams

Tier 2 subrdebt
{swapped fixed to
Hoating)

Surplus — tangible
equity

infrastructure debi
Investment grade

credit and short
term high yield
Securitised credi
ond cash

Invesimentgrade
credit, cash and
government debt
secunles

inflationary linked
or fleating

Key rate duration
maiched

Foating

Fixed or floahng

2014 2013
A 31 December £m Em
Moator 23551 2,606 3
Home 3352 398 1
Rescue and other personal hnes 770 77 4
Commercial 807 5 637 9
Tota! ongeing 33748 37197
Rurroft 5238 68272
Internatonat 3936 438 2
Total Group 4,292 2 48401
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Key highlights i 2014 included

» The introduchion of two new asset classes with an intenhon
for a thid  The ollocation 1o ifrastructure debt supports the
asset strategy backing PPO Liabiliies Allocations to high
yield and private plocement credit help support delvering an
improved nsk adjusied retun Afler identifying external asset
managers for each mandole, mfrostiuctiuie debt funding
commenced in the year, the high-peld credit mandate was
fully funded and the privale placement invesiments will
commence in early 2015

* The wider use of pooled hquidity products to support returns
fiom cash and cash equivalents

» The regular use cf the internal economic caprtal model 1o
determine the capital imphcations for all asset changes
proposed and o support Invesiment Commitiee and Board
decision making

» Updated management reporting and redetined key nisk
indicators covering investment achiviies

Asset allocation and benchmarks

The present shotegic asset benchmarks for the Group's
principal UK general insurance underwriier, U K Insurance
Limited {"UKI"), are detailed in the following table

Current

benchmark
& 31 December holding 2014
tnvestment-grade credi 550% 58 2%
High yield 40% 40%
Investment grade private placements 4 0% -
Credit 63 0% 62 2%
Secunhised credit 6 0% 60%
Sovereign 130% 141%
Total debt securihes 820%  823%
Infrastructure 60% 11%
fnvesiment property 50% 43%
Cosh! and cash equivalents 7 0% 123%
Total 1000% 1000%

Total debt securiies, excluding the Internctional dwision’s
nvestment portfohio, are £5,802 5 million (2013 £6,266 3
millon}, of which 13 5% are rated as "AMA and a fuither

65 2% are rated as ‘AA" or ‘A" Corporate, local government
ond supranaiional debt securties account for 75 6% of the debt
secunhes porfioho The average durahon af 31 December 2014
of tolol debi secunties was 2 1 years {2013 2 3 years}

Dunng 2014, the Group reduced iis ollocation in investment
grade credit by four percentoge points, and allocated the funds
1o higheypeld credit rated "BB" and ‘B’ A hurther reallocahon of
funds 1s planned for 2015 with another four perceniage points
reduclion in existing invesiment grade credit {public debt i1ssues)
and oflocation lo investment grade private placements

MNate

Denvalves are permitied only for nsk mingation and efficient
porffoho management wathin the investment porfolio
Denvatives used include interest rate swaps, for example fo
hedge exposure lo US Dollar interest rate movements, and
torward currency contracts to hedge ossets denominated in US
Doltars back 1o Pounds Sterling  Separately, interest rote swaps
have also been used 1o change the nteresi rate fiabibity on the
Group's debt issuance 1o a floaling rale basis Furthermore,
Euro cash proceeds 1o be receved from the expected sale of
the Infernctional dvision have been hedged to Pounds Sterling
within the designated foreign currency hedge contract

Investment portfolio as at 31 December 2014
(%]
Corporate debt secunties 580
Supranational 2 5
Local gavemnment 17
Secuninsed cradit 60
Soveraign 141
Infrestueture 11
Cash and cash equivalents 12 3

Investment property 4 3

Investment portfolio as at 31 December 2013

(%)
Corporote debt secunties 496
Supronational 3 9
local govemnment 1 6
Secuntised credi 2 2
Sovereign 160
Cosh and cosh equivalents 140
lvesiment property 2 6
international 101

1 Awaiting investment inlo nvesiment propery, Investment grade privote placements ond infrestructure
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Finance review conlinued

invesiment holdings and yrelds — total Group

2014 2013

£m Alocahon Income: Allocahon income
Corporoie‘ 40927 1182 4,2486 1118
Supranational 176 2 49 3305 68
Local govermment 1203 24 1345 2%
Credit 4,389 2 1255 47136 1215
Secunhised
credht! 4196 61 1840 03
Soveregn 9937 224 11,3687 301
Total debt
securities 58025 1540 6,266 3 I519
Intastructure 76 2 01 - -
Cash? 8654 52 11,1994 69
Investment
property 307 2 162 2234 114
Total excluding
International 7,051 3 1755 76891 170 2
International® - - 868 5 184
Total Group 70513 1755 8557 & 188 6

Waighhng Yeld  Weighing Yieid
Corporate! 58 0% 28% 49 6% 28%
Supranational 25% 19% 319% 16%
Local government 17% 1 9% 1 6% 15%
Credit 622% 28% 551% 26%
Securitised
credit! 60% 20% 22% Q4%
Sovereign 141% 19% 16 0% 1 9%
Total debt
securifies B2 3% 246% 73 3% 2 4%
Infrastructure 11% 03% - -
Cash? 123% 0 5% 14 0% 04%
Investment
propery A% 61%  26%  65%
Total excluding
Internahonal 100 0% 2 4% B8O 9% 21%
International? - - 101% 272%
Total Group 100 0% 24% 1000% 21%

Capital management
Capital management policy
The Group seeks 1o manage ifs capital efficiently, mantaining
an approprate level of capialisation and sobvency, while
aiming lo grow its dividend annually in redl teims

In determining the appropnate level of capitalisation and

solvency, the Group considers capital across a number of
metncs These melude nsk based capital, regulotory capiiol
and rahng agency capital The Group torgets holdng capiial
in the range of 125% 1o 150% of nsk bosed copiial as well

Noteas

as holding capital sufficient to mantoin a credit rating s the
‘A’ range

Where the Board believes the Group has copital that ss surplus
to requirements, 1t looks 1o return 1t 1o shareholders For
example, this may occur If i expected that the nisk based
capital coverage would be significantly above the 125% 1o
150% target range for o prolonged penod

Risk based copital

For UK, the Group uses its own nsk-based capital model 1o
determine the level of capital 1equired % operaie within its
nsk gppefite The internal model 15 calibrated 10 a 99 5%
conhdence interval and considers earmed business and future
business written over a one~year penod Additiorally, the
model allows for the uncertamty around this business until
ulhmate setlement This approach s consistent with the
indwidual capilal ossessment (“ICA"] methodology set by

the Prudential Regulaton Authonty ["PRA”)

For UKL, the major part of is required capiial 1s held aganst
reserve nsk [approximately 46%), followed by underwiihng
nisk [opproximately 27%) ond operahenal nsk [epproximately
13%} The high level of reserve nsk reflects the size of the
claims reserves held against business written This includes
the Runoff segment, and the Group's exposure fo PPCs
which carry @ high capital requiement

Capital allocated by nsk type
(%]
Resening nsk 46 2

Underwriing nsk 26 7
Operational nsk 129

Market nsk 6 2

Counterparty risk 8 0
Copita! position and leverage

2014 2013

A 31 December £m £m
Consolidated statutory solvency
capirtal
Shareholders’ equity 28105 27900
Goodwill and other mitangible
assels {523 1) {500 1)
Regulatory adjsiments (28 1) 62
Total tier 1 capital 2,259 3 2,296 1
Lower tier 2 copral® 4961 466 Q
Regulalory adjusiments (54 6) {28 9)
Total regulatory capital 2,700 8 2,764
less final and special dvidends (192 0) 1860}
Adjusted regulatory capital 2,508 8 2,5781

I Allccotion ot 31 Decamber 2014 includes investmensporifoho denvatives, which have been netted and have & marktomarket liabihty velue of £27 8 mulhen, splt
£24 4 million in corporate-debt secuniies, £0 1 milion in supronationals, £0 4 millon in local government £2 8 milhon n secunnsed credi ond £0 1 milhion in
sovereign (31 December 2013 morktomarket asset value £39 8 millon sght £37 7 million corporatedebt secunities and £2 1 mullion secuntised credit} Thus
excludes nomnvestment denvatives used to hedge subordinoted debt, operciionel cash flows and the pending disposol of the Inremanonal dwsion

2 Net of bonk overdrafis ond including term deposits wilh finaraia! instiuions with motunhes exceeding three months

Income included in discontinued operatiens 1n 2013

4 Includes that element of the suberdinated guaronteed dated notes opplicable for regulatory copitat purposes
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The Group 15 well capitalised with key copital melnes wathin
the Group's nsk appetite ond significantly above regulatory
mimma The regulatory numbers are estmated, based on
prelmmary regulatory returns for 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2014 2013
Insurance Group Direchive

{"IGD"} coverage ralio 347 4% 22 6%
Risk-based capitalcoverage

raio 158 9% 158 7%
Risk based capitel coverage

ratio {adjusied for final and

special Alwdends) 148 2% 148 7%

Al 31 December 2014, the Group had an eshmated risk
based capial coverage rahe of 158 9% (31 December
2013 158 7%) This reduces lo 148 2% after deducting the
proposed final and special intenm dividends {31 December
2013 148 7%} On an IGD bass, the coverage 15 347 4%
{31 December 2013 291 6%}

The followang 1able sets out the Group's financict leverage
rato The Group's leverage ratio remains conservative with
a financial leverage of 15 8% ot 31 December 2014

(31 December 2013 14 9%}

2014 2013
At 31 December £m £m
Shareholders” equity 28105 27900
Finanewal debt - subordinated
guoranieed dated rotes 5263 4866
Total capital employed 3,338 32766
FinancicHeverage ratio! 158% 14 9%

Credil ratings

Standard & Poor's and Moody's Investors Service provide
insurance financiol strength rotings for UK, the Group's
principal UK general inswrence underwnler UK s currently
rated ‘A’ {strong} with @ stable outlook by Standard & Poor's
ond 'A2' [good) with o stable cutlock by Moody's

Solvency i

With effect fiom 1 Jonuary 2016 the basis on which the
Group will assess its regulatory copital posiion wilt move from
ICA to Solvency I As part of thus tiansion, the Group will
consider any changes o should make 1o 1ts nsk-based capial
melrics to ahgn these more closely to Solvency Il This will

include reviewing the Group's nsk appetite and, of necessary,
recalibrating it

Current capital posthon ond outlook

The Group hos continued 1o manage its capital base actively
during 2014 with a special interm dividend of 10 O pence per
share paid in Seplember 2014 The Board has resobved 1o pay
o second special intenm dvidend of 4 O pence per share

The hrst and second special inferm dividends have resulted
from the build up of surplus capital, in part reflecting the Group's
disciplined approach to underwriing over the last few years

A hinal dwidend of B 8 pence per share, which the Board hos
resolved to pay this year os an mlenm dmdend, represens

4 8% growth on 2013 Total regular didends for 2014 of
13 2 pence per share represent 4 8% growth on 2013 and
are 1n line with the Group's policy to aim to increase the
dividend annually i real terms

Since the PO, the Group has paid dividends equivatent to
24 6% of s IPO price to shareholders, and this figure will nse
to 31 9% when the hnal ond second speciol inlenm daidends
ore included

After deducting these dividends, the Board considers that
the Group 15 strongly caprialised with @ nsk based capilal
coverage roho af the upper end of its largef range I also hes
an ‘A’ reling with siable cutlook from ils credit raling cgencies

The Board's view of the capital positon lakes inte account

the transition to a Solvency 1l environment and considers the
Group's position on the standard formule, which it is expected
o operate under for at least the first six menths of 2016, and
the fnternal Economic Capital Mode! In wiew of the transiion
1o Solvency I, the Board 1s hkely io next consider any refurn

of capital alongside the full vear results for 2015 The
considerahon of any future retum of capiial that the Board may
decide to make will take into account the Group's requirements
on a Solvency Il basis and, 1 line wath 1ils exising policy, wall
consider capital requiremenis over a prolonged period

Notwithstanding the above, foflowing the completon of the
sale of the Infernanonal dvision, and as indicated ot the time
of the onnounced sale in September 2014, the Boord expects
io announce a special interm divdend of substannally all of
the net proceeds This return of capital will be condmonel on
shareholders approving a share consolidation designed to
neulrahse the elfect on the share price of this retum of copital
ond to mantain comparabity of per share data

Statement of the Brectors in respect of the Strategic report

The Board reviewed and approved our Stralegic report on pages 2 o 49 on 2 March 2015

Paul Geddes
Chief Executive Ofhicer
2 March 2015

John Reizenstein
Chiel Financial Officer
2 March 2015

Note
1 Toal finencial debr as o percentoge of totol caplia! employed

AThA—
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Chairman’s introduction

Corporate
governance

Mike Biggs,

Charmman

"We have a strong team n place to
conhinue delivenng our strategy, to
capitalise on opportunities and meet
the challenges ahead *

Qur Code of Business Conduct

Dear shareholders and other stakeholders

Our commitment to good corporate governance

As Chanman, | want 1o ensure that Direct Line Group 15 well
governed | om plecsed lo report that we have complied

with substantially all of the provisions of the UK Corporate
Govemance Code [Seplember 2012] The Board has worked
hard durng the year seeking to ensure that high governance
standards have been mamtamed throughout the Group

The following Corporate gevemnance report gives shareholders
o clear ond comprehensive view of the Group’s governance
orrangements and how we have operated within them over the

past year

The way we do business

The way we do business and our underlying velues are central
to Direct bine Group's success Cur Code of Business Conduct
governs the way we interact with our stakeholders and owr
volues determine our behaviours Both defermine how we

do business throughout the Group and define our corporate
wdenity They also influence our business relationships and
reputahon, which are key 1o our long term success Cur Code
of Business Conduc! 15 set out below, our values are on the
following page and you can also view them and our Ethical
Code for Suppliers at www directinegroup com

Relationship with RBS Group

It was another significant vear for Cirect Line Group

Cn 27 February 2014, RBS Group sold its entire remaining
shareholding 1n the Company, save for o small number of
shares 1t refained 1o sabsly fong lerm incenlive awards 1ssued
by RBS Group to Direct line Group management As
explained in lost year's Annual Report, a European
Commssion obhigation required RBS Group to self il
shareholding by the end of 2014 As such, Direct Line Group
15 no longer owned by RBS Group and our operations are
now largely separate The sale does nof affect our business
strotegy We will confinue our joumey towards our goal of
becoming the leading personal end small business general
nsurer in the UK

Business prachices Dealing with customers

We shall engage n honest, ~ We shall reat customers
professional and ethical faily, openly and honestly,
conduct and mamiain and operale an effective
effective procedures o complaints process to address
prevent conhidential any perceved depariure
informalion being misused trom these standoids
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Dealing with shareholders Decling with employees

and other stakeholders We shall maintain a working
We shall seek to moxmise environment thot allracts,
shareholder value over time,  motivales and retains
iecognising that wealih employees, and shall be
generated also benelis ntolerant of any type of
cuslomers, employees and discrimination, harassment
the communities where of vichrmsation

we operale




Board composition

A number of changes in the composition of the Duect Line
Insurance Group plc Board took place duiing 2014 Following
RBS Group's sale of subsiontally all of s shareholding in the
Company, Mark Cation, RBS Group's nominated Non Executive
Duector, stepped down on 7 March 2014

I would like to thank Mark for his excellent contibution 1o
the Company duning his hme on the Board and wish him
well in the future

Following o review of the Board's balance of skills, knowledge
and expenence, and a ngorous selechon process, Sebashan
James |oined the Board on 28 August 2014 With digital
marketing and customer service mcreasingly smportant to our
business, Sebaostian bngs valuable expenience in these helds
and 15 an imporiant addition to the Board On behaff of the
Board, | am delighted to welcome him as a Non Execulive
Director of the Company

You can find further information on diversity at Board level and
the Board effectveness review in the Corporate governance
report on page 57

| am conhident we have a strong leam i ploce to continue
delivering our stralegy, copitalise on the opporuniies and
meet the challenges chead

Michael N Biggs, Chairman
2 March 2015

Qur values

Do the nght thiag

For our people, our customers, our shareholders and our wider
stakeholders, make decisions based on what 1s nght, not what
i1 easy, demonsiraie personal and professional infegnlty, do
what's nght for the long term sustanalbxlity of our business

Aim higher

Strive to be the best in every orea of the business, be
ambitious, courageous and innovative, relentlessly challenge
and improve, seek and embrace change, lzarn from our
mistakes, persevere, always deliver our promises ond don'l
setile for second best

Work fogether

Collaborate across all levels and across oll funchions, leverage
the skills, knowledge and expenence, mespective of hierarchy,
to deliver the best possible resulls, develop relationships based
upon tusting each other, parinerships and win wms, recognise
and celebrate success

Take ownership

Treat 1t hke s OUR business, tcke the inmatve, 1f you con see
a betier way, go and make a dfference, lake decisions, be
accountable for your achions in whatever wole you carry oul,
take responsibilaty for your own personal development

and performance

Say it hke it 1

Be real, authenhc and true to self, have adult to adult
conversahons with all audiences, listen, seek to understand
and respect dwersity of views, be open, call out 1ssues we see,
share mformaton and keep things as simple as possible

Bring all of yourself to work

Be the best you can be, the real and whole you, celebrate our
dversity of skills, experiences and personalities, be a role model
fo others, demonsiraie ‘can do' spind, have fun and make this a
great ploce 1o be, be excaited about our Company and our
future, believe n yourself, feel confident and empowered

Dealing with communihes
and the environment

We shalt contnbule 1o the
social and economic well
being of those communities
where we are on employer,
and encourage employees
o parhcipate in projects
and imhatives o stiengthen
those communities

Dealing with supplers of
goods and services and
business partnerships

We shall mamicin the
highest possible standords of
mltegnty in business
relabionships wath suppliers
and painers by treating them
honestly and with respect,
and avording compromising
offers of gifts and hospitality

Dealing with regulators

We shall mantan o
constructve and open
relationship with our regulators
o foster mutval Irust, respect
ond understanding, and wall
not offer anything fo offioals in
return for favourable freatment

Dealing with compehtors
We shall compete with
compettors honestly and in
accordance with the relevant
compehtion law

www directlinegroup com
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Board of Directors

1 Mike Biggs {62}, Chairman of the Board
lappoinied Apnl 2012} N«

Biagraphy

Mike 15 also Charr of the Nemination Commitiee He has over 4G
years' expenence of the UK and internaiional finanaial semices secior
He 15 o respected higure in the insurance indusiry and 15 well regarded
by City investors

Mike wos previcusly Charman of Reseluran Urmted, the FTSE 100 UK
Iife assuronce business, and hes acted os Chief Executve Officer and
Group Finance Direclor of Resoluton ple He wos previously Group
Finance Director of Aviva ple

He has a Masters degree in History from the Unversity of Oxford and
15 an Assaciate of the Instiute of Chartered Accountants in Englond
and Wales

External apponiments
None

2 Paul Geddes (45), Chisf Executive Officer (appointed August
2009) =

Biography

Paul 1s Chief Execuive Officer His expenence in leading one of the
UK's lorgest el banking businesses duning @ challenging penod for
the ndustry and improving ds customer and finonciol performonce
ogeinst peers singled him out 1n 2009 s the Chigf Execuive oble

1o lead the tumarsund of Direet Line Group ond its divestment from
RBS Group

He was the Chief Executve Officer of RBS Group's mainland UK refal]
bonking business, having jeined in 2004 as Managing Director with
responsibility for products and markeiing  Before joining RBS Group,
Poul held @ number of senior rcles in mulichannel retailing in the GUS
and Kinghsher groups Paul storted his coreer in morkening, wilh UK
and European roles at Procter & Gamble Paul read Philoscphy,
Poliics and Economics ot the University of Oxford He 1s o Fellow

of the Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scollond

External oppomiments

Paul 15 o member of the Associlion of British Insurers” Board, @
member of the Fnencial Ombudsman Service’s insuronce indusiry
steening group, ond a member of the financial Conduet Authonty's
Practitioner Ponel

3 John Reizenstein (58}, Chief Financial Clicer (oppoinied
December 2010)

Biography
John 15 an expenenced Chief Financicl Officer and former banker with
extensive Cify and finonciol services expenenca

lohn was previously an Executive Direcior of the Co-operative
Insurance Society, CIS General Insurance and The Co-operchive Bank
He was Chief Finencial Officer of these eniities beween 2003 and
2007, ond subsequently Manoging Drecior, Corporate and Markels
Prior to thart, John spent more than 20 years in invesiment banking with
UBS and Goldman Sachs He 1s en Economics groduoie o the
Unwersity of Cambndge
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External cppoiniments

John 15 a trustee and dicector of Farm Alnca and 15 an dliemare
reprasentative of the Associaton of Brtish Insurers on the Panel
on Takeavers and Mergers

4 Glyn Jones [62), Senior Independent Non Executive Director
{oppainted Septembier 2012} 4 ! Ned 4

Biography

Glyn 1s Charr of the Invesiment Commitee  He hes undertoken o
number of semor roles within the financial services industry and, as
o former Chief Executive Officer 1n the assel manogement indusiry,
he also undarsiands the City and shareholders well

Glyn wos Chairman of Towry Holdings tmited between 2006 and
2011 and Chairmen of Aspen UK from 2007 to 2014 He also
served as Chairman of Hermes Fund Managers from 2008 10 2011
and waos Chairmon of its sister company, BT Pensien Scheme
Management, for o part of this period Glyn was Chief Executive
Cficer of the indepenclent investment group, Thames River Capilal,
from 2005 1o 2006 From 2000, he served as Chief Executve
ChHicer of Garimore Investment Management in the UK for four years
Before this, Glyn was Chief Executive Officer of Coutis NatWest
Group ond Coutis Group, having janed n 1997 Ghyn joined
Standord Charfered in Hong Kong i 1990 where he became the
General Manager of Glebol Private Banking He wos a consulting
partner with Coopers & lybrend /Delote Hoskins & Sells Management
Consultants from 1981 to 1990 He s a graduote of the University
of Cambndge and o Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England ond Wales

Externcl appomiments

Glyn 1s Charmon of Aspen Insurance Holdings Limided, o New York
listed specialty lines insuter He 1s olso Chairman of Aldermore Group
plc and its subsihary Aldermore Bank ple

5 Jane Hanson {47), NorrExecunve Director [oppointed December
20] H[A B C land+|

Biography

Jane 15 Chair of the Board Risk Commitiee  She has extensive
expenence of nsk mancgement, corparcte governanee and ntemal
contro! She alsc hos extensive expenence of developing and
momionng customer lrameworks

She spent 12 years with KPMG, where she worked it the inanaial
sector, becoming the Drrector responuble for delivery of corporate
governonce, nterndl audt and nsk management services i the North

of England Jone has also held execuive roles including Director of
Audit, and Risk and Governance Director af Aviva's UK Life business

She 15 o greduate of the Unversity of York with o degree in Music and 1
c Fellow of the Insiitute of Chartered Accountcris in England and Wales




Externcl appointments

Jane 15 Charr of Reclaim Fund Lid and o Non Execuive Direclor of
Old Mutuval Wealth Management Limited  She 15 clso an Independent
Member of the Fainess Commitiee at ReAssure Lid

She has her own financial sector consuling business, delivenng audit,
enterpnise risk management and corporate governonce advisory ond
consultng services She s alse a magistate

6 Sebashian James (48}, Non Executive Director {appointed August
20]4] (C Rona +]

Biogrophy

Sebastian 15 Group Chief Executive of Dixans Carphone plc ond
has held o number of senior sirategic and operational posikens in
the refail, censulting and msurance sectors

Sebastan was Group Chiet Executive of Dixons Retal ple from 2012
uail 1its merger with Corphone Warehouse Group ple on 6 August
2014 Belore tms, Sebastian was Chief Execuive Oficer of Synergy
Insuronce Services Limded, a private equity backed insurance
campony, and was previously Skategy Direclor ot Mothercare plc He
began his coreer ot The Boston Consuling Group, hoving graduated
from the University of Oxford and completed an MBA al INSEAD

External oppointments
Sebastian 15 Group Chief Executive of Dixans Corphone ple and 15 also
a Trustee of the chonnes Sove the Children ond Tablets for Schools

7 Andrew Palmer [61), Non Execulive Director {appointed March
201 ” % &1 1 Rond +)

Brogrophy

Andrew 1s Chair of the Audit Committes He has undertaken o numiber
of senior roles within the financal sevices end insurance ndusines In
addition, he has insight info corporate governance developments and
best practice in hnancial reporting thiough his membership of the
Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial Reporing Councit

Andrew renred from legal & General Group ple, where he wos the
Group Finance Drector, in 2009 He 15 o Fellow of the Institute of
Charlered Accountonis in England ond Wales

External cppoinimants

Andrew 5 o Trystee of the Royal School of Needlework, o Trusize ond
Treasurer of Cancer Ressarch UK ond a NonExecutive Director of Royal
londen Mutual Insurance Society Limited He 15 clso o member of the
Financral Reporting Review Panel of the Finangial Reperting Councll

8 Clare Thompson {60), Non-Executive Director lappointed
Sepiember 2012} 4 8 € ford o)

Biography

Clare 1s Charr of the Corperale Social Responsibility Commstiee

She bungs with her extensive expenence and knowledge gained friem
roles across the professional services ndusiry, including os lead Audit
Pariner at PwC, where she guided companies through change ond
acted os an adwviser to insurance compames She goned sigmifican
expenence of both general and Iie insurance in this role

Clare wos a poriner i PwC friom 1988 to 2011 Duning her 23 yeors
as a partner at PwC, she held several seior and high profile roles,
particularly within the insurance secicr She 1s o graduate of the
University of York with ¢ degree in Mathematics ond 15 a Fellow

of the nstiute of Chartered Accounlants 1n England and Wales

Externol appainiments

Clore 15 o NonExecuive member of the Portnership Board of Miller
Insurance Senvices LLP and 1s @ Trustee ond Treasurer of the Disasiers
Emergency Commitee She 15 also a Director of Retall Charily Bands ple

9 Priserlla Yacassin {57), Non Execuiive Direcior {opposnted
Seplember 2G12) 8 Fond+l

Biography

Prscilla 1s Charr of the Remuneraton Commitiee  She hos great
knowledge and expenence of developing organisational values, and
crealing the leadership, succession, development and remuneration
sructures required 10 support corporale strategy  She has worked both
os @ prochihoner ond as on adviser and therefore understands the
complexity around remuneration in bath techmical and market ferms

Priscilla was most recently Group Humon Resources Director at
Prudennal ple and a Non Execulive Drecior at the Ministry of Defence
Priscillo has previously held serior human resources posiions across o
number of financiol services and customer focing industries, iIncluding
roles ar Abbey Nanonal ple, where she was Executive Drecior
Human Resources, BAA ple, where she was Group Human Resources
Directer, and Kinghisher ple She graduated in low from the University
of Norh Eost Londen

External oppomniments
Priscilla has her own search and consultancy business

Key

1Al Avdis Committea

[B) Board Risk Commiitee

[C) Corporate Secial Respansibility Committee
{I} investment Commifiee

[N Nomisgtion Commities

{R} Remunarctian Committas

[+] Independent

www directlinegroup com
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Execuhive Commitiee

The Execulive Committee 1s charred by Paul Geddes and, in oddiben
lo John Reizenstein, compnses the following indmduals

1 Jonathan Greenwood, Managing Direcior of Commercial
ljoned 2000

Expenence ond quolilications

Jonathan joined the Group in 2000 as Product and Prcing Directar
for UK parinerships, which included Tesco, BMW and Nahionwide
Bullding Scciety Following the acguisition of Churchill, Jonathan
become Cemmercial Directar and then Managing Director of the
Gioup's household and life businesses Jonathon was cppointed
Managing Divector of Commercial in 2009

2 Mike Holliday-Williams, Managing Director of Personal Lines
{loned May 2014

Expenience and qualifications

Mike was previously Chisf Executive Officer of RSA Group's
Scandingvien businesses, Codan A/S and Trygg Hanse Befera
[oming RSA, Mike worked in the energy, telecoms and refall sectors,
beginning his career ot WH Smuth limited, before moving 1o various
Ceninca ewned businesses, including Brinsh Gos and Onetel He has
also served os Managing Director of MORETHSN Limited and holds
an EMBA from Ashridge Business Scheol

3 Simon linares, Human Resources Direclor {jcined September 201 4)

Experience and quolifications

Simen wos Group HR Direcior ot TV and belore that Human Resources
Director of Teleforica’s digital businesses globally Prior o that, Simen
was Group Human Resource Director of O2's Euopean businesses,
hoving had previous success in senior HR soles with Diogeo

4 Steve Maddock, Managing Director of Cleims and Business
Services [jomed 2010}

Experence and qualifications

Steve was praviously Director of Strategic and Technical Claims o
RSA, a role he assumed 1n 2004 He has over 20 yeors' insuicnce
industry exgenence, including roles as Direcior of Claims and
Customer Service ot Capito and Director of Operahions of AMP
Steve helds on MBA from the University of Reading and 15 Chairman
of the Molor Insuress’ Bureau
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5 Angela Morrison, Chief informaiion Cificer fjoined 2010

Experience and qualihcations

Angelo was previously Chief Information Officer at | Soinsbury’s and
o member of their Operating Board She previcusly worked for ASDA
/ Wal Matt where she held a number of roles including European
Strategy Drrector, Chief Informanon Officer threugh the ASDA /
WalMart integration and e<Commerce Direcior which included
eslablishing ASDA’s home grocery business Angelo holds a degree
in Electnea! and Elecironic Engineenng from the Unversity of Brstol

6 Humphrey Tomlinson, General Counsel {joined 2011}

Experience and qualifications

Humphrey was previously Group legal Direcior ot RSA He s o
solicitor wath over 25 years' expenence, including odvising on
corporate and commercial matters, a wide «ange of coporate
transactions in the UK and intermationally, legal nsk monagement and
corporote govermnonce 1ssues Prior io 25A, he worked ot City Yaw firm
Ashurst Mams Crisp He 15 o graduate of the University of Oxford

7 lose Vazquez, Chief Risk Officer (jomed 2012)

Expenence and qualilications

lose was previously Global Chiet Risk Cthicer at HSBC Insurance
Pror o joiming HSBC, Jose held semor actuanal rales at Zunch
Insurance and olso worked as o consultent with KPMG in London
Jose 15 o Mothematics graducte from Brunel University and & Fellow
of the Instiute of Aciuanes




Comporate governance report

This report details the role and activities of the Board and
explamns how corporale governance 1s operated throughout
the Group

The UK Corporate Governance Code

Direct Line Insurance Group pl: [the “Company”) has complied
with the prnciples and provisions of the UK Corporate
Gavemnance Code 2012 (the “Code”) throughout the year,
wath the excephon of the recommendation conlained

n Provision E 1 1 of the Code to the effect that the Semor
Independent Director {the “SID*) should attend sufficient
meehngs with a range of major shareholders This 1s 1o histen
to their views 1o help develop a balanced understanding cf
the 1ssues and concerns of major shareholders The Board
received regular updates from the Company’s corporate
brokers on the views of ils nstivional shareholders Major
shareholders have the opportuniy to discuss any issues they
wish to rasse with the Charrmon and the Chair of the
Remuneraton Committee  Addionally, the Chairman has mel
certan major shareholders dunng the year and, through the
brokess, offered other major shareholders the oppartunity to
discuss any matters with bum or the SID The Board s satished
that, on the bosrs of reports from the Compony's brokers and
through the Chairman, it understands the views of the
Company's mojor shareholders

Details of how the Company applied the Code's prnciples
and complied waith s provisions are in this report ond the
Directors’ remuneration report You can find fusther information
on the Code on the Financial Repoiting Council’s website

at www fre org uk

Leadership

The Board

The Board's pnmary role 1s o organise and direct the Group's
affars m a manner that 15 most lkely 1o promote its long ferm
success for the benefit of its shareholders as a whole The Board
supervises the Group's operations, ensuring they ore effectively
managed, thot prudent controls are in place, and that asks

are ossessed and managed appropriotely The Board sets the
Group's strategy and monilors management’s performance

ond progress ogainst the strategic aims and objectives

The specific duties of the Board are set out in the Schedule
of Matlers Reserved lor the Board (the "Malters Reserved”)
The Matiers Reserved are reviewed annually by the Board
and conlam those lems thal are specihcally reserved lor
consideration and approval by the Boord Matlers requinng
approval by the Board include

« The Group's sirategic cims and objectives
« The annuat operating and capital expenditure budgets
« Corporate governonce matiers

» Capial sfructure, inancial reporting and centiols, including
dwvidend policy

» The system of inlemal controls and nsk management,
incluchng the Group's nsk appelile stalements

o Major copital projects, mojor nvestiments and contracts that
are either matenally skalegic or above the Chief Execulive
Otheer's delegated authonty

» Board and Commitiee membership and succession planning
» The remuneration pohey for Direclors and senior executives

+ The 12 Group policies which form paort of the high level
governance framework

In addition to the Matters Reserved, each Board Commutiee
has wnitien terms of reference defining 1ts role and the authonity
delegated to 1t You can find furher details on the Board
Commitiees in the Board Cornmstiees’ section from pages 61
o 70

Board composihon

As ot the date of this Report, the Board compnises the
Chairman, who was independent on his appointment to the
Board, the Chiet Exacutive Cfficer, the Chief Financial Officer
and six independent Nen Executive Directors All of the current
Directors served throughout the reporting penod, excepl

for Sebastion James, who was appointed to the Board on

28 August 2014

You can find the nomes of the Direclors os at the dote of
this report and therr biographical nformation en pages 52
and 53

Mark Catton, who was nominaled by RBS Group os a
NonExecutive Director m accordance with the terms of the
Relationship Agreement between Direct Line Insurance Group
plc and RBS Group, restgned from the Board on 7 March
2014 His resignation followed the sale by RBS Group on 27
February 2014 of iis interest in the Ordinary Shares of Direct
Line Insurance Group ple This excluded 4,185,643 shares,
which were refained to sahsfy long term incentive plan awaords
previously granted by RBS Group 1o certain members of Direct
line Group’s management These shares have since been
fransferred to an RBS Group Employee Benefit Trust Since
disposing of 1ts shareholding, RBS Group no longer has a nght
lo nommate a director 1o the Board
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Structure of the Board

The Beard and its Committees have been eslablished 1o
ensure that an appropriate balance of skills, experence,
independence, secior knowledge and diversity exists to
enable the Directors 1o discharge their duhes and
resp0n5|b|||hes ef[echve|y

All Non Executive Direclors must be able 1o devole sulficient
nme 1o the 1ole lo discharge their duhes and responsibiliies
effecively The letters of appomiment for the Charman and
each of the NorrExecuiive Directars sel oul the anhcrpoted ime
commitment of al least three days per week lor the Chairman
and an average of three days per monith for the Non Executive
Directors The Nominalion Commiliee reviews this tme
commitment annually
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Corporate govemnance report continued

On behalf of the Board, the Nomination Committee assessed
the independence, skills, knowledge and expenience of the
Non-Executive Directors s part of its annual review of each
Dwrector’s performance The Board concluded that oll of the
current NorExecutive Directors were independent, continued
to contnbute effeciively and demonstrated commitment to the
ole The Nomnaton Commitiee’s work n the yeor resulted
in the appomniment of Sebastian Jomes as an addiional Non-
Executive Director It also resulted in certain changes to the
membership of the Commitiees, which were announced in
September 2014 You can find further detads of these octivities
and the iNominaton Committee's work in the year on pages

68 1o 69

Chairman and Chiet Executve Officer

The Board has agreed role profiles for the Chauman, Mike
Biggs, and the Chief Executve Officer, Poul Geddes, which
clearly define therr respective roles and respensibiliies This
15 16 ensure no one individual has untettered powers of
decision-making

The Chairman’s prionty 15 leading the Boord and ensunng
its effectveness The Chiel Execuive Officer’s prionties are
managing the Group and delivering the Group's sirategy
ond hnancial resulls

Senior Independent Director

Glyn Jones 15 the Senior Independent Dizector (*SID"} His role
15 Io provide a sounding boord for the Charrmon, to serve as
an intermediary for the other Directors when necessary and to
be avallable to shareholders, should they have any concermns
they cannat resolve through normal channels His
responsibilies also nclude evaluating the Chairman’s
performance annually

Non-Executive Direclors

The Non Executive Direciors objectively and constuctively
challenge management They also use thesr wider business
experence o help develop the Group's stralegy

Non Executive Directors are iniially appornied for a term o
three years They may serve two fixed lerins of thiee yeors
and, in appropnate circumstances, may be invited lo serve a
further three yeor term  The Nomination Commitiee nominates
the Directors for appointment  The Board then approves the
appoiniments NorrExeculive Directors are subject o elechon
of re-efechon annually al the Company’s Annual General
Meeting ["AGM"} You can find the standard lerms and
conchhions of the appoiniments o www directlinegroup com

information and support

All Directors have access to the assistance and advice of the
Company Secretory The Board 15 salished that it receves
information in @ hmely manner and of an appropniate quality 1o
enable the Direciors 1o discharge therr dutes Directors may
seek external independent professional advice ot the
Company's expense If they require it 1o discharge therr dulies

Conflicts of interest

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Company's
Articles of Association allow the Board to quthonse a matter in
relalion to which there 15, or may be, o conflict between the
Group's interests and the direct or indirect interests of a
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Direclor or between the Direclor’s duties to the Group and
another person

£ach Director has a duty to avord conllicts of interest They
must declare any conflict of inlerest that could interfere with
their abihity lo act i the Gioup's best interests  The Board
has odopted procedures for ensunng its powers to authorse
conflicts operate effechvely

The Board hos given o number of authonsations in this manner
Notwithstanding such outhorisation, the Board continues to
ensure that any actual conflict of interest or duty, should 1t
onse, 1s dealt with appropriately This would usually involve
ensuring the Director does not paricipate in the: relevant
Board or Committee discussion or decision

For this purpose, the Company Secretary maintams o register
of conflicts, and of any authonsation of o conflict granted
by the Board The Board reviews this register ragularly

Board actvitres during 2014
Duning 2014, the Board's specific areas of focus, challenge
and supervision included

« Partcipating in developing ond challenging the Group's
strategic plon

o Overseeing the prudent monagement of the Group's capital,
ensuning thal capital reserves semain robust, while enabling
the return of capital to investors by way of special dvidends

e Approving and monioring a comprehensive programme of
nvesiment in technology, crganisational restrucuning and
cuhural change This programme aims fo improve customer
expenenca, making Il easier to do business with the Group,
and delver outslanding customer senace

Overseeing the management and reduction of the Group's
cost base

* Overseemng a review and sireamlining of the Group's
govermnance framework, including reviewang and approving
nskbased pohcies

Supporting the Cheef Executive Officer in restructuring his
management team and appointing new semor execulives

Considenng sirategic ophions for the Group's International
businesses, and subsequently authonsing and monttoring
the propesed sale of the Group's Infernational businesses
There was pariicular emphasis on oblaimng fair ouicomes
for ol stokeholders

* Encouraging management imhiatves for culturol
transformation

+ Monitoning the progress of the complex programme of
migrahng IT systems and telephony from RBS Group to
new Direct Line Group platforms, networks and dala centres

+ Encouraging the relounch of the Direct Line brand end
challenging the related brand and customer-service
propositions

+ Overseeing the Group's regulolory relahionships and
preparations for the forthcoming implemeniation of
Solvency I




Meehings

The Boord held 11 scheduled meetings n 2014 and nine
additonal meetings The addiional meetings were ad hoc
or Board subcommitiee meelings 1o consider speciic malters,
for example, the proposed sale of the Group's Intemanona!
businesses The Board also held its annual srategy day in
lune 2014 Ore of the scheduled Boord meetings was held
in Glasgow as part of a Board site visit

The Company Secretary attended all Board meetings At the
Board's discretion, semior executives and external advisers

were inviled 1o altend Board meehngs and present on business

developments and govemnonce 1ssues

The table below sets out attendance af the scheduled meetings

in 2014

Scheduled Percentage

meetings' attendlance

Charrman
Mike Biggs 1ol 11 100%
Senior Independent Director
Clyn Jones o]l 100%
Non-Execuhve Directors
Mark Catton? 2of2 100%
Jane Hanson 1Mol 100%
Sebashan James? 3cf4 75%
Andrew Palmer 11eof11 100%
Clare Thompson 110f11 100%
Pnscillo Vacassin 11of 11 100%
Execuhive Directors
Paul Geddes 1ot 11 100%
John Reizenstein 10011 1%

Board induction, resources and traiming

The Board 15 commitied lo framing and developing all Drreciors

and employees The Company Secretary 1s responsible
for helping the Chonman regularly review and argonise
appropnate raining for the Directors and mointains an
onnual raning agenda for the Board and its Committees

On apponiment, Sebastian James commenced a iailored
induction programme, compnsing 16 sessions The

progiamme wos designed lo provide an understonding of the

Group's businesses, strategic and rransformational prionties,
regulatory and governance frameworks, coprial and financal
management, and nisk ramewaork

The main Board fraiming and development achviies in the year

under rewiew included the following

« Training on specific topics, ncluding competition law,
accounhing for investments and anh brbery and coriuption

MNates

« Visits by Non Executive Directors 1o operatonal business
units to meet the management teams and better understand
the way the business operates These included wisils to the
Claims, Techmcal and large Loss, Customer Relations and
Courter Froud teoms m Glasgow, and wsils to several ol
the UK Assistance Accident Reparr Centres Limited sies

« Internal traiming workshops on Solvency Il, mcluding capital
and catastrophe modelling, lntemal Model Approval Process
{*IMAP"} submission requirements, Standard Formula
caleulaton, profit and loss atinbuion, dersiicaton and
dependencies/ correlations

The Company Secrelary presented a regular corporate
govemnance updete lo the Board

*

The Group's brokers and finoncial advisers presented
quarterly ndustry and market updaotes to the Board

The Investor Relahans team reperted regularly to the
Board on the Group's relationship with institulional
inveslors and analysts

Direct Line Group’s approach to diversity

The Board carefully considered the diversity of s members
from a vonety of perspectves Il also sought to ensure that
Directors had the relevant range of knowledge, skills,
expenence and, where necessary, independence to help the
Croup deliver ils strategy

The Company believes in the menis of dvarsiy Of the
Board's nine members, three are women However, while
the Board will take core to considar diversity when selecting
new members, It ts committed Io appointing the mosl
approprate candidale

The Nomination Commiltee’s terms of reference stale that due
regord 1o the benelits of diversity, including gender diversity,
should be given in selecting candidates for the Board

The Corporate Social Responsibility Commitiee also cansiders
this matier in the context of ensunng the Group's talent pipeline
remains diverse lo meet fulure requirements The Group
provides menionng schemes or ligh potential candidales and
associaled aining and development programmes You can
find numencal dato relonng to the gender diversity of the
Board, senior managers and employees on pages 34 and 35

Boord effectveness review

In 2013, an ndependent external consuliont performed and
focihiated the Board's hrst effectiveness review In 2014, the
Board chose to conduct iis effectveness review irhouse The
Company Secretary designed and coordinated the process
This involved agreeing a stuciured queshonnaire with the
Chairman ond members of the Board, distnbuting 1t to
stakehelders, collating responses and prepanng reporis

The Board and each of #s Commitiees rewiewed and
discussed these reports

1 Atendonce 1s expressed os the number of scheduled meetings ottendad out of the number of such meetings possibla or applicable for tha Director to citend

2 Mark Cahon resigned os ¢ Director of the Board on 7 March 2014

3 Sebosten Jomes wos cppointed os a Director of the Board on 28 August 2014

www directlinegroup com
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Corporate govemance report conf nued

The questionnarre encouraged respondents to comment on ospects
percerved as working well in the 2013 review and areas thought
1o require mprovement Relaling to the Board, ils Commitiees and
its ndwidual directoss, the questonnare focused on

¢ The flow of information, mcludsng the quality and sufficiency
of reports, management informaton and framning

« The behaviour of, and interaction between, the Boord or
Commitize and management, including the proportion of
time spent on srategic matiers, the degree of challenge by
MNon Executive Direciors, the Board's cullure and compaosition

o Adm:mustration, including the number and frequency of
meehngs, the volume of popers, the quality of systems
and processes for, Board and Committee support

The Chasrman discussed the oulcome of the effeciiveness
review with the Non Executive Directors and the Chief
Executive Officer, providing them wath feedback on ther
peformance and contnbutions Feedback on the Chairman's
performance was provided by the Senior Independent
Director, with input kom his fellow Non Executive Directors

Based on responses to the structured queshionnaire and the
resulting reports, the Directors are satishied thot the Board and
its Commuttees operated effectively during 2014 The Duectors
are also sahshed that sigmficant progress was made regarding
areas identihed n 2013 as requinng improvement The Boaord
and 11s Committeas agreed an achon plon for further
improvement, which will be pursued in 2015

Govemance framework and structure

The Board 1s responsible for ensunng an appropriate syslermn of
goveinance 1s In place throughout the Group  This ncludes a
robust system of internal confrols and @ sound Risk Management
framework  The Group's Governance Framework 1s detalled in
the High level Control and System of Governance document
The Board reviews this document annually in addiion to this
document, the core elements are

» The Enferpnsewide Risk Managemeni ("ERM”| strategy
and framework, which sefs out the Group's robust nisk
management approach and the ownership and oversight
of nsks

¢ The Executve Govemance Framewark, which oullines how
each business funchon 1s govemed and details the
delegotion of authonty to Executve Commitiee members

+ The Group Policy Framework, which comprises o set of
policies that are required to be approved by the Board and
are underpinned by Minimum Standards which transtate the
policies nio requiremants that are implemented throughout

ihe Group

The diagram below summanses the spht of responsibiliies for the
different components of the Group's Governance Framework

[ Board
approves Board Matters Reserved [

and Committea

High Level Control and System ] Board
of Governance document

High level Governance

terms of reference

T - fromewaerk, 15k oppette and
Group Policies are set by the
Board, following review by the
Board Risk Coramilles, for

v mplemeniction by the Executive
Policies are drofled by Executive
pelicy owners

o

J

Risk appente

Group Policies

Board Risk
Committee
approves

Board Risk Commuttee
Enterprisewide Risk
Management framewcrk s

y

[ ERM strategy and framework ]

oppioved by the Boord Risk
Commiltee, following review
by the Risk Management

Committee

Executives
approve

‘L hd

Risk Management Commitiee
Developed by the Exacutves wilhin
the framewark approved by the
Board Mimimum Stondords ore
reviewed by the Group's Policy

v

[ Executive Governance Fromework] [ Group Minimum Standards J

and Minimum Standard owners'
review forum The Executive

Govemnance Framework and
Minmum Stondards are opproved
by Executives within the Risk
Manogement Commitiee

y

[ Business unit and operational area implementaton J
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Board of Directors

Mike Biggs
Charman
Audit Committee Board Risk Corporate Social Investment Nomination Remunerahcon
Andrew Palmer Committee Responsiblity Committee Committee Commuttee
Charr June Hanson Commitiee Glyn Jones Mike Biggs Priscillo Vacassin
Char Clare Thompson Chair Chanr Chair

Char

Board Committees

The Board hos eslablished o number of Commitiees 1o help
meel s responsibiies  Each Commitiee plays a wital role in
ensuring the Boord operates efficiently and considers maters
oppropualely The diagram above detals the names of the
Board Committees and the Chairs

Each Board Commitiee has seporate terms of reference
The Board reviews ihese onnually You con hnd details of
the composition, atiendance, role and focus of each
Commitize on pages &1 to 70

Chief Executive Ofhcer

Although the Board 1s ulimately respensible for the success
of the Company, Paul Geddes, the Chief Executive Officer,
has receved delegated authonty from the Board to manage
the doy-terday operations of the Group and deliver vis
shiategic objechves

In turn, Paul Geddes has cascaded certain elements of his
delegated authonty 1o the members of the Execulive
Commitiee These delegations help ensuie that senior
execuhives are accowntable and responsible for managing their
respechve businesses and funchons  The delegohons also
mvolve ensunng the sentor executives have the appropnate
financial, and ether, authonties needed to manage those
business arecs

Executive Committee

The Executive Commitiee 15 the principal management
committee that assists the Chief Executive Officer in the dayto
day management of the Group It supports him 1n seting
performance targels, implementing the Group’s strategy and
direchion as delermined by the Boced, and monitoring key
objectves and commeraial plans to help achieve the Group's
targets 4 olso helps him evalucte new business mihatives
and opporiunilies, ond receves and considers reparls on
operahenal matters, where these are matenal to the Group
or have cross-company implications

The diagram below depicts the monagement-govemance
framework

Accountability

Financiol and business reporting

The Board 1s responsible for providing sharehalders with a farr,
bolanced and understondable assessment of the Company's
posiion and prospects The Board 1s also responsible for the
mainlenance of adequale accouning records and ensunng
complance with siotutory and regulalory obhganons

An explanation from the Directors of therr responsibility for
preparing the hnancial statements 1s set oul in the statement

of Directors’ responsibiliies on page 97 The siofement by

the Company's external Auditor explaining their responsibilisies
15 on poge 102

Paul Geddes
Chief Executive Officer

! : |

Managing Director | | Managing Drecior | | Mancging Divector
Commercal Personal Lines Clenes ond
Jon Muks Holiday- Business Servicas
Greermwood Willioms Steve Maddock

. !

Chuef information Human Resources
Officer Dvrector
Angels Mormsan Simon Linares
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Corporate governance report continued

The Board meets the specihc responsibilities that the Code
places on i as follows

» An explonation of how the Company generales value over
the long term 15 included within the business model on poge
8 and the strategy for delivenng Company objectives on
page 16

» How the Board has concluded that the business remains a
going concern 1s discussed on page 96

s The annangements established by the Board for the
application of nsk maragement and nteral confrol
prnciples are detoiled below

» The Board has delegated aversight of the management of
the refatonship with the Company’s external Auditor to the
Avdit Committee: The Audit Commillee report on pages &1
to 63 provides detanls of ils role, actviies and relanonship
with the nternal and external Auditors

Risk management and internal control system

The Boord oversees the Group's nsk management and miernal
control systern It has comphied with the Code by eslablishing
a conhnucus process for identitying, evaluating and manoging
the significant nsks the Group faces This process includes nisks
ansing rom social, environmental and ethical matters

The Group operates a ‘three lmes of defence model’, further
detoils of which can be lound n the Risk Manogement section
on pages 28 to 31

Dunng the yeai, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's nsk manogement and intemal contiols The Group's
assessment process included output from o system for reporiing
on all significant nsks thot stand in the way of the Group's
objecives The system reported on the nature and effectiveness
of the controls and other management processes thal manage
these nsks The system also sets nsk appeties for key
categones of quanthiable nsk Addienally, 1t encompassed
sk owners' self assessment of control throughout the Group
The second and third lines of defence independently challenge
ther asseriions Furthermore Group Audit has undertaken
reviews 1n the financial year o support this

The Board Risk Commitiee regularly reviews significant nsks,
their potental impact on the Group's financial posinon,
vanahons from ogreed nisk appetites, and the achons taken
1o manage those risks

Internal systems of contral

The Board has established a management structure with
defined lines of responsibility and clear delegation of authority
This control framework cascades through the dvisions and
central functions, detailing clear responsibilihes for ensuring
appropnate coniols are i place al an operational level This
tncludes controls relating 1o the financial reporing process

The Group Audit funchion supports the Board by providing an
mdependent and abjective ossurance of the adequacy and
effectiveness ol the Group's operations It brings o systemanc
and disaiphned approach to evaluating and mproving the
eflectvencss of its nsk management, control and governence
filameworks and processes

Owrect Line Group Annucl Report & Accounts 2014

The Direciors know that any system of internal control 1s
designed fo manage, not eliminate, the nsk of foiling 1o
achieve business objectives It can only prowide reasonable,
nof absclute, assurance against matenal misstatement or
hinancial loss

On behall of the Board, the Audi Commitiee regularly reviews
the eflectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems lis
monitoring covers all matenal contiols Princpally, it reviews
and chaflenges reports from management, the Group Audi
function and extermal Auditors This enables it 1o consider how
to monage or miigote nsk in line with the Group's nsk stralegy
The Committee did not identiby or report any major falings or
weaknesses 1o the Board in 2014

Remuneration

The Board has delegated io the Remuneration Commitiee
responsibiity for the remuneration arangements of the Group's
Executive Direciors and for overseeing senior executives’
remuneration Find out more informonion on the remuneration
arrangements and policy in the Direclors’ remunesation report
on page 7|

Relations with shareholders

The Board believes thal actvely engaging with the Compoany's
shareholders 1s fundomental 1o the Group's business  An achive
dialogue and ongoing engagement walh invesiors 15 wial to
keeping uptodate on opimions |t also provides the Company with
the opportunity lo address any questions and cancerns proactively

The Executive Direclors meet frequenfly with investors and ensure
shareholder concerns are communicated Io the Board The
Chawman, Senior Independent Director and NonExecutive
Directors are avalable to aftend meehngs with major shareholders
at their request This gives the Directors the opportunity 1o discuss
governance and sirategy with shareholders

The Company's Investor Relahons team facililates the Directors’
ongoing dialogue with inshtutional investors, fund managers
ond analysts The Board receves regular vpdales on invesior
relatiens, meluding feedback from analysts The Company's
corporale brokers also regularly attend Boord meetings 1o
mlorm the Board of shareholder views

Annual General Meeting

The Board views the Company’s AGM as o good opporiunity
for private shareholders o communicate direcily wath the
Board All shareholders are entifled to attend the AGM

All Dreciors ottlended the AGM in 2014

The Chief Execuive Officer presents the Group's resulis before
the Chairman proposes the AGM's lormal business Al
shareholders are encouraged to ask questions relating to the
meeling's business The Charman, the Commitiee Chanrs

and the remainmg Direclors are also avalable af the meeting



Committee reports

Audit Committee report

Andrew Palmer,
Charr of the Audit Commitiee

Role of the Audit Committee

The Committee 15 responsible for overseeing and challenging
the effechveness of the Group's systems of financial contral,
financial and regulatory reparing and other intemal controls
The Commitee reviews the adequacy and inlegnty of the
Group's infeinal financial contiols and mitemal control systems,
and the procedures for monitaning their effeciveness It olso
monitors the wotk and effeciiveness of the Group's internal
and external auditors and actuanes

The Commitiee has unresincled access to management and
external advisers 1o help discharge s duties It is satished that,
during 2014, 1t receved suliicient, rebable and mely
information to perform ils responsibilities effectvely

You can find the Audil Commitiee’s terms of reference ot
www direcihnegroup com

Committee composthon, skilis and expertence

The Committee comprises four independent Non Executive
Directors Andrew Palmer, Jane Hanson, Glyn Jones, and

Clare Thompson You can find the members” brographical
information on pages 52 1o 53

All Commitiee members are members of the Inshiute of
Chartered Accountonts in England and Wales They olso have
recent and relevant financial expenence, enabling them to
conlribule diverse experhse to the Commitiee’s proceedings

To keep skills current and relevani, members of the Committee
have 1eceved traning by Deloitte LLP focused on Selvency Il
and frends in the motor nsurance market, in additon to
traming available fo the whole Board

Audit Commuttee focus during 2014

» Assessed and monitored the nsks associated with
migrating the Group's finance systerns fiom RBS Group
to the Group's new [T platiorm

s Reviewed the Group Audit funchon's performance and
effectiveness, including commissioning an external
auality assessment of the funciion

» Reviewed the Groupwide Financial Reporting
Contred Framework

» Adopted and monitered the Gioup's policy and minimum
standard for the Independence of External Audn

« Reviewed the impact of selling the International division
on the hinancial slatements

» Reviewed financial results announcements, icluding the
2013 Annua! Report & Accounts, the 2014 Half Year
(ntenm Report, and Intenim Management Statements

Assessed the disclosures in the 2013 Annual Repart &
Accounts o provide advice 1o the Board on whether the
repor!, taken as a whole, was fair, balonced and
understandable ond provided the information necessary
for shareholdess 1o assess the Company's performance,
business model ond strategy

Rewviewed reports and receved training for Solvency |!

Assessed the going concern slatus of the Company and
s principal operating subsidiory, U K Insurance Limited

Reviewed the effectiveness of infernal control processes

Approved the Group Audit plan and reviewed Group
Audit reports on key control ssues

» Reviewed the resulls of the external audit redanng 1o the
2013 year end and approved the scope of the external
cudit regerding the 2014 year end

* Reviewed the external Auditor's independence
and obyechvity

» Determined the external Auditor's remuneration and
recommended it lo the Board

» Considered the Group’s policy on tendenng ils
independent external audit contract agamst the backdrop
of regulatory and best practice developments

» Recommended the reappointment of the externat Auditor
to the Board, for approval by shareholders af the 2014
Annual General Mesting

= Reviewed reserving governance and processes,
and considered quarterly achional and proposed
management best esimates of techmical reserves

Considered an extenal peer review of reserves

Considered requlatory developments and their impact
on assumphons and judgements used in the Group's
reserving and reporfing

Reviewed cntical accouniing eshmales and judgements,
including outstanding claims provisions and reloted
remsurance recovertes, imparment provisions on financial
assels, fan valve of propertes, deferred acquismon costs

and goodwill

www direcilinegroup com
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Commiltee reports confinued

Meehings

The Audit Comimittee held five scheduled meetings 1n 2014,
of appiopriate times in the financial and regulatory repoiting
ond audil cycle The following lable seis out attendance of
the scheduled meetings

Scheduled Perceninga

mashkngs ahendance

Andrew Palmer (Chair} 50l5 100%
lane Hanson S5ot5 100%
Glyn Jones 505 100%
Clare Thompson 505 100%

Sub-commitiees of the Audi Commiliee met in May and
Cctober 2014 1o approve the Group's Intenm Management
Statements relating to the fist and third quarters of the 2014
financral year The quorum of both subcommittee meetings
compnised Andrew Polmer, Paul Geddes ond John Reizenstein

The Chief Executive Othicer, Chie! Financicl Othicer, Chief Risk
Olficer, Group Financial Controller and Head of Extenal
Reporting are invited 1o attend Audit Commitice mestings The
Actuanal Director, external octuanict advisers, extemal Audsior
and Group Heod of Audit are olso inviled to allend meelings
and meel privalely with the Audit Commiltee, in the absence of
menagement The Managing Director of Claims and Business
Services 1s also invited 1o atlend appropriate sections of Audit
Commiltee meetings

The Chair reports on matters dealt with at each Commitiee
meelng 1o the subsequent scheduled Board meehng

Internal control and Group Audit

Dunng the yeor, the Audit Commitiee reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's mternal control systems

The Group’s Financial Reporting Conirol Framework [“FRCF?)
forms part of its wider infernal controls systemn It 1s bosed on
the prnciples of the Committee of Sponsoning Orgamisations
ol the Treodway Commission’s Enterprise Risk Management
Fromework and 15 designed to address nsks reloting to
financial reporing  The Board's supervision of the FRCF 1s
delegated to the Audit Commiltee Dally responsibility for

the FRCF 15 delegated to the Chiel Financial Officer

Duning 2014, monagement ieviewed and tested the FRCF's
design and effeciveness The Commitiee recewved reports
focusing on control deficiencies, and mihgating and remedial
action taken The Committee also assessed and monitored the
nsks associaled with migranng the Group's finance systems
from RBS Group 1o the Group's new IT platform

The Audil Committee oversees the work of Group Audit and
ensures Group Audit appropnately adopts industry best
prachce The Group Head of Audit reports funchionally 1o the
Charr of the Committee and has a secondary reporting line to
the Chief Financial Officer for management puiposes At each
of s meetings, Group Audit provides the Commultee with
independent and objective reports on the appropnateness and
elfectiveness of the Group's internal controls and governance
frameworks The Commitlee approves Group Audil’s annual
plon, and receves quarterly reports detating mtemal audit

Note

achvity, key hndings, management responses ond proposed
action plans The Group Audit funchion momtors completion
of these achions

During 2014, and following a lormal tender evaluation
process, the Committee appomied Defaitie UP 1o conduct on
external quality assessment of Group Audit in accordance
with the guidelines of the Chartered Instilute of Internal Auditors
["CIIA") The assessment included evaluating the effectiveness
of Group Audit, wath reference to ClIA's Stendards and Code
of Ethics and 1ts recommendations for Efective Internal Audit
in the Financial Services Sector A benchmark against
comparable indusiry peers was olso performed  Deloitie LLP
submitted the resulting report 1o the Committee, which
concluded that Group Audit 1s performng effectively The
Comimittee endorsed recommendotions for continumg
improvement and was sohished that Group Audi has access
o appropnale resources

The Committee considered the Group’s infernal controls and
processes lor idenifing and responding to the nsk of fraud

Reserves

The Commiltee approves annual plans for reviews of reserves,
informed by emerging internal and external 1ssues It also
considers an appropriate balence between internal and
externol actuanal review Censulionts apponted 1o provide
aclyonial reviews of reserves are subject to approval by the
Commitice The external actuarial review was camed out by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for Direct Line Insurance Group
plc and its relevant allilates! only and not for anyone else

Every quarter, the Commiliee reviews and challenges the key
assumphons and judgements, emerging Irends, movements and
analysis of uncertamhes underlying the acluanal best esimale
of techmical provisions At the same tme, the Comimitiee
considers and challenges the appropriateness of the Chiel
Financial Olficer’s proposals for the management best estmate
of reserves These are miormed by octuarial analysis, wider
commercial and nsk management insights, and principles of
consistency from peniod to penod

Alter reviewing the actuanal best eshmate and management

best eshmaie of reserves, the Commiliee recommends them
o the Board

Financial reporting

During the yeor, the Commitiee reviewed the preliminary
announcement of the Group's 2013 resulis, the 2013 Annual
Report & Accounts, and the 2014 Half Year Intenm Report The
Commifiee then recommended them to the Boord for approval

The review process focused on enical accounting policies
and prachices, emphasising those requinng a major element
of judgement The review also considered gong concem
assumphons, IMPainent reviews, reserving provisions,
unusyal ransactions, clanty of disclosures and sigmificant
audit adjusiments

The Commitiee also advised the Board whether the finonciol
statements, laken as a whole, were farr, balanced and
understandable and provided sufficient information to enable
the reader 10 assess the Group's perfformance, business model
ond stiategy

1 The relevont affilates are U K Insurance Limited and Churchilt Insurance Company Limited
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In addrion to matters relating fo reserving, 1ssues and
judgements considered by the Commitiee included

« Provisions, including the release of on onerous lease
provision alter purchasing a property and recogmising
a subsequent impairment charge

» The camang values of goodwill and other intengible assels,
and the need for any impairment provisions :

« Classifying investment properties for lairvalue disclosure
purposes

« The carrpng value of the Group's financial mvestments and
the need for any imparment provistons

« Judgements regarding tax, particdlarly the carmying value
of any deferred tax ossets and kabilities

+ The sale of the International division
¢ Reinsurance recoverables

The Commitiee also reviewed and delegated authonty 1o
a subcommitiee to approve the quarterly Intenm
Managemen! Statemens

External Audit

Delostte LLP has served as the Company’s Auditor since 2000
Before hishing, the Group was audited as a division of RBS
Grovp |n accordance wilth the Group's policy on maintaining
the independence of external cudil, Deloite P must ensure
that the audit pariner engaged on the audit 1s rotated regularly
and the curren! pariner 15 scheduled to be rotated cfter the
2015 yeor end

Under the transonal rules for cudit tendenng ond auditer rotation,
as set out n the Competiton and Markels Authonty's Order and
the EU Audit Regulation, Deloitte UIP cannot be reappomted as
Auditor of the Company after June 2023 The Commitiee has
decided 1t will consider the timing of o tender before that date
dunng 2015, 1o align with the current audst partner’s refation and
toking the Group's stiategic pnonties info account n additon
under the Order, the Commitiee will be responsible for negotiating
the audi fee and setting the scope of the audit

There are no contraciual obligatons restrching the Company's
choice of external Avdilor and no audiler lability agreement
has been entered nto Equally, any recommendation o
reoppont Deloitte LLP as Auditor of the Company depends

on continued sahsfactory performance

Auditor independence and non-audit services policy
The Group has adopted an Independence of External Audu
mimmum standard which esiablished parameters for preventing
or miigating any compramise of the extemal Auditor's
independence or objectvity by virtue of therr providing non-
audi services o the Group

In accordonce with the Independence of External Audit
runimum stondard, the Commitiee formally approves o list of
audit and non audit services 1o be provided by the external
Audtor before each hinancial year

Note

Authonity has been delegoted 1o the Chair of the Audit
Committee to approve any non-audit senvices costing up 1o
£100,000 Non-audit services with o volue exceeding
£100,000 require the Commitiee's appiovol The Commitiee
receves and reviews a report on all consuliancy spend,
mcluding norroudit services, at least twice a year

Dunng the year, the Committee approved fees payable 1o
Delatte UP for services not related to audit work of £0 4
million These fees relaled lo cudii assurance and tax services
The following 1s o breckdown of fees paid to Deloite LLP in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2014

Fees
£m Peaportion
Audit fees? 23 85 2%
Non audit fees 04 14 8%
Total fees for audit
and other services 27

Having reviewed the application of the Group’s minimum
standard on audit end nenaudit sereces dunng 2014, the
Commitiee 1s salished that adequate procedures are in place 1o
safeguard the external Auditor's independence and objectivity

EHfectiveness of the external audit process and the re-
appointment of the external Auditors

Dunng 2014, mn addilion 1o regular questioning of the Auditor
during ats meetings, the Avdi Committee assessed the
effectiveness of the external Auditor It achieved this through

a defaled queshonnaire compleled by key stakeholders,
discussions with the Chief Financial Officer, a formal review
of Delaitte 1LP's independence, and an assessment of its
fulhiment of the agreed audit plan

The Committee concluded that Deloitte LLP had effectively and
approprately performed 1its abligations as external Auditor

to the Group Followng this review, the Audit Committee has
recommended 1o the Board that Deloitte WP be reappointed
as extenal Audhor to the Group A resolution 1o this effect will
be put to the shareholders ot the 2015 AGM

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee

The Company Secretary faciliated the Commiliee's review

of 1ls effectveness dunng the yeor The Company Secrelary
also prepared a report based on responses from the members
of the Committee and other stakeholders to o preagreed
questionnare Hoving reviewed and discussed the resulting
report, he Committee concluded that 1t waos effective and has
access to sufficient resources to perdorm its duties

The Board reviewed and approved this repoit on
2 March 2015

Andrew Palmer, Charr of the Audit Commtiee

1 Inchudes the aucht fee for disconinued cperations, the Group's Infermational division Further information can be feund in note 11 1o the consolidated

financial siatements
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Commitiee reports continued

Board Risk Committee report

Jane Hanson,
Charr of the Board Risk Commitiee

Role of the Board Risk Committee

The Commitiee 1s responsible for providing oversight end
advice 1o the Board in relotion 1o the Group's current and
potential future nsk exposures and the sirategic approach to
managing nsk The Commitiee recommends nisk appetie and
tolerance levels to the Board, ond promotes a nsk-awareness
cullure within the Group

The Commitiee has unrestricted acgess to menagement and
external adwisers fo help dischaige its duties |His satished

that dunng 2C14, i recaived sufficient, relable and hmely
information to perdorm its responsibiblies effectively Dunng the
year, at lhe Commitiee’s request, external consuliants undertook
spectic reviews These included validahion achvities regarding
the IMAP submission

You con find the Board Risk Committee’s terms of relerence
at www directinegroup com

Committee composition, skills and experience

The Committee compnses four independent Non Executive
Direciors jone Hanson, Andrew Palmer, Clare Thompson,

and Pnscilla Vacassin You can find the members’ biographical
informaton on pages 52 lo 53

Meetings

The Board Risk Commuitee held six schedufed meetings in
2014, one of which was a joint meeting with the Remuneration
Commuttee  Addihonally, four sub-commiltee meetings were held
to consider Solvency Il and IMAP matters The following table
sefs out atiendance at the scheduled meetings

Scheduled Parcantage

meatings atiandance

Jane Hanson [Charr} bofd 100%
Andrew Palmer 6d 6 100%
Clare Thompson Hot b 100%
Pnscilla Vacassin S5coté B83%

The Chiel Executive Oflicer, Chiel Finoncial Officer, Chiel Risk
Officer, Group Head ol Audil, General Counsel and a
representative from the External Auditor are invited to attend
Board Risk Commitiee meehngs In additon to regular onetor
one meetings with the Charr, the Chief Risk Officer also met
prvately with the Commitiee, in the absence of management
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The Director of Compliance and Regulatory Risk, Director
of Financial Risk, Enterpnse Risk Director, and Head of
Investigations and Anti Brbery ore also invited to attend
opproprate sechons of the Board Risk Committee meetings

The Charr reports on matters dealt with af each Committee
meehng to the subsequent scheduled Board meeting

Board Risk Commuttee focus duning 2014

« Assessed and monitored the Risk function’s oversight
of major change niatives These included IT migration
and transformation programmes

Reviewed and challenged the Sclvency il programme
plan and imetable, and receved reports ard framing
on vanous Solvency Il matters These included  the IMAP
plon, cutpuls of external velidation and assurance
achvihes, the strengths and mitatons of the Intemnal
Economeic Capital Model, and dependencies,
correlations and dversificanon

Reviewed the siress tesing and scenaro onalysis plan for
2014, and the outputs of two specilic reverse stess tests
undertaken ot the Committee’s request

Commussioned an external review of the Financial
Prarnohons leam and considered the hndings and
recommendahons

L]

*

Reviewed the indings and output of a review undertaken
by an external consultont regarding the matunty of the
Risk Mancgement Commiltee

Reviewed the strategic approach to managing nsk
across the Group and momiored the effechveness of
Ihe ERM framework

« Approved the Risk and Compliance plan and Conduct
and Complance assurance plan, ond assessed the level
and effechiveness of resource within the Risk funcion

« Recommended opproving the Group's nisk appette and
nsk policies 1o the Board

» Reviewed and challenged the Group's conduct sk and
comphance management processes o drive the nght
cuslomer ouicomes The Committee regularly reviewed
and chaltenged key nsk indicalors and measures
covering the key orecs of realng customers farly and
core regulatory inferactions

L

Reviewed the adequacy of the Group's arrangements 1o
allow employees lo raise concems and reviewed reports
on these matters Assessed the ellectiveness of the
Group's anh money laundenng and sanchons systems
and contiols

+ Worked wiih the Remuneraiion Commitiee to ensure nsk
managemeni 15 considered and mcluded when ossessing
lhe performance of senior execulives, and incorporated
into the incentive schemes for customer facing roles and
for techmcians and support sioff in the accident and
repar centres

« Reviewed the ORSA report for 2014




Major change progrommes

The Commiltee received regular reports on the mojor change
programmes undertaken in the Group Dunng the year, the
Commitlee commissioned several reviews, including a detaled
nsk assessment by on external consuliant of the ransformation
programme fo expand the Group's capabilities, develop new
technology and digial tools o support customers, focusing on
governance and programme setup  The reviews culminated

in detailed presentations at scheduled Commitiee meetings,
where the hindings were reviewed and actions agreed

Selvency |l

Duning 2014, the Group continued progressing towards
compliance with Solvency Il requirements, the Solvency I
Duechive has an implemenianon date of 1 Jonuary 2016

The Committee has constdered a ronge of Sclvency Il matters
ot scheduted meetngs and training sesstons Key areas of
focys have included  the approach to IMAP validaton and the
IMAP submission process, Internal Economic Copital Model
developments, sirengths and imitatons, profit and loss
atinbution, and dependencies, correlations and diversificahion

Siress and scenario testing

Regular siress testing and scenano anclysis, including reverse
stess testing, 15 a core component of the Group’s ERM
framework [ supparts the Group's stolegic objectives and

s an area of increasing focus for the PRA Duning the year,
the Commiltee requested that the Risk funchon undertake two
reverse stress lests the impact of muliple weother events, and
the: mis selling of customer policias The Committee reviewed
and challenged the cutputs of these reverse siress tests, and
considered the proposed management achions

Risk management framework

Durnng 2014, the Commitiee reviewed and approved several
enhancements o the ERM framework  These included the re-
launched Group Policies and Mimimum Siandards, and an
enhanced Emerging Risks Reguster, which provides a lorward
locking perspechive on emerging nisks focing the orgonisation
The Commitice olso reviewed and challenged the ORSA in
odvance of Solvency I The Commiliee provided oversight

of nsk monogement operations by reviewing the Risk and
Compliance operational plan These ncluded the Group's
approach to conduct and culture, reviewing and approving the
Group's Risk Appetite Siatements and Malenal Risk Register,
and considenng the effectiveness of the ERM framework

Risk appehte monitoring

The Commtee recerved regular repoits corresponding fo

the three srategic nsk objective appetite statements maintain
copital adequacy, stable/efficient aceess 1o funding and
liquidity, and manton stakeholder conlidence, together with
lower level nsk appehte stalements that supported these

The Committee monitored the Group's exposure agoinst
these appetiles, and assessed the dnvers impaching the nsk
appetite status

Conduct and compliance risk

As part of the Chief Risk Officer’s report, the Commitiee
reviewed and challenged the conduct and complionce nisk
measures, covenng cuslomer and regulatory mterachons across
the Group's funchions, with o particular emphasis on achieving
the night customer outcomes The Committee commissioned an
extemal review of the Financial Promotions team, focusing on
governance of approval processes and systems and conirals
Additionally, the Commitiee ensured that there 15 a standing
agenda tem on Comphance and Regulatory Risk, including
conduct aisk, with updates on any key developments at each
scheduled Commitiee meeting from the Group’s Director of
Comphance and Regulatory Risk

Whistleblowing and financial crime

The Commitiee recaived regular updotes on the Company's
whistleblowang process i also reviewed the anangements for
employees to report any concerns aboul suspected Hlegal or
unethical behaviour within Direct Line Growp, without fear of
adverse consequences The Committee receved annual reports
from the Money laundering Reporing Cfficer, who has
delegated authonty from the Board to ensure that the Group
hos appropriate systems and conlrols iIn place to manage
money laundenng and sanchion nsks, and the UK designoted
Anti-Bribery and Corruption Officer

Remunerahon

Duning the year, the Board Risk and Remunerahion Commitiees
held a joint meeting to ensure sk mancgement metncs are
considered as part of evaluahing the peformence of semior
executives, and are mcorporated info the incenhive schemes for
customer facing roles in the nsurance sales and service contact
centres, and for technicions and support staff within the UK
Assistance Acaden! and Repar Centres The Commtiees
considered matters includhing regulatory developments in
remuneration and the level of preparedness in relation to the
draft Solvency Il gudance, and how the performance of
indmiduols iIn Conteal Funchions should be assessed

Effechveness of the Board Risk Committee

lhe Company Secreiary focililated the Commiliee’s review

of its effectiveness duning the year The Company Secretary
also prepared a report based on responses from the members
of the Committee and other stakeholders 1o a preagreed
questionnaire Having reviewed and discussed the resuling
reporl, the Commultes concluded that it wos effective and

has access lo sufficient resources lo perform its duties

The Boord reviewed and approved this report on
2 March 2015

Jane Hanson, Char of the Board Risk Committes

www direcilinegroup com
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Committee reports continued

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee report

Clare Thempson,
Charr of the Corporate Social Responsitility Commultee

Role of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
The Corporate Social Responsibiity ["CSR") Commitiee
provides oversight and advice in relalion to how the Group
conducts its business responsibly, including in relation to hedlih
and safety, the environment, employee engagement and
wellbeing  community involvement and ethical matters The
Commillee considers the role of the Gioup in society, including
environment and community engogerment policies

Commuttee composihon

The Commitiee compnses three independent Non Executive
Dwectors Jone Hanson, Sebastian James, and Clare Thompson,
together with Payl Geddes, Chief Exacutive Officer, and Angelo
Mormisen, Chiet Informahen Officer You can hind the members’
biographical infformation on pages 52 to 54

Duning the year, Clare Thompson became Charr of the CSR
Commiltee Jane Hanson retired as Charr ot thet hme but
conlinues to be o member The Boord also approved the
appomiment of Angela Moinison as a member of the
Commttee, following Tom Woolgrove's departure fom the
Group, and the appointmen! of Sebastian James as an
addiional Committee member

Meetings

The CSR Commitiee held four scheduled meetings n 2014 The
following table sets out atiendance af the scheduled meetings

Scheduled Percentoge

meetings afendance

Clare Thompson {Chan) Aot4 100%
Paul Geddes 3of4 75%
Jone Hanson 40f 4 100%
Sebashan James' 1ol 100%
Angela Mormson! 3of3 100%
Tom Woolgrove' 20f 2 100%

The Human Resources Direclor, Managing Director of Claims
and Business Services, Head of Public Affarrs ond Sustanchility,
Head of Employee Relalions and Engagement and CSR
Manager are invited o attend CSR Commiliee meetings

The Charr repoits on matters dealt with of each Commitiee
meehng to the subsequent scheduled Board meeting
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CSR Commuttee focus during 2014
s Reviewed and approved the Group's CSR 2015 sirategy
and four key focus arens

 Reviewed and approved the adoption of o CSR Charter

s Recewved regular repoits from the Diversity Network
Allance group, focusing on the gender, working families
and dwersity srands

¢ Held o scheduled Commitiee meeting in the Glasgow
office, following an mformal lunch with colleagues
representing the Glasgow Local Community Team, and
the Charity and Social Commiltee

* Reviewed vpdates on emerging CSR matiers, including
presentations from external speckers

« Receved regular reporis from the Health and Salety
Committee, and assessed health and sofety perfformance
cgoinst the previously agreed plon

*+ Rewtewed progress against the Gioup’s sustaunability
targels, which are published on our website

s Received updoies on employee engogement in relation
to CSR matiers, volunteening and community acivihes

CSR 2015 strategy

The Commuitee reviewed and opproved the Group's CSR
2015 shrategy 1 incorporates on overarching principle that

a clear benefi o the Group's business, customers and people
must be embedded in the CSR siralegy and every focus area
The four focus areas, each sponsored by a member of the
Executive Commiltee, are os follows

+» Helping to make our society safer — Mike Holliday-Williams
« Proud to be here — Simon Linares

 Reduce, Reuse and Recycle - Sleve Maddock

« Being recognised as part of our communities — Jon

Greenwood

You can hind more information on the Group's approach and
prionties regarding CSR 1n the CSR report on pages 32 to 35

Effectiveness of the CSR Committee

The Company Sectelary facilitated the Commuliee’s review

of ils effectiveness dunng the year The Company Secretary
also prepared a report based on responses from the members
of the Committee and cther stakeholders io o pre-agreed
questonnare Hoving reviewed and discussed the resuling
report, the Committee concluded that +f was effective ond

has access to sufficient resources to pedorm its duties

The Board reviewed and approved this report on
2 March 2015

Clare Thompson, Chair of the CSR Commitiee

Note

1 Astendonce 1s expressed os the number of scheduled maelings ottended
out of the number of such meetngs possible ar apphicable to otend



Investment Committee report

Glyn Jones,
Charr of the Investment Committee

Role of the Investment Commttee

The Commilige 1s responsible for overseeing the development
of the Group's Investment strategy and the management and
performance of the Group's investment porffolio

Commuttee composihon, skills and expenence

The Commitiee comprises four Independent Non Executive
Dectars Glyn Jones, Jane Honson, Andrew Palmes, ond
Clate Thompson You can find the members’ biogrophical
information on pages 52 1o 53

Meehngs

The Investment Commitiee held four scheduled meefings in
2014 Additonclly, one meeting was called 1o consider o
new invesiment allocation The following table sets out
attendance at the scheduled meenngs

Scheduled Perceninge

meshngs atendance

Glyn Jones [Chan) Ach4 100%
Jane Honson 4ot 4 100%
Andrew Palmer 3ol 4 75%
Clare Thompson dof 4 100%

The Chief Executve Oficer, Chiel Financial Clhicer, Chief Risk
Officer, Director of Investment Management and Treasury, ond

Director of Financial Risk are nvited fo atfend Invesiment
Commitlee meetings

The Charr reports on motters dealt with at each Commuiee
meehng 1o the subsequent scheduled Board meehing

Effectiveness of the investment Committee
The Company Secretary focilitated the Commitiee's review of

its effectiveness dunng the year The Company Secretory also

prepared a report based on responses from the members of
the Commuttee and other siokeholders to a pre-agreed
queshonnawe Having reviewed and discussed the resulling

report, the Committee concluded thati it was effective and has

access 1o suflicient resources to perform 1ts duhes

Investment Commuttee focus during 2014

» Considered proposals 1o develop further the Group's
mvestiment strateqy  This resulted in the following
recommendations {with attendant capiial imphcanons)

being made to the Board, which opproved them

— An dllocation 1o UK infrastructure debt, to include as
port of the asset sirateqy bocking Perodical Payment
Order ["PPO") liabilities

- An investment into US Dollar shori-duration high yield
debt to enhance fulure expected returns from the porttolio

- An dllocation to Pound Sterling private placement
bonds fo enhance expected returns and provide further
issuer diversificaiion for the porffalio

* Monrtored global macroeconomic developments and
financicl market yields, and considered the likely impac!
and nsks for budgeted investment returns in 2014 and the
Group’s copstal base

¢ Requested a study of investment sirategies to help «ennfy
any atirachve invesiment opporunihes (oppropnale for an
insurer] not presently accessed by the Group

e Examined how the Group wos enhancing expected
refurns from cash/near cash assets by using more widely
laqudity products available in the market and inveshgated
the Group’s ability to obtam full wisibibty of underhying
ossets and to understand the capial implications of
nvesting in such products

+ Considered reports from the Director of Investment
Management and Treosury covering maliers rncludmg
key market developments, inancial performance from
invasiment achivily, performance of internally managed
porffolios, external fund managers and the custodian, and
compliance with ogreed nsk ond exposure limits

» Considered the findings from a report prepared by the
Group Audit funchon This report examined the
effechiveness of kay processes within the Investment and
Treasury depariment

» Examined proposals regarding enhancing the key nisk
mdicator framework used to monitor investment achviies
and requesled a befter understanding of the rationale and
govemnance underpinning the colculation and seting of
Volue of Risk hmits employed by the Group

Requested penodic updates from management regarding
planning and dehvery of requlatory-driven changes
mpachng invesimenls [notably European Market
Infrastruciure Regulation denvative repariing {delivered in
201 4] and the future requirement for Solvency W reporhing
of assets|

The Board reviewed and approved this report on
2 March 2015

Glyn Jones, Chair of the Investment Commitiee

www directlinegroup com
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Committee reports continued

Nomination Committee report

Mike Biggs,
Chair of the Nominaton Commitiee

Role of the Nomination Committee

The Commitiee 15 responsible for keeping the Board's structure,
size, composihon, end balance of skills, experience and
experiise under review The Committee recommends Board
and Committee appointments fo the Board, reviews the
Group's feadership needs, and monitoss the Executive and
Non Executive Director succession plans I also reviews
Directors’ hme commiiment ond considers and recommends
the re-election of Directors at the Company's AGM

You can find the Nommation Committee’s terms of reference
at www directinegroup com

Commuttee composition, skills and expenence

The Commitiee comprises the Chairman, Mike Biggs, ond two
ndependent Non Executive Direclors Glyn Jones, ond Andrew
Palmer You can find the members’ biographical information
on pages 52 o 53

Meetings

The Nomination Commitiee held three scheduled meetings

n 2014 Additonally, three meelings were held 1o deal with
matters emerging during the year The foliowing table sets
out oftendonce al the scheduled meetings

Scheduled Percentage

meenngs attendance

Mike Biggs (Chan) 3ot 3 100%
Giyn Jones 303 100%
Andrew Palmer 3cf3 100%

The Chirel Executive Officer 15 invited 1o attend Nomination
Committee meetings The Chaw of the Remuneration
Committee, Human Resources Director and General Counsel
are also inwiled 1o attend approprate sections of the
MNormnaton Committee meelings

The Chair reports on motters dealt with al each Commitiee
meehing to the subsequent scheduled Board meehing
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Nominahon Committee focus during 2014

» Evaluated the Board's balance of skills, knowledge,
experence and diversity

Considered the requirement for an addiional Non-
Executive Direclor, dehined search cntena, engaged
JCA Group limited *JICA Group”} as external search
consuliants, assessed potential candidates, and
recommended oppomting Sebaston Jemes to the Board

¢ Reviewed the Group's leodership needs and considered
succession plonning lor Execuiive and Non-Executive
Direclors, and senior executives

¢ Reviewed the membership and charmanship of Board
Commitiees, ond recommended appropriate changes

[ 3

Reviewed the lefiers of appoiniment and appoiniment
terms for Non Executive Directors

Directors, and recommended their reelection ot the

|
|
¢ Reviewed the independence and hme commitment of |
|
2014 AGM |

Changes to the Board

Mark Cation, who hod been nominaled 1o represent RBS
Group on the Board, stepped down on 7 March 2014 This
followed RBS Group selling substentially all of its shareholding
i the Company in February 2014 Sehashon james was
appointed as a Non Executive Duector of the Compony on
28 August 2014

Board appotntment and reappoiniment process

Dunng 2014, the Commettee oversaw the appomtment of
Sebastian James as o NonExecuive Director Following o
review of the experhse and expenence of members of the
Board, the Commuttee produced a detolled candidate brief
and engaged extemal search consultants, JCA Group, to find
sutable candidates JCA Group 1s a signotory 1o the Voluntary
Code of Conduct for executive search hirms and has no other
connechon lo the Company A long hst of candidales of
appropriale ment from diverse backgrounds was prepared and
the Committee agreed o shorthst and interviewed candidoles
It then approached the PRA and FCA for approval, and
recommended Sebastian James’ oppomniment as a
NomExeculive Director lo the Board

Sebashan James, having been appoinied duning the year,

will submit himself for election ol the Company's 2015 AGM
Sebashan James s considered independent wilhin the meaning
of the Code

Elechon and re-election of Directors
Belore the proposed reelechon of Directors ot the 2014 |
AGM, the Commitiee reviewed the independence of Non

Executive Diieclors It concluded that jane Hanson, Glyn Jones,

Andrew Palmer, Clare Thompson and Prisciila Vacassin were

all mdependent within the meaning of the UK Corporate

Goveinance Code Mike Biggs wos independent on his

apponiment as Chasman  The Commiliee recommended to

the Board and shareholders that all serving Directors be re-

elected ot the Company’s 2014 AGM




Diversity

The Group celebiates the diversity of its worklorce We seek
1o recruit the best candidates for ol posihons throughout the
business, respective of gender Three of our nine Directors
are women [33% ol the Board} This level exceeds the target
recommended by the Davies Repont on boardroom diversity
The Board acknowledges the benelit of dversity The
Nominahon Committee has encapsulated in its terms of
reference o requirement fo consider candidates for
appontment to the Board on ment, against objective critena
and with due regard to diversity, including gender diversity

You can lind more information on the Group's approach to
dwersity in the CSR section on pages 32 1o 35

Effectiveness of the Nominaton Committee

The 2013 Boord ond Commities effeciveness review
dentified the need for greater focus on succession plonning
This wos incorporaled into the Nominahon Committee’s
agendo for 2014 The Commitiee has reviewed ihe Executive
and Non Executive Direclor succession plans It has also
guided management on succession planning, n particular
dentfying, assessing and developing potential omeng

SenIor executves

The Company Secrelary focilitated the Commitiee’s review

of its ellectiveness during the year The Company Secrelary
also prepared a eport based on respensas from the members
of the Committee and other stakeholders 1o o preagreed
questionnaire Having reviewed and discussed the resulting
teport, the Commitiee concluded that it was eflechve ond

has access lo sufficient resources lo perform its duties

The Board reviewed and approved this report on
2 March 2015

Michael N Biggs, Charr of the Nomination Commitice

Remuneration Committee report

Priscilla Vacassin,
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee

Role of the Remuneraton Committee

The Commitiee 15 responsible for seting and overseeing

the implementanon of the Group's remuneration policy

The Committee oversees the level and structure of remuneration
arrangements for senior executives, approves share inceniive
plans, and recommends o the Board shore plans and,

when opplicable, chonges 1o share plans requining
shareholder approval

You can hnd the Rernuneration Commitiee’s terms of reference
al www directhinegroup com

Committee composition, skills and experience

The Committee compnses three independent Non Executive

Directors Priscilla Vacossin, Sebostian James, and Andrew

Palmer, and the Board Chairman, Mike Biggs You can hind
the members” biographical information on pages 52 1o 53

On 30 Seplember 2014, Sebastian James was appointed
as o member of the Committee, and Clare Thompson refired
as a member

Meehngs .

The Remuneraton Commitice held eight scheduled meenings

m 2014, one of which was a joint meeting with the Board
Risk Commitiee to discuss matlers relahng to overlapping remits
between the two Commiltees Addionally, two meefings

were held to deal with motters onsing dunng the year The
following table sets out allendonce af the scheduled meetings

Scheduled Percentage

meenngs’ ctiendance

Priscilla Vacassin [Chair) 8d8 100%
Mike Biggs Bof8 100%
Sebasian Jomes 1of 1 100%
Andrew Palmer Bof 8 100%
Clare Thompson 7ol7 100%

Note

1 Antendance 15 exprassed as the number of scheduled meetngs attended
out of the number of such meetngs possible or applicable 1o etiend

www directhnegroup com
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Commiltee reports confinued

The Chief Executive Officer, Human Resources Director and
senior fepresentohives of the Human Resources function ore
mviled to ottend Remuneration Committee meetings FIT
Remuneration Consultants LLP, who act as independent
advisers 1o the Commiltee, are also invited 1o attend
Remuneration Committee meetings

The Charr reports on matters dealt with ot each Commitiee
meeting to the subsequent scheduled Board meeting

Remuneration Commttee focus during 2014

» Considered the continued suttability of the current
remunerchion framework

« Reviewed regulatory developments refating to remuneration
and considered the imphicaniens for the Group

* Reviewed the shareownership quidelines for semor
executives and the extent of compliance with the guidelines

Determined the 2013 bonus pool and individual
allocations 1o semor executives, n light of the
performance of the business, edvice from the Chairs
of the Audit and Board Risk Committees, the audit of
the Group's resulis, and indmidual performance

Determined thal no clawback of awards under the
Annual Incenive Plan ["AIP") was required n 2014

Considered the implications of selling the Group's
International division on remuneration af the International
dision and Group levels

Considered the compensation for senior executives
joining ond leaving the Group

Considered management recommendations lor @
resincted shore aword to eutstanding employees
not ehigible for the Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP"},
and approved a propasal for a free share oward 1o
all employees

» Determined the quanium of owards under the LTIP,
in view of business and indwidual performance

+ Considered the required approach for the AIP for
employees in control funchions, mcluding Risk and
Group Audit

« Approved the metncs and targets for the 2014 AIP

» Worked wrth the Board Risk Committee to ensure nsk
managemenl melncs were considered and included
when assessing the performance of senior executives,
and incorporated o the incenhve schemes for cusiomer
facing roles and for technicians and support siaff in the
aceident and reparr cenlres

» Reviewed the compensation for Execulive Directors ond
supervised the compensation review for members of
the Executive Commuttee, other senior execulives and
olher employees
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Effectiveness of the Remuneration Committee

The Company Secretary focilitated the Commitiee’s review

of s effectiveness dunng the year The Company Secestary
also prepared a report based on responses from the members
of the Commutiee and other stakeholders to o pre-agreed
questonnaire  Having reviewed ond discussed the resulling
report, the Committee concluded thot it was effechve ond

has access o sufficient resources to perform iis duties

The Boord reviewed ond approved this report on
2 March 2015

Priscilla Vacassin, Chair of the Remuneration Committee



Directors’ remuneration report

Priscilla Vacassin,
Chaur of the Remuneration Commitiee

Dear shareholder

As Charr of the Remuneration Commuttes (the “Committee”),

| em pleosed 1o introduce our report on Directors' remuneration
Our remuneration policy has been n place since the IPO,

and receved o significent level of support from shareholders
ot the 2014 AGM (97 5% of votes cosl)

You can find a copy of the approved policy on pages 84
10 93 of this repon

Linking remuneration to performance - key pay
outcomes In respect of 2014

As outlined n the Board Chawman's letier on pages 1010 11,
we have met or exceeded the sireich kargels which we set
ourselves belore the IPO The incentive oulcomes for our
Executive Directors, as presented in the annual remuneration
reporl on pages 77 10 83, and for other seror executives
and employees, reflect these achievements

In ine with last year's approach, bonuses under the Annual
Incentive Plon {"AIP"} are based on performance against key
financial and shrategic measures  Bonuses of 75% of the
maximum were awarded to the Chref Execunve Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer in respect of 2014 This reflects
the strong performance against our hnancial targets and the
signdicant progress mode dunng the year in achieving our
sliategic pnonhes

In amving at this culcome, as in previous years, the Commiliee
has exeraised careful judgement, assessing the quality of
eanings ond the overall context for performance fo ensure

that bonus cutcomes are fair for shareholders and executives
We have prowided enhanced disclosure this year i relation

io the AIP outcome for 2014 on poge 77 of this report

Under our Long-Term Incentive Flon (“LTIP"), the fwst awards,
which were made following the IPO, and are subject to tolal
shareholder return [“TSR") and RoTE performance conditions,

are due I vest later in 2015 The performance pertod in
respect of the RoTE element of these owards has now been
compleled Subject to final determinahon by the Committee ai
the hme of vesting, the RoTE delivered 1in 2013 and 2014 has
resulied in achievement of 82% of the maximum opporturity for
this element These shares will not be delivered to Executive
Direclors unitl November 2015, when the Commitiee will

also assess performance under the TSR element of the award
Awards will only vest to the extent that the Committee 1s
sahshed at that time that the outcome reflects the Group’s
underlying financiol pedormance and there have been no
matenal nsk failings

Separately, this year also sow the complehon of the
performance penod for the lost legacy owards under the

RBS Group longterm incentve plan {"RBS Group LTIP}

These owards were gianted to Executive Duectors, ond other
senicr executives, n respect of their work as executives of

RBS Insurance, as Direct Line Group wos known when if

was owned by the RBS Group The assessmenl against the
performance friamework set by RBS Group at the ime of grant
oganst financial, operational, nsk and strategic measures,
has resulied in vesting of 90% of owards As agreed with RBS
Group of the time of the IPO, these awards will be delivered
in the form of Direct Line Insurance Group plc (the "Company”}
shares, fransterred by RBS Group

The veshng culcomes described above under both the Direct
Line Group LTIP and RBS Group LTIP hove been included in the
single figure of remuneration which 1s shown on page 77

Remunerahion approach for 2015

Our remuneration policy has worked well and continues 1o be
ahgned with our key strategic pronhes Therefore, we are not
moking any changes to the appioved policy this year but have
refined aspecis of our practices which do not require
shareholder approval ond which will help futther abgn our
executives ond shareholders and will continue incenvising
supenor ond sustainoble business performance

You can find more delails of these chonges i the secton of this
remuneration report that describes how we intend 1o implement
our remuneration pohcy i 2015 on pages 74 1o 76

I 'would ke to tughhght the following areas

« The salanes of both Executive Directors will increase by 2% in
Apid 2015, in ine with the average increase 1o employees
across the Gioup generally This wall be the {irst increcse since
therr salanes were set in September 2012

» Our approach to measurning petformance under the AIP 1n
2015 will be simibar to that followed in 2013 and 2014
We will continue to measure pesformance using specific
hinancial, stiategic and personat targets and carefully
assessing payouts using brooder judgement The Commitiee
will continue 1o consider lead indicators, costs and prior yecy
reserve releases os part of its overall udgement but there will
be no specific weighting allocation io these elements
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Directors’ remuneration report conlinued

» To reflect the Group's coninued focus on customer
expenence, in 2015 we will be increasing the weighting
of customer measures under the AP from 10% to 20%
We will also increase the range of cuslomer measures
token into accounl 1o better retlect the specific focus for
the corming year

We are not proposing any changes o the performonce
condittons for 2015 awards under the TP However,

we will be mcreasing the level of RoTE required for 2015
owards to vest from the current range of 14 0% to 17 0%
to the range 14 5% to 17 5% This wall ensure that awards
to Executive Durectors will only vest in full if significant value
has been delivered to our shareholders

To lurther strengthen the alignment of Execulive Direclors’
and shareholders’ interests we have increasad the share
ownership guidelines for the Chief Financial Cificer from
150% 1o 200% of base solary, ahigring them wih those of
the Chief Executive Olficer

Dunng the year, the Committee also considered if it would

be appropriole to infroduce o requirement Io hold any awards
under the LTIP for a further penod following vesting The
Committee deaided thal, pending hnol guidence on the
requirements of Solvency 1l expected dunng 2015 and which
may well include guidance on this aspect necessitating further
change, it wauld not change the policy af this stage The
Commitiee will review remunerahon structures and policy once
the final Solvency Il requirements have been published

Voting on the annval remuneration report

As we are no! proposing any changes io our iemuneration
pohicy which would require shareholder approval, the annual
report on remuneraton will be the only report to be put to an
advisory shareholder vote af the AGM on 13 May 2015

[ believe the remuneralion cur Executive Direclors receved

in 2014 15 appropitote and rewards them fouly for then
pedormance and that thes remuneration orsangements for
2015 will continue fo incentivise them 1o deliver our strategic
prionhies and provide our shareholders with sustounoble returns

| hope you Iind this report inlormative and welcome any
feedback you may have

Pnscilla Vacassin,
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Direct Line Group Annual Report & Accounts 2014

Questions and answers on our executive
remuneration policy

Q How did you determine the bonuses for 2014 for the
Executive Direclorse

Similar to last year, we began by quanhiohvely assessing
performaonce under each measure This gave the Commitiee
an nihal view on delivery oganst the targels set at the start

of the year

We then considered o wide range of addiional quaniiative
and gualitohive factors These included quality of earmings,
cftordabihity, the Group's overoll performance agamst the
agreed nsk prefile, perfermance relative to peers, the wider
economic environment plus ofher faclors This allowed the
Commitiee 1o consider the overall Gioup performance and
ensure bonuses reflect this

As descibed in the Remuneration Commitiee Choir's letter on
page 71, this assessment resulted in achievement of 75% of
the maximum opportunity 1n respect of both Execulive Directors

As n previous years, for both Executive Driectors 40% of the
awarded banus will be deferred in Company shares for three
years This 1s i ine wilth the approach for other Execulive
Commitiee members ond strotegic leaders [our most senior
execulives, who are responsible for developing and executing
Group sirofegy)

Q Wil the 2015 process be different?

 will be broadly unchanged Our overall kamework for
determining bonuses has exssted since the 1PO, and has
proved effective n linking business performance with payments
1o the Executive Directors However, we have refined some of
s detarls, making it easier to operate and communicate

We partcularly wanted to broaden the factors the Commitiee
considers when assessing performonce Therefore, fo that elfec
we have moved the consideration of lead indicotors, costs ond
prioryear reserve releases to the overoll judgement applied by
the Commitlee n considenng oulcomes as opposed 1o

apphying a speaific weighting

The other change n 2015 will be to increase the scope and
the weighiing of the customer measures

You can find more detalls on these changes on page 75

Q Do you comply with the Financial Conduct Authority’s
Remuneration Code?

As an nsurance busmess, we ore not subject to the provisions of
the Financial Conduct Authonity's Remuneration Code  However,
we seek lo comply with the core requirements of the Code that
we should establish, implement and mantain remuneration
pohicies, procedures and prachices that are consistent with

and promote sound and effecive nisk managemenl

As such, sigilicant elements of performance related pay for
all our skategic leaders and Execuve Commitiee members,
including Executve Directors, are subject to deferral and
potential malus and cfowback This 1s explamed further n

our policy report



We also assess bonuses lor sentor personnel in cur control
functions independently from the Group financial results This
helps maintain the mdependence of our control lunchions

Q How are you preparnng lo comply with Solvency |l
remuneration requirements2

Guidance i relahon 1o the pay implications of Solvency I
remans draft and high level, with final guidance not expected
until after the publication of this report In 2014, we thoroughly
assessed our remuneraiion arrangements agams! known
guidance with help from external adwsers The results
contirmed that we already achieve a high level of complionce
with the drafi gudance

When we know the final provisions we will fully review our
remuneraton policy and prachces ond consider whether we
need lo change them We will disclose any changes affecting
our Executive Directors’ remuneration arrangemeants in
subsequenr remuneralion repeifs as appropriale

Q Why are the Executive Direclors shill receving shares
under RBS Group share plans®

in line with other Direct Line Group employees previously
granted awards under RBS Group employee share plans,

Paul Geddes and John Reizensten were granted owards under
the RBS Group LTIP and the RBS Group Ceferral Plen prior to
the IPO, when they were employees of RBS Group

In the cose of awards under the RBS Group LTIP, the las! set
of outstanding owards 1s due to vest m March 2015, as
described in more detail i the Committee Chan's letter on
page 71 These awards will be delivered in the form ol Direct
line Insurance Group plc shares, iransferred by RBS Group as
agreed at the time of the IPO

The remaining RBS Group Deferred awards are also due to
vest in March 2015 and will be delivered in RBS Group
shares These awards are not subject lo any performance
conditions as they represent the deferral element of annual
bonuses that have already been eamed

Q How will the sale of the Intermational dwision affect
remuneration arangements for Executive Directors@
Completion of lhe sale of our Intemational dvision 15 currently
expected 1n the first quarter or failing which in the second
quarter As this sale was not completed dunng 2014, we
did not odjust the AP fargets for 2014, which continued

to include the performance of the Inlemational dwision

For exising awards under the LTIP, in line with typical market
prachice, we will not adjust performance targets under the
TSR or RoTE elemenis

Future perlformance targets for the AP and the RoTE element
of the LTIP have been set after taking the impact of the sale
of the Intermational division, ond ils impact on our budget
and busmess plons, into accoun!

Q Do you offer all your employees ihe opportunity to
become shareholderse

Yes, we believe it s imporiant for all employees to have the
opporiunity to become shareholders in the Company We wn
o Buy As You Earn Share Incentive Plan (the “SIP") which allows
employees 1o receive one maiching share for every two shares
they purchase

tn addition, in order to recognise the excephonal contnbution
of our people 1o the success of our business, we anncuncad
during December 2014 a free shore award with a value of
£400 per employee in the UK This award will be made
dunng March 2015 and will be the second offer of free
shores to UK employees since the IPO
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Introduchion

The remuneration report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and The large ond
Medumrsized Companies and Groups {Accounts ond Reports} {Amendmen] Regulations 2013 {the “Regulahons”) The Company
also comphes with the UK Corporale Governonce Code 1n relation lo remuneration

Annual remuneration report

Remunerahion Committee members and governance
The tollowing list detaifs members of the Remuneration Commstiee duning 2014 You con find information about each member’s
atiendance al meetings in the Remuneration Commitiee report on page 6% Their biographies can be found on pages 52 to 53

Committee Chair

Prscilla Vacassin

Non-Executive Directors

Mike Biggs

Sebashian fames {apponted lo Commitiee on 30 September 2014}
Andrew Palmer

Clare Thompson {refired from Commitiee on 30 September 2014)

Advisers to the Committee

The Committee consults with the Chief Execuiive Officer, the Humon Resources Director and senior representalives of the HR
funchion on matters refating to the appropnateness of all remuneration elements for Executive Directors and Executive Commitiee
members The Chiet Execulive Olficer and the Human Resources Direclor are nol present when their own remuneration 1s
discussed The Committee works closely with the Charrs of the Board Risk Commiliee and the Audit Committee

'he Committee retains FIT Remuneration Consuflants LUP {"FIT™}, who are signatones to the Remuneraion Censuliants Group's
Code of Conduel, as ils independent odviser This appointiment was made by the Committee in preparanion for the IPO aad
following consideration of the firm's expenence in this seclor FIT was reappointed by the Commitiee duning the vear following
a review of its performance

Duning the year, FIT provided advice on market prachce, corporate govenance, incentive plan design, regulatory and other
matters under consideration by the Committee FIT does not prowide any other services 1o the Company, and accordingly the
Commutlee 15 sahshed that the advice provided by FIT 1s objechive and independent

FIT's tolal fees for remuneration elated adwvice in 2014 were £175,332 exclusive of VAT FIT chorged 11s fees on the basis of
its standard terms of business for prowiding advice

Allen & Overy LLP, one of the Group's legal adwisers, also provided legal advice relating to the Group’s executive remuneration
anrangements, and provided the Group with other legal services

Statement of implementation of policy in 2015

Executive Directors’ salaries in 2015

The current base salones pod fo the Executive Direciors were set before the IPO The Commitiee has considered the current
level of salanes and decded to award an increase of 2% from 1 Apnl 2015, in line with the average increase awarded
to UK employees

2015 baosa solot 2014 bose sckary - Annual change in base
2'00% S'OOg

Drector Position salony
Paul Geddes Chiel Executive Officer 775 760 2%
lohn Reizensten Chiet Financial OHicer A6 460 2%

Annual Incentive Plan 2015

The maximum annual incentive awords which may be payable 1o Executive Ditectors in respect of 2015 are shown below and
have remained unchanged since the IPO

Maximum anrual incenive awardfor - Delerred under the Deferred Annual

Diactor Positien 2015 (% base solory] Incennve Plan
Paul Geddes Chiet Executive Ofticer 175% a0%
John Reizensten Chiel Financial Officer 150% A0%
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Dunng 2014, the Committee reviewad the basket of meosures used to assess performance under the AIP and the operaiion of the
averall framewaork since ¢ was put n place of the ime of the (PO The eview concluded that, averall, the tframework worked well
in hnking the variable poy of Executive Direciors with the perfarmance of the Group However, as part of the review, the
Commitiee decided 1o adop! the following changes aimed at simplifying the plan and fusther sirengthening that hnk

» In 2014, ongoing operating proht was adjusted to exclude movemenis in proryear reserves  This adjustment will no longer
be mode in 2015 although the Commitiee will assess the impact of prioryear reserving on performance as part of 4s overall
judgement The weighting of ongoing operating prolit has increased 1o 50%

+ To remove the specific weighiing for cost targets and lead indicators, but consider these factors as port of its overall exercise
of judgement around the quality and sustamakxlity of eamings

* To broaden the bosket of customer mensures and double the waighting of this element lo 20%, reflecing the specthc business
priores for the year ahead

Measyres Weightng for 2015 Waighling for 2014
Financial Ongoing operating profit (no longer adjusted for proryear
reserving from 2015) 50% 40%

Other hinancial measures not reflected i the definikon of
profit, prmarily the pedoimance of the Run off segment and

restructuriing costs 10% 10%

Cosl largels No specific 10%
Steategic A mix of financial and norfinancial lead indicators weighting, but

including market share, retention, quote to conversion raie,  considered as parl

scored loss rano, progress with lechnology and strolegic of the overall

projects and others wdgement 10%

Based on a basket of customer measures including Net

Promoter Score and complaints 20% 10%
Personal objectives Defined objeciives for each Executive Diseclor, including

shared objectives across the Executve Commitiee 20% 20%

in ing with previous years, all AP cutcomes will continue 1o be delermined alter the Commitiee determines o paymeni gateway
This requires the Committee lo be satsfred that 11 15 appropriale to permit a bonus award, at all or at a given level The gateway
necessarly involves some subjechive judgement of performance This may result in positive or negotve moderation of each AIP
perlormance measure or the overall banus outcome

The table below sets out the gateway entena for the AP for 2015

Gateway criteria for the Annual Incentive Plan for 2015 outcomes for Executive Directors
» Quality and sustamnability of eamings, referning 1o reserving, gross writien premium, costs and loss ralio, and relevant
lead indicators

* Addilional customer context, for exomple, conducl, expenence, brand and franchise healih
» Alfordability

*» Risk manogement within nsk appetite

« The Gioup's relatve performance to that of its peers

« The wider economic environment

« Exceptional events, such as abnormal weather

« Any regulalory breaches and / or reputahonal damage to the Group

» Committee sahsfaciion thal paying the bonus does not cause major reputational concerns

The Committee may also use s discretion to take into account addiional factors These include the quality of finoncial results,
the "direction of travel’ of all measures and a wider consideration of reputation, sk and audst

Performance conditions for Long-Term Incentive Plan awards
LTIP awards 1o be gronted n 2015 will confinue 1o be subject 1o performance agamsi the following performance condiions

+ 60% based on RoTE over a threeyear performance penod {2015, 2016 and 2017)

« 40% based on relatve TSR performance agawnst the constituents of the FISE 350 {excluding inwestment frusts) over o
threeyear performance period starting on the date of grant The staiting TSR and closing TSR will both be averaged over
o threg-month perod
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Directors’ remuneration report continued
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For these purposes, we use the Group's stendord defininon for RoTE, see page 170, subject to other adjustments which the
Committee may consider appropnote

Followsng the year end, the Committee reviewed the performance targets and, in hine wath its commiument to ensure thal awards
lo Executive Directors would only be payable if significant value has been created lor shareholders, decided o increase the
RoTE target range as follows

Performance required for hreshold vesting Pedormanca required for maximum vesting
Vesiing for threshold Awards made Awards mode
Perfomance measure performance Awards for 2015 pror 1c 2015 Awards for 2015 prof o 2015
RolTE Average onnual Average annual Average annual Average annual
20% of this element  RoTE perormance of  RoTE pedormance of  RolE perormance of - RoTE performance of
of the award 14 5% 14 0% 17 5% 17 0%
Relative TSR 20% of this element
of the oward Median Upper quintile

For the TSR and RaTE elements, 20% of the award vests for threshold pedormance with 100% vesting for maximum perdormance
There 15 a straightline interpolotion between these pornts for the TSR element jon o ranked besis) For the RoTE element, 40% of
the award will vest for RoTE of 15 5% for awards to be made in 2G1 5 (previously 15%) Otherwise, similar to TSR, a straightline
interpolation occurs from threshold 1o target then from target lo maximum performance

The LT awards wall also vest only 1o the extent thot the Commitiee s sahslied that the oulcome of the TSR and RoTE performance
condiians reflects the Group's underlying financial performance from the date of grant untl vesting When considering these
matiers, the Commutiee will consider whether there have been any matenal nisk failings

Pension and benefits
A pension contrbution of 25% of base salary will continue to be paid 1o both Execulive Directors in 2015 This 1s shown in
the table below

Drrector Positon Pension contabution 1% base salaryl
Poul Geddes Chiet Executive Offcer 25%
John Rerzenstein Chief Financial Officer 25%

Benehts compnse the provision of a company car or cor dllowance, private medical msurance, hfe assurance, income protection
and heolth screening The Executive Duectors are also eligible for certan discounted Group products in hine waith
the approach for all employees

Non-Executive Director fees
The cunent fees for the Charman ond NorrExecutive Directors were sef in 2012 and have not been changed to dote

Fees for 2015
Position £000
Board Chatrman fee 400
Basic NomExecutive Director fee 70
Additonal fees
Senior Independent Drrector fee 30
Chanr of Audit, Risk and Remuneration Committees 30
Chair of CSR Committee 10
Member of Board Commutiee {Audit, Risk or Remuneration) 10
Member of Board Committee {CSR or Nominahon} 5

No addional fees are paid for membership or chairmanship of the Investment Committee

External directorships

The Company encourages Executive Direciors to accept, subyect 1o the approval of the Chairman, an snvitation to join the board
of another company oulside the Group in a non executive capacity  This recognises the value of such wider experence In these
circumsiances, they can retain any remuneration from the non executive appomniment  Executive Direciors are generally Imited 1o
accepting one external directorship

lohn Reizenstein s a trustee and director of Farm Afnca, for which he recemes no fees, otherwise the Executive Directors do not
hold any extenal directorships

Drrect Line Group Annual Report & Accounis 2014




(mplementation of policy and pay outcomes in relaton to 2014 performance
Single hgure table! (audited)

Pension contnibutions
Allemplyee  and cosh allowance

£000 Sclory Annuol bonus?  Longrterm Incentves? 44 Benelis® share plons” in beu of pension Toral
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Paul
Geddes 760 760 1,000 835 2,656 728 17 23 - - 190 190 4,623 2,536
john
Reizensten 460 460 58 415 830 158 15 14 \ 1 115 115 1939 1163
Noies

1 All higures 1 the table ore rounded o the nearest thousand

2 Includes omaunlis eamed for performance durning the year, but deferred for three years under the Delerred Annual Incentive Flan "DAIP"} see poge 81
These deferred awards are nol subject 1o any conditions except coniinuous employment alhough awards remain available for malus / dawback

3 longlerm incentives 1n 2013 and 2014 represent the vesting of the RBS Group LTIP owards grented i 2011 and 2012 respectively The expected vesting
outcoma hgures for the RBS Group LTIP awords granted in 2011 reported 18 2013 have been updated based on the actual vesing share prce of £2 657
on 7 March 2014, compared to the theee monih average share prce of £2 2658 used n reparhing this ngure wn the 2013 remuneranon report This results in
on adjusted reportable increase of opproxamarely £106 000 for Paul Geddes and £23,000 for Joﬁn Reizenstein with 6 conespanding increase by e same
amounts of the single hgure for 2013 For the RBS Group LTIP awards granted n 2012 the vesing cutéome s caleulated at 90% of shares under oward resulting
1n @ value of £2,028 470 for Paul Geddes ond £456 403 for john Reizensiain Detarls of the peﬁorrnonce measures applicable 16 the vesting of
RBS Group LTIP awards are shown on poge B3

4 The longterm incentve hgures for 2014 alse include the estimated vestng cutcome for the ReTE portion of the owords mode under the Direct bine Group LTIP 1n
Novemger 2012 In hne with the cniena sel gt the hme of grani, this hos been assessed by reference fo RoTE perfarmance duing 2013 and 2014 ot 49 2% of
shares under award {82% of the maximum in relanan to the RoTE element) The corresponding values under longrterm incentves, including the value of dmdends
accruad are £417,636 kor Poul Geddes and £373,826 for John Reizenstein These shares will be delivered ¢ Executive Directors in November 2015

5 The values shown under long term incentves for 2014 are based on the three month average Company share pnee to 31 December 2014 Tha LTIP figure for
2014 for Poul Geddes also includes the value on exsrcise of 4,206 dvidend shares on his DAIP award for 2012 1 March 2014 of £10 157

& Benefils include o company car or ollowance, ond pavate medical end 1ncome proteciion insurance
7 Inzhides the voluve of maching shares under the SIP

Eoch Executive Direcior has confmed that they hove nol receved ony ciher dems in the notwre of semuneration, other than those
already disclosed in the single higure 1able

Annual Incentive Plan oulcomes for 2014
The table below shows outcomes against the specific measures duning the year

Weight Achievement agornst performance measures
Mea {oso % of
sures maximum Threshold Target Meaximom
award) 10% vesting 50% vesting 100% vesting
Financial  Adjusted ongaing operoing profit £0% . 0%
Other financia! measures not reflected in : :
the definmon of ongoing operating protit! i0% : ) 80% :
Cost raduchon targets 10% 60% | :
Strategic A mix of iinancia! end non finoncial 10% 40%
lead indicators? : :
Customer expanence 10% , 0% | ,
Personal  Personol objectives Poul Geddas 20% : " s6% .
nchuding shared : .
objectives amongst all John Reizenstein 20% : 65% .
Executive Commuitee
members

Notes
1 Prmanly movements in prior yeor reserves the performance of the Runoff segment and restructunng costs

2 Including market share retention quote to conversian oo, scored loss rane, pragress with tachnology ond stategic projects

As reporled 1n last year's report, at the start of the year, the Committee did not set a formal threshold to moximum range for
performance measures Instead, the Commitiee believed 1t was more appropriate to consider performance relatve 1o largets, those
numbers being commercially sensiive and likely to remain so, and assess over or underpedormance by (udging overall pertormance
al the year end  The oulcomes shown above, therefore, reflect the stiong performance dunng the year, paticularly in terms of the
bnancial measures, as highlighted i the Gioup highlights and Chairman's slatement on pages 4 to 5 and 10 10 11 respectively

www directiinegroup com

77

MBIAS! SOUDUIBAOC)



78

Directors’ remuneration report conhnued
po

Consequenlly, the annuol incentive awards poyable to the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
are as follows

Actual annyal incentve award

tor 2014 {incduding cash and
Maamum cnnuclincenive  Aciuo! annual incentive oword deferred element)

Drrector Fosiwon award (% of base salony) for 2014 1% of bose sabry) '
Paul Geddes Chief Executive Ofhicer 175% 132% 1,000
John Reizensiein Chiel Financicl Ofhicer 150% 113% 518

Non-Executive Directors

Remuneration for the Non Executive Direclors for the year ended 31 December 2014 1s shown in the lable below Fees were
the only remuneration paid lo the Non-Executve Directors in 2013 and 2014 NorrExecutive Direciors may also claim for
reasonable ravel expenses in accordance with the Group’s travel and expenses policy

Fees' Toks1 2014 Towl 2013
Direclor £ 000 £000 £ 000
Michael Biggs 400 400 400
Glyn Jones 115 115 115
Jane Hanson? 119 119 120
Sebashan James? 28 28 -
Andrew Palmer 125 125 125
Clore Thompson® 104 104 105
Priscilla Vacassin 110 110 110
Mark Catton® - - -
Motes

1 NeonExecutive Directors ore not elgible 1o pamcipate in any of the Group's barus cr share incentive schemes or jain any Gioup pension scheme
2 Jone Honson remained a member of the Corporate Social Respensibiliy Commitiee through 2014 but stood down as Char fram 1 Celober 2014

3 Sebostan James was appointed to the Board as o Non Executive Director on 28 August 2014 The fees for membership of the Remuneraion Committee end
Corporate Scoial Responsibiity Committes applied from 3Q September 2014

4 Clare Thompsan stood down from the Remuneration Committee fram 30 Septerber 2014

5 Mark Caten, a Director neminated by RBS Group, resigned as a Director of Direct Line Insurance Group plc on 26 Apil 2013, following the reduction in the
shoreholding of RBS Group in Direct bing Insurance Group ple to less than 50% on 13 March 2013 He was reoppointed as ¢ Direcier on 1 Octaber 2013
fallowing Bruce Yon Saun's resignaticn He later resigned an 7 March 2014 Buning their appeintment as Non Exacutive Direciors, Bruce Von Saun and Mark
Cation were RBS Group employees with ony fees receved payable 1o RBS Group A lump sum payment in respect of Direciors’ fees for Mark Catton and Bruca
Van Scun for the yeors 2012 to 2014 inclusve of £133 579 wos paid in January 2015

Percentage change in pay of Chief Executive Officer 2013 o 2014

The table below shows the yearon year percentage change 1n salary, laxable benekits and bonus for the Chiel Executive Ofhcer
compared lo the averoge remuneration of all other UK employees  The Committee considers that 1t 1s oppropniate to compare
aganst all UK employees, but Io exclude those based cutside the UK This helps ensure consistent compaorisons wath the Chief
Executive Othcer

Bonus including

Sdlary! Benefis? deferred amount?
Chief Executive Officer Nl 26% 20%
All UK employees 2 6% % 20%

Notes
1 Based en the change in averoge pay for UK employees emplayed in both the year ended 31 December 2014 and the year ended 31 December 2013

2 There were no changes in benelit provision between 2013 and 2014 The decrease in value shown 15 due o o decrease in the cost associoted with the
provision of cenein benelits

3 Includes avemlge amounts eamed under the Annuol Incennve Plan and, for employees other shan the Chief Exscutve Officer, other vanable incentive schemes
including monihly and quarterly incentive schemes opercted in cerain perts of the Group

When determining Directors” remunerahion, the Commitiee considers employment conditions elsewhere in the Group The
Committee parhcularly reviews overall pay and bonus decistons in aggregate for the wider Group  Through the Chief Executive
Officer, Poul Geddes, and other semior management, the Commiliee may receve input provided by employee groups, such as
the Employee Representative Body as required
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Distribution statement
The followang chart shows the averall poy expenditure across all Group employees compared wath the tolal value of dwidends
paid to shareholders for 2013 and 2014

% change % change % change

65.3% -11.2% -11.8%

Dridend [£m) Cverall expanditura on pay Overall expenditure on poy
{including Intaraahonol dvisical [£m) (excluding Internanonal division) {&m)

Note

There have been no share buy backs since the IPO ather than shares purchased by the Employes Beneft Trusts to sansly the awards of shares under the Compony s
share plans Consistent with morket prachce the averall expendiure an pay hos been taken frem neve 11 10 the consolidated financrat statements Therefore it has
noi been colculaied 1n a manaer consisient with the single higure 1n this report

Historical performance of Total Shareholder Return

The following groph shows the Compony's TSR since trading of the Company's shares began on the london Stock Exchange
Qclober 2012 aganst the FTSE 350 Index fexcluding mvesiment trusts) over the same penod  The FISE 350 Index (excluding
mvestment lrusts) has been selected as 1t 1s a broad index, of which the Company 1s a conshtuent i also represents the same
group of companies used for measunng relatve TSR undar the LTIP

Total Shareholder Return

The table below shows historical levels of the Chief Executive Clficer's pay between 2012 and 2014 It also shows vesiing
of annual and long term incentive pay awards os a percentage of the maximum available opportumity

Sing'e higure of 1otal

remuneraron  Annucl bonus payoul Longtem incenive
Chief Executve Officer £000 % of meoamuml  vesing (% of meoamym}!
2014 4,623 75% 88%
2013 2,536 63% 55%
2012 1,208 65% 30%

Nota

1 Bosed on aciual vestng under the 2010 ond 2011 and expected vesting under the 2012 RBS Group LTIP The value included m the single figure in raspect of
these owards 15 £205,000 10 2012, £728,0001n 2013 ond £2,028,470 n 2014 For 2014, the esimated vesting of the RoFE portion o? the Direct Line
Group LTIP grented 1a 2012 has alse been included ot o volue of £617,636 Any shares vesting under the Direct Line Group LTIP will not be delivered untl
November 2015 but have been mduded in the single higure as the perfarmance period 1n respect of the RoTE portion has now been completed
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Vohing cutcomes from 2014 Annual General Meeting

The table below shows the percentage of shareholders voting for, or voling agamnst, and the perceniage of votes withheld in
relation to the resolulions to approve the Duactors’ remuneration policy and Directors” annwal remuneralion report put to the
Annual General Meeting {"AGM”} n 2014

For Aganst
Number of voles  Percentage votes
wvalhheld withheld
Number Percentoge Mumber Percentage {abstanhons] {cbstentons
Approval of Directors’
remuneration policy 1,064,002,114 Q7 5% 26,743,783 25% 1,945,618 02%
Approval of Directors’
remunerction report 1,069,454,199 PRO% 21,291,566 20% 1,945,750 02%
Note

The perceniages of votes for ond aganst are expressed os o perceniage of votes cosl, excluding abstentions  The perceniage of votes withheld 1s expressed as a
percentage of lolal votes cost, including olbstentions

The Commuttee lakes 1nto account the opproval levels of remuneration related matlers ot the AGM 1o delermine whether the
current Directors’ remuneration policy remains appropnate

The Committee cims lo buld an active and praduciive diclogue with investors on developments in the remuneration aspects of
corporate governance generally and changes to the Company’s execulive pay arrangements in partcular

The Committee 1s sahsted that no element of the Directors’ remunaration pelicy conflicts with the Group'’s approach 1o
environmentat, socicl or corporate governance motiers

Shareholdings

The Executive Directors are subject lo Share Ownership Guidelines As such they are expected to refoin all of the Ordinary
Shares that they obtain from any of the Company's share incentive plans uniil they have achieved the required shareholding level
This 1s afier any disposals necessary to pay personel taxes on acquinng such Ordinary Shores  For these purposes, the holding of
Ordinary Shares will be treated as including ol vested but unexercised awards, valued on a basis that s net of applicable
personal foxes

Dunng the year, and in accordance with the power conferred 1o 11 by the Directors’ remuneranon policy, the Commitiee reviewed
Ihe ievel of Share Ownership Guidelines for both Executive Directors and aligned the guideline o the Chiet Financial Officer
{previously 150% of salary) to that of the Chiel Executive Officar {200% of salary] The extent to which Executive Directors
achieved the guideline requirements by 31 December 2014 15

Share Ownership  Vokie of shares held at
Gudeline 31 Becember 2014

Positon {% of salory) 1% of salary)
Chiet Executive Othcer 200% 104 1%
Chiel Financial Officer 200% 61 6%
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The toble below shows the total share interests of each Execulive Director

Shore plan interests at 31 December 2014 Beneficiol share interests

Shore plan owards  Shore phon owerds aot Shares held at
subjed to pedormonce  subject lo pedormance. Shore plan interests 31 December Shares held o
Director Position condlinons' condihons? axercised’ 201443 31 December 2013%
Paul Geddes Chief Execunve
Chhicer 2,488,902 218,790 391,833 271,472 58,768
John Retzenstein  Chied Financiol
Officer 1,203,368 137,347 50,713 Q7 357 60,904

MNotes

1 Includes owards under the RBS Group LTIP and Divect Line Group LTIP As described w the nates fo the single figure fable, 0% of Direct Line Insurance Group plc
shares in respect of awords gronted to each Executive Direclor under the RBS Group LTIP are expecied to vest in March 2015 For single figure purposes using
the three menth overage share price 1o 31 December 2014, these shores have been valued at £2,028,470 for Payl Geddes and £456 403 for
Joha Reizenstein

2 Includes maiching and free shares held under the SIP, see page 82, and defarred shares under the DAIP RBS Group deferred owards are not included as these
will be seiled m R8BS Group shores

3 20% of the shares awarded lo Poul Geddes under the DAIP in March 2013 vesied du ing the financiol yeor, consistent wath the pelicy applying o R8BS Group
These hgures also Include awards vested during the year under the 2011 RBS Group LTIP

4 As at ihe date of this report the number of shares beneficially held by Joha Reizenstein had increased o 97 438 There wos no change to the number of shoras
benehaiolly held by Poul Geddes

5 Includes holdings of connected persons as defined n secnon 948(2) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

& The DAIP and LTIP plon rules provide that oll dividends accruing in the vesting penod [or unil exarcise for owards made in 2012 ond 201 3) will be added
an vesting The table above excludes such rofl up

7 Benehicial share interests mclede parinership shores purchased by John Reizensten under the SIP

The table shows the benehicial interests of the Non Executive Directors in the Company’s shares os at 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013

Shares held at Shares held at
Director 31 Decamber 2014'? 31 December 2013
Michael Biggs - -
Jane Hanson 28,571 28,571
Ghyn Jones 67,551 60,395
Andrew Palmer 11,428 11,428
Clare Thompson 33,775 30197
Prscillo Vacassin 33,775 30,197
Sebashan James - n/a
MNotas

1 There wera no changes 10 the number of sharas held by Direcrors between the year end and the dote of this report
2 includes heldings of connected persons os defined in sectien 968(2) of tha Finanaial Servicas and Markets Act 2000

Direct Line Group share awards

Direct Line Group Delerred Annual Incentive Plan awards made n 2014

The table below delkails the awords made to Poul Geddes and John Reizenstein under the DAIP relating fo the bonus in respect of
2013, the monetary value of which was disclosed in full in last year's remuneration report

Three dey Awards
Awards overage share hetd at
Awaids held graned pice ol grant  Faca value DAP N
of | Jowory  durng the dae  of owerd dwidend Decamber
Direcion 204 year' Gran dole £ £ Vesing dols share oword Exeraise? 2014
Poul Geddes 26 March 1 March 2014 -
188,522 137,241 2014 2433667 333,999 26 Mach 2017 4,206 117,319 218,647
John Reizensiein 26 March
68,462 68,210 2004 2433667 166,000 26 Mach 2017 - - 136,672

Notes
1 Awards cre gronted as nikcost options

2 Exercised on 27 March 2014 ar £2 4330, resuling in an aggregate gon of £285,437
3 Bdlonce inchides 5,997 sharas relating to final dvidend accruals from the DAIP award exercised on 28 March 2014 ard which remain to be delivered
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Drrect Line Group long Term Incentive Plan owards made in 2014
The table below details the unvested awards held by Paul Geddes and John Reizensten made under the Company's LTIP

Percantoge of
scheme interests
Three doy that would be
overage share recercble if the
pace forgront of  Face volue of mimmum  Awards held at
Awards ot Awords gronted owords award peformance 31 December
Drrector 1 January 2014"  dunng the yeor Gront do'e £ £ Vesing date  was ochieved? 20143
Paul Geddes 26 Morch 26 March
312,285 2014 2 433667 759,008 2017 20%
1,117,72¢ ' ' 1,691
S 29 August 29 August 691,902
261,888 2014 2 0020 759,900 2017 20%
John Reizensten 26 March 26 March
189,015 2014 2433667 460,000 2007 20%
76,519 ' ' 4
6765 29 August 29 August 1024045
158,511 2014 2 Q020 459,999 2017 20%
Motas

The Company's share pace an 31 December 2314 was £2 913 ond the range of prices 1n the year was £2 303 10 £3 042

1 These awards take the form of mikcast aphons over the Company's shares and are subject to pedosmance condihons to be assessed by the Committee Awards
granted pnor o 2014 acerve dividand entilements upil the dote of tronsfer of shares Awords granted from 2014 accrue dwdend entilemant from grent date
1o date on which an oward vesls

2 The RoTE largets for awards up ta 2014, appiyng to 60% of the award were 14% for 20% vasting, 15% for 40% veshng and 17% for full vesing A straightiine
interpolaton occws from threshold fo target and then from targel lo maximum performance The remaining 40% of each award 15 basad on TSR performonce
condinons which are the some os nated on page 76 for awards in 2015

3 These hgures do notinclude those RBS Graup LTIP awords held by the Executive Directars They are ncluded in the tlable on poge 83

The Company's policy 15 to make awards twice o year lollowing the ennouncement of the Group's Iull and half yeor results The
value of each grent of awards 1s set at S0% of the normal annual policy level This means the tolal face value of awards to each
Exscuiive Director during the year equates to 200% of base salory, measured using o thiee-day average shore price prior fo the
date of grant

Direct Line Group 2012 Share Incenhve Plan

During 2014 oll employees, ncluding Execuive Directors, were ehigible to nvest from £10 up to £125 per month from their pre-
tax pay mto the SIP and receve one matching share for every two shares purchased The hmit of £125 per month was
subsequently increased 1o £150 per month i January 20135 followang legislation changes in 2014

The table below details the rumber of shares held by John Reizenstein under the SIP Paul Geddes does not partcipate in the plan

Maiching shares Value of maiching  Balonce of molching

Maiching shares cancellad duning shares granted! shares at 31 December
Director granted dunng the year the year £ 2014
John Reizenstein 278 - 750 532
Note

1 The occumulated market volue of matching shares of the ime of each aword Purchase of the marching shares 1okes ploca within 30 days of the conmbuncns
being deducted from salary

Addihonally, ot the ime of the IPO, and under the same terms as other employees, Executive Directors were offered the
opportunity fo subscribe lor 143 lree Company shares which will vest in November 2015, three years from gront Both Execolive
Directors subscribed for this ofter They were similorly eligible 1o participate i the award of opproximately £400 worth of free
shares due to be made n March 2015 as referred 1o 1n the Committee Charr's letter but have bolh waved therr eligibility 1o thes
award

Dilution

The Company complies with the dilution levels recommended by the ABI guidelines, of 10% in 10 years for dll share plans and
5% n 10 years for discretionary plans, consistent walh the rules of the Company’s share plans Legacy RES Group awards fo be
sahshed in Company shares will be sahshied by RBS Group rather than the Company and RBS Group has placed shores in trust
to facihitate thrs
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RBS Group longTerm Incentive awards

The Execulive Duectors were granted awards in 2011 and 2012 under the RBS Group Llong Term lncentive Plan ("RBS Group
LTIP"} as employees of RBS Group It was agreed that awards under this plan will be salished in Direct Line Insurance Growp ple
shares, ransferred by RBS Group 1o the extent that the performance conditions, based on financial, nsk, customer ond people

measuses, have been satished

Awards
held at Awords
, 1January  vesied dunng the  Awords lopsed Awards hald of . Market puce at
2014 year  dunng the year 31 December 2014 grant date (RBS
{Drrect Line {Direct Line [Drect Line {Direct Line Group shares)
Director and scheme Group shares) Group shares!  Group shares) Group shares? Grari dote £ Vest date
Paul Geddes 7 March
2011 501,394 274,514 226,880 - 2011 445 7 Maich 2014
Q Maich
2012 797,000 - - 797,000 2012 280 @ March 2015
John Reizenstein 7 March
2011 102,953 50713 43,240 - 2011 445 7 March 2014
7 March
2012 176,324 - - 172,324 2002 280 7 Maich 2015
Naoles

1 It wes ogreed with RBS Group thot paticipants naw amployed by Direct Line Group holding awards under the RBS Group UTIP granted 1n 201 1 ond 2012
would be givan the opporunily 1o have those owords sahsfied by the ansfer of Direct line Insurance Group ple shares from 8BS Group on vesting The
conversion rate applied 1o these awards wos the average pnce of RBS Group shares over the five businass doy pewod poor o 11 Cetaber 2012 divded by the
Direct line insurance Group pic share offer poce (£1 75) This conversion equated 1o 1 487 Direct bine Insurance Group ple shores for every RES Group share

under grant Both Execyive Directors iook up this offer

2 As disclosed in the single figure 1able on page 77 Q0% of the shores granted under the RBS Group LTIP 1n 2012 ore expected to vest en the dates shown above
For singla figure purposes this resulls 1n an esimated value of £2,028,470 for Paul Geddes and £4.56,403 for John Reizenstein

RBS Group defered ewards

Awards which were onginally awarded under the RBS Group Deferral Plan will continue 1o be delivered in RBS Group shares
The awards detaled below under the RBS Group Deferral Plan give o condiienal nghi to acquire ordinary shares in RBS Group
Ne owards were granted or lapsed dunng the year

Awards Awords

held ot Awards held of

1 jonwory 2014 vesed dunng the yeor 31 December 2014
Ciractor and scheme [RBS Group shares) [RBS Greoup shares) {RBS Group shores| Grani dete Vesing dares
Paul Geddes 7 March 2012 -
2011 17,981 17,987 - 7 Maich 2011 7 March 2014
@ March 2012 -
2012 64,310 32,154 32,156 @ Maich 2012 @ March 2015
John Reizensten 7 Maich 2012 —
20N 2,397 2,397 - 7 March 2011 7 March 2014
7 March 2012 -
2012 8813 4,406 4,407 7 March 2012 7 March 2015

Notg

1 Vested on 11 March 2014 when the RBS Group share piice was £3 2012

The Board reviewed and approved this report on 2 March 2015

Prisailla Vacassin, Chair of the Remunerotion Commuittee
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Directors’ remuneration report confinued

Policy report

A resolution in respect of the Direclors’ remuneration policy was approved at the Company’s AGM on 15 May 2014 by a
significanl majonty (97 5% i favour] No changes 1o the policy ore proposed For ease of reference, a copy of the policy
approved by shareholders 1s repeated below (subject only to mnor referencing updales to assist with the reading of the policy)

Policy table
Element Purpese ond link ta stoegy Operanon
Base sclcry » This is the core element « Base salanes ore reviewed annually ond set in Apnl of each yeor, clthough
of pay thas reflects the ihe Commttee moy undertake an ourol cyele review f it determines ihat this
indirdual's rale and 1S appropriale
postion within the Group « Salanes are ypically remewed aganst .
ond 15 payable for dong - leve! of skill, expenence and scope of responsibilines, indvidual and
the expected daytoday business performance, ecanomic chmate and market condihons,
1ob ~ the medion morket poy in the context of insurance peers ond companies of
« Ensunng we are o smilar size, peculorly FTSE 31 100 componies being compomes which
compehtve in the market are considered fo be reflectve of the size and complexily of the Group, and
allows us 1o airact, retain - general base salary mevement across the Group
and mohvote high cahbra + The Committee does noi stnctly follow data but vses it gs a reference point
exaculves with the skill sefs in considenng, 1 its judgement, the apprepnate lavel having regord to other
10 achieve our key aims relevant faciors nchuding corporate ond indmdual performance and any
while managing costs changes in on indmdual's role and responsibilises
« The principles for setting base salary are simier 1o those applied 1o other
employees n the Group, alihovgh the specific benchmarking groups used
lo review exlernal markes relatvities may differ across employee groups
+ Base salary s pard menthly
Annual Incenhve *» To moivote execives ond  » For Executive Directors, ot lecst 40% of the oword 1s deferred nio shares under
Plan (the “AlP") incanhivise delivery of the Deferred Annual inceniive Plan [the "DAIP) ypically vesing three yeors
performance over ¢ one- after grant [with deferred awards also copable of being setied n cash|
year operaing cycle, The remainder of the award 1s pand 1n cash following year end
focusing on the short 1o » The percentage deferred and the ierms of deferral will be kept under review by
medium term elements of the Commitiee 1o ensure thot levels cre in ling with regulatory requirements ond
our stralegic aims besl proctice ond may be changed i fulure years but wili not, 1n the view of
tha Commitiee be changed o be less onercus overall
+ Malus and clawback provisions apply 1o both the cash and deferred efements
and ore exploined 1n more detail (n the notes 1o the pelicy fable
2012 Long-Term + To motvate ond incentivise  » Awords will typecally be made 1n the form of nilcost options or conditional
lncentive Plan (the dalivery of sustainad share awards which vest lo the extent pedformance condions arg sohshed
“LTIP") business performonce over over @ peried of of least three years Under the Plan rules, owords may dlse

the long 1erm, aligning
exaculives’ interests wiih
those of shareholders

*» To aid long term refenhon
of key execuive ialent

be setled in cash

« Veslec ophions will remain exercisoble for o penod of seven years

Malus ond clawbock provisions apply to the TP and cre explaned i more
detail in the notes 1o the policy table

Awards under the LTIP moy be made ot varnicus hmes dunng the financial year
While the Commuties reserves the nght to do otherwise, praciice has beer 1o
macke cwards twice 1n each financiol year following the announcement of the
Group's annual and halfyeor resulis
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Maximum opportunity

Peformance measures

The Commitiee hos determined that its
pohey will be to only set base solones
by reference 1o the foctors set aut in the
previaus column for the duranon of this
pelicy In any event no increase wil

be made if it would take on Execuive
Duector’s salary obove the medion level
of salanes for relevant wles in the FTSE
100 as determined using dale awalable
i the Commitiee at or shodly priof o
when ony increase 1s considered
Where solary increases ore awarded,
the Committee will have regard to the
increcse being owarded 1o employees
within the Group more generally, os
weli as the other fociors outhined n this
table under ‘Operation’

Not apphicable

Maximum and rarge bonus levels for
Executive Directors cre set by reference
to prackce at other insurance end
general market comparators

The maximum bonus level potentic!
under the AP 15 175% of bose solary
per annum  The curent maximum bonus
level apglying for each indviducl
Executive Direcior 15 shown in the
statement of imglementation of policy
in 2015 sechion of the annual
remunerotion report

Peiformonce over the finencial yeor 15 cssessed agamst parformonce measures which the
Committee considers to be appropnate

These moy be inoncial, non finaneial (Group, divisional or business line} ond individual Eoch
veor, af least 50% of the borus 1s based on financial measures The remainder of the bonus
will be based en @ combinaton of non financial and indvidual performance measures
Targets are set at the beginning of each inancia! yeor by the Committee

No more than 10% of the boaus 1s paid for threshold performance [30% for the indwidual
pertarmonce element] No more thon 60% of the maximum opportunity pays out for iargel
peromance However, the Committee retains flexibiity to omend the level of poyout ot diferent
levels of perfarmance for fulure bonus cycles bosed on its assessment of the level of steich
inherent in the targets that have been set and will disclose any such determinations approprictely
Before any payment con be mode, the Commtee will pesform an addiione! gotewoy
assessment to determing whether the amount of any bonus 15 oppropriate in view of such focts
or cicumstonces as the Commttee considers relevent This assessment moy result in
moderation (either posilive of negotive] of each AIP performance measure but subject 1o the
ndnadual maximum bonus levels

The AIF remains @ discrencnory arrengement and the Commiilee reserves discretion to cdjust
the outtuin (from zero 1o the cap) should  consider thet to be appropricte In porticular, the
Commutee will operate this discrefion as o gotewsy in respect of any nsk concerns

The Plon allows for awards over shares
with an absalute maximum value of
200% of base solary per financiol yeor
{although owards of up 1o 300% of
base sclary are permited n
exceptional circymstonces s relotion 1o
the recryitment or retention of an
employee, os delermined by the
Remuneration Commities)

The Cammiitee will determine the performance conditions for each award made under the LTIP
with performance measured over o single penod o at least three years with no prowision to refest
Performonce 15 measured oganst farges set of the beginning of the performance period
which may be set by relerence 1o the ime of grant or finaneia! year

Awards vest based on performance ogainst finoncial and / of share retum mecsures os
set by the Committes, io be olignad wih the lorgterm stategic objeciives of the Group

For awards 1o be gronled in 201 5, veshng will continue I be determined based on two
meosuies RoTE and relotive Totol Shareholder Return {*TSR") performance against the FTSE
350 texcluding nwvesiment tysts] The Committes may apply different performance measures
and targets in future years

Awards will be subject 1o a payment goteway such that the Commiiee must be sansfied that
there are no matenal nsk falings, repuiational coneetns or reguictory issues

In addition, there 1s an underpin relating fa the Committee’s iew of the underlying financic!
perfarmance of the Group

Futler detalls of the performonce conditions and torges for 2015 and prioryear owards are
sef out n the annual remuneration report

For both the TSR and RoTE elements, 20% of the award vests for threshold pedormance with
100% vestng for moxsmum pedormonce The Committes eserves the discretion to make
changes to thase levels which it considers non-matenol

The Commites reserves the nght to lengthen [but not reduce} any performance pened ond/
of 1o nfroduce o seporate holding penod
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Element Purpose ond hnk fo shategy COperchon
Pension « To remain compettive » Pension contnbulions are pad only in respect of bose salary
within the market place » Executive Diectors are eligible to poricipate in the dehined contnbution
+ To encourage refirement pension arrangemenl or allernatively they may choose 1o receive a cash
plonning and retain allowance in lieu of pension

flexibility for indhviduols o This 15 1n line wath the approach 1cken for all Group employees

Benehts * A comprehensive and » Executive Dreclors receve a benefils package generally set by relerence to
flexable benefits package ts markel prachice in componies of a similor size and complexity, pamculaiy
offered, wath the emphass FTSE 31 100 companies Benehis currently provided include o company cor
on indmduals being able or car allowarice, private medical insuiance, life msurance, health screening
to choose the combinahion ond income prolection
of cash and benefits that « The Committee may penodically amend the benelits available to employees
suifs them The Execulive Diectors are eligible o recerve such addiional benehis on

similar ferms 1o other semiol execuhves

» [n line with our approach o all employees, certain Group products are
offered 1o Executive Directors ot a discount

» Executive Directors are also ehgible lo paricipate in any of the employee
share plons operated by the Company, m line with HMRC guidelines twhere
relevant), on the same bosts as for other eligible employees Currently s
includes the Share Incentve Plan, which was dlso used fo provide an award
of free shares to all employees {including Executive Directors| at the ime of
the PO

Share + To turther align the interests  « Executive Dizeciors are expected 1o retan all of the ordinary shares vesting

ownership  of Execuve Directors with under any of the Company’s share incenfive plans, after ony disposals for

guidehines those of shareholders the payment of applicable taxes, untl they have achieved the required level

of shareholding

Notes to the policy table

Stating maximum amounts for each element of semuneration

Where the lable refers to the maximum amounts that may be paid in respect of any element of the policy las required under
the Regulations} these will operate simply as caps and not be indicaiive of any aspirahion

Malus and clawback

Malus [beng the torferure of unvested awards) and clawback lbeing the abiity of the Company 1o cloim repoyment of paid

amounts) provisions apply 1o the AP {cash and deferred element} and LTiP f, in the opinion of the Committee, any of the

followang has occuned

= There has been o matenol misstatement of Ihe Company's financiol results which has led to an overpoyment

» The assessment of perfformance taigets is based on an error or inaccurate or misleading information or assumplions

» Circumstances warranhing summary dismussal in the relevant penod

« A matenal failure of nsk management or any other act or omission thot has had a sufficiently sigmhcant impaci on the
reputahon of the Company lo jushfy such achon

Amounis in respect of awards under both plons may be subject to dowback for up 1o thiee years post payment or vesling
s approprole
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Maxmum opportunty Perfarmance measures

» Pension confrtbutions for both Execulive Direclors ore sel i« Not performance reloted
25% of base salary per annum

* The costs of benehis provided moy llucluate from yeor 1o « Not performance related
year even if the level of provision has remained unchanged

 An annual liemt of 10% of base salory per Execunve
Director has been set for the durction of this policy The
Commitiee will monior the cosis in practice and ensure
that the overall costs do not increase by more than the
Commitiee considers to be appropnale in all the
ciicumstances

» In addiion, the limit for any employee share plons 1n which
the Executve Directors parhcipate will be in line with the
caps permitted by HMRC from hme 1o ime

+ The Executive Directors may be entilled 1o retain fees
received for any direclorships held outside of the Group

+ 200% of salary tor both Executive Directors {representing » Nol applicable
an increose from 150% :n respect of the Chief Financial
CHicer}

¢+ The Commitiee reserves the discretion to amend these
levels in lulure years

Exercise of discretion

in bine with markes prochice, the Committee refarns discrehon in relation 1o the operation and administration of the AIP, DAIP
and ITIP This discretion includes, but s not limited to

* The iming of owards and payments

» The size of awards, within the overall hmils disclosed in the policy table

« The determination of vesting

» The treciment of owards in the case of change of control of restrucluring

= The tieatment of leavers within the rules of the plan and the termination policy summary shown on pages 90 1o 91

* Adjustments needed m cerlamn circumstances {for example, nghts issue, corporate restructuning or special infenm dvidend)

The Committee also retains the discreon to amend the performance measures, weightings ond targets after they have been set

it events moke it appropniate to do s Any changes will be explained in future annual remuneration reports and, + appropriate,

be the subject of consultation with the Company’s major shareholders
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Directors’ remuneration report continued
po

Adjusiment to number of shases under deferred bonus and LTIP

The number of shares subject 1o deferred bonus and {TIP awards may be increased 1o reflect the value of dvidends that would
have been poid in respect of any dates falling betwean the grant of owards and the date of veshing of owards {ihe date of
transer of shares for awards made pnor 1o 201 4)

The terms of incentive plan awards may be adjusted in the event of o vanation of the Company's share capiial, demerger or
a similar event that matenally affects the price of the shares or otherwise in accordance with the plon rules

Remunerahon payments agreed prior fo oppomiment 1o the Board

The Committee reserves the nght to make any remunerction payments and poyments for loss of office (including, where relevant,
exercising any discrefions available to 1t n connechon with such payments] notalhstanding that they are not in lne with the policy
set out above where the terms of the payment were agreed [1) before the pohcy came io effect or (1) al o hine when the relevant
individucl was not o Director of the Direct Line Insurance Group ple and, in the cpinion of the Commitiee, the payment was not in
consideration for the ndwidual becoming o Director of the Compony For these purposes ‘payments’ include pension ariangements,
the Commitiee sahsfying awards of vanable remuneration and, in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are
‘agreed’ af the ime the award 15 granled

RBS Legacy anangements

Both Execulive Directors continue 1o hold unvested awards previously granted to them under the RBS Group LTIP in 2012 These
awards were gronled lo Paul Geddes ond John Reizenslein at a ime when they were divistonal directors of RBS Group and
will now be sahshed by the ransler of Direct Line Insurance Group ple shares from RBS Group on vesting  The performance
conditions for these awards relate o hnanciol and operaional performance agamst the siiategic plan for Direct lne Group,
effective nsk management ond measures based on employee and customer satisfaction

In addition, both Execuive Direciors continue o hold awards enginally awarded under the RBS Group Deferral Plon and these
will continue 1o be delivered i RBS Group shares These awords ore not subject to any performance condiions on vesting

Selection of performance measures

Annual Incentive Plan

The AIP pedormance measures have been selected by the Commiliee to incenhvise Executive Direclors to achieve hnancial
targets lor the year as well os specific stralegic and personal objectives These measures are aligned with the key performance
indicators thal we use as o business to monilor performance agomst our shategic priorihes, os shown on pages 26 fo 27 of
the Annual Report & Accounts

The relevent targets are set ot or lollowing the siart of each year 1o ensure that Executive Directors are appropriately focused
on the key obiectives for the next 12 maonths

Long Term Incentive Plan
The ulhmate goal of our strategy 15 to provide long-term sustanable retumns for our shareholders

For 2015, awards under the LTIP will therefore continue 1o be subject 1o performonce agatnst both RoTE and relative TSR targets,
which are impariant KPis for the business The Commitiee believes thas this combmation provides a balanced approach to the
measurement of Group performence over the longer term by using both o stated financial KPI thal incentivises indivduals to keep
growing the business in an efhcient way and a measure based on relatve shareholder return This combination of measures
achieves on approprate balance of absolute and relanve returns

Differences in remuneration policy from broader employee populahon
When determining Executive Directors” remuneration, the Commaltee takes into account pay throughout the Group to ensure thal
the arrangements in place remain appropriole

The Group hos one consistent reward policy for all levels of employees Therefore, the same reward prinaiples guide reward
decisions for all Group employees, including Execulive Directors, although remuneration pockages differ to toke into account
approprate factors m diferent areas of the business

« AP - appioximately 3,900 employees participate in the AP and the corporate performance measures lor all employees are
consistent with those wsed for Executive Direciors alhough the weighting attnbutable 1o those factors may differ The Group's
strategic leaders alse receve part of thew bonus in Company shares deferred for a penod of three years

o LTIP - our sirategic leaders participate in the LTIP currently based on the same performance condiions as those for Executive
Disectors, olthough the Commiitee reserves the discietion fo vary the pertormance condiions lor awards made to employees
below the Board for future awards

« All employee share plans — the Commutiee considers it 1s imporiant for all employees o have the opportunity 1o become
shareholders in the Company The HMRC-approved Buy-As-You Earn Share Incentive Plan in the UK and an Internanionat plon
mirrormg the UK plan for llaly were both lounched dunng 2013 At year end, approximately 2,100 employees throughout
the Group had signed up to these schemes
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Remunerahon policy for Non-Executive Directors

Flement Purpose and hnk 1o Approach o seting fees ond cap Cther tgms
shategy
Chanmanand  To enable the » NonExecutive Dieclors are pard a basic annual lee * The Non Executve
NonrExecuive  Company to recruil plus reasonable ravel expenses Addionol fees may Direciors are not
Drreclors’ fees  and refoin Non be paid to NonExecuive Directors who char a Board entiled to receve
Executive Directors Commitiee, sit on a Board Committee and for the any compensahon
of the highest Senicr Independent Direcior The level of fees for 2015 for loss of office,
cohbre, at the 15 shown in the annual remunesafion sechon other than fees for

appropnale cosl « Fee levels for Non Executive Direclors ore reviewed therr notice: penod
and may be increased ot appropricle intervals by the They do nof
Board, with afected individual Directors absenting participate in the
themselves from dehberations Group’s bonus,
employee share
e In sefling the level of lees, the Company tokes into plans or pension
accounl the expected ime commilment of the role and arangements and
lees of other companies of a similar size, sector and / do not receive any
or complexity 1o the Group benahits

s The lees paid to the Chairman are nclusive of oll
Bocrd and Committee membership fees and are
determined by the Remuneration Committee

« Subject o a Non Executve Director aggregate fee cap
in the Articles of Associclion [currently £2,000,000
per annum}, the Company reserves the nght to chonge
how the elements and weightings within the overall
fees are paid and to poy a proportion of the fees in
shares within this Timst

Recruitment remuneration po||cy
The recruilment remuneration policy aims to give the Commitiee sufficient flexibdiy to secure the eppomntment and prometion
of hlgh-(:(]llbfe execuhves fo sirengthen the management team and secure the skill sets to deliver the Group's stategic aims

Principles for recruitment remuneration

o In terms of the pnnciples for seting o package for o new Executive Direcior, the starting pont for he Commitiee will be to
look to the policy for Execulive Directors as sel out in the policy lable and siuclure a package n accordance wath that policy
Consistent with the Regulatons, the caps contoined wathin the policy table for fixed pay do not opply to new recruits, olthough
the Commtttee would not envisage exceeding these caps i prachce

» For an intemal oppomiment, ony vancble pay element owarded in respect of the pnor role may esher continue on its onginal
terms or be adjusted to reflect the new appoiniment, as approprate

» For external and intemal apponiments including a major change n rale], the Commitiee may agree that the Company wall
meet certain relocahon expenses, fegal and other lees involved 1n negotiating any recrntment o pay expainate benefits in line
with the Group's internahional assignment policy, as approprate

Buy-out awards

« Where It 15 necessary to moke o recnuiimentrelated pay aword to on extermal candidate, the Company will not pay more than
18 necessary, in the wiew of the Commitiee, and wift in all cases seek, in the first insiance, to deliver any such awards under
the: terms of the exssing inceniive pay struciure

« Al such awards for exteinal oppointments, whether under the AIP, LTIP or otherwise, to compensale for awards forfeited on
leaving then previous employer will be capped at the commercial value of the amount forferted and will take account of the
nature, hme honzons and performance requirements of thase awoids In parhicular, the Commitiee's starting pont wall be 1o
ensure that any owards being forfeited which remain subject to outstanding performance requirements [other than where
substantally complete} are bought out with replacement requirements and any awards with semace requirements are bought out
with similar terms  However, exceptionolly the Committee may relax those obligations where 1f considers it 1o be in the interests
of shareholders and those lactors are, in the view of the Commitiee, equally reflected in some other way, for example through
a significant discount to the face value of the awards forfested It wall only include guaranieed or non-prorated amounts under
the AIP where the Commitiee considesrs thal 1l 15 necessary 1o secure the recruilment
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Directors’ remunerahion report confinued

The elements of any package for o new recru, including the maximum level of vanable pay, but excluding buy-outs, and

the opproach iaken by the Commitiee in relation o setting each element of the packoge will be consistent with the Executive
Directors’ remuneration pohicy described in this report, as modilied by the above statement of principles where appropriate

The Committee reserves the nght to avail isalf of the current Listing Rule @ 4 2 1f needed in order 1o facihtate, in excephional
circumnsiances, the recruliment of an Executive Director Awards granted under this provision will only be used for buy-out awards

Any commitments made before promoton 1o the Board {except when made i connection with the apponiment to the Board)

can continue 1o be honoured under the policy even if they are not consistent with the policy prevailing when the commitment
1s fulfilled

ln excephional circumstances, the initral nohce penod may be longer than the Company’s 12 month policy up to a maximum of
24 months However, this will reduce by one month for every month served, unhl it has reduced 1o 12 months in ine with the
Company’s policy posthen

The remuneration policy for the Chairman and Non Executive Directors os set out earlier in this report will apply in relation 1o
any recsuliments to those posiions

Service contracts
Subject 1o the discretion noted above for new recruits, 1t1s the Company’s policy to sel nolice penods for Executive Directors of
no more than 12 months [both by the Director or Company] The Executive Direclors” service agreements summary 15 os follows

Nohee penod {oy
Drrector of
Durector Effectve dale of contract Company Ext payment pohcy
Paul Geddes 1 September 2012 12 months Base salary only for unexpired pomen of notice pertod and
to be paid in o lump sum or monthly instalments, in which
cose insialments are subject o mingahon if an allernaiive
role 15 found
John Renzenstein 1 September 2012 12 months Base salary only for unexpired porion of notice period and

to be pard n a lump sum or monthly instalments, n which
case instolments are subject to mikgation if on altemnotive
role 15 found

There are no fuither obligotions which could give nise 1o a remuneration or loss of office payment other than those set out in the
remuneration policy table and ferminaticn policy summary

Terminahion policy summary

it 15 appropriate for the Commttee 1o retain discretion to consider the lermination terms of any Executive Director, having regard
io all the relevant facls and ercumstances avallable to them at the ime A Director 1s deemed @ 'goed leaver’ if the following
circumsiances are met

» Annual Incentive Plan and long Term Incentive Plan — death, injury, 1llhealth, redundancy, retirement, the sale of the indvidual's
employing company or business oul of the Group, or in such olher crcumstonces as the Comimillee determines

» Deferred Annual Incentive Plon ~ for any reason other than summary dismissal or resignation urless, in the cose of resignation
only, the Commitiee defermines otherwise

The table overleal sets out the general posiion although 1t should be noled that the Committee, consistent with most olher
compantes, has reserved a broad discretion 1o delermine whether an Executive Direclor should be categonised os a *good leaver’
ond that discretion forms part of the approved policy Smilarly, while the policy 1s generdlly to reduce AIP and LTIP owaids on

a prorata basis, the Committee has reserved discrehon to disapply such reduction if, in the circumsiances, 1t considers thet to

be appropnate taking info account the performance of the departing executive and the circumstances of leaving
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Incentrves

If o fecrver 15 & 'bod keover” for
exomple leaving through resignaton
o summary dismissal

If o legver 15 deemed 1o be
a good leavar’

Other avenis for example changa in
eontrol of winding up of Company

Annual lncentive Plan

No awaords made

Bonus paid of the normal
hme ond on & me profalo
basis, unless the Commuttee
determmes otherwise

Bonus determined on such
basis as the Committee
considers appropnale and
id on a time prerrata
Egsrs, unless the Commiitee
determines otherwise

Deferred Annual
Incentive Plan

All awards will lapse

Deferred shares typrcally vest
on the normal veshng date,
alhough the Commuttee
reserves discretion to
accelerate vesting In the
case of the parcipant’s
death or other exceptional
crcumstances, awards may
vest immediately

Awards wall vest in full

In the event of a demerger o
simlar event, the Commitiee
may delermine that awards
vest on the same basis

Long-Term Incentive Plan

All awards will lopse

Awards will vest on the
normal veshing date subject
to performance and, unless
the Commtttee determines
otherwise, ime pro raing
in exceptional encumstances,
as determined by the
Commitiee, tor example in
the case of the partcipant’s
death, awards may ves!

on cessalion

Awards will vest subject

to the application of the
performance conditions
ond, unless the Commutiee
determines otherwise, ime
pro raling

In the event of a demerger or
similor event, the Commitiee
may delermine that awards
vest on the same basis

Service agreements for Execuiive Directors provide that Paut Geddes and John Reizenstein are not eligible to receve any
enhanced redundancy lerms which may be offered by the Group from lime fo fime Theur nghts 1o o siatulory redundancy

payment are not affected

Depending on the arcumstances of departure, an Executive Director moy have addional elaims under relevant employment

protechon laws and the Company may coninbute to any legal fees involved 1n agreeing o terrmination |t may also agree o incur

certain other expenses such as the provision of culplacement servces Any such fees would be disclosed os port of the detail of

any lerminalion arrangements

Non-Executive Director letters of appointment
Non Execulive Directors are appomted for a threeyear term which may be renewed by mutual agresment In common with the
Executive Direciors, all Non Executives are subject to onnuc] re-election by shoreholders

The Drrectors may oppomt addiional members 1o oin the Board duning the yeor Dueclors appointed in this woy will be subject
o election by shareholders al the frrst AGM dlter their appointment In subsequent years the Direclors are required 1o submil
themselves for reelection of each AGM

Tesms and condions of appoiniment of all of the Direciors are avarlable for inspection by any person at the Company's

regisiered office and at the AGM

The Chairman and NoExecutive Direciors have notice pertods of three months from either party, which do not apply in the case

of a Director not being re-elecled by shareholders or retining from office under the articles of associgion Other than fees for this
nolice penod, the Chairman and Non-Executive Dueciors are not entifled lo any compensation on exit

External directorships

The Company encourages Executive Directors lo accept, subject to the approval of the Cherrman, on invitation 1o join the boord

o another company outside the Group in a non-executive capacity, recognising the value of such wider expenence In these
circumstonces, they ore permitied 1o relain any remuneration from the norexecutive apponiment Execunve Directors are
generally limited to accepting one external directorship
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Considerchon of employment condihons elsewhere in the Group

As explained elsewhere in the Directors’ remuneration report, the Commitiee reviews the overall pay and bonus decisions in
aggregate for the wider Group and therefore takes account of pay and condions in the wider Group m determining the
Durectors’ remuneration policy and the remuneration poyable 1o Directors Through the Chief Executive Officer, Paul Geddes,
and other senior management the Commiliee may receive mput provided by employee groups within the Group, such as the
Employee Representaitive Body, as requued

In accordance with prevading commercial praclice, the Commitiee did not consult with employees in preparing the Directors’
remuneration pohicy

Consideration of shareholders’ views
The Commutiee takes into account the approval levels of remuneration related matters al the AGM in delermining whether the
current Derectors’ remuneration policy remains eppropnale

The Commattee, consistent with its approoch of operating within the highes! siondards of corporate governonce, takes significant
account of guidelines 1ssued by the ABI and shareholder bodies [such as the Nahonal Association of Pension Funds) when seting
the remuneration pohicy

The Commitiee will afso seek to bulld an active and produciive dialogue with investors on developmenls in the remuneration
ospects of corporate govemance generally and any changes to the Company’s executive pay arrangements in particular

The Commutiee 1s saished thal no element of the Direciors’ remuneration policy conlhics with the Group's approach to
environmental, social or corporate governance malters

Performance scenarios
The Directors’ remuneration policy has been designed to ensure that o signshicant propartion of total remunerchon 15 delivered
in the form of vanable pay and is therelore dependeni on performance against cur strategic objeciives

The Commitiee has considered the level of remuneroton that may be poid under different performance scenanos 1o ensure that
it would be appropniate in each situahion i the context of the performance delivered and the value crected for shareholders

The following charts show the potential remuneration that may be earned by Executive Directars under three assumed
performance scenanos as follows

CEO - Paul Geddes CFO - John Reizenstein
(£000] 1£000} ;
Miﬂlmul‘ﬂ ]m 986 Mmlmum 100% 602
Qrviargat 7% 38% 15% 2110 Ormigel  50% 35%  15% 1211
Maximum 25% 35% A0% 3893 Moumum oo oy 42% 2,244
Cm £lm £2m $im Cdm £0m £im £3m £3m Cdm
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The elements of remuneration included 1n each scenarno ore as follows

Mimimum Consists of fixed remuneration only {that 15, base salary, benelils and pension)
+ Base salory ts the solary to be paid from 1 Apnl 2015
* Benehis measured os benelits pard in 2014 as set out in the single higure table on page 77

+ Pension measured as the defined contnbution or cash allowance in lieu of Company coninbutions,
os a peicentage of solary {25% of bose salary for both Executive Dieciors)

On-target Based on what the Director would recewve f performance was onlarget {excluding share price appreciation

and dividends)

« Fixed remuneraton as above
* AIP - consists of the om-larget bonus of 60% of maximum bonus apportunity

* LTIP — consisis of the threshold level of vesting {20% vesting}

Maximum Based on the maximum remuneralion recenvable (excluding share price appreciation and dividends)
¢ Fixed remunerction as above
* AP — consists of the maximum bonus {175% of base solary for Paul Geddes, 150% for John Reizenstein)

o LTIP — consists of the face value of awords {200% of base solany]
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Directors’ report

The Directors present thenr report fos the financial year ended
31 December 2014

You can find the lorward looking statemenis disclaimer on
page 171

Strategic report

The Company’s Stealegic report 15 on pages 2 1o 49 1
includes the following informanon that would otherwise
be required lo be disclosed in this Directors’ repart

Subyect Pages
Use of hinancial instruments 47
Important events since the 1010 13
financial year end

Likely future developments in 13cnd 3610 39
the business

Employee involvement 34

Corporate governance statement

The FCA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules require certamn
information to be included n o corporate governance
statement in the Directors’ report You can Iind information that
fullis the corporate governance statement’s requirements in this
Dieectors' report, the Corporate Governance reporl, the
Commillee reports, and the Diectors’ remunerahion ieport on
pages 50 10 93 This 1s incorporated nto the Dyectors” report
by reference

Disclosure of information under Lishing Rule 9 8 4R

Subject Poge
Conhacts of signibicance @5
Detals of shareholder dvidend 05
WOIVErs

Sigrihcant shareholder Q5
agreemenls

Post-balance sheet events
Events after the balance sheet date are disclosed in note 40
to the consolidaled hnonaial statements

Dividends

Due fo the uncertainty around the hming of the completion of

the sale of the Intemational dvision, and the potental reloted
distnbution, the Board has resolved to pay the “final’ dmidend
as an infenm dividend

The Board has therelore declared on nterm dridend of

8 8 pence per share plus a second special interim dividend
of 4 O pence per share for the 2014 fimanaial year Both
dividends will be paid on 17 Apnl 2015 1o all holders of
OCidinary Shares on the register of members ot close of
business on 13 March 2015

The Company pard an infenim dividend of 4 4 pence per

share, plus a special mienm divdend of 10 O pence per share
in September 2014

Drrect Line Group Annuci Report & Accounls 2014

The special intenm dmidends are conststent with the Group's
policy to distnbute surplus captal

Regarding 2013, the Company paid a final dividend of 8 4
pence per shore and a special intenm dividend of 4 O pence
per share in May 2014

including the dividends declared on 2 March 2015, the tofal
dividend for the 2014 financial year 1s 27 2 pence per share
{2013 20 & pence), of which 14 0 pence relates to special
intenim dvidends (2013 8 O pence}

Directors

You can find full biographical defalls of the current Directors
on pages 52 to 53 All Directors will retire and be submitied
{or election or reelection af the 2015 AGM Thisis in
accordonce with the UK Carporate Governance Code and
the Articles of Association of the Company, governing
opponiment and replacement of directors

Mark Catton resigned as o Director on 7 March 2014 His
resignaiion followed the sale by RBS Group of substantially
all of iis sharehelding in the Company 1n February 2014,
os descnbed furher on page 68

Sebashan James was appointed as @ Director on 28 August
2014 You con hind details on the appomiment process in
the Nominaton Commitiee report on pages 68 lo 69

The powers of the Directors are set out in the Company's
Arircles of Association You can oblain @ copy of these on
the Company’s website at www directhnegroup com  The
Directors’ powers ars also subject 1o relevant legislation
and 1n cerlain arcumsiances, authonty given by the
Company's shareholders

Directors’ interests
You can find details of the Direclors’ remuneration, service
confracts, employmen conltracls and inferests i the shores of

the Company mn the Direclors” remunerahon report on pages
711093

Directors’ indemnities

The Articles of Association of the Company permit it to
indemnify the ofiicers of the Company, and the officers of

any associaled company, against labilies ansing from the
conduct of Company business, 1o the extent permitted by low
Accordingly, the Company execuled deeds of indemmity for
the benefit of each Director regarding liabiliies that moy atiach
to them in therr capacity as Dieciors of the Company or
associoled compames These indemnies are quahifying thrd
porty ndemnities as defined by sechon 234 of the Companies
Act 2006 No amount was paid under any of these
indemmiies duning the year




The Company maniains direciors’ and officers” Liability
nsurance  This insuronce provides appropnale cover for legal
ochons brought agamst its Directors

The Company has also provided qualifying pension scheme
indemnities 1o Ihe directors of DG Pension Trustee bmited n
accordance with section 235 of the Compamies Act 2006
DLG Pension Trustee Limited acls as trustee for two of the
Company's occupational pension schemes

Share capttal

The Company has a premium lishng on the london Stock
Exchange As at 31 December 2014, its share capital
comprised 1,500,000,000 fully paid Crdinary Shares of
10 pence ecch

At he Company's 2014 AGM, the Directors were authonised to

+ affot shares in the Company up fo on aggregate nominal
amount of £30,000,000, or grant nghis to subscribe for,

or convert, any security into shares,

+ dilof shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£100,000,000 for the purpose of a nghts 1ssue, and

« moke market puichases up to 150,000,000 shares in the
Company {representing approximately 10% of the
Company's issued share capital ot the hme]

These authorities have not been vsed to date and shareholders
will be asked fo renew them at the 2015 AGM

The Company has not held any shares in treasury dunng the
penod under review

You can hind further details of the Company's share capital
and shares under oplion at 31 December 2014 in notes 27
ond 33 o the consolidated financial siatements

The Company operates a share mcenhive plan for employees
Shares are held in this plon by @ truslee on behalf of
employees The trustee may vote on the shares but has no
obligation 1o do so The trustee may olso have regard 10

the parictpants’ inferests when exercising ils vohng nghts

Rights attaching to shares

All of the Compony's issued Ordinary Shares rank equally
i all respects The nghts and obligahons attaching to the
Company's Ordinary Shares are set out in the Company's
Arcles of Association You con obtain a copy of this on
the Company's website at www direcllinegroup com

All issued shares are fully paid and free from any resmchons
on ther ranster, except where required by low, such as insider
trading wles All employees must conform to the Company's
share dealing rules, these restict the ability of particular
employees to deal in the Company’s shares af certain imes
and require permission lo deal Addienally, the relevant
employee beneht trust must hold certain shares awarded under
the Company's share plans for up to three years tom the date
of grant

Where the trusiees of the employee benehi trusts hold shares
that have not been allocated 1o employees, they wawe therr

entiflement o eny dwvidends paid by the Company in respect
of the unallocated shares they hold

Further details on the number of shares held by the empleyee
benefit trusts can be found in note 27 on page 148

Each notice of general meeting will specify the time for
determming o shareholder's enhflement to attend and vote ot
the meeting, which wall not be more than 48 hours before the
hme fixed for the meeting Ali proxy appotnlments must be filed
at least 48 hours before the ime of the meeting to be vald

Where the Company has 1ssued a nofice under section 793
of the Companres Act 2006 which s in default for at least
14 doys, the person(s) interested in those shares shall not be
entifled to altend or vote at any general meeting until the
delauli has been corrected or the shares sold

Articles of Association

Unless expressly specified 1o the contrary in the Articles of
Asscciahon, fhey may only be amended by o special resolution
ol the Company's shareholders ot o general meeting

Relahonship Agreement with RBS Group

On 27 February 2014, RBS Group seold 11s remaining
sharehclding in Direct Line Insurance Group ple, except a
small number of shares which 1 ransferred 1o an employee
benehit trust for the purpose of sanshying long ferm incentive
awards made by RBS Group to Diract Line Group's
management duning its penod of ownership As o
consequence of selling its remaining shareholding, RBS Group
relnquished s nght, under the Relationship Agreement entered
info on 16 October 2012, to nominate a Non Executive
Director to the Board Accordingly, Mark Cation, the RBS
Group nominated Non Executive Director, stepped down from
the Board on 7 March 2014 Direct Line Insurance Group ple
15 no longer owned by RBS Group and its operations are now
largely separate

Following the sale of RBS Group's shareholding in Direct Line
Insurance Group ple, there 1s no anangement or undersianding
with any shareholder, customer or supplier, or any other
external porly, providing the nght to appamt a Director or @
member of the Execulve Committee, or any other special nghis
with regard 1o the control of Direct Line hswrance Group ple

Sigmficant agreements affected by a change of control
A number of agreements may take effect, olter or terminate
upan a change of control of the Company None of these
agreements 1s considered to be signiicant in terms of its
impact on the business of the Group as a whole

All of the Company’s employee share incentive plans contain
provisions relating to a change of control Quistanding awards
would typically vest and become exercisable This 1s subject to
satislying any perfermance condiions, and normally with an
addiional tme-based proata reduction where performance
condions apply
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Substanhal shareholdings

in accordance with the provisions of chapter 5 of the FCA's
Disclosure and Transparency Rules, the Company has been
notihied of the following direct and indirect interests in the
Compaony's vohing nights

31 December 10 March

2014 2015

Blackrock Inc 508% 508%
Schroders plc 671% 671%

Poliheal donations

The Group made no political donations duning the year
(20¥3 nil})

Employees with disabilities

As an organisation we ore commiited 1o ensuring thot diversity
15 promoted across all areas of our business At recruitment we
make ad|ustments to facilitate applications and the selection
process and provide guidance and where necessary
addional framning for inferviewers

Qur Diversity Netwark Alliance hos a “sirand’ which focuses
on motters imporiant to our employees with a disability ond

to identify areas that we con improve upon To fociltale
conbnued employment we maoke reasonable adjustments to the
working environment/eguipmenl, the role or role requirements
and ensure that the same oppertunities are availoble 1o ali

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Group has followed the 2013 UK Govarmment
environmental reporhing guidance for greenhouse gas {"GHG”)
ermissions, used the UK Government's gieenhouse gas
conversion foctors, and adopted the financial control approach
to sefting the organisahionat boundanes of responsibilities for
GHG emissions GHG emissions are dlassified os direct or
indrrect, and dvidad info scope 1 and scope 2 emissions
Direct GHG emissions are those from sources that the Group
owns or confrols Indirect GHG emissions are those that are

a consequence of the Group’s acliviies, but occur af sources
owned or controlied by another organisation The Group has
considered the six man GHGs, reporied in lonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent {"COze"), and set 2013 as Ihe base year
The Group has included emissians from olf of 115 overseas
subsidiaries # has not included emissions associated with 1ts
invesiment porfolio

« Scope 1 - direct emissions including fuels used n office
buldings, accident reparr centres and owned vehicles

» Scope 2 — indirect emissions resulking from generating
electnicty purchased for office bulldings and accident
iepair centres

Tolal GHG emissions for continuing operations for 2014 were
27,308 tonnes (2013 29,127 tonnes}, as set out in the lable
below This pnmarly compnsed emissions from purchosed

elecinaity and natural gas, diesel fuel and refngeront gos vsed

Note

In addilion to tolal emissions, the Group also monrtors
emissions per £ milion of net eamed premum In 2014,

this was @ 1 lonnes per £ million of net eamed premium for
contmuing operations {2013 9 2 tonnes} This 1s o measure
of how efliciently insurance products are provided and ollows
companson between our vear onyear performance and
performance aganst insurance companies

Ecometica hos externally verhied the GHG emissions dala
Verfication statements can be found on the Group's website
at www directhnegroup com

You can find further informatien on the Group's approach
1o energy and the ermvironment in the Corporate Social
Responsibihity report on page 33

Greenhouse gas emissions

Totol Group

COre tonnes Centinving cperations inclucking Internanonal®

2004 2013 2014 2013
Scope 1 direct 7,784 8,423 7,787 8,424
Scope 2 indhrect 19,524 20,704 20972 22,200
Total gross
@MmISSICNS 27308 29127 28,759 30,624
Emissions per £
milkon of net
earned premium ?1 Q2 87 87

Going concern

The Group has sufficient inrancial resources 1o meet i1s

hnanciel needs, including managing ¢ mature portfolio of

msurance nsk  The Directors beheve the Group 15 well ‘
posiioned to manage its business nisks successlully n the ‘
curient economic environment

The finance review on pages 40 to 49 describes the Group's
capiial management sirclegy, which covers how it measures its
regulatory and economic coprtal needs, and deploys capital

The Group's hnanciol posihion 1s also covered i thet section,
including a commentary on cash and investment levels,
reserves, currency management, insuiance hobility
management, hquidity and borrowings  Additonally, nole 3

o the consolidoted financial statements describes copital
management needs and policies and also covers underwnting,
market, iquidity and credit nsks which may affect the Group's
financial position

Alter making due enguiries, the Directors reasonably expect
that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
1o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable lulure
Accordingly, they have adopted the going concern basis in
prepanng the fmancial statements

i On 25 Septemoer 2014 the Group onncuncea o binding agreement fa sell its International division This segment 1s now presentad s discontiaved operations

Direct Line Group Annual Report & Accounts 2014



Disclosing information to the Auditor
Each Director at the date of the approval of this Annual Report
& Accounts confirms that

» so far as they are aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which Deloitte 1P, the Company's external
Auditor, 15 unaware, and

« they have taken all the steps they ought 1o have taken as
a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant
audsit information and establish that Delote LP 15 aware
of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Auditor

Delotte LLP has expressed 15 willingriess to continue in office
as the external Auditor A resolution to reoppoint Deloite |1P
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM An assessment of
the effechiveness and recommendation for the reappoiniment
of Deloitle P can be found in the Audit Commitiee repor on

page 63

Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Repor
and the hinoncial statements 1n accordance with opplicable
low and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepore such hnoncial
sialements for each financial year Under that low, the
Directors must prepare the Group financral statements in
accordance with Inlemational Financial Reporting Slandards
{"[FRSs"} s adopted by the EU and Article 4 of the
Internohonal Accounting Standard [1IAS"} regulation They
have also chosen to prepare the Parent Company hnancial
statemnents under IFRSs, as adopled by the EU - Under company
law, the Directors must not approve the aecounts unless they
are salished thot they give a tive ond fair view of the
Company's stole of affairs and proht o loss for that period

in prepanng these financiol statements, IAS 1 requires
that Directors

» properly select and apply accouning policies,

= present information, including accounting policies, in a
manner that piovides relevant, reliable, comparable and
vnderstandable information,

» provide addiiona! disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements m IFRSs 1s msuficient 1o enable users to
understand the impact of paricular ransaciions, other events
and conddions on the entity’s fnancial position ond financial
performance, and

» assess the Company’s abilty to continue as a going concemn

The Duectors are responsible for keeping odequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explan the Company's
transactions and disclosing, with reasonable accuracy, the
Company's finoncral posion at any tme, and enable them to
ensure the linancial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 Additonally, they are responsible for safeguarding the

Company’s assets and hence toking reasonable steps to
prevent and detect fraud and other iregulanies The Directors
are responsible for maintaning ond ensuning the integnty of
the: corporate and hinancial information included on the
Company’s website at www direcllinegroup com  Legisiotion
in the UK governing preparing and disseminaing hnancial
siotements may differ from legislation n other junsdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and funchons are listed on
pages 52 to 53, conhirms thal, lo the best of ther knowledge

« the financial statements, prepared m accordance with IFRSs,
give a true and foir view of the Company's assets, obilines,
hnancial posiion, and profit or loss, and the underiakings
included in the consohdation taken as a whole, and

e the Strategic report fon pages 2 to 49} ond Directors’ report
{en pages 94 to 97} include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business, and the
Company's posihon and the underiakings included in the
consolidation token os a whole, together with a description
of the principal nsks and vncenaintes they face

Statement of the Directors in respect of the Annual
Report & Accounts

The Durectors confirm that they consider that the Annual Report
& Accounts, taken as a whole, are farir, balanced and
understandable, and provide the informanion shareholders
need lo assess the Group's posiion and performance, business
model and strategy

In amving at this conclusion, the Board was supported by
a number of processes, including the following

« management drafted the Annucl Report & Accounts
To ensure consistency across sections, a steering group
comprising a team of cross funchonal senior management
provided overall governance ond coordination,

* avenhcahon process to ensure the content was
focluo"y accurale,

s members of the Executive Commitiee reviewed dralts of
the Annual Report & Accounts,

the Company’s Dhsclosure Committee reviewed an
advanced dialt, ond the Company's legol adwisers and
Audiior reviewed ceriam parls, ond

¢ the Audit Commitiee reviewed the substannially final draft
belore consideraton by the Beard

A Commitiee of the Board reviewed and approved his report
on 2 March 2015

By order of the Boord

@ Corn—

Roger C Clifton
Company Secretary
2 March 2015
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Direct Line Insurance Group ple

Opirion on the inanaial statements of Direct Line
Insurance Group plc

In our opinion

o the financial statements give a true and fair view of the stale
of the Group's and of the Parent Company's offars as ot
31 December 2014 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

e the Group linancial statements have been pfoper|y prepared
in accordance with International Financicl Reporting
Stondards {*IFRSs*] os adopied by the European Union,

¢ the Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopled by the
Furopeon Union and as applied in accordonce with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in occordonce
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
International Accounhing Standard {"1AS") Regulation

The financial siatements compsise the consolidated income
staternent, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consclidated and Parent Company balonce
sheels, the consolidated and Parent Compony cash flow
staternents, the consolidated and Parent Company statements
of changes 1n equity and the related notes 1 to 40 on the
consolidoled financial siotements, and the related notes 1 1o
17 on the Parent Company financial statements The financiol
reporting framework that has been applied in their preporation
15 applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and, s regards the Parent Company hinancial
statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006

Separate opmion in relahon to IFRSs as 1ssued by

the IASB

As explained in note 1 1o the consolidated financial
stolements, 1n addition lo complying with its legal obhigation
to apply IFRSs as adopled by the European Union, the Group
has also opplied IFRSs as 1ssued by the Internatonal
Accouniing Standards Board [“IASB*}

tn our opimion the Group hinancial statements comply with

IFRSs as 1ssued by the |ASB

Going concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the
Directors’ stalement on page 96 that the Group 15 a going
concern We confium that

+ we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements 1 oppropriote, and

» we hove not ideniiied any matenal uncertainties that may
cost significont doubt on the Group's abiity to continue as
a going concern

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement 1s not a guarontee as to the Group's
ability 1o consnue as a going concern

Our assessment of nisks of material misstatement

The assessed nsks of matenal misstalement described below
are those that had the greatest effect on our cudit sirategy, the
allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforls of
the engagement team

Risk

How the scopa of our audit responded fo the nsk

The methodology and assumphons used in sethng msurance
reserves

Insurance reserves include the Group’s insurance habilihes from
continuing business tolaling £4 7 billion os delailed in note
30, and the insurance habslities held for sale, in relation io the
Infernational operations, tolalling £553 4 millon as detailed in
note 5 The determination of the value of the insurance reserves
requires significont judgment in the selechon of key
assumphons ond methodologies Management exercises
significant judgement in respect of the rends in bodily inury
clarms requency ond seventy, the propensity for large cloims
to setile as penodic payment orders {“PPOs”), the likely
ovicome of the government's consultation on the Ogden
discount rate used by the courts to calculate claims for long
term damages and other regulatory developments

We hove lested the design and mplementation and operating
effectveness of the key contiols over the endHoend resening
process We also tested the completeness and occwiacy of

the underlying dala used i the acuanal calculatons through
pedorming reconciliations on the dola back o the financial ledger
and the actuanal data used by our Deloitie actuonal specialists

Having done this, we worked with those specialists lo
= consider the surtabilty of the methodology used in seting

INSWIONCE Teserves,

s challenge management's key assumphons ond judgements
against industry benchmark, and

* ossess whether the reserving methodology hos been applied
consistenily across penods

We also perlormed work to undesstand the sensitvity of insurance
reserves to changes in key assumptions and methodology
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Direct Line Insurance Group plc continued

Risk

Haow the scope of our audit responded 1o the nsk

The valuahon of investments including complex financial
instruments and their accounting trectment in accordance
with IAS 39 and IFRS 13

The Group’s hinancial investments shown in notes 25 and 19
represent the largest number on the balance sheet, £6 3
billon The Group's investment porffolio has become more
dwersihed with inroduction of an inrasiructure debt porfolio
durng 2014 The valuation of finarcial investments held at
fair value 1s bosed on a range of inputs Mony of the nputs
required con be obtained from readily ovailable iquid market
prices and 1ates Where observable market dala 1s not
avaifable, for exomple, when determining the valuation of
nvestiment property, eshmates must be developed based on
the most appropriate source data and are subsect fo
signthieant (udgement

We have performed audii procedures over the valuation and
accounting of invesiments held by the Group We have tesled
the design and implementation and operating effectiveness of
the key conlrols over the mvestment valuation process On o
sample basis we have tested therr valuation at the yeor end
We also performed a review of sources and systems used by
the Group for valuation and compared valuations fo those
obiamed from on independent source using vanous data pomis
where there was a degree of subjeciivity We have reviewed
the classification and accounting keatment of the Group's
imvesiment porffolio i ne with the occounting polices set out
i nole 1 12 to the consolidated financial statements We also
hove used our financial instrument valuation specialists, where
appropriale, (o test the valuohon of complex fnancial
instruments, such os denvaives and compliance with the
hedge accounting 1ules We have checked that the Group's
disclosures sotished the requirements of 1AS 39, IFRS 7 and
IFRS 13

IT server rmgration

Towards the end of 2014, the Group began its program of
fransitoning onto new [T servers indepandent rom RBS Group
infrastructure There 15 a nsk with a forge and complex
migration of this nature of data loss and significont business
interruphon  There 15 alse @ nsk that the confrols sureunding
the new servers are inadequole

We have tesled the design and lmplemenlohon and operchng
affectiveness of general IT conirols around key IT processes on
the migrated applications and infrastructure, and have
undersiood the governance process over the IT migration iselt
We have tested the Group’s reconciliation of key financial
dota pre- and post migration to check the completeness and
accuracy of the daia migrated

Transformahon projects

There 15 a nisk that the business transtosmation programmes
undertaken by the Group could impact the internal bnanaial
reparting control environment, in paricular, 1n areas of the
business where there has been significant headcount reduchion
or new processes and procedures have been infroduced
There 1s @ risk that there may no longer be an appropriote
level of review or adequate segregohon of dutes

We have tested the design and implemeniation and operating
effechveness of key business processes that have been subject
to change We have tested the processes lo determine
whether appropriate segregation of duties continues to exist
within the Group's system of intemal controls For example, our
procedures included an assessment of the impoct i the control
environment and processes from the wider implementation of
the new claims system in the Commercial division

Resnsurance asset valuation

The valuahon of the rensurance asset in respect of the ceded
par of the insurance reserves, as detailed in note 21, requires
significant judgement to reflect the credi nsk exposure lo

long term assels ansing from PPOs

We hove tesled the design and implemeniation and operating
effectiveness of the key controls over the remsurance asset
measurement ond valuation process

We have challenged management's key assumptions over
credit nsk and the calculolion methodology, including a
comparnison of the underlying credit ratings for key reinsurance
counterparties 1o independent sources We have also
considered the consistency of the approach with the prior year

Revenue recognihon

Due to the large number of policies underwnitten by the Group
there 15 @ nsk that the revenue recarded in the financial
skatements and the flow of premwm nformation from the
underwriting systems 1o the financial reporting tedger 15 not
complete and accurole

We hove fested the design ond implementation and operciing
effectiveness of the key conirols over revenue recognition,
focusing on the flow of information from the underwniting
systems to the financial reporting ledger in addihon, we
performed substantive anclytical tesing procedures on the
gross Qﬂd Unemned premium boionces
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The Audit Commitiee’s considerahon of these nsks 1s set out on
page 61

Our audht procedures relating to these matlers were designed
in the conlext of our audit of the financial siatements as o
whole, and not o express an opinion on indvdual accounts
or disclosures Our opinion on the financial siatements 1s not
modifred with respect o any of the nsks described above, and
we do not express an opinion on these ndwadual matiers

Our application of matenality

We define matenality as the magnitlude of misstatement in the
financial siatements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be
changed or nfluenced We use matenality both in planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluohing the results of
our work

We have determined that the crical benchmark for the Group
was averoge pretax profit from ongoing operations This
measure uses a threeyear average of profil before tox,
excluding the impact of discontinued achvies and
fransformation cosis to exclude the effect of year onyear
volatlity We calculated matenality for the Group lo be £28
milion (2013 £40 million), which is below & 5% (2013

8 48%) of average pretox profit from ongoing operahions We
also considered this measure to be suitable having compared
1o other benchmarks our malenahity 1s 5 86% of statulory prohl
before tox, 0 76% of gross earned premwm and below 1 5%
of equity Qur materality 1s lower than the level we set for the
year ended 31 December 2013 to reflect the disposal of the
Gioup's International business, with a consequential reduchon
in proht and premium income, emerging morket prachice, and
guidonce 1ssved by the Financial Reporting Councll Group
matenahiby 1s used lor sefiing audit scope and the assessment
of uncorrected misstatements Component matenalizies are set
for work on significant components ~ qudit festing for the main
UK msurance rading entity, which makes up 88% of Group
sevenue and 85% of Group statutory profit belore tax, 15
pedormed at component matenality of £25 1 milion

{2013 £25 5 million}

We agreed with the Audil Committee that we would report 1o
the Commitiee all cudit differences in excess of £560,000
{2013 £800,000), as well os differences below that
threshold that, n our view, warranted reporting on qualtalive
grounds We also report 1o the Audit Commitiee on disclosure
malters that we identdied when assessing the overall
presentalion of the financial stotements

An overview of the scope of our audit

The scope ol our Group cudit was determined by obtaining
an undersionding of the Group ond 1ts environment, including
Groupwide confiols, and assessing the nsks of motenol
missiatement of the Group level Based on that assessment,
we focused our Group audit scope on the audit work at three
primary operating locatons the UK, lioly, and Germany

Four enfiies of these locations were subject 1o @ lull qudit,
a lurther wo were subject fo an audit of specihied account
balances where the extent of our fesking was based on our
assessment of the nsks of matenal nussiotement and of the
malenality of the Group's operations at those locations

These six entties represent the principal business urits and
account for 98% {2013 98%) of the Group's net assels, 99%
{2013 99%] of the Group's revenue and 5% {2013 95%}
of the Group's proht before tax  They were also selected 1o
provide an appropnate basis for undertabing audit work to
addiess the nsks of matenal missiatement 1dentfied above

Our audit work at the three locations was executed at levels
of matenality applicable to each indviduot entity which were
lower than Group matenality

Al the parent entity level we also tested the consolidahon
process and camed out analyicel procedures to contirm our
conclusion that there were no signficant nsks of matencl
misstatement of the aggregated financial mformahion of the
remainng components not subject 1o audit or audit of specified
account balances The Group oudit leam also performs the
audit of the UK enfities which account for 93% of the Group's
nel assels and 94% of the Group's profil before tox

The Group audit team followed a programme of planned visits
that hos been designed so thot the Servor Statulory Auditor
visils each of the locations where the Group audit scope was
focused at teast once a yeer

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion

« the part of the Ditectors’ remunesation report to be audied
hos been properly prepared in accordance with the
Comparies Act 2006, ond

+ the iformanon given in the Stralegic report and the
Directors’ report for the hnancial year for which the inancial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the hinancial
statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
excephon

Adequacy of explonations receved and accounting records
Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are required 1o report lo
you if, in our opinion

» we have nol receved all the information and explonations
we require lor our oudit, or

» odequale accounting records have not been kep! by the
Parent Compony, or relurns adequate for our audit have not
been recewved lrom branches not visited by us, or

» the Pareni Company financial siatements are not in
agreemenl with the accounting records and refurns

We have nothing to report 1n respect of these matters
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Direct Line Insurance Group plc continued

Directors’ remunerahion

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to
report if In our opinion certain disclosures of Direclors’
remuneration have not been made or the part of the Directors’
remuneration reporl to be audited 15 not 1n agreement with the
occouning records and retums We have nothing to report
ansing from these matters

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also required 1o review the
part of the corporate governance statement relating to the
Compony's comphiance with ten provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report
onising from our review

Qur duty to read other informahon in the Annual Report
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland),
we are required to repert lo you if, 1 our optnion, information
in the Annual Report 1s

+ matenally inconsistent with the nformation in the audited
hinancial stolements, of

+ apparently matenally incorect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired in
the course of performing cur audit, or

¢ otherwise misleading

In pariicular, we are required to conssder whether we have
identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge
acquired duning the audit and the Directors’ stotement thot
they consider the Annual Report 1s fair, balanced and
understandable and whether the Annual Report appropnately
discloses those matters that we communicated o the Audit
Commitlee which we consider should have been disclosed
We confirm that we have not identified any such
inconsistencies or misleading statements

Respechive responsibilihes of the Directors and

the auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors” responsibilines
statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satished that they give a
true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s 1o cudit and express an
opimon on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable low and Intemational Standards on Auditing (LK
and ireland] Those standards require us to comply wath the
Audiing Practices Board’s Ethical Standords lor Auditors We
also comply with Infernationa! Standard on Quality Control 1
{UK and Ireland) Our audit methodology and tools om to
ensure that our quality control procedures are effective,
understood and applied Qur qualty controls and systems
include our dedicated professional stendards review team

and independent pariner reviews

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members,

as a body, in accardance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undenaken
50 that we might stale lo the Company’s members those
matiers we are required 1o siate to them i an audilor’s reporl
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by
law, we do nol accept or assume responsibility fo anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed
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Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements suthcient 1o give
reasonable asswance thai the financial siatements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropnale lo the Group's and the Parent Company's
circumsiences and have been consistenity opplied and
adequotely disclosed, the reasonableness of significan)
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read
dll the financial ond nonfinancial information in the Annuc
Report to identiy matenal inconsistencies with the audited
hinancial statements and to 1dentify cny information that 15
apparently motenclly incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course
of pedomming the audit If we become aware of any apparen!
materiol musstalements of Inconsistencies we constder the
implicatiens for our report

XA\A; 2

Dawid Rush FCA {Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on behalf of Delotte LLP
Charlered Accountants and Sialutory Auditor

tondon, United Kingdom
2 March 2015




Consohdated income statement
For tha year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013

Notes £m £m
Conhnuing operations
Gross earned premium 6 31442 3.3170
Reinsurance premium ceded 6 (157 5} {160 2}
Net earned premium 6 29867 31568
Investment relurn 7 2151 167 7
Insialment iIncome 100 4 110
Other operaling income 8 49 616
Total income 3,3491 3,527 1
Insurance claims @ (1,7784) {1,881 8§}
fnsurance claims recoverable from reinsurers 9 512 109
Net insurance claims e (1,727 4 (1,870 9)
Commission expenses 10 {3540} {334 5)
Operoling expenses | {776 0} (888 7}
Tolal expenses (1,1300) {1,223 2}
Operating proht 4917 4330
Finance costs 12 (372 137 7}
Gain on disposal of subsidharies 20 23 120
Profit before tax 4568 407 3
Tox charge 13 (97 5) @6 5)
Pioht from continuing operatons, nel of fax 3593 3108
Prohit feom discontinued operations, net of iox 5 133 20
Prohit for the year atinbutable to owners of the Company 3724 3128
Earnings per share
Contnuing operakons
Basic [pence) 16 240 208
Dilvted |pence} 16 238 207
Continuing and discontinued operations
Basic [pence) 16 249 2009
Dituled [pence) 16 247 208

The attached notes on pages 108 to 160 form an inlegral part of these consolidated hinancial siatements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 3726 3128
Other comprehensive income / {loss)
Items that wall not be reclassified subsequently to the income stotement
Actuanal gain / {loss} on defined benefit pension scheme 32 28 16 %)
Tax relating lo tems that will not be reclassihed {06) 15
22 (5 4)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operatons {14 5) 49
Cash flow hedges 13 -
Fair value gam / floss) on availabletorsale mvesiments 28 972 1108 2|
less realised net gans on availabletor sale investments included in income statement 28 {22 8} (25 7)
Tax relating 1o items that may be reclassiied {17 &) 339
436 {104 9)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year net of tax 458 {110 3)
Tota! comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the Company 4184 202 5

The aitached noles on poages 108 to 160 form an integral port of these consolidoted financial statements
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Assets
Goodwill and other ntangible assets 17 5175 5001
Property, plant and equipment 18 1813 102 3
Investrment property 19 3072 2234
Reinsurance ossels 21 862 5 1,011 0
Delerred kax assels 14 - 193
Current fax assels 14 01 13
Deferred acquisiion costs 22 208 4 3215
Insurance and cther recernvables 23 959 ¢ 11220
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 107 ¢ 957
Denvatve financial instruments 24 273 07
Retirement beneht asset 32 35 -
Financial investments 25 5961 2 7441 2
Cash and cash equivalents 26 8804 Q08 3
Assets held for sale 5 1,208 4 10
Total assets 11,2256 11,7878
Equity 28105 27900
Liabilihes
Subordinated habilihes 20 5263 486 6
Insurance liabilites 30 46741 5757 4
Unearned premium reserve 30 1,4342 18187
Refirement benefit obligations 32 - 20
Borrowings 26 498 351
Derwvatve hinancial instruments 24 294 193
Trade and other payables including insurance poyables 34 660 6 8183
Deferred tax abilites 14 206 193
Current tax labilities 4 357 211
bicbiliies held or sale 5 964 4 -
Total liabilihes 84151 B.997 8
Total equity and liabilihes 11,2256 11,7878

The atiached notes on pages 108 to 160 form an :ntegral part of these consohdated financial siatements

The hinancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonised for 1ssue on 2 March 2015 They were signed

on its behalf by

v

John Reizensten

Chief Financiot Olficer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Foreign

Employee Non  exchonge Towal
Shere rust Copsol  Revoluchion  disnbutable  sonsloton Retomed  shorehalders
copilol shares reserves resarve teserve feserve eanmings equily
Motes Em £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2013 15G0 (501 1,4500 1588 632 50 10096 28316
Profit for the year - - - - - - 3128 3128
Other comprehensive loss ~ - - HooO - 49} 154 {¥103)
Cividends 15 - - - - - - {2427 (2427}
Trenster to non-disinbutable
reserve 28 - - - - 206 - {29 &) -
Shares acquired by employee
trusts - (57 - - - - - (57
Credit 1o equity for equitysetiled
shoreboseg payrnenis 33 - - - - - - 41 41
Sheres distibuted by employee
trusts - 05 - - - - 10 5) -
Deferred tax on share-based
paymenis 14 - - - - - - 02 02
Balonce at 31 December 2013 1500 (102 1,4500 588 928 01 10485 27900
Prohit for the year - - - - - - 3726 3726
Other comprehensive income - - - 568 - {132 22 458
Didends 15 - - - - - - 1401 1) {401 1)
Transfer to non distibutable
reserve 28 - - - - 32t - (32 1) -
Shares aequired by employee
trusts - (4 4) - - - - - {44
Credit to equity for equityseliled
sharebosed payments 33 - - - - - - 64 66
Shares disinbuted by employee
trusts - 10 - - - - {10} -
Deferred tox on share-bosed
paymenis 14 - - - - - - 10 10
Balance at 31 December 2014 1500 (134) 1,4500 1156 1249 131) 9967 28105

The aftached notes on pages 108 1o 160 form an integrat part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 20i4

2014 2013
Notes €m £m
Net cash used by operating activihes before investment of insurance assets 35 {410 6) {307 O
Cash generated fiom invesiment of nsurance assels 35 1,121 1 4330
Net cash generated from operating actihes 7105 126 0
Cash Hows from investing actvihes
Puichases of property, plant and equipment 18 {867) {39 1}
Purchases of infangible assets 17 {928) {115 5)
Purchases of asset held for sale {12 ¢} -
Proceeds on disposals of asset held for sale 08 -
Net cash flows from acquisiion / disposal of subsidianes 20 {247) 188
Cash flows from net investment hedges - {9 5)
Net cash used by investing activities (216 0) {145 3)
Cash flows from Flncmcmg activities
Dridends pad 15 {401 1} (242 7}
Repayment of subordinaled habilihes - {258 5)
Finance costs 1379 37 8)
Purchase of employee hust shares {4 4) 57
Net cash used by hnancing achvities {443 4) {544 7)
Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 511 {564 O}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yeor 8532 1,417 5
Effect of toreign exchange rate changes (61) {03
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26 8982 853 2

The attached notes on pages 108 to 160 form an infegrel part of these consolidated hnancial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Corporate information

Direct Line Insurance Group ple 15 a public mited company
ncorporated n the Uniled Kingdom  The address of the
registered office 1s Churchill Count, Westmoreland Road,
Bromley, BRT 1DP, England

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

As requiied by the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of
the EU 1AS Regulation, the consolidated finoncial stalements
are prepared in accordance with IFRSs 1ssued by the IASB
os cdopted by the EU  The hnencial sialements have been
prepared in accordance with and full compliance with IFRSs
os issued by the IASB

The consolideted hinancicl slatements are prepared on

the histonical cost basss except for AFS finencial assets,

mvesiment property and denwative financial instruments,
which are measured at farr value

The Company's financial slatements and the Group's
consohidated financial stalements are presented n Pounds
Sterling, which 1s the funchenal currency of the Company

The International segment hos been classified as a
discontinued operation, accordingly the income statement
has been represented in respect of the prior penod and
international assets and liabilines have been presented as
a disposal group

Adoption of new and revised standards

The following standards and amendments have been adopted
in the year and have not had a matenal 1impact on the Group's
hinancial statements

IAS 19 {omended}, ‘Employee Benefds’ Introduces o narrow
scope amendment, to simplify the accounting for employee
conirbutions in respect of detined beneht plans that are
independent of the number of years of service

IAS 32 {amended), ‘Financicl Instruments  Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financiol babihities’ These
omendments address previous Inconsistencies when applying
the offsetting cntena in 1AS 32

IAS 36 {amended), 'Impairment of Assets — Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non Financial Assets” These
amendments clanty the scope of certain disclosures around the
recoverable amount of impaired assets

IAS 39 lamended), 'Financial Instruments Recogmiion and
Measurement” These amendments provide reliel from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novaiion of a dervatve
designated os a hedging instrument meets certain cntena

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 {amended), ‘Invesiment Entihes’
These amendments define an exception 1o consolidating
particular subsidianes for investment eniities

IFRIC 21, ‘levies’ Clanfies how an eniity should account for
liabilities to pay levies imposed by governments

1 1 Baosis of consolidation

The consohdated hnancial statements incorporate the financicl
statements of the Company and the enhiies that are controlled
by the Group ai 31 December 2014 and 31 December
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2013 Conirol exists when the Gioup 1s exposed, or has
nghts, to vanable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity In assessing If the Group controls another enhty,
the existence and effect ol the poteniial vohing nghts that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered

Where necassary, adjustments have been made lo the
financial statements of subsidianes 1o bring the accounting
policies used into ine with those used by the Group

The policies set out below have been apphed consistendy
throughout the years ended 31 December 2014 and

31 December 2013 1o dems considered matenal 1o the
consolidated financial statements

A subsidiary acquired 1s mcluded in the consolidated hnancial
stalements from the date it 1s conlrolled by the Group untl the
dote the Group ceases to contral it On acguistion of a
subsidiary, its identifiable assets, labiliies and contingent
habilities are included in the consolidated financial statements
at fair value

All intercompany tiansachons, belances, income and expenses
between Group enhtes are eliminaled on consohidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using
consistent accounting policies

1 2 Foreign curencies

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented
w Pounds Sterling which 1s the presentaonal currency of the
Group Group enhiiies record fransactions in the currency

of the pnmary economic environment in which they operate
ftheir functional currencyl, transloled at the foreign exchange
rote ruling at the date of the rensockon Monetory assets and
habilikes denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
the relevant funchonal currency of the foreign exchange rates
rvhing at the balance sheet date Foreign exchange diferences
ansing on the sefitement of foreign currency transachons

and from the iranslation of monetary assets and liobilities are
reported in the mcome statement except for diferences that
anse on hedges of nel investments in foreign operations,
which were reported in other comprehensive income

Non-monetary items denominaled in foreign currencies

that are stated ot farr value are ranslated into the relevont
funchonal currency at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dales the values are determined Trenslation diferences ansing
on norrmonelary ilems measured at fair value are recognised
in the income statement except for differences anising on AFS
non monetary hnarcral ossets, which are recogmsed in other
comprehensive income

Assets ond labaliies of foreign operohions, including goodwill
and fair value adjustments ansing on acquisiion, are tanslated
into Pounds Sterling ot the foresgn exchange rates rultng at the
balance sheet dale Income and expenses of foreign
operatons are kansloled into Pounds Sterling af average
exchange rates unless these do not approximate the foreign
exchange rates ruling of the dates of the ransachons Foreign
exchonge differences ansing on the ranslaton of a foreign
operahion are recognised in the consohdated siatement of
comprehensive income The omount accumulated in equity 15
reclossified fom equity to the consolidated income statement
on disposal or partial disposal of a foreign operation




1 3 Contract classtheation

Insurance contracts ore those contracts where the Group
[the nsurer) has accepted significant insurance nisk from
another porly {ihe policyholder) by agreeng to compensate
the pohcyholder 1If a specified uncertain future event

[the insured event} adversely affects the policyholder

Once o contract has been classified as an insurance contract,
it rematns an insurance contract for the remainder of 1ts lifetime,
even f the insurance nsk reduces significantly dunng this
penod, unless oll nghts and obligations are extinguished

} 4 Revenue recogmtion

Premiums eormed

Insurance and reinsurance premiums compnise the tolal
premiums recenvable for the whole period of cover provided
by conlrocls incepted during the financial year, adjusted by an
unecrned premium provision, which represents the proportion
of the premums incepted 1n prior penads and that relate 1o
penods of insurance cover alter the balance sheet dale
Unearmed premiums ere coleulated over the period of exposure
under the policy, on o daily basis, 24ths basis or allowng for
the estmated incidence of exposure under policies

Premiums collected by intermedianes or other parties,

but not vet receved, are ossessed bosed on eshmates from
underwnfing or past expanence, and are included n insurance
premiums Insurance premiums exclude insurance premium

tox or equivalent local taxes and are shown gross of any
commssion payable 1o ntermedianes or other porhies

The long term assurance conhacts that the Group wrote
included wholehfe and term assurance contracts that were
expected to remain m force for an extended perniod of ime
The confracts insured events associaled with human life
{for example, death or the occurrence of a crihcal iliness)
These were recognised as revenue when they become
payable by the controct holder Premiums were shown
before the deduction of commussion

Investment refurn

Interest income on financial assels 1s determined using the
effechve interest rale method  The effective interest rate
method 15 a way of calculating the amortised cost of a
hinancial asset {or group of inancral assets) and of allocating
the wterest income over the expected e of the asset In the
case of financial assets classified as AFS, esitmales are based
on the stranght line method, which s a close approximaton

1o the effective interest rate

Renial income from invesiment propeity s recogmsed in

the income statement on a siraightine basis over the penod
of the conlract Any gains or losses ansing from o change
i fair value are recogmised in the Income stalement

Instalment mcome

Instalment income compises the interest Income eamed

on pohcyholder recevables, where outstanding premiums
are seflled by o senes of inslalment payments Interest 1s
earned using an effective inlerest rote method over the lerm
of the pohicy

Other gperating mcome

Vehicle replacement referral income

Vehicle replacement referal iIncome comprises fees in respeci
of retemral income receved when o customer or @ non fault
pohcyholder (claimant} of another insurer has been provided
with a hire vehicle from o preferred supplier

Income 15 recogmised immediotely when the customer or
claimant 15 provided with the hire vehicle

Ravenue from vehicle recovery ond repair serices

Fees in respect of services tor vehicle recovery are recognised
as the nght to consideration, and cecrue theough the provision
of the service to the cusiomer  The arrangemenls are generally
contractual and the eost of providing the service 1s incurred
as the service 1s rendered  The pnice 1s usually fixed and
always determinable

The Group's ncome also compnisas vehicle reparr services
provided to other third party customers Income in respect
of repanrs 1o vehicles 1s recognised upon completion of the
sevice The price 1s delermined vsing market rates for the
services and malenals vsed after discounts hove been
deducted where applicable

Other income

Commission fee mncoms n 1espect of services 15 recognised
when o policy has been placed and incepted  Income 15
staled excluding applicable sales toxes

legal services revenue represents the amount charged to clents
for professional services provided during the year including
expenses but excluding value added tox Revenue 15 only
recogmsed once services have been provided and certainty
exists as 1o the oulcome of the respective coses

1 5 Insurance chaims

Insurance claims are recogrised m the accounting period
which the loss eccurs Provision is made lor the full cost of
sefhng outstanding cleims at the balance sheet date, including
clams incurred but not yel reporled at that date, net of salvage
and subrogation recoveries Quistanding claims provisions are
nol discounted for the ime value of money except for claims
1o be sefiled by PPOs establshed under the Courts Act 2003
A UK court can oward damages for future pecuniary loss n
respect of personal injury or for ofher damages in respect of
personal inury and may order that the damages ore wholly

ot pailly o lcke the form of PPOs These are covered in more
detail in note 2 1 Costs for both direct and ndirect cloims
handling expenses are also included

Prowvisions are defermined by management based on
expenance of clams setled and on statshcal models

which require cerlain assumphions to be made regarding

the incidence, tming and amount of claims and any specihic
factors such as odverse weather conditions When calculating
the total proviston required, the historical development of
claims 15 analysed using stahsheal methodology 1o extrapolate,
wilhin acceplable probability parameters, the volue of
oulstanding claims {gross and net} at the balance sheet date
Also included in the eshmation of outstanding claims are
factors such as the potental for udicial or legistaiive inflation
In addiion, an allowance 1s made for reinsurance ossets
deemed not recoverable

www diiecthnegroup com

109

SJUSWAIDIS |DIJUDUIY



.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Provisions for more recent claims make use of fechniques
that incorporate expected loss rahios and overage cloims
cosl {adjusted for mflahion] and frequency methods  As claims
mature, the provisions are increasingly dnven by methods
based on actual claims expenence The approach adopied
takes into account the nature, type and significance of the
business and the type of dato avallable, with large cloims
generally being assessed separalely The data used for
stanistical modelling purposes 1s generoted internclly and
reconciled to the accounting data

The calculation 1s paricularly sensitive 1o the esimation of

the ulnmate cost of clarms for the pamculor cdlosses of business
at gross and net levels and the eshmahion of uture claims
hondling costs Actual claims expenence may differ from the
hustoricad patiern on which the actuanaf best esimate 1s based
and the cost of settling mdmidua! claims may exceed that
ossumed  As a result, the Group sels provistons of @ margin
above the actuanal best esimate This amount 1s recorded

as clenms provisions

A labiliy adequacy provision 1s made for unexpired risks
ansing whese the expected volue of net claims and expenses
atinbutable to the unexpired penads of policies in force of the
balance sheet dale exceeds the unearned pramium reserve in
relahion to such policies after the deduction of any ocquisiion
costs deferred and other prepaid amounts (for example,
rensurance) the expected velue 15 determined by reference 1o
recent expenence and allowing for changes to the premium
rates The provision for unexpired nsks 15 calculoted separately
by reference 1o classes of business that are managed together
after 1oking aecount of relevant mvestment retumns

1 6 Remsurance
The Group has reinsurance treaties and other remsurance
contracts that transfer ssigniicont insurance nsk

The Group cedes insurance nisk by reinsurance in the normal
course of business, with the arrangement and retention limits
varying by product ne Cetweard reinsurance premisms are
generally accounted for in the same accounling penod as

the: premiums for the related direct business being rensured
Qutward reinsurance recovenies ore accounled for 1n the some
accounting penod os the direct cluims 1o which they relate

Remsurance assels nclude balances due from reinsurance
compantes for ceded insurance liabiies  Amounts recoverable
from rensurers are estimated in a consistent manner with the
ouistanding claims provisions or setlled cloims &ssociated with
the resured pohcies and in accordance with the relevant
rensurance conlract Recovenes in respect of PPOs are
discounted for the ime value of money

A remsurance bad debt provision 15 assessed n respect of
rensurance debilors, 1o allow for the nsk that the reinsutance
osset may not be collected or where the reinsurer’s credit
rating has been downgraded significontly This also includes
an assessment i respect of the ceded port of claims provisions
fo reflect the counterparly nisk exposure 1o long term reinsurance
assels parhicularly m refaton to perodical poyments This

15 affected by the Group reducing the carrying value of the
osset accordingly and the impaument loss 1s recognised

in the income statement
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1 7 Deferred acquisition costs

Acquistion costs relaling o new and renewing nsurance
policies are maiched with the eoming of the premiums to
which they relate A proportion of acquisihon costs incurred
during the year s therefore deferred 1o the subsequent
accounting pened io match the exent to which premiums
wiitlen during the year are unearned at the balance

sheet date

The principal acquisihon costs delerred aie direct advertising
expendilure, adminisiration costs, commission pard and costs
associoted with lelesales ond underwnting staff

1 8 Goodwilt and other infangible assets

Acquired goodwill, being the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the Group's interest in the net farr value

of the denthiable assets, labilites and contingent hiabihies
of the subsidiary, associate or jont venture acquired, 15
mihally recogmised al cost and subsequently al cost lass
any accumulated impairment losses Goodwalt ansing on
the acquisition of subsidianes, associotes and ot venlures
15 included in the balance sheet category "goodwill and
other infangible assets’ The gain or loss on the disposal

of o subsidiary, associate or oint venture iIncludes the
camying vatue of any relaled goodwill

Intangible assets that ate acquired by the Group are stated
of cost less accumulated amortischion and impairment losses
Amortisation 1s charged lo the income siatement over the
assels’ economic fives using methods that best reflect the
patiern of economic benefits and 1s included n operating
expenses The eshmated useful economic lives are os follows

Software development costs 5 years

Expenditure on intesnally generated goodwill and brands 15
written off as incuried Direct costs relating to the developmend
of miemal use computer software and associoted business
processes are capriahsed once fechrical feasibility and
economic viability have been eslablished These cosis include
payroll costs, the costs of matenals and services, and directly
atinbutable overheads Copiichsonon of cosls ceoses when the
software 15 copable of operahing as intended During and after
development, accumulaled costs are reviewed for impoment
agans! the projecied benehis that the software 1s expected to
generate Cosls incurred prior to the establishment of techmcal
feasibihty and economic viability are expensed as incurred,

as ore all kaimng costs and general overheads The costs of
licences to use compuier software that 1s expected to generate
economic benehits beyond one year ore also capitalised

1 @ Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plan! and equipment [excep! investment
property — note 1 11) are stated ai cost less accumulated
deprecichon and imparment losses Where an item of
property, picni and equipment Comprises Major components
having different useful lves, they are accounted for separately




Depreciation 1s charged 1o the income stalement on a
straight lne basis so as to wnte off the depreciable amount
of property, plent and equipment over therr estmated useful
fves The depreciable amount 1s the cost of an asset less its
residual value Land 1s not depreciated  Estmated vseful lives
are o3 follows

50 years or the penod of the
leose if shorter

Freehold and long
leasehold buildings

Vehicles 3 years
Compuler equipment Up o 5 years
Other equipment, including 2 to 15 years

property adaptalion cosls

The gain o loss ansing from the derecogniion of an item of
property, plant ond equipment 15 delermined as the difference
between the disposal proceeds, f any, and the carrying
omount of the rem

1 10 Impairment of sntangible assels, goodwill and property,
plant and equipment

At each reporing date, the Group assesses whether there 1s
any indication that sis intangible assets, goodwill or property,
plant and equipment are impaired If any such indication
exists, the Group estmales the recoverable amount of the
asset and the impairment loss, if any Goodwill 1s tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate thai it might be imparred If an asset
does nol generate cash flows thot are independent of those
of other assels or groups of assets, the recoverable amount 1s
determined for the cash-generating unit {"CGU") to which the
asset befongs  The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the
higher of 1ls air value less costs to sell and s value in use
Value n use 15 the present volue of future eash llows fiom the
asset or CGU, discounted at a rate that reflects market interest
rales, adyusled lor nsks specific to the asset or CGU that have
not been reflected 1n the esimation of fuiure cash flows

if the recoverable amount of an mtangible or a tangible asset
15 less than its corrying value, an impairment loss 15 recognised
immediately in the income siatement and the carnang value

of the osset 15 reduced by the amount of the imparment loss

A reversal of an impairment loss on inlangible assels o
property, plant and equipment 1s recogmised as 1t anses
provided the increased carrying value does nol exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
imparement loss been recognised Imparment losses on
goodwill are not reversed

1§11 Investment property

Investment property compnses freehold and long leasehold
properties that are held to eam rentals or for capital
appreciation or both Invesiment property 15 not depreciated,
bui 15 stoted af farr value based on valuanions by independent
regislered valuers Fanr value 1s based on current prices for
similar propares adusled for the specihc charactenshics of
each property Any gain o loss ansing from a change in fair
value 15 recogrised in the income stotement

Investment property 1s derecognised when it has been enther
disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benehi 1s expecled from disposal Any gains or
losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are
recogmised m the income stalement in the year of retrement
or disposat

1 12 Financial assets

Fiancial essets are classified os held tomatunty, AFS,
designated ot fawr value through profit or loss, or loans and
recevables The Group only has AFS financial ossets and
loans ond recervables

AFS

Financial assets that are nol classihed os loans and recevables
are clossified os AFS Finoncial assets con be designated as
AFS on iniial recogniion AFS Bnancial assets are ininlly
recognised at fair value plus directly related transaction costs
They are subsequently measured af far value Imparment
losses ond exchenge dilferences resulting from reranstating
the amorlised cos: of foreign currency monelary AFS financial
assets are recogmsed in the income statement, together with
nterest calculaled using the effechive interest rate method
Other changes in the fair value of AFS financial assets are
reported in a separale component of shareholders’ equity
until disposat, when the cumulative gain or loss 1s recognmised
in the Income slalement

Regular woy purchoses of inencial assets classifted as loans
and recevables are recognised on setlement dote, all other
regular way purchases are recogmised on trade date

A hnonaicl assel (s regarded as quoted in an active market

if quoted prices are readily and regularly avarlable from an
exchange, dedler, broker, induslry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occumng market fransochons on an arm's fength
basts The appropitate quoted morket prce for an osset held

15 usually the current brd price. When current bid prices are
unavalloble, the price of the most recent kansachon provides
evidence of the current farr value as long as there has not been
a signihcant change n economic circumsiances since the me
of the wansacton If condiions have changed since the ime

of the ransaction {for example, a change in the nskfree interest
rate fellowing the mosl recent price quote for a corporate
bond), the far value reflects the change 1n conditions by
reference to current pices or rates for simibar financial
instuments, as appropriale
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The valuation methodology descrbed above uses observable
market dato

If the market for a hinonciol asset 1s not achive, the Group
esloblishes the fair value by using a valuation technique
Valuation techmigues include vsing recent arm'’s length market
transactions between knowledgeable and willng parties

(if available), reference to the cumrent fair value of another
mslrument that 1s substantially the same, discounted cash

How analysis and ophion pricing models If there 1s a valuahon
techrique commonly used by morket participants to price

the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to
provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actupl market
transachens, the Group uses tha techmque
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

loons ond recevobles

Non-denvative inancial assets with fixed or determinable
repayments that are nol quoled in an active markel are
classihed as loans and recevables, except those that are
classihied os AFS loans and recewables are inehially
recognised at fair value plus directly related ransaction costs
and are subsequently meosured at amorhised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any impairment losses

Insurance recevables comprise outstonding insurance premiums
where the policyholders have elected 1o pay in instalments, or
amounts due from third parties where they have collected or
are due to collect the money from the policyholder

Recevables also include amounts due in respect of the
provision of legal services

Impairment cf hnancial assets

Al each balance sheet date the Group assesses whether there
15 any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets classibed as AFS or loons and recewables 1s
mpaired A financial asset or portfolio of financial ossets 1s
impaired and an impaiment Joss incurred 1f there 15 objechve
evidence that an event or evenis since inhal recognition of the
asset hove adversely affected the amount or timing of future
cash flows from the asset

AFS

When a decline in the fowr vafue of o hnancial asset classified
as AFS has been recognised directly in equity and there 1
objective evidence that the asset is impared, the cumulatve
loss 15 removed from equity ond recognised i the income
statement The loss 1s measured as the difference between the
amorhsed cost of the hinancial asset and 1ts current fair value
Impairment losses on AFS equily insiiuments are not reversed
through profit or loss, but those on AFS debt instruments are
reversed, if there 15 an increose n fair value that 1s objectvely
related 1o a subsequent event  Subsequent increases in the fair
value of AFS other investiment funds were recogrised in equity

loans and recevables

If there 15 objective evidence thal an imparment loss on a
financial asset or group of financial assets classified as loans
Gnd feCelVGbleS hGS been |nCU"ed, ihe Group MeqQswes 'he
amount of the loss as the difference between the carying
amount of the asset or gioup of assets and the present value

of estimated future cash flows from the osset or group of assets,
discounted at the elfective mierest rate of the instrument at
il recogniion

Impairment losses are assessed indvidually where significant
or collectively for assels that are not indmidually significant

fmpairment losses are recogmised in the: income statement and
the carying amount of the hnanaial asset or group of hinancial
assels 15 reduced by establishing an allowance for the
impaument losses IFin a subsequent penod the amount of the
mpament loss reduces and the reduction con be ascribed 1o
an event after the impaiment was recogrised, the previously
recognised loss 1s reversed by adjusing the allowance
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For amounls due from policyholders, the bad debt prowision
15 calculated based upon prior loss expenence For all
balances outstonding in excess of three months, o bad deb
provision is made Where a policy 15 subsequently cancelled,
the oulsianding debl thal 1s overdue 15 charged to the income
slalement and the bad debt provision 1s released back 1o the
income staiement

Derivahves and hedging

Dervative financiol instruments ore recogrised mihally, ond
subsequently measured, of fair volue Derwative fair values

are determined from quoted prices in achive markets where
avalable Where there 15 no active market for an instrument,
forr value 1s denved from prices for the denvative’s components
using appropriote pricing of valualion models

Gams and losses ansing from chonges i the fair value of o
denvalive are recognised as they anse m the income statement
unlass the dervahive 1s the hedging mstrument in a qualihying
hedge The Group enfers into o number of hedge relationships
for cash flow and fasr volue hedges Previously the Group
entered into hedge relahonshsps for net investments

Hedge relationships are formally documented at incephon

The dacumentanion identthes the hedged item and the hedging
insirument and detalls the nsk that is being hedged and the way
in which effectiveness will be assessed at incephon and during
the period of the hedge I the hedge 1s not highly elfective in
offseting changes 1n cash flows ond far volues ctinbutable

to the hedged nsk, consisient with he documented nsk
management strategy, or f the hedging insirument expires or 1s
sold, terminated or exescised, hedge accounting 1s discontinued

In the hedge of a net invesimeni in a loreign operation,

the porton of foreign exchange differences ansing on the
hedging instrument determined to be an effective hedge were
recognised directly in equity, where they remamn untl disposal
or partial disposal of the associoted subsidiaries Any
ieffecive portion was recogrised i the income stalement
Non-dervatve hnancial hobiliies as well as denvaives may
have been the hedging instrument in @ net iInvestment hedge

In a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the gain or
loss on the hedging insirument 1s recogmised directly in eauity
Any ineffective portion 1s recognised In the income siotement

In a fair volue hedge, the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument 1s recognised in the income statement The gain
or loss on the hedged tem atinbutable fo the hedged nsk 15
recognised i the income stalement and, where the hedged
item 1s measured at amortised cosl, adjusts the carrying
amount of the hedged item

Derecognition of financial assets

A hinancial asset 1s derecognised when the nights fo receve
the cash flows from that asset have expired or when the Group
has transterred its nghls to receve cash flows from the asset
ond hos transferred substantially all the nsk and rewards of
ownership of the osset



1 18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash in hend and
demand deposits wath banks together with short term highly
liquid investments that are readily converible to known
amounts of cosh and subject to insignificant nsk of change
in value

Borrowings, comprrsing bank overdralts, ore measured
at omorhised cost using the effective inlerest rate method

1 14 Financial habilites

Financicl iabilihes are inmally recognised ot fair value net

of fransacton costs incurred Other than denvatives which
ore iecognised and measured at farr value, all other financial
liabihihes are subsequently measured o amerhised cost using
the effective interest rate method

A bncncial hability 15 derecogmised when the obligation under
the lobiity 1s dischaiged, cancelled or expires

1 15 Subordinated frabilihes

Subordinated habilines compnse subordinaled guoronteed
dated rotes which are inmally measured ot the considerahion
receved less related ransaction costs Subsequently,
subordinated kabiites are measured af amorhsed cost using
the effechve interest rate method

1 16 Provisions

The Group recognises a prowiston for a present legaf o
consiructive obligation from o post event when 1t 1s more Tikely
than not that it will be required to transfer economic benehis to
seltle the obligation and the amouni can be refiably estmated

The Group makes provision for all insurance industry levies,
such as the Finanaial Services Compensation Scheme and
Molor Insurance Bureou

When the Group has an onerous contract, i recognises

the present obligation under the contract os o provision

A contract 1s onerous when the unavordable costs of
meehng the contoctuol obligatons exceed the expected
future economic benehit In respect of leasehold properties,
a proviston 1s recognised when the Group has a detalled
formal plan to vacate the leasehold property, or sigmficantly
reduce 1ts level of occupancy, the plan has been
communicated 1o those alfected and the future property
costs under the lease exceed fulure economic benehts

Restruciunng provisions are made, including redundoncy costs,
when the Group has a constructive obligation 1o resiuciure

An obligation exists when the Group has a detalled formal
plan and has communicated the plan 1o those affected

1 17 lecses

Poyments made under operating leases ore charged to the
ncome siatement on a skaight line basis over the ferm of
the lease

1 18 Pensions and other post reluement benelils
The Group provides post rehirement benefits in the form
of pensions ond healthcare plans to eligible employees

Contnbutions 1o the Group's dehined contnbution pension
scheme are recogrised in the income siatement when poyable

The Group's detined benehit pension scheme, as described m
note 32, was closed in 2003 Scheme liabilihes are measured
on on acluonal basis, using the piojected unit credit method
and discounted ot a rale that reflects the current rate of return
on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency o the scheme liabilines

Scheme assels are measured ol therr farr value  Any surplus

of deficit of scheme assets over labilities 1s recognised in

the balance sheet as an asset {swzplust or habihty {defictt)

The current service cost and any past service cosls, together
with the net inferest on net pension hability or asset, 1s charged
or ceediled lo operating expenses Actuanal gains and losses
are recognised in full in the perrod n which they occur outside
the Income stalement ond presenled in other comprehensive
income under “ttems that will not be reclassified subsequendy
fo the income stalement’

1 19 Taxaton
The tax chorge or credit represents the sum of the tax currently
payable or recevable and deferred tax

The current tax charge 1s based on the taxable profits for

lhe year as determined in accordance with the relevant tax
legrslation, after any odjustments in respeci of prior years
Taxable proht differs from net profit os reported i the iIncome
statement because 1t excludes iems of income or expense that
are laxable or deduchible in other years and it burther excludes
riems that ore never taxable or deductible

Provision for taxation 1s calculated using tax rates that have
been enacled or substantvely enacted by the balance sheel
date, and 15 allocoted over profis betore taxanen and amounis
chorged or credifed to components of other comprehensive
mcome and equily, as appropnaie

Deferred taxation 15 accounted for in full using the balance
sheet labity method on all temporary differences between
the carrying amount of an asset or hability for accounting
purposes ond s carmying omount for tax purposes

Deferred fox kabilihes are generally recognised for alf taxable
temporary timing differences and delerred tax assets are
recognised 1o the extent that it 1s preboble that taxable

prohis will be avalable against which deductible lemporary
differences can be utihsed

Deferred tox assels are reviewed ot each balance sheet date
and reduced 1o the extent that it 1s probable thot they will not
be recovered

Deferred tax assets and labilies are colculated at the tox rates
expected lo apply when the assets are realised or iabilies
are setfed based on lows and rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacled of the bolance sheet date Delesred tax
15 charged or crediled in the income statement, except when

i relates 1o ems charged or crediled to other comprehensive
income, 1IN which case the defered tax 15 also dealt wath in
other comprehensive ncome
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Notes to the consohidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

1 20 Sharebased payments

The Group operates o number of sharebased compensation
plans under which it owards Company shares and shaie
oplions 1o 1is employees  Such awards are generally subject
lo veshng conditions that vary the emount of cash or shares
io which an employee 15 entitled

Vesting condiions include service conditions {requinng the
employee lo complete o specified penod of service) and
performonce condions [requinng the employee 1o meet
specified performance targets)

The foir value of options granted 1s eshmated using voluation
techmques which incorporate exercise price, term, nsk free
interest rates, the current share price and its expected volatility

The cost of employee services receved in exchange for an
award of shares or share options granted 1s measured by
reference 1o the fair value of the shares or share options on the
duate the oward 15 gronted ond takes nlo account nomvesting
condihons and market performance condiions [condilions
related to the market price of the Company’s shares)

The cost 1s expensed on a shaightiine basis over the vesting
pened (the penod dunng which ali the specihied vesting
conditions musl be sahstied) with a corresponding increase in
equity n an equitysetited award, or o corresponding Lability
v a cash seflled award The cost s adjusted for veskng
conditions {other than market performance conditions) so as to
reflect the number of shares or share ophions that actually vest

The canceliation of an award through failure 1o meet non
vesting condrions tnggers an rmmediate expense for any
uniecognised element of the cost of an award

1 21 Capial insiruments

The Group classdies a financial instrument thal 1t 1ssues as @
financial habidity or an equity instrument In accordance with
the substorce of the controciual arrangement An instiument is
classihed os a habibty it 11 1s a controctual obligaton lo delver
cash or another hinancial ossed, or fo exchange financial assets
or hnancial hobiiies on potentially unfavourable terms, or as
equity if it evidences a residual mierest in the assets of the
Group ofter the deduction of liabiles

The consideranon for any Crdinary Share of the Company
purchased by the Group for the benehi of the employee tusts
1s deducted from equity
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1 22 Dradends

Intenm didends on Ordinary Shares are recogmsed in equity
in the peniod in which they are pard Final dividends on
Ordinary Shares are recognised when they have been
approved al the AGM

1 23 Accounhng developments

InJuly 2014, the IASB 1ssued IFRS @ ‘Financial Instruments’

that will replace IAS 39 ‘Financral mstuments Recognihon

and Measurement’ in 1is entirety The dlossification and
measurement of financial assets and labilines will be direcily
hnked to the nature of the Instrument's conlractual cash Hows and
the business model emp|oyed by the holder of the nstrument

The standard infroduces o new expected loss model that 1s
o departure from the current incurred loss model The model
requires a 12 month expected loss Io be recognised for all
financial insteuments when they hrsl onginate or are acquired
In subsequent penods, if there 15 a significant increase 1n
credit nsk of a financial instrument since it was onginated

or acquired, the full hfetime expected credit loss would then
be recogmsed

The standard has mtroduced greater flexibility 1n the type of
transactions eligible for hedge accouniing and broadened
the type of instruments thal quoldy as hedging mstruments
The hedge effectveness test has been replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship’

The standard 15 effective for annual periads beginning on or
after ¥ January 2018, although early adoption 15 permitted

In May 2014, IFRS 15 'Revenue lrom Contiacts with
Customers’ wos wsued by the IASB, 1o esicblish a single
comprehensive model to use i accounting lor revenue
recogniton and measurement, from contracts {nofe insurance
confracts are excluded from the scope of IFRS 15} with
customers  The stondard provides guidonce on when ond
how combined contracts should be unbundled and when o
transachon price includes a varioble consideration element
The standard will require the Group to consider contracts with
customers to determine if changes ore requied to existing
occounting prachces, butis nol expected lo have a matenal
impact on the Group's hinancial siatements

The standard s effeciive for annual penoads beginning on or
after 1 January 2017, although early adoption 1s permtted




2 Critical accounting eshmates and judgements

The reported resulis of the Group ore sensitive 1o the accounting palicies, assumphons and eshmates that underlie ithe preparahion
of s financial information The Group's prinerpal accounting policies are set out on pages 108 to 114 UK company law ond
IFRSs require the Directors, in prepanng the Group's financial statements, 1o select sutable occounting policies, apply them
consistently and make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prodent

In the absence of on applicable standord or iInferpretation, LAS B requires management to develop and apply an accounting
policy that results in relevant and reliable information in the hight of the requirements and guidance in IFRS dealing wath simifar
and reloted 1ssues and the IASB’s Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements  The judgements
and assumptions nvolved 1n the Group's accounting policies that are considered by the Board fo be the most important to
the portrayal of its hnanciat condiion are discussed below The use of estimates, assumphions or medels that differ trom

those adopied by the Group would affect its reported results

2 1 General insurance outstanding claims provisions and related reinsurance recoveries

The Group makes provision for the full cost of outstanding claims feom s general insurance business at the balonce sheet date,
including claims esimaied 1o have been incurred but not yet reported at that dote and claims handing Culstanding cleims
provisions net of related reinsuronce recovenes ai 31 December 2014 amounted to £3,898 6 milhon wath an addimonal
£323 5 million included in habilties held for sale (2013 £4,840 1 million}

Claims reserves are assessed separately for large and atinfional claims, typicolly using standard actuanal methods of projection
Key judgements in this assessment include the selection of speciiic methods as well as assumptions for cleims fequency and
seventy through the review of historical claims and emerging frends  The corresponding rensurence recovenies are ofso
calculoted on an equivalent basis as discussed in note 1 6

The mos! common method of setiting bodily injury claims 1s by a lump sum poid o the claimant and, in the cases where this
includes an element of indemnity for recumng costs such as loss of eamings or ongoing medical care, setlement nomally occurs
using a standardised Cgden annuity factor at a discount rate of 2 5% This 1s normally referred to os the Ogden discount 1ate
Other estimates are also required for case managemenl expenses, loss of pension, court prolechon fees, clteranons to
accommodahon and transportation tees

In August 2012, the Mol announced a review of the approach to seting the Ogden discount rate within the existing legal
kamework Following further consultation, in 2014 the Justice Secretary announced that o panel of three financial investmen)
experts will be appainted to provide tesimony on potenhal changes 1o the discount rote on personal inury domoges

The Group halds provisions for a reduchon i the Ogden discount role at 31 December 2014 to 1 5% (2013 1 5%)
Detanls of sensitvity analysis to the assumed Ogden discount rate are shown in note 3 3 )

The Group seflles some large bodily inury claims os PPO’s rather than lump sum payments

The table below analyses the outstanding PPO cloims provisions on a discounted and an undiscounted basis at 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013 These represent the total cost of PPOs rather than any costs in excess of purely Ogdenbosed setilement

Discounted  Uncliscounted Discounted  Undiscounted

2014 2014 2013 2013
At 31 December £m £m £m £m
Gross claims
Approved PPO claims provisions 422 6 1,2457 367 7 1.099¢
Anhcipaled PPOs 651 0 1,9632 6312 1,9357
Total 1,073 6 3,2089 Q08 @ 30356
Reinsurance
Approved PPO claims provisions {216 6 (688 6) {204 94 {656 3}
Anlicipated PPOs {2156 5} (839 4) {165 Q) {707 9)
Total {4331} {1,5282) (3708} {1,364 2)
Net of rensurance
Approved PPO claims provisions 2060 5571 1628 443 6
Anhcipaled PPOs 4345 1,1236 465 3 1,227 8
Total 640 5 1,6807 628 1 1,671 4

www directlinegroup com

115

SUSWSJOS [DIDUDUL




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Criheal accounting eshmates and judgements continued

The provisions for PPOs have been categonsed as etther clarms which have already setiled as PPOs [opproved PPO cloims
provisions] of those expected o setile as PPOs in the future {anhicipated PPOs) Anticipated PPOis consist of both existing

large loss case reserves including allowances for development as well as claims yet 1o be reported 1o the Group  Reinsurance
15 applied of claim level and the net cash lows are discounted for the hme volue of money The discouni rate 1s consisient with
the long duration of the claims poyments and the assumed future indexation of the claims payments

In the majonty of cases, the inflation agreed in the sefilement 15 the Annual Survey of Hours and Earmings SOC 6115 inflation
published by the Otlice for National Statishies, for which the long term rate 1s assumed to be 4 0% (2013 4 0%} The rate of
interest used for the calculaton of present values 1s 4 0% {2013 4 0%), which results in o real discount rate of O 0% (2013
0 0%} Since lump sum poyments are colculoted using a real discount rate of 2 5% (2013 2 5%) the PPOs reserved cost 1s
greaier than that of lump sum seltlements

Details of sensivity analysis to the discount rate oppled to PPO claims are shawn n note 3 3 1
2 2 Impairment provisions — financial assets

AFS

The Group determines that AFS financial assets are impaired when there 15 objective evidence that an event or events since inihial
recogniton of the assets have adversely offecied the amount or timing of future cash Hlows from the asset The determination of
which evenls could have adversely offected the amount or iming of future cash Hows from the asset requires Judgement In
moking this judgement, the Group evaluales, among other factors, the normal price volatility of the financiol asset, the financial
health of the invesiee, ndustry and sector performonce, changes n technology ond operational end knencing cash flow or
whether there has been a significont or prolonged decline n the fair value of the asset below its cost Impairment may be
appropriate when there 1s evidence of deterioration in these factors

On a quarterly basis, the Group reviews whether there s any objecive evidence thot the direct invesiments in AFS debt securihies
are impaired based on the following cniena

+ price perfarmance of a paricular AFS debit secunty, or group of AFS debt secunties, demonstrating on cdverse rend compared
lo the market as ¢ whole,

» advesse movemenls in the credit rating for corporate debt,

= actyal, or imminent, default on coupon interest or nominal, or

= offer on buyback of perpetual bonds below par value -
Impairment provision on AFS financial assets m the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to o £1 3 milion 1elease 2013 i)

Had all the declines in AFS asset values met the cnterio above at 31 December 2014, the Group would sulfer a further

£15 8 million loss of which £0 3 million relotes to the disposal group (2013 £40 4 million loss), being the ranster of the total
AFS reserve for unrealised losses to the income statement These movements represent mark to-markel movements and where there
15 na objective evidence of any loss evenis that could alfect future cash Hlows, no impairments are recorded for these movements
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2 3 Farr value

Financiol assets clossihed as AFS debt secunties and denvotive Iinancial inskumenis are recognised in the financial statements
at fair value determined using observable market nput The far value of AFS debt secunties at 31 December 2014 amounted
10 £5,830 3 million with an addihonal £706 9 milllon included in assets held for sale (2013 £7,005 5 million] The tarr
valve of denvatve financial assels and habilihes omounted 1o £27 3 million {2013 £40 7 million] and £29 4 million

{2013 £19 3 milkon) respectvely

Frechold and long leasehold propemes that are classified as investment properties are recogmised in the financial stotemenis
at farr value The fair value ol 31 December 2014 amounted to £307 2 million (2013 £223 4 milion) and was determined
using a valuahon model that includes inputs that are unchservable

Estimation of the fair value of assets and fiabilihes
In eshmating the farr value of financial assets and investment properties, the methods and assumplions used by the Group incorporote

Financiol ossets ond habifines
For fixed matunty secunties, fair values are generclly based upon quoted market prices Where market prices are not readily
avallable, fair values are esimated using values obtained from quoted market prices of comparable securiies

Investment property

Invesiment property 1s recorded at fan value, measured by independent voluers who hold recogrised ond relevont professional
qualfications The valvabon model 1s diiven predominantly by unobservable inputs, as although in part the valuations are
compared with recent market transachons for similer properties, they are adjusted for the specific charactenstics of each property

For disclosure purposes, farr value measurements ore classified os level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which far value
15 observable

level 1 financiol assels are measured in whole or in part by reference to published quotes in an actve market In an acive
market quoled prices are readily and regularly avalable from an exchange, dealer, broker, indusiry gioup, pricing service
or regulatory agency and those prices repiesent aciual and regularly occurnng market ransections on an arm’s length bosis

level 2 linoncial assets and habiliies are measured using a valuation techmique based on assumptions thai are supported by
prices from observable current market transachons These ore ossets for which pricing (s oblained via pricing services, but where
prices hove not been determined i an active market, or financial assels with forr values based on broker quotes, investments in
prvate equity lunds with far values oblained via fund managers or assets that are valued using the Group's own models whereby
the mojority of assumptions are marketobsenable

level 3 fair value measurements used for investment propertes are those derved from a voluahon techmique that includes inpuls
lor the asset that ore uncbservable

2 4 Deferred acquisthon costs

The Group defers a praperion of acquistion costs incurred during the year lo subsequent accounting perods Managemen) use
estimation techniques to determine the level of costs to be deferred, by category of business Judgement 15 used to determine the
types of cost that can be delerred and these ore refenred 1o in note 1 7 The total delerred acquisiion costs at 31 December
2014 amounted 1o £208 4 million with an additional £111 1 million included in assets hald for sale {2013 £321 5 milhon)
Duning 2014, Ihe Group reviewed these cosls included in the caleulation of deferied acquisiion costs and considers them to

be appropriate, and has determined that they are recoverable

2 5 Goodwill
The Group capitchses goodwill ansing on the acquisiion of businesses as discussed in note 1 8 The canying value of goodwill
at 31 December 2014 wos £211 O milhion (2013 £211 O mitlion}

Goodwill 15 the excess of the cost of an acquired business over the fair volue of its net assets  The determination of the fair value
of assets and liabilies of businesses acquired requires the exercise of management judgement, for example, those hinancial
assets and habilihes for which there are no quoted prices and those non financial assets where valuahons reflect estmates of
morke! conditions, such as propery Different far values would result in changes to the goodwill ansing and to the post
acquisihon performance Goodwill 1s not omortsed but 15 tested for impairment annually or more frequently «f events or changes
in arrcumstances indicate that it mght be impared

For the purpose of impanment testing, goodwill acquired in @ business combination 15 allocated to each of the Group’s CGLs or
groups of CGUs expected to benefit from the combination Goodwill impairment testing involves the companison of the carrying
value of o CGU or group of CGUs with its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the tugher of the CGU's fair value
and its value m use Value in use 1s the present value of expeacted future cash flows from the CGU or group of CGUs Farr value
1s the amount obloinable fiom the sale of the CGU n an am’s lenglh transaction between knowledgeable, willing paries
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

2 Crihcal accounhng eshmates and judgements continued

Imparment tesing inherently involves a number of judgementol areos The preparaton o the five-year strategic plan and the
extrapolation of cash flow forecasts beyond the normal requirements of management reporting, the assessment of the discount
1ate approprote to the business, esimanon of the fair valve of CGUs, and the valuation of the separable assets of each businass
whose goodwill 1s being reviewed Detalls of a sensitvity analysis on the recoverable amount in excess of carrying value are
shown n nole 17

2 6 Property, plont and equipment
The Group does not revalue property, plant and equipment However, 11 takes oppropriote steps 1o consider whether the
aggregole value of properly, plant and equipment exceeds the balance sheet corying value of such lems

The Group 1s satshed that the aggregate velue of praperty, plant ond equipment 1s not less than its carrying value

3 Risk management

31 Enterprise-wide Risk Management framework

The ERM framework within the Group 1s designed 1o ensure that sk management 1s a forword locking discipline, focused on
laciiating appropnate and forr oulcomes or @ consistent and relioble basis for ol siakeholders The ERM process provides the
Group with @ consistent and holistic view of nsk management Further information can be found i the Risk management section
of the Strategic report on page 28

3 2 Risk and capital management modelling

The Board has ultimate respansibility for ensuning that the Group has sufficient funds to meet its habiliies as they fall due The
Group carmes oui detaited modelling of s assets, hobihines and the key nsks to which these are exposed This modelling includes
the Group's own assessment of ils capital requirements for solvency purposes The assessment 1s submitted to the PRA as the ICA
i respect of s UK regulated entihes The ICA quantfies the insurance, market, counterparty, hquidhty, operaonal ond Geoup risk
that the UK reguloted entihes are undertaking

The Boord 15 closely involved in the ICA process ond reviews ond approves iis assumptions and results

3 3 Principal nisks from insurance actvities and use of financial instruments

The Risk management section of the Sirategic report sets out all the risks assessed by the Group os prncipal nsks Detalled below
15 the Group’s nisk exposure ansing from iis insuronce actvibies and use of financial instruments speciically in respect of Insurance
nsk, market nsk and counterparty nsk

3 31 Insurance nsk

The Group 15 exposed to insurance nsk os a pamary consequence of 1is business Key insurance nisks focus on the inherent
uncerlainty around the occurrence, amount and iming of Insurance labiliies arsing theough nsks accepted during insurance
operations, as deflined in the FRM framework

The nsurance nsks that the Group faces include those referred to below,

Reserving nisk

Reserving nsk relates to both premums and claims  The nsk that technical reserves are incorrectly assessed such that inappropnate
funds have been retained to handle and pay claims and assoaated expenses as the amounts fall due, or that a surplus of funds
has been refained resulling in opportumty costs

Reserving nsk 1s contielled through a range of processes
= regulor perodic reviews of the claims, premiwm and o regular assessmen of the requirement for ¢ liabiily adequacy provision
for the main classes of business by the internol actvanal team,

» the use of extemal actuanes to review penodically the acluanal best esimole reserves produced mntermally, either through peer
review of through provision of iIndependent reserve eshmales,

+ accompanying all reseve reviews with acluanal assessment of the uncertantes thiough a vanety of techniques including
boutskapping and scencno CIFIC]IYSIS,

» oversight of the reserving process by relevant senior management ond the Boord,

« regular reconcibation of the dala used in the actuanal reviews agaenst general ledger data and reconcidiation of the clamms
data history against the equivalent data from prior reviews, and

¢ assessing the vololdity i the reserves 1o help the Board set management best eshmate reserves

The Group's reserves ore porticulorly suscepitble to potential retrospective changes in legislohion and new courl decisions, for
example, a change n the Ogden discount rate This 1s the discount rate set by the relevant government bodtes and used by
courts to calculate lump sum awards in bodily inury cases  The rale 1s currently 2 5% per annum but 1s under review by the Mo
The Group has calculated 115 estmated reserves based on an assumed Ogden discount rate of 1 5%, n recognition of the
uncertainly regarding the future rale
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Uncertainty in claims reserve estmnation 1s larger for claims such as PPOs for which ennuclly indexed payments are made typically
over the hlekme of the oyured party Claims reserves for PPOs are held on o discounted basis and are sensive to o change in
the discount sate

The lable below provides a sensitivity analysis of the polennal impact of a change 1n o single facior with all other assumptons
left unchanged Other potental nisks beyond the ones described in the fable and above could have on addional lnancial
impact on the Group

Increase / {decreose]

Increase / [decrease) in total equity ot
In Income statement 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
PPOs!
Impoct of an increase in the discourt rele used in the caleulation of
present values of 100 basis pornts {"bps”} 873 817 873 805
Impact of a decrease n the discount rate used in the caleulation of
present values of 100bps {121 8} (118 5} (121 8 (116 8)
Ogden?
fmpact of an increase in the Ogden discount rate by 100bps 1596 1697 159 4 169 7
Impoct of a decrease n the Ogden discount rate by 100bps {224 0 {238 2) (224 0) (238 2)
Notas

I The sensvines relating fo an increass or decrease in the discount rate used for PPOs illusirota @ movement in the tme volue of money from the cssumed level
of 4 0% An increose 0 the discount rate reflects o decrease in the ime value of money and therefore the present value of future liabiines which increases the
total equity which would be reflected in the income statement

2 The sensivihes relating 1o an inciease or decrease in the Ogdan discount rate iustiote o mavement 1n the value from the current level of 2 5% The Group holds
provisions for a reduction (n the Ogden discount rae ot 31 December 2014 1o 1 5%

3 The selecion of these sensitvities should not be nierpreted as o pradicion
The sensitivihes set oyt above reflect one-off impocts at 31 December
5 The sensivilies sef oul obove excluded the impoci of taxation

Pncing and underwinling nsks
The nsk of economic loss ansing from business being iInappropriately accepted 1 e outside underwnting rules / terms and
condstons) and / or incorrectly prced

The Group predominantly underwnies personal ines msurance including motor, residential property, roadside assistance,
creditor, travel and pet busmess The Group also underwrites commercial nsks primanly for lowstomedium nsk frades within

the SME market Conlracts are typically issued on on annual basis which means that the Group's libility usually extends for o
12 month penod, after which the Group 1s entitled to decline 1o renew or can impose renewal terms by amending the premium
or other policy terms and conditrons such as the excess as appropniate

Cloims monogement sk
The nsk that claims are reserved or paid mapproprately, including the iming of such actmity

Claims are managed utihsing a range of 1T systemdnven controls coupled with monua! processes outlined in detalled policies
and procedures to ensure claims are handled n an appropnate, Imely ond accurate manner

Each member of stoff has a specified handling authonty, with controts preveniing them handling or paying claims outside
thew auvthonty, as well as conticls to miigote the nisk of paying invalid claims  In addton, there ore vanious outsourced claims
handling arrangements, oll of which are monitored closely by management, with similar principles applying in terms of the
controls ond procedures

loss adjustors are used in certain aircumsiances 1o handle claims fo conclusion This involves liaison with the policyholder,
thid parties, suppliers and the claims funchion

Specialist bodily inry claims teams in the UK ore responsible for handling these types of losses with the nature of handling
dependent on the level and ype of cloim Claims exceeding a certan threshold ore referred to the technical and large loss
teams who also deal with all other claim types obove delined himits or within specific enteno

A piocess 1s in place m the UK business 1o deol with major weather and other colasirophic events, known as the “Surge Demand
Plan’ A surge 1s the collective name given lo an incident which significantly mereases the volume of claims reported to the
Group's claims funchons The plan covers surge demand tmggers, stages of incident, operaonal mpact, communication and
management information menioning of the impact
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

3 Risk management confinued

Rensurcnce nisk

The nsk of inappropnate selection and / or placement of a reinsurance arrangement, with erther indwvidual or multiple reinsurers
which renders the transfer of insurance nsk 1o the remnsurerls) nappropriote and / or ineffechve  Cther nisks include

» Reinsurance capacity being reduced and / or withdrown,

+ Underwriing nsk appetite and reinsurance contiacl terms nol being aligned,

s Remsurance contract terms being inappropnate or ineffective resulling in classes or types of business not being
appropriaiely remnsured,

+ Non adherence o the rensurance policy terms and condiions, 1 lerms of both policy monagement and cloims not being
handled within the reinsurance contract terms and conditions or paid on an exgretia basis resuling in remsurance recovenies
not being made n ull,

« Inoppropnale or naccurale management information and / or modelling being used to determine the value for money and
purchasing of rensurance (including aggregate modelling). and

Changes in the externa! legal, regulalory, sacial or economic environment cltering the definiion and apphcation of reinsurance
policy wordings or effectiveness / value for money of remnsurance

The Group uses reinsurance 1o

« protect the insurance results against low-requency, high seventy losses through the transfer of cotasirophe claims volatiity
1o reinsurers,

= protect the insurance resulls against unforeseen volumes of, or adverse trends 1n, laige indwiduat claims in order to reduce
volahlity and 1o improve stability of earmings,

» reduce the Group's copital requirements, and / or
o lransfer nsk that 1s not within the Group's current nsk selention stiategy

Using reinsurance the Group cedes insurance nsk 1o rensurers but, in return, assumes back counterparty nsk against which

o reinsurance bad debt provision 1s assessed  The financial secumy of the Group's panel of reinsurers 15 therefore exiremely
important and both the quality and quantum of the assumed counterparty nsk are subject to an approval process whereby
reinsurance 1s only purchased from rensurers thot hold o credit raling of at least A- of the ime cover 1s puichased  The Group's
lecding counlerparty exposures represent the accumulated counlerparty nisk for all Group underwniting entihes and are reviewed
on a monthly bosis The Group oims 1o controct with o diverse range of remnsurers on 1is conlracts lo mihgate the credit and / or
non paymenl risks ossociated with its reinsuronce exposures

Certoin reinssiance contracts have long durations as a result of PPOs, and insurance reserves therefore include prowisions beyond
the levels created for shorter term reinsurance bad debs

Calosirophe nisk
The nisk of loss, or of adverse change, n the volue of the insurance habilies resuling from sigmificant uncerlainty of pricing and
provisioning assumphions related to extreme or exceplional events

Insurence concentiahon nsk
The Group 1s subject Io concentration nsk 1n a vanety of forms, including

= geographic concenlralion nsk — the Group purchases a UK catastrophe remsurance programme 1o prolect against a modelled
1.1n 200year loss The retoined deduchble 1s £1.50 million ot 31 December 2014 {2013 £150 milion] There are also
relevant covers lo profect the Group's infernational bustnesses,

* product concentration nsk — the Group's business 1s heawily concentrated in the UK general insurance market However,
the Group offers a diversiied portiolio of producis and o vaniely of bronds sold through @ range of distnbution channels
to 1ls customers,

» seclor concentrahon nsk — the concentration of the Group to any given industry sector 1s monitored and analysed in respect
of commercial customers, and

reinsuronce concenfraion nsk — remnsurance 15 purchased from o number of providers 1o ensure that o diverse range
of counterparties 15 contracied with, within the desired credit rating range

15 important 1o note that none of these nsk categones 1s independent of the others and that giving due consideraiions 1o the
relahonship between these risks s an important aspect of the effective management of nsurance nsk
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3 3 2 Financial nsk
The Gioup 15 exposed 1o financial nisk thiough its tinancial assets and finoncial abiliies The Group's financial nisk 1
concentiated within its invesiment portfoho and reinsurance

The strategic asset allocation within the investment portfolio 15 agreed by the Investment Commitiee The Invesiment Commitice
delermines policy and controls, covenng such areas as nsk, hquidity and performance  The Investment Commutiee meets at least
three imes a year to evaluate nsk exposure, the cusrent strategy, associated pohicies and investment guidehines and 1o consider
invesiment recommendations submitted 1o 1t Oversight of the implementation of decisions token by the Investment Committee 1s
via the 1si ond 2nd line of Defence

The nvestment management objechves are

» o manlan the solety of the portfolio’s principal both In economic terms and from a capital, accounting and reporing perspeciive,

» to mantan sufficient liquidity to provide cash requirements for operoations, including in the event of a calasirophe, ond

» 1o maxmise the portfolio’s lolal return within the consiramis of the other abjectives and the mits defined by the invesiment
guidelines and capiial allocation

3 3 2 1 Market nsk
Marksl sisk 15 the nisk associated with the adverse impact of the market nsk factors” movement on the Group's balance sheet
due o changes in the fair value or cash flows of ils assets or labilibes

The Group 1s mainly exposed to the following markel nisk factors

o inferest rate nsk,
e spread nsk,
« foreign currency nsk, and

* propesty nsk

The Group has policres and Iimits approved by the Boord for monoging the market nsk exposure These set out the principles that
the business should adhere io for managing market nsk and establishing the maximum limits the Group 15 willing 1o accept having
considered strategy, nsk appetite and capital resources

The Group monitors 1ls marked nsk exposure on o monthly basis and has established an oggregate exposure mit consistent with is
nsk objechive to mamiam copital odequacy Inferdependencies across nisk types have also been considered within the aggregate
exposure limt The allocation of the Group's mvesiments across asset closses has been approved ot the Invesiment Commitize

The Group has a property portfolio and has commenced invesiment in infrastructure debt in order to improve malching to the
longer duration PPOs

The Group uses its nternal economic copilal model 1o determine its copital requirements ond market nsk himits, and moniors 1ts
market nsk exposure based on @ 99 5% value-at sk measure The Group also applies market nisk shessed scenarios testing for
analysing the economic impact of speaihic severe market condilions The results of this analysis are used 1o enhance the
understanding of market nsk The morket nsk policy explicity prohibits the use of denvatives for speculative or geanng purposes
however, the Group 1s able o, and does, use denvotives for hedging i1s currency nsk and interest rote risk exposures

Interest rate nsk
The Group's nlerest iate nsk anses mainly from its debt, loating nterest rale nvestments and assels and habilihes exposed
to hixed interest rales

The fixed interest rate up to 27 Apnl 2022 on the Group's 30+year matunty £500 million of subordinated guaranteed daled
notes has been exchanged or a floating rate of inferest inote 29}

The Group also invests i floating rote AFS debt secunties, whose mvestment income 15 influenced by the movement of the
shortterm interest rate A movement of the shortterm nterest rate will offect the expected return on the invesiments

The market value of the Group's inancial nvestments with fixed coupons cre offected by the movement of interest rates For

the maonty of mvestments in US Dollor corporate bonds {excluding £300 million of short duration high yield bonds), the Group
hedges the exposure of this portlolio to the US Dollar inferest rate nsk using swaps  These denvotives reduce the durabion of the
porffahe 1o close to zero
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Risk management conitnued

Spread nsk

Spread nsk represents the nisk of adverse fluctuation of the value of ossets due to changes m the level of spreads The fevel of
spread 15 the dillerence between the nsk free rate and actual rate paid on the assel, with larger spreads being associated with
higher nsk assets The Group 1s exposed to spread nsk through iis investments in invesiment grade bonds and secuntised credit

Foreign currency nsk
The exposwie o currency nsk 1s generated by the Group's investments in US Dollar corporate bonds, US Dollor secuniised crecht
and rts snvestment 1n subsidiaries

The Group mainiains exposure to US Daollar securiies through its invesiments in US Dollar corporate bonds and US Dollar secunnsed
credits The foreign currency exposure of these invesimenls 15 hedged by foreign currency forward eoniracts, mantaiming a mimmal
unhedged [direct] currency exposure on these portiolios, as well as a low basis currency nsk on the hedging

The Group 1s also exposed to cuirency nsk through its investments in subsichanies in llaly and Germany {that 15, Investiments 1n
equity} In September 2013, the Group changed its currency hedging sirategy on these investmenits to accept the long term
foreign exchange Huctuation impact on s invesiment in subsidicnes

In September 2014, the Group entered into a forward foreign exchange contract to sell the Euro proceeds in exchange lor
Pounds Sterling, from the potential sale of the ltolian ond German entites This mitigates loreign currency exposure in respect
of the expected proceeds up o the sale setlement date

Property risk
Property nisk results from adverse price fluctuations on commescial property Investments Al 31 December 2014, the value of
these property investmenis was £307 2 milkon {2013 £223 4 millon} The property investments ore locoted in the UK

Sensitivity cnalysis
The table below provides a sensivity analysis of the potential mpact of a change n a single factor with all other assumptions
left unchanged Other potential nsks beyond the ones descnibed in the table could have an eddional financial impact on

ihe Group
Increase / (decrease)
Increase / {decrease) 1n total equity ot
in income stalement 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Spread

Impact of @ 100bps increcse n spreads on inancial mvestments
ond denvativas' 24 -

Interest rate
Impaci of a 100bps increose in interest rales on financial nvesiments

{163 5) (187 8}

and dernivatives! 34 191 180 {1228 {170 5
Investment property

impaci of o 15% decrease in property markets (46 1) {33 5 {46 t) {33 5)
Notes

1 The mncome statement impact on financial investments 15 imited 1o flooting rate instruments and nterest ote denvatves used 1o hedge a porion of he portfolia
The income statement 15 not impaciad 1n r2lation 1o fixed rate nstiuments, in particular AFS debt secunnes, where the coupon return s not impacted by o change in
f)revonhng markst rates, os the cccoummﬁ Ireatment for AFS debt secunies means that only the coupon receved 15 processed ihrough the income siatamen: wath
i vGiue movements being recognised through totol equily

2 The increase / [decrease] in tetsl equity reflects o fair value mavemant in infrastruciure debt that would net be recorded in the hnancio! statements under IFRS as
they are clossihed os ioons and recevobles which are cormed ot omorised cost This result has been included in the toble obove 1o provide o comprehensive
analysis of the farr value mpact of this sensimvity

3 The sensihvitres set out above reflect oneoff impacts oi 31 December with the excepiion of the income stotement inferes! rote sensiiraly on financiol 1avestments
and denvatives which projects o movement in @ full yeor s interest charge os a result of the increase n the interest rate applhied to these assets / hobilines on these
posinans held ot 31 December

4 The subordinated liobilines ond associoted interest iate swap are exciuded from the sensiivily analysis
5 The selection of these sensitvines should not ba wnterpreted as a predicion

The sgansmvmes set out obove hove not considered the impoct of the general market changes on the value of the Group's msurance hatilities or retirement
beneht cbligatons

7 The sensimities sef oul above exclude the wnpect of taxation
B The sensiviies calculoted cbove exclude the impact of assets held n the disposal group
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The tables below andlyse the matunty of the Gioup's denvative assets and habiliies

Notienal amounts Maturty ond farr velue
less thon Over

A1 31 December 2014 e % e e
Derivative assets
At fair value through the income statement
Foreign exchange contracis {forwards) 544 03 - - 03
Interest rate swaps 696 6 0@ 12 225 246
Designated as hedging instruments
Foresgn exchange contracls {forwards) 4356 19 05 - 24
Total 1,186 6 31 17 225 27 3

Notionol amounts Maturty and forz value

less than Cver

At 31 December 2014 & YT e =
Dervative liabilites
Al fair valye through the income statement
foreign exchange contracls torwards) 18923 229 - - 29
Interest rate swaps 4249 13 05 46 64
Interest rate futures’ 540 5 - - - -
Designoted as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange contracls {forwards) 50 01 - - o
Total 28627 243 05 44 294
Note

1 Interest rate futures are setled daily with vanaiion margin and theretore have a fair volue of Emil The notional valug 1s included in the above table to reflect the
fact that the Group hos exposure fo open posikons

Notionol amounts Matunty end fair value
less than Cwer
At 31 December 2013 tn e T e ks
Dervalive assets
At fair value through the income statement :
Foreign exchange contracts [forwards) 1,3158 238 - - 238
Interest rate swaps 3701 (10 17 89 Q6
Interest rate futures 5613 73 - - 73
Total 2,247 2 301 17 8§Q 407
Notonal omounts Matusty ond fair volue
less than Over
At 31 December 2013 £ Y o o
Dervahve lichilities
Al fair value through the income statement
Interest rate swaps 73909 1 04 185 178
Designated os hedging nstruments
Foreign exchange conlracts {forwards) Q6 08 07 - 15
Total 7495 16 3) [ 185 193

The Group has a number of open mlerest iate and foreign exchange denvaiive positions Collaleral manogement arrangements
are in place lor ssignificant counterparty exposures At 31 December 2014 the Group has pledged £17 3 million in cash
{2013 £4 @ milhon in cosh and £20 O millon UK Gilis) to cover out of the money denvative posiions At 31 December 2014
counterparties have pledged £21 5 milhon in UK Gilts (2013 £18 O million in cash} to the Group to cover in the money
denvahve positions
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Risk management continued

The terms and condilions of cdllaterof pledged for both assets and habiliies are market standard  When secunties are pledged
they are required fo be readily convermble to cash, and as such no policy hos been established for the disposal of ossels not

readily converhible into cash

3 3 2 2 Counterparty nsk

Counterparty sk anses from the potential that losses are ncurred from the failure of counterparties to meet therr creds obligations,
due o either therr foilure ond / or ther mability to pay or their unwillingness to pay omounts due

Counterparty nsk 1s pumanly managed by the 1st line of defence and monitored by the Credit Risk Forum The moin responsibility
of this forum 15 to ensure that all matenal aspects of counterparty nsk within the Group are Wdeniified, monitored ond measured

The main sources of counterparty nsk for the Group are

= invesiment counterpgrly = this anses from the invesiment of monies i the range of Investment vehicles permitted by the

nvesiment pohicy, and

s remnsurance recovertes — counterparty exposure 10 reinsurance counterparhes anses in respect of remsurance claims againsl
which a rensurance bad debt provision 15 assessed PPOs have the potential o increase the ultimote value of o clam and, by
their very nature, to significantly increase the fength of ime 1o reach hnal payment This has increased reinsurance counterparty

nsk n terms of both amount and longewty

The following tables anclyse the carrying value of financial and insurance assets that bear counterporly nsk between those assets
that have not been impaired by age in relation to due dote, ond those that have been imparred

Neither Past due Assats that ~ Carrying value
past due nor Fost due more than hove been i the balance
At 31 December 2014 et 17%0de Wdge impord o
Reinsurance assels 8625 - - - B62 5
insurance and other recevables 907 3 520 06 - 9599
Denvative assets 273 - - - 27 3
AFS debt secunties 58303 - - - 58303
Deposits with credit nshtuhions with motunties > three months 547 - - - 547
infrostruciure debt 762 - - - 762
Shortterm deposits with credit inshiutions 7291 - - - 7291
Cash at bank and i hand 1513 - - 1513
Total 86387 520 06 - 8,691 3
Neither Post due Assais that Carrying value in
past due nor Past due more han hove been the balonce
At 31 December 2013 meage 1T g e !
Reinsurance assets 10110 - - - 1,011 0
Insurance and other recewvables 10758 428 34 - 1,122 0
Dervative assels 407 - - - 407
AFS debt secunties 7.001 2 - - 43 70055
Deposits with credit inshivons with maturihes > three months 4357 - - - 4357
Shortterm deposits with crecht mshiutions 600 8 - - - 600 8
Cash at bank and in hand 307 5 - - 307 5
Total 10,4727 A2 8 34 43 10,523 2
Note

1 The camying volue of the hnancial ond nsurance assets for 2014 excludes the assers held for sale

Within the analysis of AFS debt securthes cbove are bank debt secunties at 31 December 2014 of £1,328 3 million
(2013 £1,625 2 million}, that can be further analysed as secured £104 1 milon {2013 £135 @ milhion), unsecured

£1,058 3 million {2013 £1,297 4 millon), and subordinated £165 @ million (2013 £191 © million)
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The following 1ables analyse the credt quality of AFS debt secunties that ore neither past due nor imparred

AAA At 10 AA A+to A  BBB+toBBE BB+ and below Toial
At 31 December 2014 Em m £m €m ¢m £m
Corporale 2352 5566 20965 @352 2936 4,1171
Supranatonal 1669 Q4 - - - 1763
local government 426 628 153 - - 1207
Sovereign - 9881 - 57 - 9938
Secuntised credn' 3394 830 - - - 427 4
Total? 7841 16929 2,111 8 9409 2936 58303

AAA AA+ 10 AA A+tc A BBB+I0BBB B3+ and below Tokal
At 31 December 2013 £m £m £rm £m £m £m
Corporate 3213 695 & 27227 1,134 2 - 48738
Supranational 3173 48 4 - - - 3657
local govemment 757 440 148 - - 1345
Sovereign 43 1,369 0 - 2672 - 1,399 5
Secunhsed credil! 193 4 221 84 - 38 227 7
Total 9120 21791 27459 1,160 4 38 7001 2
MNotes

| Secunnsed creditis ol in the form of pime morgage bocked secunties collateralised loan obligaticns, secuniised sludent loans and commercial morgage

backed secunkies

2 The credit quolity of AFS debt securhes in 2014 excludes ossats held for sole

The following tables analyse the credit quality of finencial and insurance assats that are nerther post due nor imparred [excluding
AFS debt secuniies analysed obove] The tables include reinsuronce exposure, alter provision Note 3 3 1 detals the Group's
approach to remsurance counterparly ask management

AAA A 1o AA~ A+toA-  BBB+ o BBB- BB+ ond below Not ied Tokal
At 31 December 2014 £m m £m £m tm £m £m
Reinsurance assets - 654 1 1963 43 - 78 842 5
Insurance ond other recevables’ - 173 17 4 155 04 8567 K7 3
Dernvative assels - 25 08 240 - - 273
Deposils with credit nshivhions
with maturities > three months - 547 ~ - - - 547
Infrastructyre debt - - - 7672 - - 762
Shortterm deposits with credit
inshiutions 7291 - - - - - 729 1
Cash at bank ond n hand - - 814 oelel - - 1513
Total? 7291 7286 2959 1899 04 8645 2,808 4

AAA Al to AA- A+ioA-  BBB+ic BBB BB+ and below Not raed Toul
At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Reinsuronce assets 03 71009 2890 07 - 101 1,011 0
Insurance and other receivables! - Q2 257 24 - 1,038 5 10758
Benvalive assets - 57 350 - - - 407
Deposits with credit insiituhons
wilh maturities > three months - 550 3807 - - - 4357
Shortterm deposits with credit
institghions 5458 50 500 - - - 600 8
Cosh at bank ond n hond - 02 2554 517 - 02 07 5
Total 5461 7860 1,0358 548 - 1,048 8 34715

Notes

1 Other loons and recemables due from palicyhalders, agents, brokers ond ntermedianes generally do not have @ credii faing

2 The credu quality of inencial end insurence assets (n 2014 excludes assers held for sole
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Risk management continued

Liquidhiy risk

Liquichty nsk 15 the potential that obligations cannot be met as they lall due as o consequence of having a tmmg mismotch
and / or an inability to raise sufficient hquid assets or cash without suffening o substantial loss on redlisaion

The measurement ond management of liqudity nsk within the Group 15 undertaken within the limits and other policy porameters
of the Group's liquidity nsk appette and 1s detolled within the iquidity nisk mimimum standard Compliance 15 monitored 1n
respect of both the mirmurn stendard and the regulatory requirements of local regulators

in the event that one or more liquidity siresses or scenanos crystallises, or should any other event that may mpact hquidity occur,
the Group ensures @ apid and contralled response to the event In such an evenl, a hiquidity cnsis management team will be
formed to assess the nature and extent of the threat and io develop on appropniate response

The following tables analyse financial nvesiments, cash and cash equivalents, insurance ond financial liobilihes by remaining
duration, i proportion 1o the cash flows expecied to anse during that period, for each category

Withn Over
At 31 December 2014 T%:l ]ﬁ ‘_ayegr(: 3—5Ye€rr: 5_]Oyesorr: myegrr:
AFS debt securihes 58303 Q383 1,663 4 1,175 3 1,669 8 3835
Deposits with credit inshiuttons with
matunhes 1n excess of three months 547 547 - - - -
Infrastructure debt 762 28 Q4 75 233 332
Short term deposits with credit inshitutions 7291 7291 - - - -
Cash at bank and in hand 1513 1513 - - - -
Tolal? 46,841 6 1,876 2 1,6728 1,1828 1,693 1 4167
Within . Over
At 31 December 2014 T%Tnl H?‘_c; ‘a—3ye§rrns h—swgrrns 5—1Oye€;15 10yeg;
Subordinated liabilines 5263 83 - - 5180 -
Insurance labilihes! 46741 1,396 8 1,1816 651 2 5305 Q140
Borrowings 698 698 - - - -
Trade and other payobles including insurance
payables 6606 659 4 12 - - -
Total? 59308 21343 11828 6512 1,048 5 2140
Wihin Over
At 31 December 2013 T%?xi WS?: ]_S)QS:: a-ﬁyeg: 5_‘Ove§; TOyeg:
AFS debt secunihes 70055 1,0184 19530 19200 1,794 9 318 3
Depostts with credit institutions with
malunities in excess of three months 4357 4357 - - - -
Shoitterm deposits with credil inshiutions 600 8 600 8 - - - -
Cash ot bark and n hand 307 5 307 5 - - - -
Total 8,349 5 2,362 4 19530 19209 1,704 Q 3183
Within Over
At 31 December 2013 T%ﬁ lﬁc:n: ]-“egg S‘SYES?:;S 5—]Oyegrr: ]Oyeg:
Subordinated labuities 4866 82 - - 478 4 -
Insurance habilihes! 5,757 4 1.817 3 1,469 ¢ 687 1 6309 1,152 72
Borrowings 551 551 - - - -
Trade and other payables including msurance
payables 8183 7943 64 19 64 93
Total 7174 26749 1,476 3 6890 11157 1,161 5
Notes

1 Insurance kobines exclude unearned premium reserves as there ara no iquidity nisks inherent in them
2 The ossefs and habilines remaining duranon tables for 2014 excludes assets ond hobibes held for safe
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Concentrahion risk

Concentration nsk on investments anses through excessive exposure to particulor indusiry sectors, groups of business underlokangs
of similar activbes The Group may suffer significant losses in its invesiment portfolio as @ result of overexposure to particulor
seclors engaged in similar actviies or similar economic features that would cause their ability 1o meel contractual obligations

1o be similarly affected by changes in economic, poliical or ether condifions

The table below analyses the distubution of AFS debt securties and infrastructure debt by geographical area

local Secuntised AFS debt

Corporate govenmment Sovereign credt  secunhes totaf Infrostruciure dabs
At 31 December 2014 Em £m £m £m £m £m
Australia 1202 - - - 120 2 -
Belgium 338 - 36 - 374 -
Canado 508 343 - - 251 -
Cayman Islands 193 - - 2188 2381 -
China 61 - - - 61 -
Denmark 251 - - - 251 -
Finland - 143 - - 143 -
France 2751 234 - - 298 5 -
Germany 3103 50 - - 3152 -
Hong Kong 85 - - - 85 -
ltaly 155 - - - 155 -
Jopan 46Q - - - 459 -
Luxembourg 68 - - - 68 -
Mexico 126 - 57 - 183 -
Netherlands 154 4 - - - 154 4 -
New Zeoland 36 - - - 36 -
Norway 244 101 - - 345 -
Singapore 255 - - - 255 -
South Korea 75 76 - - 151 -
Spam 306 - - - 306 -
Sweden 731 130 - - 861 -
Swatzerlond 826 - - - 826 -
LJAE - 70 - - 70 -
UK 1,334 8 - Q84 5 694 2,3887 762
USA 1,439 6 60 - 1342 1,57¢ 8 -
Supranational - - - - 1763 -
Total’ 41171 1207 938 4224 58303 762

Nate

1 Tha distnbuion of AFS debt secuntes ond ihastucire debl by geographical orea excludes ossets held for sole
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements coniinued

3 Risk management continued
The toble below analyses the distmbution of AFS debl secuniies by geographical area

Local Secuntised
A 31 December 2013 Copoge  goemgn Sowey T s
Australia 2498 - - - 249 8
Belgum 487 - 44 - 531
Brazil 2Q - 14 - 43
Conada 5972 522 - - 114
China 17 - - - 17
Czech Repubiic 63 - - - 63
Denmark 382 - - - 382
Finland 133 - - - 133
France 3649 81 18 84 3832
Germany 407 3 243 - 335 465 1
Hong Kong 85 - - - 85
Ireland 03 - - 38 41
llaly 493 - 204 - 697
Japon 445 - - - 445
Mexico 108 - 30 - 138
Netherlands 227 3 - 43 - 231 6
New Zedlond 240 - - - 240
Norway 64 249 - - 613
Russia 53 - - - 53
Singepore 24 4 - - - 24 4
South Africa - - 14 - 14
South Koreo 7 - - - 71
Span 312 - - - 312
Sweden 1500 191 - - 1691
Switzerland 1185 - - - 1185
UAE 656 - - - 66
UK 1,671 4 - 1,362 8 351 3,069 3
LSA 1,270 2 59 - 146 @ 1,423 0
Supranahonal - - - - 3657
Total 48781 134 5 1,399 5 2277 70055
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The table below analyses the disinbution of AFS debt secunhies by indusiry sector classilications

2014 2013
At 31 December £m % £m %
Basic malenals 1519 3% 196 5 3%
Commumcations 2985 5% 3941 &%
Consumer, cycheal 2307 4% 1920 3%
Consumer, norrcycheal 3634 6% 4510 6%
Dwersihed 659 1% 823 1%
Energy 2257 4% 249 Q a%
Financial 1,842 4 32% 2,163 3 31%
Indusinal 2507 4% 2749 4%
Morlgage and other asset backed securibes 4224 7% 2277 3%
Sovereign, supranotional and local government 1,2907 2% 1,860 7 27%
Technology 678 1% 515 1%
Transport 152 0% 180 0%
Uslihes 4050 1% 8037 11%
Total' 58303 100% 7,005 5 100%

Nate
1 The disinbunan of AFS debt secunnes by mdusiry secior 1n 2014 exchudes assers held for sale

The toble below enalyses the distnbution of infrastructure debt by indusiry sector classifications {2013 £nil)

2014
At 31 December £m %
Social infrastructure 564 74%
Transpon 194 26%
Total! 762 100%

Note
1 The disinbunen of infrastucture: debt by industry sector in 2014 axcludes assets held for sole

3 4 Capital adequacy

The Group defines its capiiol requirement in accordance with the regulalions prescribed by the PRA, other regulatory bodies
and the credit rohing ogencies Capital 15 monoged in accordance with the Group's capital management mimmum standard,
the objectives of which are to monage capital efficiently and mantain an appropnate level of copralisation and solvency

The Group determines the appropnate level of capial on the bosis of a number of entena including s nisk based capital
requirement, the momlenance of a prudent excess copital over iis regulatory capita! requirements and Hs raling agency capiial
The Group seeks to hold capital coverage n the range of 125% to 150% of 11s nsk bosed copital requirement and to hold capital
resources consistent with an A’ range credit raling

The UK regulated nsurance enliies of the Group carry out an assessment of the adequacy of therr overall hnancial resources n
accordance with the PRA’s ICA methodology  The UK nsurance capital requirement is calculated on an internal model which s
calbrated to a @@ 5% confidence inferval and considers business wnitien to date and one year of fulure business  Additionally,
the model allows for the uncertanty around the run off of this business The nsk-based capital model also supports decision
making in the business The Group olso monitors its financial resources with reference 1o the requirements of the K3D

The capital for European entities 1s mantained 1n accordance with the lecol regulatory solvency requirements The Group
manages 1ls subsidianes on an ongoing bosis to ensure that capital resources exceed regulatory minimo i accordance with
s nsk appetite

The Group has an IGD surplus at 31 December 2014 of approximately £1 @ bilion {2013 £1 8 billion) From 1 Jonuary 2016,
the Group's regulolory capital position will be ossessed against the Solvency Il fromework

The Group's capital requirements and solvency posihon are produced and presenied to the Boaid on o regular basis
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Segmental analysis
The Directors manage the Group pnmanly by product iype and present the segmenial onalysis on that bosis The segments reflect

the management shuciure whereby a member of the Executive Committee 1s occountable to the Chiel Executive Officer for each
al the following operaling segments

Motor

This segment consssts of personal car nsurance cover together with the associated legal expenses business The Group sells
motor nsurance through s own brands — Cirect Line, Churchill and Pivilege - and thiough partnership bronds direcily 1o
customers or through PCWs As a result, the Group has a brand and product offening that covers mest major retaib customer
segments for motor insurance in the UK

Home

This segment consists of the underwriting of home nsurance logether wath associoted legal expenses cover The Group sells home
insurance through its own brands -~ Direct Line, Churchill and Privilege — and through parinerships or PCWs  The Group’s brand
and product offenng covers most of the major retail cusiomer segments for home nsurance 1n the UK

Rescue and other personal hnes
This segment consists of the underwniing of rescue and recovery insuronce products and other personal lines business, including
travel, pet, Ife {conducied by Direct tine Ue Insurance Company Limited which was sold on 28 November 2013} and credhtor

The Group sells rescue and recovery insurance as o stand-alone produet through the Green Flag brand or as an insurance
add on 1o all Group own brard and ¢ertain partner motor polices, or os port of packaged bank accounts sold through our
bank portnership channel Rescue insurance policies range from bosic roadside rescue to o full Europewide breakdown
TECOVErY SEVICE

The Group selis s other personal lines insurance through its own brands — Direet ine, Churchill and Privilege — and
through portnerships

Commercial
This segment consists of the underwniing of commercial msurance for micro businesses and SMEs in the UK The Group sells commercial
products through its own brands - NG, Direct Line for Business and Churchill - and thiough its parnership with 8BS and NatWes

Cerlain income and charges are not allocated 1o the specific operating segments above as they are considered by management
to be ovlside undertying business actvities by virtue of their one-off incidence, size or nature Such income and charges are
categonsed as either run off, descnibed below, o restructuring and other one-off costs

Run-off

The segment conasts of two prncipal lines, policies previously wntien through the personal fines broker channel and Tesco
business These residual businesses are now i run-off

Discontinued operahions — Internakonal

This segment consists primanly of personal motor car insurance cover sold i lialy and Germany using @ muli-channel strategy
through the Direct tine brand and through parnerships and PCWs On 25 September 2014, the Group entered inio a binding
agreement for the sale, subject to regulatory opproval, of this segment and accordingly 11s resulis have been treated os a
discontinued operation  The segmental analysis of revenues and rasulis on pages 131 1o 132 has been re-presented to reflect
fhus freatment with the revenue and resulls of the discontinued operations separataly disclosed in nole 5 The assets and habilites
of the International segment have been presented os o disposal group and have been classified s held for sale

No mtersegment kransachons occunied n the yeor ended 31 December 2014 (2013 £l I ony hansachion were 1o occur,
franster prces between operating segments would be set on an arm’s length basts in a manner similar to ransachons with third
parlies Segment ncome, expenses and results wall include those transfers between business segments which will then be
ehminated on consolidation

For each operating segment, there 15 no indwidual policyholder or customes that represents 10% or more of the Group's toial revenue
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The toble below 15 an analyss of the Group's revenue and resulis for conlinuing operations by reportable segment in the year

ended 31 December 2014

Rescue and
other Tolal Conhnuing
Maiort Home personal imes  Commenaial ongoing Rurrchf operahons
Em £m 7 £m £m £m £m
Gross wiitien premium 1,342 0 898 6 3718 4870 30994 04 30990
Gross earmed premum 1,372 6 Q20 4 37C5 4811 31446 04 31442
Remnsurance premium ceded 76 7} {451} (1 4) {34 3 {157 5) - (157 5)
Nei earned premium 1,2059 8753 3691 4468 29871 C4) 29867
Investment return 144 8 257 61 340 2106 45 2151
Instafment income 696 240 15 53 100 4 - 100 4
Other operating income 329 07 108 25 469 - 469
Total income 1,543 2 Q257 3875 4886 33450 41 33491
Insurance claims @35 {4457 2119 (261 7Y (1850 2) 716 {1,778 6)
Insurance claims recoverable from reinsurers 634 8 - 64 706 (19 4} 512
Net insurance claims (868 1) {444 3 1211 9) 255 3} (1,779 &) 522 1,727 4)
Commission expenses 41 4) 1190 3) {34 5) {87 8) {354 Q) - {354 0}
Operating expenses 13366, (177 3) @3 1) {@8 5) {705 4) Q) {706 4)
Total expenses 1378 O} (367 5) (127 6) (186 3) (1,059 4) 110} {1,060 4)
Operating proFlt before restrucluring and other
one-off costs 2971 1139 480 470 506 0 553 561 3
Restructuring and other one-off cosls? {69 &)
Qperating prohit 4317
Finance cosis (37 2)
Gain on disposal of subsidhary 23
Profit before tax 4548
Underwriting profit 498 635 296 52 1481
Loss ralo 67 0% 508% 57 4% 57 1% 59 6%
Commusston ratio 32% 21 7% Q 4% 19 7% 11 8%
Expense ratio 26 0% 20 2% 25 7% 22 0% 236%
Combined operating ratio P62%  927%  920%  988%  950%

Naotes

I The Group's revenue ond resulls for the yeor ended 31 December 2014 reloting to the Tracker business, which wos disposed of on 5 February 2014
ware recorded in the Mator segmant (other operating income £ 4 milhon and operoting foss €0 4 million)

« 2 Restyctunng costs are gosts which have been incurred i respect of the business aciwtes which ho & o matenol affect an the noture and focus of the Group s
aperations Ore off costs gre costs that are nanrecuming in nature
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Segmental analysis continued

The table below 15 an analysis of the Group’s revenue and resulls for conlinuing eperatiens by reporiable segment in the year

ended 31 December 2013

Rascue and
Motor! Home personolcﬁilee;? Commeraal ongg?:g Renoif’ o(;?:):cu)?s%
£m Em £m fm Em Em £m

Gross written premium 1,421 1 Q431 3834 4745 3,222 79 32300
Gross eamed premium 1,498 4 Q58 @ 3831 4687 3,302 1 79 33170
Remnsurance premium ceded 53 6} (50 O (17 3] {341)  {1550Q) 528 1602
Net earned premium 1,444 8 089 3658 4346 3,154 1 27 31568
lnvesiment retuin 1228 24 1 82 296 184 7 130 197 7
Instalment iIncome 783 252 13 62 nio - 1Mo
Other operating income 48 5 07 91 33 616 - 616
Total income 1,694 4 9589 3844 4737 35114 157 3,527 1
Insurance claims (7831 47671 (2400) (274 8) {1,959 8) BBO {1,881 8)
Insurance cloims recoverable from reinsurers 381 37 202 42 48 8 137 9) 10¢
Net insurance ¢laims [Q402) [4904) (2198) (2706] {19210 501 (1,8709)
Commussion expenses 13631 779} (27 3) @22 (3337 {08 {3345
Operaling expenses 13702y (184 4) 20 8) (101 4) {746 8) {1 4) (748 2}
Total expenses (406 5} (362 3 (118 1) (123 6) {1,080 5j 22 (+,0827)
Operating prohit before restructuring ond other
one-off costs 347 7 106 2 465 25 5000 636 5735
Restructuring and other one-off costs? 140 5
Operating proht 4330
Finance cosls {37 7)
Gan on disposal of subsidiary 120
Profit before tax 407 3
Underwriting profit / {loss) 981 5672 279 129 6) 152 6
Loss raho 65 1% 53 9% &01% 62 3% 60 9%
Commission ratio 2 5% 19 6% 7 5% 21 2% 10 6%
Expense raho 25 6% 20 3% 24 8% 23 3% 23 7%
Combined operating rato Q32%  Q38% Q24% 1068%  Q52%

Notes

1 The Group’s revenue and resulls for the year ended 201 3 relaning to the Tracker business, which was disposed of on 5 Febroary 2014, were recorded in the

Malor sagment [other cperating income £ 18 4 milkon ond opercting loss £1 4 mullion)

2 Tha Group's revenue and results for the year ended 2013 relating o the Life business, which was dispesed of on 28 November 2013, were recorded in wa
segmanis Rescua end other personal lines (net earned premum £11 8 million net msurance cleims £1 8 million and operetng proht £6 4 mifhon] and
Runoff [net eamed premium £2 8 milkon net nsurence cloims £0 7 milion and opsrotng profit £1 2 milken)

3 The segmantal rasults set out above hove been re-presented from those presented in *he 2013 Annual Repont a5 a consequence of the tansfer of the Intermatonal

segment to discontinued operchions {note 5}

4 Restuchuneg cosls are costs which have bean incurred in tespedt of the business actaties which have a matenal affect on the natute and foaus of the Graup's

operatons One off costs are costs that ore namsecurnng in noture

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabifihes by reporiable segment

Rescue and
other Drsposol

Mator Horme persanal lires  Commercial Ronoff group Tolal
Al 31 December 2014 £m £m m Sm £m £m £m
Goodwill 126 4 458 287 101 - - 2110
Disposal group — assets held for sale’ - - - - - 1,2054 1,2054
Other segment assefs 6,392 5 7462 1706 11,4533 10466 - 98092
Disposcl group — liabiilies held for sale! - - - - - P64 4) {964 4)
Other segmental habiliies 14,706 8] {55¢9) (1280) {1,0905) (87535} - [7,4507)
Reportable segment net assets 1,7221 2321 713 3729 171 1 2410 28105

Note
1 Compnse the assats and labilines of Intermanonal
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Rescue and

ather
Motor Home personal bnes  Commerciol funch  Inlematenal Total
At 31 December 2013' £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Goodwill 126 4 458 287 101 - - 2110

Orher segment assels
Segment habilihes

6,558 5 847 6 1649 11,4486 11,2664 12008 11,5768
498800 [(6446) {1254) (1,101 7) N,0774) (1,0607) (8,997 8]

Reportable segment net assets 16060 2488 682 3570 1820 2301 27900

Nate
1 The cllecation of other segment assets and segment liobilites has been revised from the vahies disclosed in the Annual Repert and Aceounts for 2013

All continuing operations are m the UK The reportable segment net assets do not represent the Group’s view of the capital
requirements for 1ts operaling segments

5 Disconhinued operahions and disposal group

Fallowing a stralegic review of the Infernational segment, the Boord concluded thal, although the operations i lialy irepresented
by Direct Line Insurance S p A} and Gesmany {represented by Direct Line Versicherung AG) occupied shiong posiions, o disposal
would be likely to generate the most value to shareholders

On 235 September 2014, the Gioup enlered inlo a binding ogreement with Mapfre Internanioral S A, o wholly owned
subsidiary of Mapfie, S A, for the scle of Inlernalional Accordingly the Group has treated this segment as discontinued

operations and a disposal group

A} Discontinued operations

The following table analyses performance relating fo the discontinued operations

2014 2013

Em £m

Gross wrilten premium 567 6 604 5
Graoss earned premium 5558 576 3
Reinsurance premium ceded {226 0 {212 8)
Nel earned premium 3298 3665
Investment return 221 234
Insialment income 48 68
Other operatng income 10 08
Total income 3577 397 5
Insurance closms {404 2 {453 O}
Insurance claims recoverable from reinsurers 1595 169 6
Net insurance claims {244 7) {283 4}
Commission expenses 1630} 157 9}
Operaling expenses (290 (32 &)
Total expenses (920) {97 5)
Proht before tax from discontinued operahions 210 166
Tax charge 77 (14 &}
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 133 20
Underwrihng loss 169 (14 4}
Loss ratio 74 2% 77 3%
Commission rahio 191% 15 8%
Expense ratio 88% 108%
Combined operahing raho 102 1% 103 9%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

5 Discontinued operatons and disposal group continued
The following table analyses the other comprehensive loss relating lo discontinued operatons, mcluded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

2014 2013
£m £m

Items that may be reclossihied subsequently to iIncome statement
Exchange differences on the translation of foreign operations {155 42
Farr value gain / {loss] on avallobleforsale investments 261 138}
tess realised net gans on avallableforsale investments included in income slatement (& &) 150
Tox relating 1o lems that may be reclassiied (69 24
Other comprehensive loss for the year net of tax 29 12 2)

The following teble analyses the cash flows releting to the discontinued operations included in the consclidated cash flow statement

2014 2013

£m £m

Net cash generated from operatng acimihes 126 237
Net cash used by investing activihes (8 4) 139
Net cash generated from fincncing activities - 84
Effec! of loreign exchange eote changes (6 1) 10 3)
Net (decrease] / increase in cash and cash equivalents e 27 Q

B} Disposal group
The following table analyses the assets and habilies of the disposal group of 31 December 2014 (2013 nil] For companson
purposes the relevant assets and habiliies of the entiies comprising the disposal group have been included in the table

For companson
purpeses only
2014 2013
Em £m
Assets

Inlongible assets 56 46
Property, plant and equipment 59 47
Reinsurance assels 1830 2029
Deferred tox assets 92 169
Current fax assels 14 13
Deferred acquisiion cosls 111 082
Insurance and other recevables 911 924
Prepayments and accrued income 346 13
Financial investiments 7069 7760
Cash and cash equivalents 876 825
Total assets 1,2054 1,290 8

Liabilihes
Insurance habilies 5534 609 4
Unearmed premium reserve 3262 3393
Trede and other payables including nsurance payables 820 109 7
Defetred tax habilines 08 23
Current tax lobilites 20 -
Total liabilihes 964 4 1,060 7

in addition to the above assets and habiliies of the disposal group held for sale, the Group has a property asset held for sale
at 31 December 2014 of £3 O million {2013 £1 O million}
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6 Net earned premium

2014 2013

Continuing operations £m £m
Gross eamed premium

Gross written premiym 30990 3.2300

Movement In uneamed premium reserve 452 870

31442 370

Reinsurance premum ceded

Premium payable (182 5) {159 35)
Movemenl in rensurance uneamed premium reserve 250 {0 7]
{157 5) (160 2)

Total 29867 3,156 8

7 Investment return

2014 2013
Continuing operations £m £m
Invesiment income
interest ncome from AFS debit securies 154 ¢ 1519
Cash ond cash equivalent interest income 52 69
Renlat income from investment property 162 114
Interest income from infrastructure debt 01 -
1755 170 2
Net realised {losses) / gams
AFS debi securittes 162 207
Denvatives (86 2) 215
Invesiment property [note 19) 23 -
(67 7) 42 2
Net vnreahsed gams / (losses)
Impanments of AFS debt securihes! 13 -
Denvalives 796 {22 2
invesiment properly {note 19) 264 75
107 3 {14 7}
Total 2151 1977
Nate
¥ The impairment reversc! relates to an AFS debt secunly anginally impaired in 2011
The table below analyses the realised and unrealised gains / (losses) on denvative instruments included in investment return
Realised Unreahsed Reohsed Unreahsed
2014 204 2013 003
Conhnuing operations £m £m £m Em
Denvollve-llosses) / gons
Foreign exchange forward confracis {59 3) (46 4) 2172 120
Associated foreign exchange risk (7 4} 1159 20 {33 3)
Net {losses) / gains on foreign exchonge forward contracts (667) 495 232 {21 3)
Interest rate dernvatives {20 4) (221} (O 8} 196
Associated interest rate nisk 09 322 0% {20 5)
Net [losses) / gams on inferest rale denvatives {19 5) 101 {17} (0%
Total {85 2} 796 215 {22 2}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8 Other operahng income

2014 2013
Continuing operations £m &m
Vehicle replacement referral income 158 157
Revenue from vehicle recovery and repair services! 180 s
Fee income from nsurance inlesmediary services 21 17
Other mcome 110 12 4
Total 459 616
Nole
1 Thisncludes £1 4 milkan [2013 £18 4 millon] :n relanon 1o the Tracker business dispased of on 5 February 2014
2 Net insurance claims
2014 2013
Gross Reinsurence Net Giross Resnsurance MNet
Continuing operctions £m £m £m €m £€m
Current aceident year claims pad 1,086 4 - 1,086 4 1,079 0 (17 4} 1,061 &
Pror accident year claims paid 1,1658 (27 8} 11440 1,383 3 (22 &) 1,3607
Maovemeni in insurance habrities {473 &} (29 4) {503 O} {580 35) 291 {551 4j
Total 1,778 6 (51 2) 1,727 4 1,8818 (109} 1,8709
Cloims handling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 of £226 3 millon {2013 £239 5 million) have been
included 1n the cloims figures above
10 Commission expenses
204 2003
Continuing operahons £m £m
Commussion expenses 2633 2754
Expenses ncurred under profil parlicipations 907 591
Total 3540 3345
11 Operahng expenses
2014 2013
Continuing operahons £m £m
Sialf costs 2636 356 4
Marketing 1239 159 2
Depreciation 226 18 5
Amorhsation and impairment of other ntangible assets 66 4 337
Other operating expenses 2995 3209
Total 7760 888 7
Staff costs attnbutable to clams handling acivities are allocated 1o the cost of nsurance claims
The table below analyses restructuning and other one-olf costs included in operchng expenses
2014 2013
£m Em
Staff costs! 155 579
Other operaling expenses 541 826
Total 6926 140 5
Nale

1 Staff costs n 2013 include redundancy costs of £40 9 million
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The table below analyses the average monthly number of persons employed by the Group's operahons

Conhnuing operahons 2014 2013
Operations 9,959 10,892
Support 1,278 1,773
Total 11,237 12,665

The Group's discontinued operations employed an average monthly number of 1,275 people in 2014 {2013 1,295)

The aggregate remuneration of those employed by the Group's operations compnsed

2014 2013
Conhinuing operations £m £m
Woages and salanes 3487 3650
Social secunity costs Ta77 437
Pension costs 1922 243
Shore bosed poyments 64 41
Total 4122 467 1

The oggregate remuneration of those employed by the Group's discontinued operotions was £32 9 miflion in 2014
{2013 £33 @ million}

The table below anclyses Auditor’s remuneration in respect of the Group's operations

2014 2013
Conhnumgﬁpemhons £m £m
Fees poyable for the audit of
The Company's annual accounts 04 04
The Company's subsidiones 15 14
Total audit fees 19 18
Fees poyable for non audht services
Audit refated assuiance services 01 01
Taxation cdvisory services 02 -
Other services 01 -
Total norraudit services 04 01
Total 23 1Q

The aud fees in respect of the Group's disconlinued operations were £0 4 milhion in 2014 {2013 £0 3 million)

Aggregate Directors’ emoluments
The lable below analyses the total amount of Direciors’ remuneration, all of which 1s v relabon 1o continuing operotions,
n accordance with Schedule 5 1o he Accounting Regulations

2014 2013

Lm £m

Salanes, fees, bonuses and benefils in kind 34 32
Gains on exercise of share opfions 12 05
Defined contibution pension scheme comnbutions 01 01
Total 47 38

Further mformation about the remuneration of indwidual Directors 1s provided in the Directors’ remuneration report

At 31 December 2014, one Dicecior (2013 onel had retirement benefits accruing under the defined contnbution pension
scheme i respect of qualifng serice

During the year ended 31 December 2014, two Direckors exercised share options {2013 two Directors exercised share oplions)
in refakon 1o RBS Group LTIP awords and incentive deferral plans
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

12 Finance costs

2014 2013
Centinuing operahons £m Em
Interest expense on subordinated habilines' 372 377

Note

1 As described n note 2G, an 27 Apnl 2012 the Group 1ssued subordinated guoranteed dated notes with 6 nominal value of £500 millor ot a fixed rate of
& 25% On the some daote, the Group clso entered inta a IO—Eecr hedge to exchange tha fixed rote of interest on the notes for o floating rate of three-month IIBOR
plus o spread of 706 bps which incieased to 707 bps with effect from 29 July 2013

13 Tax charge

2014 2013
Contnuing operations £m &m
Cunrent laxahon

Charge for the year 872 Q19
Under provision in respeci of prior year 39 28
911 Q47

Deferred toxation {note 14)
Charge for the year 140 47
Over piovision in respect of prior year {7 &) 29
64 18
Current toxahon 911 Q47
Deferred toxahion [note 14} 64 18
Tax charge for the year 975 Q65

The following lable analyses the difference between the actual income tox charge and the expected income tax charge
computed by applying the stondard rate of UK corporation tox of 21 5% (2013 23 25%)

2004 2013
£m £m
Proht before lax 456 8 407 3
Expected tax charge 982 Q47
Effects of
Realised gons on disposal of subsidianes {0 5} i2 8)
Disallowable expenses 34 44
Non taxable ilems - 06
Effect of change in UK toxaton rate o 0 3}
Oves piovision n respect of prior year {37} 01
Tax charge for the year 97 5 96 5
Effective income tax rate 21 3% 237%
Noie

1 The UK Govamment enacted o reducton in the UK corporanan tox rote om 23% to 21% effective lrom 1 Apal 2014 in the Finonce Act 2013 ond enocted
further reductions to 20% effective from 1 Apnl 2015 As o consequence the closing deferred tax assers and habiliies have been recognised ot the tox rotes
expecied to apply when the cssats or habiliies ere setfed The impact of these changes on the 1ax chorge for the year 15 set out1n the rable obove
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14 Current and deferred tax

Current tax

2014 2013
fm £m

Per balance sheet
Current tax assets! 01 13
Current tax liabilihes’ {357) 21 1)

Note

1 Included in the disposal group {note 58} are current tax assets of £1 4 milkon and current tox licbilines of £2 O million which were transferred kam cursent ax
assets and curent kax ||a%|||nes ot 31 December 2014

Deferred tax

2014 2003
£m £m

Per balance sheet
Deferred tax assets’ - 193
Deferred tax hiabilihes! (20 &) {19 3}
{20 &) -

Nate

1 Inciuded in the dispasal group (note 5B) are delerred tox assets of £9 2 milhon ond deferred tox habilines of £0 8 mithon which were ransferred kom delerred
lax assets and defared tax iobihnes ot 31 Cacember 2014

The table below anclyses the major delerred tax assets and liabiliies recogrised by the Group and movements thereon

Prowisions and Depreciation
other Retirement in excess of Non
lemporory benahy capal dismbutoble Investmant Sherebased
differences abliganons cllowences feserve properes payments Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At January 2013 180 0 6) 04 (15 4) -~ (0 8) 16
Credit / [chargel to the income
siglement on continuing
operations 05 {0 5 07 (3 5) {15} 25 {18}
Charge 1o the ncome siotement
on discontinued operations {50} - - - - - (5 0
Credit to other comprehensive
Income 24 15 - - - - 30
Credit dicect 1o equity - - ~ - - 02 02
Other movements 14 - 07 04 - - 11
At 31 December 2013 173 04 04 {18 5} {i 5 19 -
Credit / {chaige} 1o the income
slatement on conlnuing
operahons 26 {05 05 (6 5) (33) 08 (6 4]
Credit 1o the mcome slalement
on discontnued operations 21 - - - - - 21
Charge fo ofher comprehensive
Income (7 4) 06 - - - - (80)
Credit duect to equity - - - - - 10 10
Cther movements [(0F:1] - (o1 - - - 09
Transfer to habiines / ossets held
{or sale {nole 5B (8 4) - - - - - {8 4)
At 31 December 2014 54 {07) 08 (250) {48) 37 (20 )
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Notes to the consolidated financial skatements continued

15 Dividends
2014 2013
£m £m
Amounits recognised as distnbutions to equity holders i the pernod
2013 hinal dividend of 8 4p per share paid on 15 May 2014 1257 -
2012 hnol dimdend of 8 Op per share paid on 11 June 2013 - 1200
2014 hst intenm dividend of 4 4p per share paid on 12 September 2014 658 -
2013 mtenm dwidend of 4 2p per share pard on 26 September 2013 - 628
2014 hist specicl intenm dwidend of 10 Op per share paid on 12 Seplember 2014 1497 -
2013 fust specral interim drvidend of 4 Op per share paid on 31 December 2013 - 599
2013 second speciol intenm dividend of 4 Op per share paid onl1 5 May 2014 599 -
4011 2427
Proposed dmdends
2014 hingl dwvidend' of 8 8p per share 1320 -
2013 finat dvidend of 8 4p per share - 1260
2014 second special ntenm dividend of 4 Op per share 400 -
2013 second special intenm dividend of 4 Op per share - 600
Note

1 The Board hos resolved his yeor ta pay an mienm dradend in hew of a finol dividend  The second special divdend 1s referred to separately from the final
dvidend This enables more appropnate companson to the 2013 final divdend

The proposed finol and second special intenm dradends for 2014 have not been ncluded as liobilines in these financial stotements

The trustees of the employee share sls waved therr enlilement fo dividends on shares, which are not held for the benefit of
employees {except for free share awards), which reduced the iotal dvidend paid by £0 @ million {2013 £0 3 million)

16 Eamings and net assets per share, return on equity

Eamings per share 1s caleulated by dviding earnings atinbutable to the owners of the Company by the weighted overoge
number of Ordinary Shares duning the penod

Basic

Basic earmings per share 15 calculated by dividing the earmings oitnbuiable fo the owners of the Company by the weighted
average ol Ordinary Shares for the purposes of basic eamings per share dunng the period, excluding Ordinary Shares held as
employee tust shares

2014 2013
£m £€m
Earmings ofinbutable 1o owners ol the Company ansmg lrom
Continuing operahions 3593 3108
Discontinued operations 133 20
Continuing and discontinued operations 3726 3128
Waighled averoge number of Ordinary Shares for the purpose of basic earmings per share {millions) 1,4950 1,495 4
Basic earmngs per share {pence}
Continuing operations 240 208
Discontinved operations 09 01
Continuing and discontinued operations 249 2009
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Diluted

Diluted earnings per share 15 calculated by dividing the earmungs atinbutable to the owners of the Company by the weighted
average of Ordinary Shares for the purposes of diluted earmings per share duning the peniod adjusted for the diluhve potential

Ordinary Shares The Company has share options and contingently 1ssuable shares as categones of dilulive potential
Ordinary Shares

2014 2013
£m £m
Earnings ottibuiable to owners of the Company ansing from
Continuing operations 3593 3108
Discontinued operatons 133 20
Continying and disconhinued operahions 3726 3128
Woeighted average number of Ordinary Shares for the purpose of diluted earmings per shore {millions) 1,4950 1,405 4
Effect of difulive potential of share oplions end conlingently 1ssuable shares [millions) 129 58
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for diluted eornings per share {millions}) 1,507 9 1,501 2
Diluted earnings per share {pence)
Continuing operations 238 207
Discontinued operations 09 01
Conhnuing and discontinved operations 247 208

Net asset value and tangible net asset value per share

Net asset value per share 1s caleulated as total shareholders’ equity divided by the number of Crdinary Shares of the end o

the penod excluding shares held by employee share trusts

Tangible net osset volue per share 1s colculated os tofal shareholders’ equity less goodwall and other intangible assets divided

by the number of Grdinary Shares at the end of the period excluding shares held by employee share trusts

The table below analyses net asset and langible net asset value per share

2014 203
At 31 December £m £m
Net assels 28105 27900
Goodwill and other intangible assets (517 5) {500 1}
Disposal group ~ intangible assets [note 5B) {5 6) -
Tangible net assets 2,287 4 2,286 ¢
Number of Ordinary Shares (millions} 1,5000 1,500 0
Shares held by employee share fusts {millions) (6 4) {52
Closing number of Ordinary Shares {milions) 1,493 6 1,404 8
Net asset value per share {pence] 1882 1866
Tangrble net asset value per share {pence) 153 1 153 2
Return on equity
The table below details the calculation of retun on equity
2014 2313
£m £m
Earmings afinbutable io owners of the Company 724 3128
Opening shareholders’ equity 2,790 0 2,831 6
Closing shareholders’” equity 28105 27900
Average shareholders’ equity 2,800 2 28108
Return on equity 133% 11 1%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

17 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Orther
inkangible
Goodwal ossets Torct
m £m m

Cost
At 1 January 2013 ! 3446 3204 6740
Effect of {orergn currency exchange adjusiment - 08 08
Addihons - 1155 155
Disposal of subsidhary {18) - (18
At 31 December 2013 3428 4457 7885
Effect of foreign currency exchange adjusiment - (26) {2 6)
Addihons - 928 928
Disposal of subsidiary’ (1101} {16 (1117}
Disposals and wite off? - {67 2} 167 2}
Transter to assets held for scle [note SB) (21 7} {38 ) (60 3}
At 31 December 2014 2110 428 5 639 5
Accumulated amorhisation and impairment
At} January 2013 1336 18¢ 2525
Chorge for the yeor reloling to continuing operahons - 337 337
Charge lor the yeor relohng io disconiinued operatrons - 35 35
Effect of foreign currency exchonge adjustment - 05 05
Disposal of subsichary {18} - It 8}
At 31 December 2013 1318 156 6 288 4
Charge for the year refaling to continuing operations - 569 569
Charge for the year relaling to discontinued operotions - 22 22
Effect of foreign currency exchange adjusiment - {22 22
Disposal of subsidiary’ {1101 0% {111 0)
Disposals and write-off? - (67 2} 167 2)
Impairment losses - 26 946
Transfer 1o assets held for sale {note 58} {21 7) (330) (54 7)
At 31 December 2014 - 1220 1220
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 2110 306 5 5175
At 31 December 2013 211 ¢ 2891 5001

Notes
1 Disposal of subsidicry relotes 1o the Tracker business
2 Disposals and wnieolf include fully omomised inangible assets no longer utilsed by the Gioup in 1its aperanng cciraties

Goodwill arose on the acquisiion of U K Insurance Limited {141 O million} and Churchill Insurance Company Limited
[£70 O milhon), which 1s allocoted across Motor, Home, Rescue and other personal lines and Commercial

The Group's goodwill 1s reviewed annually at 30 September lor impaimment by companng the recoverable amount of each
CGU 1o which goodwll has been allocated with its carnyng value and updated at each reporiing date in the event of indications
of imparrment
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The table below analyses the goodwill of the Group by CGU

2014 2013

£m £m
Motor 126 4 126 4
Home 458 458
Rescue and other personal lines 287 287
Commercial 101 101
Totadl 2110 2110

There have been no impairments 1n goodwill in the year ended 31 December 2014 {2013 nd)

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the CGU farr value less the costs 1o sell and iis valuen use Value in use 1s the present
value of expecled future cash Hows from the CGU Farr value 1s the amount obiainable for the sale of the CGU in an arm’s
tength ransaction between knowledgeable and willing parhes

The recoverable amounts of ol CGUs at 30 September were based on the valuen use tesi, using the Group's fiveryear
strategic plan The long term growth rates have been based on GDP rates adjusted for inflaton The nsk discount rates
incorporote observable marke! long term government bond yields and average indusiry betas adjusted for an eppropricte
nsk premium based on independent analysis

The table below details the recoverable amounts in excess of camrying value for the CGUs where goodwill 1s held

Sensitvity Impoct on

Assumplions racoverchie amount of o
Terminal Preqlax Recovaroble 1% decrecsen 1% increase in 1% decreose
growth discount amount in excess  terminal growth  predox discount in forecast
rale rate of camying volue e fole prert prohtt
CcGuU % % £m £ £m £m
Motor 30 11 8% Q14 2 (189 () (262 2 {25 8)
Home 30 11 8% o644 4 {67 8) {F3 2} {8 B}
Rescue and other personal lines 30 11 8% 6221 {55 7] {76 3) {7 O}
Commercial 30 i1 8% 133 4 (37 4) (51 71 i4 %)

Note
1 Reflects o 1% decrease in the prafit for each yeor of the fiveyeor forecast

www directlinegroup com

143

SJUSWSID)S [DIDUDULY




Notes to the consolidated hnancial statements continued

18 Property, plant and equipment

Freeho?cli lond Cher |
ard bu dlrégn? equrpmge::]l TOQ;?—,
Cost
A1 January 2013 44 1380 142 4
Addiions 109 28 2 K|
Disposals - {63 {6 3)
Disposal of subsidiary - Q2 02
Elfect of foreign currency exchange adjustment - 03 03
At 31 December 2013 153 1600 1753
Addiions 434 433 857
Disposals - {16 6) {16 6}
Acquistion ol subsidiciry 251 - 251
Disposal of subsidiary - (35 {3 5)
Effect of forergn currency exchange adjusiment - a7 17
Transfer 1o assets held for sale [note 58) - 27 2 {27 2)
At 31 December 2014 818 154 3 2381
Accumulated deprectation and impairment
At 1 January 2013 0o 491 500
Depreciation charge for the year relating to continuing operations 02 183 185
Depreciahon charge for the year relating to discontinued operations - 25 25
Disposats - (3 4) {3 4)
Impairment losses - 55 55
Disposal of subsidiary - 02 032
Effect of foreign currency exchonge adjustment - 01 01
At 31 December 2013 11 /19 730
Deprectahon charge for the year relating 1o continuing operations 06 220 226
Deprecichon chasge for the year relating to discontinued operahions - 30 30
Disposals - {163) {i63)
imparment losses - 01 01
Disposal of subsichary - 29 29
Effect of foreign currency exchange adjusimeni - {14) {14)
Transfer to assets held for sale {note 5B} - {21 3) {21 3}
At 31 December 2014 17 551 568
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 821 992 1813
At 31 December 2013 142 881 102 3
19 Investment property
2014 2013
£m £m
Al 1 Jonuary 2234 12B @
Additrons 762 870
Increase n fair value dunng the year 287 75
Disposals 211 -
At 31 December 307 2 223 4

Note
1 The cost included in corrying value ot 31 December 2014 15 £279 5 million (2013
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The nvesiment properties are measured at fair value which was amved of on the basis of o valuahion carned out at the balonce

sheet date by independent valuers

The valuotion conforms 1o international veluation standards The fair value was determined using o methodology bosed on recent
market ransachons for similar properties, which have been adjusted for the specific charactenstics of each property within the
porffolio This approach to valuahion 1s consistent with the methodology used in the year ended 31 December 2013

lease agreements with lenants are drawn up in line with local praciice and the Group has no exposure to leases that include

conhngent rents

20 Subsidiaries

The principal subsidiary underiakings of the Group are shown below Their copilal consists of ardinary shares which are unhsted

Direct Line Versicherung AG, DL Insurance Services bmided and U K Insurance bimited are owned duectly by Direct Line Insurance
Group plc Direct Line Insurance S p A 15 owned indirecily through intermediary holding comparies Al subsidianes are included

i the Group's consolidated finanaial information

Type of
Place of mesrparanon awnership nferest Propoion of
Nome of subsidiory and operatien {share npe) vonng power held Prnaipal actary
Direct Line Insurance S p A haly Ordinary 100% General insurance
Direct Line Versicherung AG Germany Ordinary 100% General insurance
DL hsurance Services Limited Great Britenn Cicinary 100% Management services
U K tnsurance Limited Greot Bntain Ordinary 100% General insurance

The above information 1s provided in relalion to prncipal refated underakings as permitied by Section 410{2} of the Companies
Act 2006 Full information on dll related undertakings 15 included in the Annual Return avalloble from Companies House by

visting www companieshouse gov uk

On 25 September 2014, the Group entered into a binding agreement for the sale, subject to regulatory approval, of ifs
Infernahonal business comprising Drrect Line Insurance S p A and Direct Line Versicherung AG for a cash consideration of

€550 O milhion {£430 1 million}

The Group sold 100% of the share capital of Tracker Network (LK) bimited on 5 February 2014 The fair value of the identifiable
assets sold was £@ 2 milhion fincluding cash and cash equivalents of £2 4 million} and the farr value of the identtiable liabdiies
was £8 8 million The total cash consideranon receved was £2 7 million, generating a profit on disposal of £2 3 mdlion
Tracker generated other income of £1 4 mdlion up to the point of sale [full yeor 2013 £18 4 million) and an operahing loss

of 80 4 million (2013 £1 4 million)

The Group sold 100% of the shase copital of Direct Line i Insurance Company Limited on 28 November 2013 The far
value of the identhable assels sold was £159 4 milhon including cash and cash equivalents of £20 5 milhon) and the farr
value of identhable liabilihes was £132 1 million The total cash consideration received was £39 3 million, generating o proht
on disposal of £12 O million The Lite business, in 2013, generated a gross eomed premum of £35 @ million, net earned
premum of £14 6 mifien and operating proft of £7 6 mifion up to the pont of sale

The Group did not dispose of ony other subsidianes in the two years ended 31 December 2014

The Group ocquired 100% of the share capital of 10-15 Livery Stieet, Bimingham UK Limited on 22 December 2014 for
£26 1 million The forr value of the identthcation assets acquired was £26 2 milhon (including cash and cash equivalents of
£1 1 million and the fair value of identifiable habiliies was £0 1 mithion) The total cash consideration paid was £26 1 mithon
10-15 Livery Street, Birmingharm UK himited owns a property occupied by the Group and has no other trading achvihies
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements coniinued

21 Remsurance assets

2014 2013
£m £m
Remnsurers' share of general insurance liabilites {including uneamed premivm reserve) 9289 1,064 2
[mpairment provision (66 4) (53 2)
Total' 862 5 1,011 0
Nz
1 Included in the disposcl group [nate 5B} 15 £183 O million which has been #ransferred from reinsurance assets at 31 December 2014
Movements in reinsurance asset imparrment provision
2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 January (53 2) {60 7}
Addihonal provision {141) {3 5
Utihsation of provision - 20
Release to income stotement 09 Q0
At 31 December {66 4) (53 2)
22 Deferred acquisition costs
2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 January 3215 3276
Net increase / (decrease) i the year 54 {7 3
Effect of foreign currency exchange adusiment (7 4) 12
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 58} {111 1} -
At 31 December 208 4 3215
23 Insurance and other receivables
2014 2013
£m £m
Recewables ansig from insurance and reinsurance contracts
Due from peheyholders 7907 927 Q
Impairment of policyhalder recevables (04 {7 &)
Due from agents, brokers and intermedianes 537 534
Impairment of agent, broker and ntermediary recevables {07) (G 5)
Due from reinsurers 34 123
Other loans and recevables
Accrued mnterest - 12
Recevables from related parties - 09
Other debiors' 854 127 4
Total? 9599 11220

Notes
1 2013 included £42 1 milbon in respect of a deposi for the purchase of ownerotcupied property
2 Included in the disposal group Inote 58115 £91 1 miflion which has been ransferred from insuranca and other recevables of 31 December 2014
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24 Derivative financial instruments

2014 2013
£m £m
Derivahve assets
At fair value through the income statement 249 407
Designated as hedging mstruments 24 -
Total 273 407
Dervative liabilities
At farr value through the income stalement 293 178
Designated os hedging instruments 01 15
Total 294 193

The Group entered inlo o foreign currency hedge contract in Seplember 2014, convering Euro to Pounds Sterling in respect of
the expecied proceeds in relation to the binding agreement for the sale of the Internahonal business Other designaled hedging
msiruments have been entered inio relating fo supplier payments

25 Financial investments

2014 2013
£m £m

AFS debt securihies
Corporale 41171 4,878 1
Supranational 1763 3657
local government 1207 134 5
Sovereign 9938 1,399 5
Secunhsed credit 422 4 2277
Total 58303 7,005 5
AFS debt securities
Fixed interest rate 51473 6,468 4
Floahng interest rate 6830 5371
Total 58303 20055
Loans and receivables
Deposits with credit nshiuiions with maluriies in excess of three months 547 4357
Infrasiructure debt 762 -
Totalt 5,961 2 7.441 2
Note

1 Included in the disposal group {note 58115 £706 @ milion which has been transferred from financiol nvestments ar 31 December 2014

26 Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings

2014 2013

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 1513 3075
Shostierm deposils with credl institutions 7291 6008
Total 880 4 Q008 3

The effective interest rate on shortterm deposits wath credtt inshiukions for the year ended 31 December 2014 was 0 61%
{2013 0 41%) ond average matunity wos 10 days {2013 14 doys)

The ioble below detalls cash and bank overdiafts for the purposes of the cash flow siatement

204 2013

£m £m

Cosh and cash equwalents 880 4 Q08 3
Bank overdrafts’ (69 B} {55 1}
Cash and cash equivalents in assets held for sale {note 58] 8746 -
Total 898 2 8532

Motz

1 Bank overdrafts represant shortterm timing differences between ransachians posted in the records of the Group and transections flewing through the oecounts ot
the bank
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Notes to the consolhidated financial statements continued

27 Share capital

2014 2013
£m £m

Issued and fully pard equity shares
1 5 tullion Ordinary Shares of 10 pence each 1500 1500

Employee trust shares
The Group sotishes share-based payments under the Group’s share plans pnmardy through shares purchased in the market and
held by employee share trusts

At 31 December 2014, 6,391,506 Ordinary Shares {2013 5,204,771} were owned by the employes share trusts with o
costof £13 & million (2013 £10 2 million} with an undertoking to sohshy the awerds of shares in the Company under the
Group's share plans

These shares were purchased by the employee share trusts and are carred at cost At 31 December 2014, they had an
aggregate nominat value of £0 6 millien (2013 £0 5 million} and a market value of £18 & millien (2013 £13 C million)

28 Other reserves
Movements 1n the revaluahion reserve for AFS investmenis

2014 2013

£m £m

At 1 January 588 158 8

Revaluaton during the yeer — grass 972 {108 2)

Revaluahon duning the yeor ~ lax (232 277

Rechsed gains - gross (228} 239

Realised gains — tax 56 58

Realised gain on disposal of subsidiary — gross - {18

Realised gain on disposa of subsichary — lax - 04

At 31 December 2014 1156 58 8
Movements in the non-distributable reserve

2014 2013

£m £m

At 1 January 928 632

Transter from efeined earmings . 321 296

Al 31 December 1249 928

The non distnbutable reserve relates to a UK statutory claims equalisation reserve that s caleulated in occordance with the rules
of the PRA

29 Subordinated liabilihes

2014 2013
£m Em
Subordinated guoranteed dated notes 5263 4866

The suboidinated guaranieed dated notes were 1ssued on 27 Apnl 2012 at a fixed rate of @ 25% On the same dale, the
Group also entered into a 10vear hedge 1o exchange the fixed rate of mierest for o lloating rate of treemonth LBOR plus o
spread of 706 bps

Dunng 2013, a credit value adjustment was made to the nterest rote hedge 1o reflect the market value of counterparty credit nsk
resulting kom the majonty divestiment frorm RBS Group This has resulted in an ncrease in the Hoating rate to threemonth LIBOR
plus a spread of 707 bps with effect from 29 July 2013

The nominal £500 million notes have a redemption date of 27 Aprd 2042 The Group hos the option io repoy the noles on
specific dates from 27 Apnl 2022 If the noles are not repard on that date, the rate of inferest will be reset at a rate of the
sixmonth LBOR plus 7 91%

The notes are unsecured, subordinated obhgations of the Group, and rank pan possu without any preference among themselves
In the evenl of a windingup or of bankiuptcy, they are 1o be repaid only after the claims of all other servor creditors have been met

The Group has the option 1o daler nierest payments in certon circumstances on the notes but 1o dale has not exercised this nght
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30 Insurance liabilities, unearned premium reserve and remnsurance ossets

2014

2013

£m £m
Insurance habilities 46741 5757 4
Gross nsurance habilites (including unearmed premium reserve|
Gross insurance habiliies 46741 5,757 4
Uneamed premium reserve 1,4342 1,818 7
Total 61083 75761
Remnsurers’ share of insurance liabibihes (including rensurance unearned premium reserve)
Rensurers’ share of insurance habilities {775 5) {217 3}
Uneamed premium reserve {87 0) 123 7}
Total (8625) (1,011 Q)
Net insurance liabilthes (including unearned premium reserve)
MNet insurance habilimes 38986 48401
Unearned premium reserve 1,347 2 1,7250
Total 52458 6,565 1
Gross insurance liabilies
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2013 2014 Total
Accident year £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Estimnate of ulkmale
claims costs
At end of accident
year 40075 40916 4,3205 38781 41480 42619 30805 27973 26525 24980
One year loter (1758 (2661 (620) 232 1200 @8 1) {128 %)
Two years later a1 7y 1420 {t 1} 43¢ 425y 11153} -
Three years later I57¢) 11760 494 (3B3) (242} (551 -
Four years later 595 101 o {220 11018 {1053 -
Five years loter 153 216 {78 (579 (407} -
Six years later 78 @1 (2631 {453} - -
Seven years later 54 (134} {201 - - -
Exght years later (34 4) 23 - - - -
Nine years later 03 - - - - -
Cunrent eshmate of
cumulotive claims 35670 37342 43056 3,7817 4,0588 38881 28073 25073 25240 24980
Cumulative payments
to dote {3,456 433,533 G4 {4,056 5}{3,570 9){3,67F 4} (3,462 0](2,340 6](2,029 9}{1,734 0}{1,150 O}
Transler to liabilihes
held for sale 49 {186 114 (2000 (165) (229 9721 {208 &)
Liability recognised in
balance sheet 1057 1817 2377 1908 3629 4032 6928 1,1394 41517
2004 and pnor! 4176
Clauns handhing
provision! 1048
Total A,674 1
Naote

1 Included in the disposal group [ncte 5B) in 2014 hiabilties he'd for sole 15 £46 7 milion [£28 5 millon relating to 2004 ond pror ond £18 2 milien releting 10
claims hondling prowisron] which hes been transferrad frem insurance habilnes
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

30 Insurance habilites, unearned premium reserve and reinsurance assets continued
Net insurance habilihes

2005 2006 2007 2008 20009 2010 2013 202 2013 2014 Tokal

Accident year £m £m £m i £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Eshmate of ulimate
claims coslis

Atend of acaident

year 38696 40308 4,341 3 38160 41130 42193 20461 25701 24015 22007

One yeor later 1593 {2497, (817 241 700 {1097y 193} 11578 (1283 -

Two years later 594 527 (233} 82 {230) 1364) (B8} (1095} - -

Three years later 620) 28 2} 177 (2485 6420 {485 |78 3) - - -

Four yeors later 61 6} Q@Q (104} 1512y (675 (928 - - - -

Five years later 72 4335 224 {512] {308} - - - - -

Six years loter o4y 210, 212 (311} - - - - - -

Seven years later (122 1421 (167 - - - - - - -

Eight years later 27 1) 38 - - - - - - - -

Nine years later 24 - - - - - - - - -
Current! estimale of
cumulabive claims 33972 36352 41833 3,6903 3,9975 38319 26604 23028 22732 22007
Cumulative payments
to date {3,325 9}(3,485 1}[3,990 3}{3,531 113,646 1}13,444 () (2,244 31{1,205 4}{1,611 4}{1,053 4}
Transfer to iabiines /
assets held for sale MQ {126} (1135 (771 4635 227y 1319 (413) {615 (1404)
Lability recognised i
balonce sheet 66 4 1375 1815 1415 3349 3652 3842 3561 4003 1,0159 3,5835
2004 and prior! 2103
Claims handling
provision’ 1048
Total 38986
MNeote

1 included in the dispesol group (note 58} in 2014 hobrines held for safa 1s £46 7 millon (£28 5 million reloing to 2004 and pror and £18 2 millon relating to
clams handiing provision] and assets held for sala of £14 1 millon [reloting to 2004 and prior rensurancel which have been ransferred from insurance labilites

and reinsurance ossefs respecively
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Movements in insurance habilihes and retnsurance assets

Giross Reinsurance Nat
£m €m £m
Claims reported 39693 {397 8) 35715
Incurred but not reported 21539 {511 8 1,642 3
Claims handling provision 1638 - 1638
Liabilty adequacy provision 43 - 43
At 1 January 2013 6,291 3 1GOQ 4) 53819
Cash paid for claims settfed in the year (2,852 1) 1491 (2,703 O}
increase / |decreasel in habilihes
Ansing from currentyear clams 2,894 2 (2509  2,6433
Ansing from prior year claims (583 9) 967 {487 2)
Effect of forexgn currency exchange adusiment 122 (2 8) o4
Decrease in liability adequacy prowvision {43) - {43
At 31 December 2013 5757 4 217 3 4,840 1
Closms reported 3,6364 1467 5) 3,168 G
(ncurred but not reporied 1,9927 {449 B) 1,542 9
Cloims handling provision 128 2 - 128 3
At 31 December 2013 5757 4 {217 3} 4,840 1
Cash paid for claims setiled in the year (2.671 6} 181 2 (2,490 4)
Increase / Idecrease) n habilites
Arsing from curentyear cloims 27213 {288 3 2,4330
Ansing from prior yeor cloims {538 5} 776 (440 9)
Effect of foreign currency exchonge adjusiment (41 1) 115 {29 &)
Transfer to (iabiiities) / assets held for sale [note 5B) {553 4} 159 8 (393 ¢)
At 31 December 2014 4,6741 (775 5) 38986
Claims reporied 2,791 (3153) 24758
Incurred but not reported 1,7782 (460 2) 1,3180
Clams handling provision 1048 - 1048
At 31 December 2014 42,6741 {775 5) 38986
Movement in prior-year net claims ligbilikes by operahng segment
2014 2013
£m £m
Molor (2784) 2919
Horne {49 8) 43 3)
Rescue and other personal lines {157 @0
Commercigl {537) 51 6}
Tolal ongoing (397 &) (395 8)
Run off (532 {52 1}
Discontinued — Infernational (1o0m {39 3}
Total {460 9} 487 2)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

30 Insurance liabiliies, unearned premium reserve and reinsurance assets confinued
Movement in unearned premium reserve

Gross Rexnsurance Net
£m £m £m

At 1 Janvary 2013 1,8729 @7 Q) 1.7750
Net movement in the year 61 8} 50 {56 8)
Effect of foreign currency exchange adjustment 76 {0 8) 68
At 31 December 2013 1,8187 93 7 17250
Net movement in the year (334 (18 4) (520}
Effect of foreign currency exchange adusiment {24 9) 21 (22 8)
Transter lo (habidies) / ossets held for sale [note 5B} {326 2} 232 (303 0}
At 31 December 2014 1,434 2 87 0} 1,347 2
31 Ufe nsurance habilies and rensurance assets
Movements in life insurance habilihes and reinsurance assets

Gross Reinsurance Net

£m £m £m

At 1 January 2013 102 ¢ @1 1) 118
Prowisions in respect of new and existing business 345 (21 4) 131
Expected change in exisiing business provisions (19 8) 173 {2 3]
Yanance betwveen aclual and expected expenence 30} (50 {80
Other movements 137 - 13 7)
Disposal’ {1109} 100 2 {107}

At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 - - -

Nate
1 The Group's life business was sold en 28 November 2013

32 Rehrement beneht obligations

Defined contribution scheme

The pension charge for continuing operations n respect of the defined coninbution scheme for the yeor ended 31 December 2014
was £19 2 millon {2013 £23 @ milhon] The charge for discontinued operations was £1 8 million (2013 £1 4 mulhion)

Dehined beneht scheme

The Group's defined benefit pension scheme was closed 1in 2003 although the Group 1emains the sponsornng employer for
obhgatons 1o curent and delerred pensioners bosed on quolibying years” service and final salones The defined benefit scheme 15
legally separated from the Group with trustees who are required by law to act in the inlerests of the scheme and cof alt the relevant
stakeholders The trustees of the pension scheme ore responsible for the mvesiment policy with regard to the assets of the scheme

The weighted average duraton of the defined benefit obligottons ot 31 December 2014 15 20 years {2013 20 years} using
accounhng assumphons

The table below sets out the principal assumphons used 1 determining the defined benelit scheme cbligations

2014 2013

% %

Rote of increose in pension payment 21 21
Rate of increase of deferred pensions 21 26
Discount rale 34 44
Inflation rate 31 35

Neo assumphon has been made for salary growth as there are no obligations in the scheme thot are Iinked 1o future Increases
in solaries
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Post-retirement morfahiy assumphons

.0 F | 2013
lfe expectancy at age &0 now
Moles 885 884
Fermales 902 Q01
lfe expeciancy ot age 60 n 20 years' ime
Males %04 903
Females 923 922
The table below analyses the foir value of the scheme ossets by type of asset
20%4 2013
£m £m
Equities 30 35
Index hinked bonds 222 131
Government bonds 128 57
Corporale bonds 44 4 420
Other 07 08
Total 831 660
The majonty of debt and equity instruments have quoted prices on active markets
Movement i nel pension surplus / [dehcit)
Present value of
Fairvalug of  defined benefit Nel pensian
defined berefi scheme wrFlus
scheme assets abligatians / {detica)
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 637 61 2) 25
Income statement
Net interest income / [cost}! 23 2 7) [0 4)
Statement of comprehensive income
Actuanal losses ansing from expenence adjusiments {13 02 1 5)
Actuanal losses ansing from changes i iinancial assumptions - 4 4) (4 4)
Actuanal losses ansing from changes in demographic assumphons - nao 110}
Coninbutons by employer 28 - 28
Benehis paid {15) 15 -
At 31 December 2013 660 {68 0} (20}
Income statement
Net interest income / {cosi)! 29 (30) o
Stolement of comprehensive income
Actuanal gains ansing from expenence odjustments 129 XY 139
Actuaral losses ansing from changes in hinanciol assumptions - (11 11}
Contibutions by employer 28 ’ - 28
Benelits patd {15} 15 -
At 31 December 2014 831 {79 &) 35
Note
1 The ncome / [cosd in the income statement has been tncluded under other operating expenses
The table below defails the histosy of the scheme for the current and pror years
2013 2012 201 200
Em £m £m €m
Present volue of defined beneht scheme obhigations 168 0} {61 2j (54 1) |54 5)
Farr value of defined benefit scheme assets 660 637 567 544
Net surplus / {dehail) 2 0 25 26 {0 1)
Expernience odjusiment gans / {losses) on scheme liabilihes {02 0 04 05
Expenence adjusiment gains / {losses) on scheme assets 13 22 2 6 31
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Notes to the consolidated finanaial statements continued

32 Rehrement benefit obligations contnued
Sensihvity analysis

The table below provides a sensitivity analysis of the potential impact of a change i a single factor with all other assumphons
left unchanged Other patential nsks beyond the ones descnibed in the table could have an addiional inancial impact on the
Group This sensitvity analysis hos been selected 1o reflect the changes to discounted cosh flows as o result of changes 1o the

discount rote, mflation rate ond mortality assumplions The methodology adopted involves acivanal lechniques

impodt on present value
of defined benefit

Impact on pension cost scheme abligations
2014 2003 2014 2013
£m m £m £m
Discount rate
0 25% increase in discount rate 02 02 (4 1) (3 5)
0 25% decreose in discount rate 01 01 41 36
Inflation rate
0 25% increase in nflaton rate - - 21 18
0 25% decreose i inflation rate - - 21 (1 8
Life expectancy
1 year mcrease n e expectoncy 01 01 18 15
1 year decrease in life expectancy on {01 (18 &)

The Group 1s currently undertaking o funding valuation ef the defined benelit scheme at | October 2014, the results of which are
due io be presented o the Group n 2015 The Group agreed with the lrustees after the funding valuation of 1 Ociober 2011 to
make connbutions of £2 8 million per annum unhl 2016 to meet the scheme’s funding requirements Any changes ansing from

the valuation at 1 October 2014 will be discussed with the trustees

33 Share-based payments

The Group operaies equitysetiled, sharebased compensation plans in the form of a Llong Term Incentive Plon, Reshcted Shares
Plan, Direct line Group Share Incenve Plans, including both the Free Share awards and Buy As You Earn Plan, and the Deferred

Annucl Incentive Plon, details of which are set out belew together wath therr hinancial impaci

Long-Term Incenhve Plan

Semior management are eligible to parhicipate in the LTIP and awards are granted i the form of nibcost options Under the plan,
lhe shares vest at the end of a three-year period dependent upon the tollowing  continued employment by the Group and

achieving predelined pedormance conditons associated with TSR and RoTE

Awards were made in the year ended 31 December 2014 over 2 2 million Ordinary Shares wath an estimated foir value of
grant of £4 3 million n March 2014 (2013 3 O million Ordinary Shares with an estmated farr volve at grant of £4 9 million}
and 2 O milhen Ordinary Shares with an estimated fair value ot grant of £4 7 million 1in August 2014 [2013 2 5 millien

Ordinary Shares with an eshmated fai volue of grant of £4 3 million)

The estimated fair value of the ITIP share owards with marketbosed performance condihons was coleulaled using the Monte-Carlo

simulahon model

The table below deiails the inputs nto the model

014 2013
Woeighted average assumphions during the yeor

Share price 270p 208p
Exercise pnce Op Op
Volatlity of Company share price 26% 26%
Average comparator volathity 30% 32%
Expected lie 3 years 3 years
Riskfree rate 1% 05%

As only Iimited historic data 15 avallable for the Group, expected volahlity was determined by coleuloting the median husionc
volatility for @ group of comparable componies using daily share price data over a penod commensurate with the expecied he

assumption These comparable companies are clossihied as being in the insurance secior m the FISE 350
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Plan participants are entilled 1o recerve addiional shares in respect of dvidends paid to shareholders over the vesting penod
Therefore no deduction has been made from the tair value of awards i respect of dividends

Expected hfe was bosed on the contactuol lfe of the awards and adjusted based on management’s best estimate, for the effects
of exercise resinehons and behavioural considerations

Restricted Shares Plan

The purpose af the Restncted Shares Plan 15 to enable share-based awards to be made to employees of the Group who are
newly recruted and to enable ad hoc share awards to exishng employees These owards con be granted at any ime durning the
year, generally hove no performance crileno attached and vest over penods ranging betwveen one and three years from the date
of the granl, subject to continued employment During the year awords were made over 0 5 million Ordinary Shares {2013 il
under thes plan with an estimated fair value of £1 4 millon (2013 nil} esimated using the market valve at the date of giant

RBS Group LTIP awards

Prior to IPO in October 2012, certain employees benefited kom sharebased awaids onginally gronted by RBS Group RBS
Group indemnitied Direct Line Group for alf future costs in respect of RBS Group sharebased awards made lo Direct Line Group
employees All costs in respect of these share awards for Direct Line Group employees have since been bome by RBS Group

In aceordance with the above, the RBS Group Remunerchon Committee has agreed that RBS Group would be responsible for
the setilement of the outstanding LTIP awards in the year ended 31 December 2012, expected 1o vest in March 2015, with no
charge to be made to Direct line Group  These 2012 LTIP awards will be settfed with Company Ordinary Shares currently held
by RBS Group Further details of the RBS Group legacy sharebased payments are set out in the Directors” remuneration report

Direct Line Group Share Incentve Plans - Free Share awards

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2012, upon listing on the London Stock Exchange, the Group offered all employees a
Free Share oward gronting shores 1o the value of £250 1o each eligible employee free of charge These awards hove no
performance critena attached, vest on the thurd annversary of the award grant date subject lo completion of three years'
continuing employment {or on leaving employment in certoin circumstances} and will be satished using morket purchased shares
The number of shares nimally granted was 1 @ milion with an estmated far value of £3 9 million

in adddon 1o the cbove, the Group announced 1ts intention during December 2014 o offer ¢ Free Share award with @ value of
£400 1o all UK bosed employees This award will be made dunng March 2015 and wall be sohshed using market purchased shares

Direct Line Group Share Incentive Plans — Buy-As-You-Earn Plan
The Buy-As-You Earn Plan in the UK and an Inlernational plan for ltaly, miroring the UK plan, were both launched during the year
ended 31 December 2013

This plan enhiles employees to purchase shares from pre-tox pay for between £10 and £125 per month, or Euro equivalent,
and receve one matching share for every two shares purchased The imit of £125 per month was subsequently increased to
£150 per month 1n January 201 5 following changes in legrislation duning 2014

fn the year ended 31 December 2014, maiching share awards were granted over O 3 million Ordinary Shares
{2013 0O 3 milhon Ordinary Shares} with an eshmated fair value of £0 8 millon (2013 £0 6 million} The fair value
of each matching share award 15 estmated using the market value ot the date of grant

Under the plan the shares vest at the end of o three-year pertod dependent upon the following  continued employment with the
Group for on leaving employment in cerlain circumstances) and continued ownesship of the ossociated purchased shares vp o
the powt of veshing

Deferred Annual incentive Plan
Executive Directors and cerlain members of semor management are eligible for awards under the Annual Incentive Plan, of which
at least 40% 1s granted in the form of a nilcost ophion under the Deferred Annual Incentive Plan

In March 2014 awards were made over 1 1 milion Ordinary Shares (2013 1 1 million Ordinary Shares) under this plan with
an eshimoted fair value of £2 & mihon (2013 £2 2 million} estimated using the market value at the date of grant

The awards outstanding at 31 December 2014 have no performance crieno atioched, other than the requirement tha the
employee remains in employment with the Group for three years fom the dale of award
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

33 Share-based payments continued
The following table details the oulstanding numbser of share awards in ssue {all rikcost options)

Number of Numbar of
share options  share options

million miflion

2014 2013
At ¥ January 114 5]
Giranted dunng the year 61 6%
Forfeited dunng the year {08} [0 4)
Exercised duning the year (03 102
At 31 December 16 4 114
Exercisable of 31 December 03 02

in respect of the oulslanding options ot 31 December 2014, the weighled average remaining confraciucl hfe 1s 1 66 years
{2013 2 20 years) No share ophons expired dunng the year (2013 nl]

The weighled average share prce for awards exercised during the year ended 31 December 2014 was £2 56 (2013 £2 17/}

The Gioup recognised lofal expenses in the year ended 31 December 2014 of £6 6 million (2013 £4 1 millon] relating
lo equitysetied share-based compensation plans

Further information on share-based payments in respect of Directors 1s provided in the Directors’ remyneration report

34 Trade and other payables including insurance payables

204 2003

£m £m

Due to agents, brokers and intermedianes 193 6?2
Due to reinsurers 570 810
Due to insurance companies 53 136
Due to reloted parhes - 587
Trade credilors and accruals 3428 2558
Other crediors 965 174 3
Other taxes 550 BO &
Provisions 794 134 €
Deferred income 53 132
Total! 660 6 8183

Note

1 Inclded in the disposal group {note 58] 1s £82 O million which has been rransferred from rade and ather payables including insurance oavables at 31
December 2014

Movement in provisions during the year

Regulatory levies  Restruchunng Other' Total

£m £m Lm £m

At 1 January 2014 273 336 740 1349
Additonal provision 334 137 47 2 943
Utlisation of provision {34 2) {31 4) (437 {109 3}
Released to income statement - (7 5) (330 {40 5}
At 31 December 2014 265 84 445 794

Note
1 Other provisions include £1 9 million {2013 £22 5 mellion) for costs associoted with onercus contracts in respect of feasehold properies
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35 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

2014 , 2013
£m £m
Prohit kor the year 3726 3128
Adjusiments for
Invesiment iIncome (1910 [18B &)
Instalment income (1052) 17 8)
Other operaling losses 66 07
Investment property revaluations {26 4) 7 5)
Finance costs 372 377
Equitysetiled sharebased payment ransachons &6 41
Tox charge 1052 BRI
Depreciahon and amorhsation expenses 848 582
Impeirment of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and inlangible ossets 926 55
Reversal of impairment losses on financial investments {13) -
Impaoirment movemenls on rainsurance confracts 132 {7 5}
Impoirment losses on assets held for sale 96 -
Profit on sale of AFS financiel nvestments {228) {257
loss on sale of property, plont and equipment 03 29
Profit on sale of invesiment property {23 -
Profit on disposal of subsidiary {23) 120
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 294 4 1736
Movements in working capital
Net decrease in net insurance labilines including reinsurance assets ond deferred acquisihon costs (589 0) 594 8)
Net increase in prepaymenis and occme_d income and oiher assels (191) {131}
Net decrease in insurance and other recewvohbles 592 343
Net [decrease} / increase in hade and other payables including insurance payables {57 9) 1759
Contnbution 1o retrement benehil obligatons (28) {2 8)
Cash used by operahons {3152 {226 &}
Toxes pod (94 8) {80 2}
Cash flow hedges (0 6) 02
Net cash flow used by operating activities before investment of insurance assets {410 6) 1307 O}
Inlerest receved 358 5 5742
Rental income receved from investment property 162 11 4 T
Purchases of mvesiment property {76 2) {87 0l 2
Proceeds on disposal of invesiment property 211 - 2
Proceeds on disposal / matunty of AFS financial invesiments 31410 3,147 8 o
Net decrease in investiment foans and recevables 3048 209 3 ?D—
Purchases of AFS financial invesiments (26443} (34227 2
Cash generated from investment of insurance assets 1,121 1 4330 =

36 Contingent liobilihes
The Group did not have any contingent labiliies at 31 December 2014 (2013 none)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

37 Commuitments
Operating lease commitments
The Group has enlered cancellable and rorrcancellable operaimg lease agreements for properies, vehicles and other assets

2014 2013
Conhnuing operations £m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 256 3272

The minimum lease payments under operaiing leases recognised as an expense in the yeor m relation 1o disconinued operations
15 £2 5 million (2013 £2 8 million}

The following table analyses the outstanding commuments under cancelloble and noncancelloble operating leases by the period
in which they fall due

2014 2013
Continuing operahons £m £m
Within one year 171 269
In the second to fifth years inclusive 551 786
Aller hve years 1762 241 1
Total 248 4 46 6

The outstanding commiments in relation o discontinued operahons are £11 5 mifhon (2013 £17 1 million) of which £1 6
million {2013 £2 9 milton) 1s payeble within one yeor, £5 4 million [2013 £6 4 millien) 1s payoble in the second to hitth years
end £4 5 milhon {2013 £7 8 millon} 1s payable ofter ive years

Operating lease commitments where the Group 1s the lessor
The following table andlyses fulure cggregate minimum lease poymens recervable under non cancellable opercting leases in
respecl of property leased to third party tenants

2014 2013
Conhnuing operations £m £m
Within one year 146 133
In the second 1o hith years inclusive 517 453
After five years 996 859
Total 1659 144 5

There were no commiments by third parties to make lease paymenis to the Group's disconimued operatons at 31 December 2014
(2013 Enil)
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38 Fair value

The methodology adopled by the Group for fair value measurement of investment propertes, financial assets and habilites ond

the bosis for determining farr value hierarchy are explained in nole 2 3

Comparison of carrying value o fair value of hnancial instruments

The following table compares the corrying value and the fair value of financial instruments {excluding the disposal group — note
5B} Differences arise where the measurement basis of the asset or hiability is not farr value fe g assets / liobiles camed at

amortised cost)

Far value  Carnyng vabe Farvalue  Camyng volue
2004 X004 2013 20013
£m €m £m £m
Financial assets
Denvative assets (note 24} 273 273 407 407
AFS debt securtiesi{note 25) 58303 5,8303 70055 70055
Deposits with credit inshiutions with matuniies i excess of three months
{nole 25) 547 547 4357 4357
Infrastruclure debt [note 25) 760 7672 - -
Financal liabilihes
Subordinated liabihnes (note 29} 6519 5263 6254 486 6
Denvative habilites [note 24) 294 294 193 193
Note

1 Included in the disposal group {note 5B} n 2014 are AFS debt secunues with a foir value and carying volue of £706 ¢ million that ore excluded from the

AFS debt secunies abave

Fan values of the tollowing assets ond Liabilthes [including assets and habilihes held in the dispasa! group ~ note 58) opproximate

therr carrying values

+ Insuronce and other recesvables
» Cash and cash equivalents

* Borrowings

» Trade and other payables including insurance poyables {excluding provisions)

Fair value hierarchy analysss

The following tables analyse the Gioup’s ossets and habiliies camed atfarr valve [excluding the disposal group — note 5B}

by reference to the Group's fair value hierarchy

level 1 laval 2 lavel 3 Totol
At 31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m
Investment property [nole 19} - - 307 2 3072
Dernvative assets [nole 24} - 273 - 273
AFS debi secunties'{note 25} 9854 48447 - 58303
Total 9854 48720 307 2 46,1648
Denvative habilies [note 24} - 294 - 294
Totdl - 294 - 294
Note

1 Included in the disposal group fnote 58 in 2014 ore AFS dabt secunues of £706 9 midlion, that are axcluded from the cotegonsaion of AFS debt secunnes

above, of which £31 @ mullion 1s categonsed os level 1 end £675 O milles 1s categonsed as levet 2 vathin ihe farr volue hierorchy

. level 1 levet 2 level 3 Tokal
At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m
Invesiment property [note 19} - - 223 4 2234
Dernivative assets (note 24} - 07 - 407
AFS debt secunties {note 2.5} 1,393 7 56118 - 70055
Total 1,337 53,6525 2234 72696
Denvatve labilies [note 24) - 193 - 193
Total - 193 - 193

The movements in assets clossified as level 3 in the foir value hierarchy are all wathin Invesiment property which are analysed
in note 19 There were no changes in the caiegonsation of assets between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year for assets and

abilihes held at 31 Decamber 2013
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

39 Related parties

On 27 February 2014, RBS Group announced the completion of the sale of its remasning interest of 423 2 milhon Ordinary
Shares in the Company

RBS Group has now sold alf its Ordinary Shares 1n the Company except for the shares held io sausty long term incentive plan
awards gronted by RBS Group 1o Direct Line Group management

Transactions with RBS Group in the year ended 31 December 2014 were similar in nature 1o those for the year ended
31 December 2013 However, lollowing the sale on 27 February 2014, ransactions with RBS Group ore no longer included
in the tables below, as the related pariy relaionship ceased from the sole date

Transachons with related parhes

2014 2013
£m £m
Scle of insurance confracts and other services 03 32
Purchase of services 197 1458
Sofe and puichase of products and services are conducied on an arm’s length basis
Year end refated balances arising from cash and investment transachions with related parties
2014 2013
£m £m
Cosh at bank - 647
Bank overdrahts - (55 1}
Denvahve financial assets - 200
Denvative financial liabifities - {18 5}
Term deposits - 350
AFS debt secunhes - 48 6
Tofat - Q47

Year end balances ansing from sales and purchases of products and services to and from related parties

Amounts owed by related ponies  Amounts owed 1o related pories

2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £
Total 02 09 254 587

Movement in amounts owed by / to related parties

Amounts owed by reloted pormes Amounis owed 1o reloted pories

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m Em £m Em

At 1 January 09 51 587 347

Transackons in the year 01 02 191 147 1

Setiled m the year {0 8} |4 4) (52 4) 123 1

At 31 December 02 09 254 587
Compensction of key management

2014 2013

£m £m

Shortterm employee benefits 102 Q1

Postemployment benefits 03 02

Terminahon benehts 04 02

Share based payments 34 19

Total 143 1t 4

40 Post balance shest events

On 13 January 2015 the Group announced its inlention to close its sites at Pudsey and vacate the premises, with ofl roles being
transferred o the Group's leeds offices These sites which are owned by the Group hove been impared in 2015 by
approximalely £22 O millhion Marketing of these sites wall begin shortly
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Parent Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m Em
Assets
investment in subsidiary underiakings i 30650 31815
Other recevables 4 5233 5288
Current tax assets 5 12 16
Denvative financial instruments 6 24 -
Financial investments 7 51 -
Cash and cash equivalents 8 512 68
Assets held for sole 3 1148 -
Total assets 3,7630 3,718 7
Equity
Share capital 9 1500 1500
Capital redemplion reserve 1,4500 1,450 0
Sharehosed payment reserve 25 39
Cash flow hedging reserve 12 -
Retained eainings 1,647 5 1,611
Total equity 3,258 2 3,215 8
Lihilihes
Subordinated liabibties 10 5031 502 4
Dervative financial instruments 6 06 -
Trade and other payables 11 11 05
Total liabilihes 5048 5029
Total equity and liabilihes 3,7630 3,7187

The aflached nofes on pages 163 1o 166 form an integral part of these separale financial statements

The hnoncral statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 2 March 2015 They were signed

on its beholf by

John Reizenstein

Chiet Financial Othcer
Drrect Line Insurance Group ple

Registration No 02280426
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Parent Company statement of comprehensive income

For ihe yeor ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
£m £m
Prokt for the year 4367 193 1
Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement
Cash flow hedges 12 -
Other comprehensive income net of tax 12 -
Total comprehensive income for the year atiributable to owners of the Company 4379 1931
Parent Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Foraign
Shorebased  exchange Total
Shore Caprot poyment  henslonan Retoined  shareholder
capial ieserves reserve resenve eamings equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2013 1500 1,4500 03 - 16615 32618
Tolal comprehensive sncome for the year - - - - 1931 1931
Drvidends pad - - - - (242 7) {242 7|
Credi! to equity for equitysefiled share-based
payments - - 41 - - 41
Shares distnbuted by employee irusts - - [0 5) - - [0 5)
Balance at 31 December 2013 1500 11,4500 KR~ - 1,6119 372158
Total comprehensive ncome for the year - - - P2 4367 437 9
Dividends paid - - - - (401 1) {401 1)
Credit to equity for equity setled shore-based
payments - - 66 - - 66
Shares distnbuted by employee trusls - - (10 - - {1 0)
Balance at 31 December 2014 1500 11,4500 95 12 16475 325812
Parent Company cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2014
2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Net cash used by operoting actvihies 13 @ {3 0
Cash flows from inveshng achvities
Inlerest receved on loans lo subsichary underiakings 47 6 47 5
Dividends recerved from subsidiary underiakings 4467 2208
Acquisiion of nvestmenls in subsidiary underiokings - @19
Drsposal of invesimenis in subsidiary undertakings 2 27 393
Cash flows from net investment hedges - (5 3)
Purchase of AFS financial investments 51 -
Net cash generated from investing achvihes 4919 2932
Cash flows from hnancing actrvities
Dwidends paid (401 1) (242 7}
Finance costs (46 3} [46 3)
Repayment of borrowmngs from related parhes - {255 G}
Netl increase 1n loans advanced to subsidiory undertakings - |7 7}
Net cash used by financing achvities (447 4) (551 7)
Net increase / (decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 444 {261 5)
Cash and cash equvalents at the beginning of the year 8 68 268 3
Cash ond cash equivalents at the end of the year 8 512 68

The attached noles on pages 163 to 166 form an nlegral poit of these separate hinancral slatlements
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements

1 Accounhng policies

1 1 Basis of preparation

Direct Line Insurance Group ple, incorporated n the UK, 1s the uliimate parent company of the Direct Line Group The principal
activity of the Company 1s managing s invesiments in subsidianies, providing loans 1o those subsidiaries, rassing funds for the
Gioup ond the receipl and poyment of dvidends

The Company's financial slotements are prepared in accordance with 1FRSs as rssued by the IASB ond are presented in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 In accordance with the exemphion permitted under section 408 of Componies
Act 2006, the Company’s income stalement and related noles have not been presented in these separate hnancial stotements

The accounting policies that are used in the preparation of these separate financial statements are consistent with the accounting
policies used in the preparation of the consahidated hnonciol stalements of Direct Line Insurance Group ple as set out in those
hnancial statements

The addiional accounting policies that are specific to the separate knanciol siatements of the Company are sel out below

1 2 Invesiment (n subsicharies
Investment in substchartes 1s stated at cost less any iImparrment

1 3 Dividend income
Dwidend income from invesiment in subsidianes 15 recognised when the nght to receive payment 1s established

2 Investment in subsidiary undertakings

2014 2013

£m £m

Al January ! 3,181 5 3,226 1
Additions 66 132
Disposals (40) (50 7}
Imparrments (4 3) {10 8}
Effect of toreign currency exchange adjusiment - 37
Transfer to assets held for sale {114 8) -
At 31 December 30650 3.181 5

The Company sold 100% of the share copilal of s subsichary Tracker Network {UK) imited on 5 February 2014 The carrying
value of the investment «n Tracker was £4 O million ot the dote of sale The tolal cash consideration recaived was £2 7 miflion
generoiing o loss on disposal of £1 3 milhon

The Company sold 100% of the share capsal of s subsidiary Direct Line Life Insurance Compaony Imiled on 28 November
2013 The carmying value of the investment in the irfe business was £50 7 miflion at the date of sole The total cash
consideraton received was £39 3 mithon generoting a loss on disposal of £11 4 million

Full detanls of invesiments in principal subsidianes are set out n note 20 1o the: consolidated financial slalemens

3 Assets held for sole

2014 2013
m £m
Investment in subsidiary undertaking 1148 -

On 25 Seplember 2014, the Company entered inlo @ binding agreement for the sale, subject 1o regulatory approval, of its
German subsicdiary Direct Line Versicherung AG for a cash consideration of €292 0 million {£228 3 million)

www directlinegroup com
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued

4 Cther receivables

2014 2013

£m £m

loans o subsidiary underiokings' 5189 5288
Recewvables from subsidiary undertakings 29 -
Other deblors 15 -
Total 5233 5288
Current 233 288
Non-current 5000 5000
Total 5233 528 8

Note

1 Inclded in loons to subsidiary undarickings is a £500 million unsecured subordinated loon to U K Inswance Lmied The loan was advanced on 27 Apnl 2012
ot o fixed rate of & 5% with o repayment date of 27 Apnl 2042 There 1s on ophion 1o repay the loan on specific dales from 27 Apnl 2022 I the loen 15 not
repaid on 27 Apnl 2022, the rote of interest will be resat of a rote of the sixmonth UBOR plus 8 16%

5 Current tax assets

2014 2013
£m £m
Corporahon tax recoverable 12 16
6 Dervahive inancial instruments
Notonai Amaunt Far Yalue
2014 2014
£m £m
Derivahve assets
Designated as hedging instuments — third partias 4354 24
Dervahve hakbilihes
Designated os hedging nstruments - subsidiasy undertakings 83 06

The Company entered info a foreign currency hedge contract in September 2014, converting Euro to Pounds Sterhng, n relation
1 the proposed sale of the International business The Company has also entered into toreign exchange hedge contracts relating lo
suppher poyments on behalf of 1ts Group subsidianes The Company had no denvalive financial instruments at 31 December 2013

7 Financial investments

2014 2013

£m £m

AFS debt securities 51 -
8 Cash and cash equivalents

214 2013

£m £m

Cash ot bank and 1in hand 01 o

Shortterm deposits with credit institutions 5110 67

Total 512 &8

9 Share capital
Full details of the share capilal of the Company are set out in note 27 o the consolidated finoncial stolements
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10 Subordinated habiliies

2014 2013
£m £m
Subordinated guaranteed dated notes 503t 502 4

The subordinated guaranteed dated noles were 1ssued on 27 Apnl 2012 at a fixed rate of @ 25% The nominal £500 0 million
notes have a redemption date o 27 Aprl 2042 The Company hos the option to repay the notes on speciic dates kom 27 Apnl
2022 i the notes are not repard on 27 Apn! 2022, the rote of interest will be reset at a rate of the sixmonth LIBOR plus 7 91%

The notes are unsecured, subordinated obhigahons of the Company, ond rank pan possu wathout any preference among
themselves In the even: of o winding up or of insolvency, they are to be repaid only after the claims of all cther senior creditors
have been met

The notes are guaranieed by U K Insurance Limited, a principal subsidiary of the Company

The Company hos the opfion in cerlain circumsiances, to defer inlerest payments on the notes but 1o date has not exercised this nght
The aggregate fair value of subordinated guaranteed dated notes 1s £651 @ million {2013 £625 4 million)

11 Trade and other payables

2014 2033

£m £m

Paychbles to subsidhary undertokings 10 05
Payables to thid porhes 01 -
Total 11 05

12 Dividends
Fult details of the dwidends paid and proposed by the Company are set out 16 nole 15 1o the consolidated financia! statements

13 Cash generated from operaiions

2014 2013
£m £m
Proht for the year 4367 1931
Adjustmenis for
Impatrment in subsidiory underiakings 43 108
investment tncome (494 5 {268 4}
Other operating gains (0&) @2
Finance costs 469 471
loss on disposal of subsidiory undertakings 13 114
Tax credil {12} (13
Operating cash lows before movements in working capital 71 {7 5}
Maovemenls in working capital
Net decrease in olher receivables 48 08
Net increase in irade and other payables 06 -
Tax received 16 42
Finance costs - [0 5)
Cash used by operations 01) {30}

www directlinegroup com
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued

14 Related parties
Direct Line Insurance Group ple, which 1s incorporated in England and Wales, 1s the ulimate parent undertaking of the Direct Line
Group of companies

On 27 February 2014 RBS Group anncunced the completion of the sale of its remaining interest of 423 2 million Ordinary
Shares in the Company

RBS Group has now sold all its Ordinary Shares in Direct line Group except for the shares held to sahsty longrlerm incentive plan
awards granied by RBS Group 1o Direct Line Group management Full details of related parties are set out in nole 39 1o the
consokdated financial slatements

The following Iransactions were camed out with related parties

Sales of services

2014 2013

£m £m

Interest receved from subsidiary underlokings 47 6 47 4
Dwidend income from subsidiary undertokings 4467 2208

Interast Income from loons to subsiciary underlakings wos charged of rates ranging from O 5% to @ 50% (2G13 0 5% 1o @ 50%)

Purchases of services

2014 2003

£m £m

Management fees payoble to subsidiary undertakings 73 77
Intesest payable to subsidiary undertekings - oA
Total 73 78

Inferest charged on borrowings from relaled porties ware of rates ranging from O 5% 10 0 6% (2013 0 5% 1o 2 O%)

15 Share-based payments
Full details of sharebosed compensation plans are provided in note 33 1o the consolidated financial siatements

16 Risk management

The nsks faced by the Company are considered 1o be from its investment in subsidiones The Company also holds, on behalt of
s subsidiones, designated hedging instruments which relate to the sale of the Group's Inferational business and foreign currency
supplier payments

Its risks are considered 1o be the same as those in the operations of the Group itsell and detals of the key nsks 1o the Group and
the steps taken to manage them are disclosed in nole 3 o the consohidated financial siatements

17 Directors and key management remunerahon

The Duectors and key management of the Group and the Company are the same The aggregate emoluments of the Directors
are set out n note 11 1o the consolidoted financial sialements, the compensation lor key management is set out In note 39 o the
consolidated financial statements and the remuneration and pension benefits poyable in respect of the lighes! pard Director, are
included in the Directors’ remunaration report In the Govemnance sechon of the Annual Report & Accounts
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Addihonal information

Corporate website

The Group's corposale website 1s www directlinegroup com

ft contains addihonal useful information for the Company's
investors and shareholders, including press releases,
forthcoming events, essential shareholder information, dvidend
history, @ hinancial calendar, ond details of the Company’s
AGM You can also subscribe for email news alerts

Market

The Company has a premium listing on the UK Lisiing
Auvthonity's Oficial list The Company's Ordinary Shares,
exchonge price mformation code {"EPIC*} DIG, are admitted
to tading on the Llondan Stock Exchange

Share ownership

Share capital

You can bind delails of the Company's share copital 1n note 27
to the consclidated financial statements

Dwidends

The Group aims to generate long term sustanable value for
shareholders, while balancing operational, regulatory, rating
agency and policyholder requirements The Board has adopted
a progressive dividend policy lor the Compeny  This will aim to
mcrease the dividend annually in real terms 1o reflect its cash
flow generation and long term earmings potental

It 15 expected that onethird of the annua! dividend will
generally be pard i the thied quarter as an interim dividend,
and two thirds will be paid as a finol dvidend in the second
quarter of the following year The Board may revise the
dwidend policy from ime 1o ttme

Additionally, if the Board believes the Group has captial surplus
to the Board's wiew of il requirements, o 1s infended that such
excess capiial will be retuined to shareholders The Company
may consider a speciol dvidend and/or a repurchase of its
own shares 1o disinbute surplus capiial to shareholders

The Company pays its dvidends in Pounds Sterling to
shareholders registered on ifs regrster of members at the
relevani record dote

Shareholders may have their cash dividends paid directly into
a bank or bullding society by completing ¢ dwmidend mandale
form This 1s available from the Compaony's registior,
Compulershare Invesior Services PLC {“Registrar”), in the UK
You can find the Registrar’s contoct details on page 172
Abernatvely, shareholders may access therr shareholdings
online and download a dvidend mandate form from the
Investor Centre You con find details of this on page 172

Dmdend Reinvestment Plan

The Company offers a Dividend Remvestment Plan ("DRIP"} that
gwes shareholders the opportunity to use therr cash dwidends
to buy the Company’s Ordinory Shares in the markel You can
find further detarls on the Company’s websile

Shareholder enquiries

Shareholders with quenes on any matter reloting to ther shores
can contact our Registrar using the conlact delails listed on
page 172 of this Annual Report & Accounts

Shareholders should notfy the Registrar of any change in
shareholding detalls, such as therr address, as soon as possible

Shareholders can atso access therr current shareholding details
online at www investorcentre co uk/directine  Investor Centre
15 ¢ free fouse, secure, self service website that enables
shareholders to manage therr holdings online The website
ollows shareholders 1o

o Check their holdings l

» Updote therr records (including address and direct
credit details}

» Access dall therr secunties 1n one porffolio by seting up a
persenal account

« Voie online

« Register to recewve electionic shareholder communications

The website requires shareholders to quote their Sharehalder
Reterence Number, which can be lound on their share
cenficale, to access this information

Shareholder warning
Frve thousand people contact the FCA about share fraud each
year, with vichms losing an average of £20,000

Fraudsters use persuasive and highpressure tachics o lure
invesiars Into scams  They may offer to sell shares that ranspire
io be worthless or nonexistent, or to buy shares af an inflated
piice n retumn lor an vpliont payment While iugh profits are
promised, if you buy or sell shares m this way, you will
piobably lose your money

How to avord share fraud
» Remember that firms authonised by the FCA ore unlikely to
contact you out of the blue with an offer to buy or sell shares

Do not start conversing wath them Note the name of the
person and fum contochng you, then end the call

USHDUWLIOUI DY)

Check the Financial Services Register al www feca org ok to
see f the person and firm conlacling you are authonsed by
the FCA

Beware of fraudsters claiming to be from an authonsed hrm,
copying ils website or giving you folse contact details

» Use the firm's contact detalls histed on the Register 1f you
wani 1o call them back

o Call the FCA on G800 111 6768 f the hrm does not have
contact deteuls on the Register or you are told they are out
of date

Search the list of unauthonised hirms to avoid at
www ica org uk/scams
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Additonal information continued

¢ Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthonsed
firm, you will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman
Service or Financial Sevices Compensation Scheme

« Think about geting independent financiol and prolfessional
advice before you hand over any money

« Remember, If it sounds too good to be frue, it probably 1s

Report a scam

If fraudsters approach you, please tell the FCA using the share
fraud reporhing form at www feca org uk/scams Thes web
page also provides more information about mvesiment scams

Yeu can also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on
0800 111 6768 >

IF you have already pard money 1o share kaudsters, contact
Achion Fraud on 0300 123 2040

Tips on how you can protect your shares

= Keep all your cerificales in a sale ploce  Alternotively,
consider holding your shares in the UK's elecronic
registration and seflement system for equity, CREST, or via
o nominee

 Keep correspondence from the Registiar that shows your
sharehclder reference number in a safe place, and shred
unwanted correspondence

« Inform the Regushiar as seon as you change your address

= If you receive a lefter from the Registrar regarding o change
of address and you have not recentty moved, contact
them immediately

* Be oware of when the dvidends are pard and contact the
Registrar if you do nof receve your dividend

Consider having your dividends paid directly info your bank
account You will need 1o fill out a dividend mandate form
and send it 1o the Regustrar This reduces the nisk of cheques
being stolen or lost in the post

If you change your bank account, inform the Regisirar of
your new account details immediciely

If you are buying or selling shares, deal only with brokers
registered m the UK o in your couniry of residence

Be aware that the Company will never call you conceming
mvestment matters If you receive such o calf hom o person
purporting 1o represent the Company, please contact the
Company Secretary immedsately

Electronic communications and vohing

The Group produces o range of communicatons which
shareholders can view online, download or receve o paper
copy by contacting the Regstrar You can find the Registrar’s
contact detoils on poge 172

Shareholders who register their email address with our
Registrar of at the Investor Centre can leam of events by emall,
such as the AGM, and receive shareholder communications
Ike the Annual Report & Accounts, and Notice of Meeting

Note

Dealing facilihes

Shareholders can buy, sell or ransfer heir shares through o
stockbroker or a high street bank, or through the Regustrar’s
share dealing facility

You con call or email the Registrar regarding 11s share-dealing
facility using the following conlact information

o For telephone sales, call +44 [0}870 703 0084 between
8 30 am and 5 30 pm, Monday to Fnday, excluding
publc hohdays

+ For intemet sales log on to
www investorcentie co uk/directline You will need your
Shareholder Reference Number as shown on your share
certificate or your welcome letier from the Chairman

Financial calendar

2015

Date Event

3 March Prelirmnary Results Announcement 2014

12 March ‘Exdwidend’ date for 2014 intenm!
Qnd Secﬂnd Speci(]l infenm leideﬂdS

13 March Record date for 2014 intesm’ and
second special ntenm dividends

17 Apil Poyment dale for 2014 ntenm' ond
second special dvidends

6 May? Interim Management Statement for the
birst quaiter of 2015

13 May Annual General Meeling

4 Augus? Half Year Report 2015

13 August? ‘Exdmdend’ date for 2015 mtenm
diidend

14 August? Record dale lor 2015 mtenm dwdend

11 September? Poyment date for 2015 ntenm dividend

3 November? Inferim Management Siatement for the

third quarter of 2015

Annval General Meehng

The 2015 AGM wall be held on 13 May 2015 at The
Auditonum, Allen & Owvery 1P, One Bishops Square, london
EY 6AD, siamng at 11 00 am  All shareholders will receve a
separate notice convening the AGM, which will explam the
rescluhions 1o be put to the meeting

1 The Board has resoked this yeor fo pay an inlenm dwidend in bew of o fina! dradend

2 These dotes ore subject to change
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Glossary

Term

Defimticn

Actuanal best eshmate

The probabilityweighted average of all future cloims and cost scenanos calculated using
historicat data, ccluanal methods and udgement A best eshmate of reserves will therefore
noimally be designed to include no margin for optmism or, convessely, cauhon

Alp

Annual Incentive Plan

Available-for-sale (*AF5”)
invastment

Financial assets that are classified s available for sale  Please refer to the accounting policy
note 1 12 onpoge 111

BAYE Buy-As You Eomn
Capital The funds invesied in the Group, including funds nvesied by shareholders and retained profits
Clatms frequency The number of clams divided by the number of policies per year

Claims reserve (provision
for losses and loss-
adjustment expense)

Funds the Group sels aside to meet the estmated cost of claims payments ond related
expenses that the Group considers 1 will ultmately need to poy

Clawhack

The ability of the Company 1o claim repayment of paid amounts

Combined operating
ratio ("COR”)

The sum of the loss, expense and commission ratios The ratio 15 a measure of the amount of
claims costs and expenses compared to net earned premium generated A ratio of fess than
100% ndicates profitable business

Commission

Amounls pard fo brokers, partners and PCWs for generating business

Commission ratto

The raho of commisston expense divided by net eamed premium

Current-year attriional
loss rano

The loss rahio for the current accident year, excluding the impact of movement of clams
reserves relaling fo previous accident years, ond claims relating to major weather events in the
Home division

Dalp

Deferred Annucl Incenhve Plan

Discontinued operations

The Group reached a binding agreement with Mapkre, S A to sell the Group’s Infernahonal
division, see noles 1 and 5 to the consolidaied financial statements, on pages 108 and 133
respectively

DL4B

Direct Line for Business 1s an extension of the Direct Line brand It 1s our direct commercial
insurance brand for smalk sized businesses in the UK that have straighforward commercial
INsuIance requirements

Earnings per shore

The amount of the Group's profit allocated 1o each Ordinary Share of the Company

ERB

Employee Representative Body

Expense rahio

The ratio of operaiing expenses divided by net eamed premum

Finance cosls

The cost of servicing the Group's external borrowings

Financial Conduct

The independent body that regulates firms and finencial advisers 11 helps put the interests of

Authority {“FCA”) cusiomers and the wmiegnity of the market at the core of what insurance, and other linancicl

service, providers do Q
FRC Financial Reporing Council a
Gross wniften premium The total premiums from contracts that began duning the penod 5
IASB International Accouniing Standards Board %
Incurred but not reported ~ Funds set aside to meet the cost of claims for acaidents that have taken place, but have not yet g
(“IBNR”) been reported fo us ]
lncurred loss Claims that have been paid plus claims advised by a policyholder, but nat yet paid Does not

include IBNR, see above
ICA Indwidual copiial assessment
ICAS Indwidual capital odequacy standards
ICAS+ Intioduced by the PRA in 2013, ICAS+ 1s an extension of the ICAS regime It allows ferms to

use thair developing Solvency Il frameworks, partcularly the internal model
In-force policies The number of policies on a given date thai are active ond against which the Group will pay,

fO”OWlng a Vﬂlld Insurance Clﬂlm
:mhql public offering The first sale of shores by a previously unlisted company to investors on @ secunties exchange
“IPO”)
Insurance reserves This compnses insurance habilities and the habilitradequacy reserve Together, these amount

fo the reserves an insurance company mainiains 1o meet current and fulure claims
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Glossary continued

Tem

Dehribion

Investment income yteld

The annualised nvestment income earned through the income statement dunng the penod,
divided by the average assels under management {"AUM") for each asset class during the
same period Invesiment income excludes unrealised and realised gans and losses,
impamments and arvalue adiustments, while the average AUM lor the penod 1s derved
from the penod's opeming and closing balances

Investment return

The income eamed from the investment porffolio This includes unreclised and realised gains
and losses, impaiments and farvalue adjustments

Investment retyrn yield

The tatal annualised investment retun eamed through the mcome statement during the penod
This includes items such as unsealised and realised gains and losses, impairments and fair-
value adjustments, dvided by the average AUM for each asset closs duning the same penod

Loss ratio Nel insurance claims dvided by net eamed premium
LTIP Long Term Incenhve Plan
Malus An arrangement that permils the lorfeiture of unvested remuneration awards, in circumstances

the Company considers approprale

Net asset value

The net assel value of the Group 1s calculated by subliaching totel liabiiies from total assets

Net claims

The cost of claims incurred n the perniod less any claims costs recovered under reinsurance
contracls It includes claims poyments and movements in cloims reseves

Net earned premium

The element of gross earned premium less reinsurance premum ceded for the penod where
nsurance cover has already been provided

Ogden discount rate

The discount rate set by the relevant government bodies, the lord Chanceidlor and Scothish
Munisters, and used to calculate lumprsum awards in bodily inury cases

Ongoing operations

Includes the Group's ongoing segments Motor, Home, Rescue and cther personad Iines, and
Commercial It excludes the Intemational division, the Run off segment and restructuring and
other one-clf costs

Operating profit

The pre-tax prohit gererated by the Group's activities, including nsurance and invesiment
achvity, but excluding finonce costs

ORSA

Own Risk ond Solvency Assessmenl

Periodic payment order
(“PPO")

These are claims paymenls as awarded under the Courts Act 2003 PPOs are used 1o setfle
large personal mpury claims They generally provide claimants who require fong term care with
a lump sum award plus iflahor-inked annucl payments

Prudential Regulathon
Authority {"PRA”)

The Prudental Regulation Authority 1s a part of the Bank of England It 1s responsible for the
prudental regulation and supervision of insurers and financial nstituions in the UK

RBS Group

The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc and s subsidiary compontes

Reinsurance

Coniraciual arrangements where the Group transfers part or all of the insurance risk accepted
o another insurer

Reserves

Funds thot hove been set aside to meet cutstanding insurance claims and IBNR

Return on equity

Return on equity 1s calculated by dividing the profit atmbutable to the owners of the Company
by average ordinary shareholders” equity for the penod

Return on tangible equity
(“RoTE”)

Return on tangible equity 15 adjusted profit after tax from ongoing operations dvided by the
Group's average shareholders’ equity less goodwill and other inlangible assets Profi after tax
ts adjusted 1o exclude the International division, which 15 classified as discontinued operatons,
the Run off segment and restructuning and other oneoff costs, and 1s stated after charging tax
fusing the: UK standard tox rale)

Risk mix Risk mix reflects the expected level of claims from the porffolio It measures the estimated
movement based on nsk models used in that pened and 15 revised when nsk models
are updated

Run-off Where the Group no longer underwntes new business, but continues lo meet iis claims
habilines under exishing contracts

SME Small and medumesized enterprises

Solvency Il The proposed capital adequacy regime for the European insurance mdustry to become

effechve on 1 January 2016, which estoblishes a revised sel of EUwide copilal requiements
and nisk menagement standards It compnises three pillars Pillar 1, which sets out capilal
requirements for an msurer, Pillar ll, which focuses on sysiems of govemance, and Pillar 11,
which deals with disclosure requirements

Total Shareholder Return
{“TSR”)

Compares the movement in the share price logether with reinvested dvidends os o percentoge
of the share price al the beginning of the perod

Underwriting result
{proht / loss)

The profit or toss from operational achvies, excluding investment performance I11s calculated
as net eamed premium less net insurance clams and 1olal expenses
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Forward-looking statements disclaimer

This Annual Report & Accounts has been prepared for, and
only for, the members of the Company as a body, ond no
other persons The Company, 115 Directors, employees, ogenls
or advisers do not accept responsibility fo any other person to
whom Ihis document 1s shown or mio whose hands it may come
and any such responsibility or lability 15 expressly disclamed

Cerlan information contained in this document, including any
information os to the Group's strategy, plans or future financial
or operaling performance, conshitutes “ferwarcdiooking
statements” These forward looking statements moy be
identified by the use of forward locking terminclogy, including
the terms "aims”, "anticipates”, “ospire”, “believes”,
"conlinue”, “cotld”, "estimates”, “expects”, "guidance”,
“intends”, “may”, “outlook”, “plans”, “predicts”, “projects”,
“seeks”, “should”, “targets” or "will” or, 1n each case, their
negotive or other vanations or comparable ferminclogy, or by
discussions of strategy, plans, objectves, goadls, future events
of mntenhons  These forward locking siatements nclude all
matters that are not hustonical facts They appear i a number
of places throughout this document and include statements
regording the intentaons, behels or current expeclahons of the
Direclors conceming, among other things the Group's resulis
of operations, financial condition, prospacts, growlh, shalegies
and the indusiry n which the Group operates Examples of
forward lacking statements include hnanciol targets which are
conlained n this document specifically with respect to RoTE,
nsk based capital coverage raho, the Group’s COR and cost
savings By their nature, all forward fooking siatements nvolve
nsk and uncertainiies becouse they relate 1o events and
depend on circumstances thal may or may not occur in the
future or are beyond the Gioup's control

Forwarddooking statements are not guarantees of luture
performance The Group's octual results of operations,
hinancial condihion and the development of the business sector
in which the Group operates may differ materially from those
suggested by the forward looking statements contained in this
document, for example directly or indirectly as o resull of, but
nol hmiled to, UK domeslic and global economic business
conditions, marketrelated nsks such as Huctuahions in interest
rates and exchange rotes, the policies and achons of
regutatory authonties (including changes related 1o capriol and
solvency requirements or the Ogden discount ratel, the impact
of competiiion, currency changes, inflation and deflaton, the
tming impact and other uncertonlies of fulure acquisiions,
disposals, joint ventures or combinahons within refevant
indusines, as well as the impact of tax and other legislation
and other regulahon in the unsdictions in which the Group and
s affthates operate In addition, even i the Group's actual
resulis of operations, inancial condiion and the development
of the business sector in which the Group operales are
consistent with the forward looking stalements contaimed in this
document, thase results or developments may not be indicative
of resulls or developments in subsequant penods

The forward locking statements contained n this document
reflect knowledge and information available as of the deate ol
preperation of dus document The Group and the Directors
expressly disclaim any obligations or undertaking 1o update or
revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as o
resuh of new informanon, future events or otherwise, unless
required 1o do so by applicable low or regulation Nothing in
this document should be consiued as a profit forecast

Neither the content of Direct Line Group's website nor the
content of any other website accessible from hyperlinks on
the Group's website 15 incorposated into, or forms part of,
this document
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Contact information

Registered office

Direct Line tasurance Group ple
Churchll Court

Westmoreland Road

Bromley

BR1 10P

Registered in England No 02280426
Company Secretary Roger C Chifton

Telephone +44 {0}1132 920 667
Website www directinegroup com

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BSQQ 677

Shareholder helpline +44 {01870 873 5880
Shareholder fax +44 [0)870 703 6101
Telephone number for the hard of heaning
+44 {01870 702 0005

Website www compulershare com

Investor Cenire
To find out more about Investor Centre, go to
www investorcenire co uk/dreciline

Auditor

Delottte LLP

Hill House

1 litle New Street

London
EC4A 3TR

Telephore +44 [0)20 7936 3000

Website www deloitie com

Legal advisers
Allen & Overy LLP
One Bishops Square
tondon

El1 6AD

Telephone +44 [0}20 3088 0000

Website www dllenovery com

Slaughter and May
One Bunhill Row
London

ECTY BYY

Telephone +44 (0) 20 7600 1200
Websile www sloughterandmay com
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Principal banker

The Royal Bank of Scotland Group ple
280 Bishopsgate

Llondon

EC2M 4RB

Telephone +44 (0]131 556 8555
Website www 1bs com

Corporate brokers
Goldman Sachs International
Peterborough Count

133 Fleet Street

london

EC4A 2BB

Telephone +44 {0)20 7774 1000
Websiie www goldmansachs com

Morgan Sianley & Co Infernational ple
25 Cabot Square

Conary Whart

london

E14 4QA

Telephone +44 (0)20 7425 800G
Websile www morganstanley com

RBC Europe Lid
Riverbank House
2 Swan lane
london

EC4R 3BF

Telephone +44 {0)20 7653 4000
Website www rbccm com




More information

In congunction with this report, we have produced Our app houses the mosl
a separate online version of key sections upto-date financial information

For more information, go to
ara?014 directinegroup com

VA
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FSC® C022913

about the Group which includes
the following sechions

» Results and presentations

* Share price information

» Finonaicd calendar

* Company and regulotory news

To download the app search
Direct Line Group Investor Relations

This report 15 printed on mixed source poper which 15 FSC® cemfied
ithe standards for well managed forests, considening envirenmental, social and ecanomic 1ssues)

Designed ond produced by Black Sun Ple
Pnrited by Pureprint Group



Direct Line Insurance Group plc ©

Regrstered in England & Wales No 02280426
Regustered Othce Chuschill Court, Westmoreland Road, Bromley, BR1 1DP




